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TRUST
BEYOND
STEEL

For over 67 years, BSRM has
provided superior, trusted and
reliable steel products to build both
national mega structures and homes
for the people. But BSRM is trusted
and relied upon by people
everywhere not just for steel, but for
its service beyond steel - in building
not just foundations and walls, but
hearts and minds, cities and
communities and ultimately, the
nation itself.

From bringing light to people’s
homes to providing safe drinking
water, from vocational training to
making roads safer for everyone
using them, from planting trees to
reducing emissions and recycling to
protect the environment, BSRM
continues to serve the people in
building a better, safer nation for
today and for the future.

This service beyond steel to the
people of this nation is why BSRM is
trusted and relied upon by everyone
— from the builders of the tallest
mega structures to those building
homes for their loved ones, and even
among those people who have never
used their steel.



‘ LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

Date: November 24, 2019

Valued Shareholders of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission

Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms

Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd.

Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd.

Annual Report for the year ended 30" June, 2019
Dear Sir (s),

We are pleased to enclose herewith a copy of the Annual Report of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited together
with the Audited Financial Statements, Consolidated Financial Statements, Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors’
Report thereon for the year ended 30" June 2019 for your information and records.

Sincerely yours,

Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA
General Manager (F&A) and Company Secretary

-
<
=
=
=
w
=
<
o
=
L
o
o
[S8]
=
=
w
-




0600600606060000000060006006
066060660060060060600606066



EMPOWERING
VULNERABLE
WOMEN

Near the Indian border lies the remote village of Sharsha Upazilla, far from Jessore. Women and
girls there are at constant risk of being trafficked under false pretenses and subjected to inhuman levels of
treatment, often causing them to take their own lives. BSRM has become a blessing to such women by
establishing the BSRM Foundation Training Center, where these women have become self-dependent through
training in various skills that enable them to earn a living. This sense of self-worth and
self-confidence has given them a new lease on life.




WE?

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited (BSRMLTD) is
the oldest Steel re-rolling mill in Bangladesh. With four
manual rolling mills, we stepped out for our journey in
1952 as the first ever steel mill in Bangladesh.

Today, Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited
(BSRMLTD) is the largest merchant steel re-rolling mill
in Bangladesh. This mill is capable of producing high
quality Reinforcing Steel and other steel products such
as Channel, Angle, Square-Bar, etc. We have
introduced another product “BSRM Centura”, a coated
rebar that resists Chloride induced corrasion and
prevents rusting. As we started our commercial
operation in December 09, 2015 after BMRE, within a
period of 4 years, our production capacity has reached
700,000 M. Ton.

BSRMLTD owns another unit called “Steel Melting
Works (SMW)" which is producing Billets for BSRMLTD
with a capacity of 150,000 M. Ton per annum.

Presently, BSRMLTD is holding 31.19% shares of its
associate company BSRM Steels Limited and 44.97%
shares of its subsidiary company BSRM Steel Mills
Limited. In addition, BSRMLTD has another subsidiary
company BSRM (Hong Kong) Limited which is based
in Hong Kong.
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DIVIDING
ROADS TO ENSURE
SAFETY

Road safety is a huge concern for the people of Bangladesh.

In order to help make roads safer, BSRM has manufactured road
dividers, distributing them throughout the nation. This not only makes
the roads safer for both people and transportation, it helps the traffic

police organize and maintain traffic on the road.




OVERALL
STRATEGIC
0BJECTIVES

To produce High Quality steel Products

To Reduce the Cost of Production

To Optimize Production Capacity

To Ensure Maximum
Satisfaction of the Customer

To Recruit and Develop Workforce

To Ensure Adequate Corporate
Governance & Compliance




ENSURING
SAFE DRINKING
WATER

In the hill tracts of Adarshagram in Jaintapur Sylhet, drinking water was once a luxury.
Every day children had to climb 400 feet to fetch safe and clean water for their families from the only source
available — until BSRM stepped in. Partnering with the NGO Thengamara Mohila Sabuj
Sangha (TMSS-RES), BSRM has set up a 15,000 liter-capacity solar pump with water reservoir at the
top of the hill. Now mothers from 300 different families can look after their infant children, fetch the
water and do household work while the older children can go to school.




WE AT BSRM GROUP ASPIRE TO...

e Maintain our leadership position in the steel industry
by producing the best quality steel products,
continuously enhancing customer satisfaction and
becoming a reliable business partner of our
customers and suppliers.

e Be an employer of choice, with focus on nurturing
talent and developing future leaders of the
organization.

e Protect the interest of our shareholders through
sustainable growth and value creation.

e Preserve the trust of all our stakeholders by adopting
ethical business practices.

e Support the society through Corporate Social
Responsibility initiatives.

Sustainable Growth: Consistent improvement in the
quality of products and services, efficiency of processes
and profitability of business; continuously anticipating and
responding to the changing business and environmental
needs using innovation; sharing knowledge and
experience within the organization.

Quality: Create products and services valued by our
customers; constantly improving our processes through
innovation and adopting best practices; reducing wastage;
minimizing costs; investing in systems & technology and

developing our people to build a highly capable workforce.

Reliability: Be the preferred business partner of our
customers and suppliers by offering quality products;
providing our best and timely service before, during and
after the business transactions and honoring all our
commitments despite challenges.

Trust: Preserve the faith and goodwill of all our
stakeholders — Customers, shareholders, suppliers,
employees, regulatory bodies and society by-adopting
ethical and transparent business practices, being fair and
honest in all our dealings and building robust governance
and risk management processes.

Leadership: Be a role model, setting benchmarks through
our products, processes and people; constantly moving
ahead of competition by differentiating our products,
innovating our processes, increasing our market share and
nurturing talent to develop leaders within the organization.

Social Responsibility: Acknowledge and fulfill our
obligations towards the society by undertaking initiatives
for the general uplifting of the society, building capability
and making facilities available to the underprivileged.

Customer Satisfaction: Delight our external and internal
customers at every stage of our interaction with them by
truly understanding their needs, offering them our best
products and services, treating them with respect and
actively seeking and acting on their feedback.
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LIGHTING
THE WAY FOR
FAMILIES
TO PROSPER

In the hill tracts of Sylhet, many homes are not within the reach of
government-facilitated gridlines. To help provide electricity to these areas,
BSRM has set up the Solar Light Program in Jaintapur, Sylhet, where 40 households
now have access to light, leading to increased opportunities for education, lower fuel
costs, sufficient light arrangements for the safety of women and children,
reduced health hazards and better quality of living.




BSRMLTD has
always adopted the best,
ethical and most transparent
business practices to
ensure fairness, honesty
and integrity in all aspects
of our dealings.

We always acknowledge
and fulfill our obligations
to carry out responsibilities
towards the society and
offer our best services to
all of our stakeholders
and treat everyone with
equity and honor.

CODE OF CONDUCT




SAVING THE
ENVIRONMENT
THROUGH ZERO

EMISSIONS

Gaseous fumes from steel production contain large amounts of extremely harmful
suspended solid particles. To tackle this problem, BSRM has implemented Japanese Air
Pollution Control (APC) technology that captures the fumes and filters out the solid
particles, releasing only clean air with Zero Pollution into the atmosphere.




‘BSRM GROUP’S MILESTONES

1852

1384

00906

2008

0090

The BSRM saga began with the first steel

re-rolling mills to emerge in the then East Bengal.

Introduced high strength cold twisted steel
bars (TORSTEEL) to the construction industry.

Introduced High Strength Deformed reinforcing
steel bars conforming to ASTM 615 Grade 60 for
the construction industry.

Commissioned the then largest billet making plant
in the country - Meghna Engineering Works
Limited, now known as Steel Melting Works (SMW)
unit of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Ltd.

Introduced micro reinforcement wires, below
8mm, for low cost rural construction.

BSRM  Steels Limited commenced production of
internationally  recognized Grade 500 steel bars

branded as “Xtreme500W" conforming to ISO 6935-2.

Entrance in the Capital Market: Shares of BSRM
Steels Limited, the flagship company of BSRM
Group was listed with the country’s premier
bourses Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) Ltd. and
Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) Ltd. as on
18" January 2009.

Production capacity of BSRM Steels Limited
enhanced to 600,000 MT per year.

A syndicated term loan of US Dollar 40 million
and BDT 5,908 million, raised by a consortium of
25 banks and financial institutions, for BSRM
Steel Mills Limited. It is the largest ever
syndicated loan facility arranged for a private
company in Bangladesh.

@

@

@

2018

@

Oracle e-BS-12 went GO LIVE on 1ST
March 2014. Oracle Financials, Costing,
purchasing, Manufacturing, EAM, Inventory &
order management are now integrated on a
single platform which ensure the accuracy,
accountability and reliability of the Group.

1. Capacity of BSRM Steels Limited
enhanced from 600,000 MT to 700,000 MT
per annum.

2. Introduced a new product - “BSRM Maxima”
3. Capacity of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling
Mills increased from 120,000 MT to
540,000 MT per annum which is the first and
largest merchant mill in Bangladesh.

4. Listing of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills
Limited with the stock exchanges (DSE & CSE).

1. For first time in the history of BSRM
Group, sales of MS Products has crossed one
million M. ton in the year of 2016.

2. BSRM Steel Mills Limited, a largest billet
making plant in the country started
commercial production in June 2016.

3. BSRM Ultima -a landmark innovation of
BSRM is introduced first time in Bangladesh.

4. EPOXY coated bars for corrosion free
structure -CENTURA is introduced.

BSRM  Steels Limited has commenced
another melting plant for producing MS billet
on April 16, 2019. The capacity of the plant
is 430,000 M. Ton which is situated at
Sonapahar, Mirsharai, Chattogram.

A state-of-the-art Galvanized Iron (GL) wire,
LRPC wire, Welding Electrode and CO2 wire
manufacturing plant in the name of BSRM
Wires Limited is under construction.
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HELPING
THE DIFFERENTLY
ABLED

The Center for the Rehabilitation for the Paralyzed (CRP) works with the aim of
establishing equal opportunities, rights and participation for people with disabilities.
BSRM became associated with CRP to support children with special needs.
BSRM and CRP jointly provide training and arrange employment to
the disabled for a better and safer life.




‘ACCOLADES FOR BSRM GROUP OF COMPANIES

National Export Award
2016-17, 2015-16 and 2013-14

National Productivity and Best Brand of Bangladesh in Steel Category
Quality Excellence Award 2017 for 2011, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 & 2017
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President’s Award for Tax Card for “1% Highest Tax Payer” in
Industrial Development 2014 engineering category for the tax period 2016-2017




ACCOLADES FOR BSRM GROUP OF COMPANIES
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ICSB National Award, Gold 2015 16" ICAB National Award for

Best Presented Annual Report 2015

L == ]
Certificate of ICSB National Award 2015 Certificate of Merit from SAFA 2015
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ICAB National Awards for Best Presented Annual Report 2012, 2013 & 2015




ACCOLADES FOR BSRM GROUP OF COMPANIES
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Divisional Environment Award 2013

@

Best Electricity Consumer Award 2015

=

5t Standard Chartered-Financial Express

CSR Award 2014

Mercantile Bank Excellence Award 2015

Best Enterprise of the year 2010

@
A

Japan Bangladesh Chamber of Commerce
& Industry (JBCCI) Award 2014
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CORPORATE AND CONTACT INFORMATION

COMPANY NAME

DATE OF INCORPORATION

DATE OF COMMERCIAL OPERATION

SHARE CAPITAL

BORAD OF DIRECTORS

COMPANY SECRETARY

AUDIT COMMITTEE

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (NRC)

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Tapan Sengupta, Deputy Managing Director

Kazi Anwar Ahmed, GM Corporate Affairs & Dhaka Corporate Office
Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA, GM Finance & Accounts and Company Secretary
Sunil Kumar Das, General Manager India Office

Jamil Ahmed, General Manager Human Resources

Mohammad Imtiaz Uddin Chowdhury, DGM Sales & Marketing
Sanjoy Kumar Ghosh, Senior Manager Supply Chain Management

AUDITOR

Rahman Rahman Hug
Chartered Accountants
MM Trade Center (13" Floor) 78, Agrabad G/A, Chattogram.

LOCATIONS

CORPORATE OFFICE

Ali Mansion, 1207/1099 Sadarghat Road,
Chattogram, Bangladesh.

Tel: +880 31 2854901-10, Web: www.bsrm.com
PLANT

Re-Rolling Unit: 147-149, Nasirabad I/A,

Baizid Bostami Road, Chattogram.

Tel: +88 031 683053, 683164, 683094

Steel Melting Works Unit: 78/79, Nasirabad I/A,
Baizid Bostami Road, Chattogram.
Tel: +88 031 681487, 683536

OVERSEAS OFFICE

Hong Kong Office:

BSRM (Hong Kong) Limited

Suite-9, 29" Floor, Pacific Plaza, 410,
Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong.

Kolkata, India:

Block B, 12" Floor, Shantiniketan Building, 8 Camac Street,
Kolkata-700017, Tel:033-65290455, Fax: 033-24633378.
Agartala, India:

Khejurbagan (New-Capital Complex)

Ward No-2, House NO- 020851 PO: Kathalbagan,

PS: New Capital Complex, West Tripura, India.



‘CORPORATE AND CONTACT INFORMATION

DHAKA CORPORATE OFFICE

Nasir Uddin Tower, 4" Floor

Bir Uttam Samsul Alam Road, 104/1 Kakralil,
Dhaka-1000. Tel: +88 02 8300591-95

Fax: +88 02 8300590, Email: dhaka@bsrm.com

UTTARA OFFICE

H-14, Road-6, Sector; 1,

Uttara Model Town, Dhaka.

Tel: 02-8957027, 8958029, Fax # 02-8956496

REGIONAL OFFICES

Sylhet

Jhornar Par Road, Kumar Para, Sylhet.
Tel:0821-721239, 01714080514
Fax; 0821-2832751

Email: sylhet@bsrm.com

Bogura
Tin Matha Rail Gate

(near to North Bengal Petrol Pump), Puran Bogura, Bogura.

Tel: 051-60792, 01711-795148
E-mail:bogra@bsrm.com

Cumilla

Chandrima Super Market,

Airport Road (Near to EPZ Main Gate), Cumilla.
Tel: 081-71988, 01714-080544
E-mail:comilla@bsrm.com

Khulna

Naushin Tower (3" Floor)
11, KDA Avenue, Khulna
Tel: +88-041-733753
E-mail: khulna@bsrm.com

Barishal

Shohid Mukhtojoddha ADC Kazi Azizul Islam Sarak,
(30 go-down road), South Alekanda, Barishal

Tel: 0431-2177518; 01755-545910

Narayangonj
Jungal, Barpara, Bandar, Narayangon;.
Tel: 044-76001557; 01730-313123

Rajshahi
235/2 Alupatti Ghoramara, Boalia, Rajshahi.
Tel: 01755-538353, 01730-087537

Rangpur

House # 71/01, Road #2,

Islambag, RK Road, Rangpur.

Tel: 01711-795148, 01730-784821

Benapole
50 Kagojpukur Benapole Port, Sharsa,
Jessore. Tel: 01730-703045.

Mirsharai
Sonaphar, Zorargonj, Mirsarai, Chattogram.
Tel: 01714-084358.

Mymensingh
Dag No 109, Mouja-Chorkhai, Jamtali, Charkhai Sadar,
Mymensingh. Tel: 0177-7764600

Cox’s Bazar
S.K Tower, 2" floor, Taraboinarchora Khurushkul Road,
Coxsbazar. Tel: 01730-014986

Gazipur

Bagdad Tanzia Tower, 3 Floor, Tangail Road,
Chandona Chowrasta, Gazipur

Mobile: 01714-105052, 01755-545711

Narshingdi
Ripon Tower (1% Floor)

House # 492, Titas Gas Office Road, Chinishpur, Narsingdi.

Mabile: 01713-108206
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JUL'18 TO JUN'19
BDT IN MILLION

44,408.89

4,992.24

3,637.90

2,140.07

1,860.63

PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE

JUL'17 TO JUN'18
BDT IN MILLION

JUL'18 TO JUN'19
BD TK/SHARE

1.88

JUL'17 TO JUN'18
BD TK/SHARE

JUL'18 TO JUN'19
BD TK/SHARE

JUL'17 TO JUN'18
BD TK/SHARE

JUL'18 TO JUN'19
BD TK/SHARE

JUL'17 TO JUN'18
BD TK/SHARE

8.78)




‘ KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Taka in Million
AssetsEmployed

Non- Current Assets 28,711.60 19,869.20 19,451.03 18,507.25 18,165.60 12,602.28 10,874.29

Net Current Assets 958.70 764.53 (5,007.24) (3,647.94) (3,224.78) 833.99  (122.26)

Total Assets Employed 29,670.30 20,633.72 14,443.79 14,859.31 14,940.82 13,436.27 10,752.03

Share Capital 2,360.68 2,146.07 195098 1,950.98 1,773.62 1,558.51 1,558.51

Share Premium 511.97 511.97 511.97 511.97 511.97 - -

Revaluation Reserve 12,151.48 3,974.79 4,019.43 4,067.38 4,07845 4,156.48 4,131.54

General Reserve & Others 30.17 75.83 75.83 75.83 75.83 75.83 30.17

Retained Earnings 7,953.07 6,962.74 4,31859 3,703.63 3,363.80 2,640.98 2,553.64

Shareholder's Equity 23,007.37 13,671.41 10,876.80 10,309.79 9,803.67 8,431.80 8,273.86

Long Term Borrowings 3,871.52 544234 200799 327258 416799 4,056.00 1,406.18

Defined Benefit obligations - Gratuity 231.91 196.16 157.13 142.43 128.57 120.00 .00

Deferred Tax Liability 2,559,560 1,323.81 1,331.86 1,134.51 840.59 828.47 1,071.99

Total Capital Employed 29,670.30 20,633.72 14,443.79 14,859.31 14,940.82 13,436.27 10,752.03

(Operational Results

Revenue 44,408.89 33,238.37 2364893 9,713.86 7,801.98 8,049.89 8,602.42

@Gross Profit 499224 482832 323693 1,362.03 458.01 188.25 500.09

Profit from Operation 3,637.90 386496 257190 1,057.78 207.15 (66.17) 284.99

Profit before Interset, Taxes & Depriciation Alowances ~ 5,437.66  5,704.00  3,465.31  1,807.55 1,771.83 737.85 1,822.44

Profit before Tax 2,740.07 3,021.563 1,197.26 893.74 936.59 6.09  1,300.09

Profit after Tax 1,860.63 2,778.78 756.52 588.65 827.67 109.09 943.82

Gross Profit Ratio - % 11.24% 14.53% 13.69% 14.02% 5.87% 2.34% 5.81%

Net Profit Ratio - % 4.19% 8.36% 3.20% 6.06% 10.61% 1.36% 10.97%

EBITDA margin to Sales - % 12.24% 17.16% 14.65% 18.61% 22.711% 9.17% 21.19%

Return on Shareholders Equity - % 8.09% 20.33% 6.96% 5.71% 8.44% 1.29% 11.41%

Return on Capital Employed - % 6.27% 13.47% 5.24% 3.96% 5.54% 0.81% 8.78%

Current Ratio - Times 1.04 1.04 0.75 0.78 0.73 1.09 0.99 @
Quick/Acid test Ratio - Times 0.33 0.34 0.28 0.35 0.31 0.7 0.43 ;
Inventory Turnover Ratio - Times 2.66 211 2.43 1.35 1.71 1.67 1.52 =
Total Assets Turnover Ratio - Times 0.85 0.83 0.68 0.31 0.29 0.35 0.40 %
Eaming Per Share (EPS) - Taka 7.88 1.77 3.53 3.02 4.78 0.70 6.06 =
Price/ Eaming (PE) Ratio - Times 9.00 8.33 38.13 48.94 27.53 - = g
Price/ Equity Ratio - Times 7.09 9.80 13.46 14.78 13.16 - =
Dividend Per Share (DPS) - Taka 2.50 2.00 2.00 - 1.50 1.00 E
Dividend Pay out Ratio 0.32 017 0.57 - 0.31 1.43 &
Dividend Cover Ratio 3,18 6.47 1.94 - 3.11 0.70 -

Net Assets Value Per Share (NAV) -Taka 97.46 63.70 56,75 52.84 55.28 54.10 53.09

Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share - Taka 2.81 (8.78) (11.38) (3.53) (10.16) (5.43) 0.53

Debt Equity Ratio - Times 1.28 1.92 218 2.08 1.75 1.70 1.57

Interest Coverage Ratio 2.26 2.47 1.64 2.48 2.36 1.42 592

Market Price Per Share - Taka 70.90 98.00 134.60 147.80 131.60 - =

Market Capitalization - (Taka Million) 16,737.00 21,031.53 26,260.15 28,835.44 23,340.78

Contribution to National Exchequer (Taka Milion) ~ 3,109.00  3,274.91  3638.74 1,867.95 164459 1,18352 1,167.70
Average Number of Employees 1,280 922 887 863 816 749 718




KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR
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Shares Holder's Equity (Takain Million )

Gross Profit (Taka in Million )
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‘VALUE ADDED STATEMENT

Value Added:
Revenue
Other Income

Less : Paid to suppliers for materials and services

Distributed as follows:

EMPLOYESS

Wages, salaries, bonus, commissions, pensions and other benefits
PROVIDERS OF FINANCE

GOVERNMENT

DIVIDEND

RETAINED FOR REINVESTMENT & FUTURE GROWTH
Depreciation & Amortization
Retained Profit

2018-19

44,408,886,970 33,238,371,404
2,993,777,733 257,938,369
47,402,664,703 33,496,309,773
39,397,333,142 27,082,865,486
8,005,331,561 100 6,413,444,287 100
724,163,545 9.05 596,932,481 9.31
2,178,030,884 27.21  2,058,370,269 32.09
879,430,637 10.99 242,754,851 3.79
590,170,590 7.36 214,607,488 3.34
4,371,795,656 54.61  3,112,665,089 48.53
694,360,594 8.67 735,660,842 11.47
2,939,175,311 36.72  2,565,118,356 40.00
3,633,535,905 45.39  3,300,779,198 51.47
8,005,331,561 100.00  6,413444,287 100

2017-18

46% — — 2%

N\
1%

Hl Employees = Government

Providers of Finance
M Dividend

M Depreciation & Retained Profits

3%
\

52% —|

M Employees
M Depreciation & Retained Profits

Providers of Finance

9%
/

— 32%

\
4%

M Dividend

M Government



PRODUCTS & MARKETS

It also manufactures structural steel such as
Angles in sizes from 25mmx25mmx3mm to
100mmx100mmx12mm and Channels
75mmx40mmx5mm to 125mmx65mmx8mm.
The Angles and Channels conform to the
national standard BDS ISO 630 Grade 345 and
U.S. standard ASTM 572 Grade 50. Angles are
used in trusses of factory buildings,
telecommunication towers and power
transmission towers. Channels are used in the
fabrication of truck and trailer bodies and in the
construction of steel buildings.

ANGLES
BUNDLE
STACKS

Both the BSRM products enjoy a high degree of

acceptance among customers due to the high
quality of the products and excellent delivery
services. The products are distributed through
m an elaborate chain of BSRM Dealers in divisional

BUNDLE . towns and cities of the country.
STACKS s :
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PRODUCTS & MARKETS

In 2016 BSRM launched a new product known as Centura, which is an Epoxy Coated Reinforcing (ECR). This coated bar is for use in
the construction of infrastructures and buildings in the coastal zones of the country. Itis a well known fact, saline water rapidly corrodes

steel, Concrete structures designed to last 50 year rapidly deteriorate in under 10 years. ECR can easily combat this corrosion by

providing an inert layer of epoxy film which is completely impervious to chloride ion penetration.

New Products & Services:
A) XTREME B500DWR:

In pursuit to our continuous quest for research and innovation, we brought another product “XTREME B5OODWR” which fully conforms
to BDS IS0 6935-2:2016. Grade B500DWR also Conforms Fe 500S of IS 1786:2008 Indian Standard respectively.

The new Grade B500DWR has a minimum Tensile Strength to Yield Strength (T/Y) Ratio: 1.25
The product complies with the provisions of the Bangladesh National Building Code (BNBC).

FEATURES OF XTREME B500DWR:

e |ncreases ductility and safety

e Reduces the chance of sudden collapse of the structure
e High strength steel

e Ensures the highest Elongation at Maximum Force (EMF)

e Suitable for all seismic zones of Bangladesh as per BNBC (Bangladesh National Building Code

B) BSRM FAST BUILD SERVICE CENTRE:

In 2019, BSRM introduced its new Service Center, BSRM Fast Build, to provide customized rebar solutions for all construction related
needs. Under this value adding service center, BSRM offers BBS (Bar Bending Schedule) Development, Cut & Bend, and stirrups.

BSRM Fast Build strongly follows the Bangladesh National Building Code and ACI to deliver all these customized rebar solutions.
The main purpose of this service is to provide simplified rebar solutions by ensuring compliance with regulations, safe &
cost effectiveness.



The Benefits of
BSRM Fast Build Service Center:

e Customized length of the rebar &
bend them at required angles/ hooks/
bending diameter in accordance with
the project’s blueprint.

e “Just in time” as per agreed schedule

e Capable of managing inventories

Just in time

better by reducing material wastage and Minimal inventory ey

holding cost agreed schedule

production costs

e Apart from ensuring aesthetically We can ensure
) . cost effective &
superior clean and strong bars, which timely completion
, . . L f iect Replacement
are made available right at the site OURIDICEES of unskilled labor

Cost effective, Accurate
faster ans hassle-free fabrication
construction
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Mr. Zohair Taherali
DIRECTOR

Mr. Aameir Alihussain
MANAGING
DIRECTOR

Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA
CHAIRMAN

Mrs. Sabeen Aameir

DIRECTOR

Mr. Mono Ranjan Dey FCA
INDEPENDENT
DIRECTOR



‘ BOARD OF DIRECTORS

e

MR. ALIHUSSAIN AKBERALI FCA
CHAIRMAN

Mr. Alihussain Akberali, FCA is a Company Director since
1980. He was born in 1949 as 3" son of Late Akberali
Alibhai Africawala - one of the pioneers of the steel
industry in Bangladesh.

Mr. Alihussain Akberali is an experienced industrialist and
an entrepreneur who is always eager to harness any
unexploited opportunity in the industry. He was recognized
as CIP (Commercially Important Person) in the large scale
industry category for a number of times. He is a Qualified
Chartered Accountant and a fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh.

Mr. Alihussain and his family were recognized by National
Board of Revenue (NBR) as ‘Kar Bahadur' in 2016-2017
for paying highest tax to the national exchequer.

He has been actively participating in various social
activities like Rotary Club, Ma O Shishu Hospital, Chirayata
Shanti Society, Patient Welfare Committee of Chittagong
Medical College and Hospital etc. He is the founder of a
School at Nasirabad, Chattogram which imparts free
education to more than 570 underprivileged students.

MR. AAMEIR ALIHUSSAIN
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Mr. Aameir Alihussain, the only son of Mr. Alihussain
Akberali FCA and Mrs. Bilkis Alihussain was born in 1975.
He completed his graduation in Economics from McGill
University, Canada and received MBA from renowned LUMS
University. He has joined the family business in 2001 with
an aim to set high industry standards for the performance of
the Company. He is actively in supporting the operation of
the Company as Managing Director. He has introduced
modern management practices in the Company and
continuously instilling a team spirit in the industry. He was
recognized as CIP (Commercially Important Person) in the
large scale industry category.

He has also been recognized as CIP (Commercially
Important Person) for the year 2017 under the 'Product
Export & Trade' category.

Mr. Aameir was recognized as the highest taxpayer in
Chattogram District for the year 2014-15 and 2015-16 by
the National Board of Revenue (NBR).

In addition to his corporate activities, he is also involved in
various social activities.
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‘ BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MR. ZOHAIR TAHERALI
DIRECTOR

Mr. Zohair Taherali was born in 1963. He is the son of late
Taherali Alibhai Africawala who was a founding Director of BSRM.

He is a commerce graduate and joined the Company in
1988. He has been playing an important role for the
Company's growth. As the Director of Finance, he is
undertaking the responsibly for the management of Financial
and Administrative aspects of the Company. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr Zohair Taherali and his family were recognized by National
Board of Revenue (NBR) as ‘Kar Bahadur' in 2016-2017 for
paying highest tax in national exchequer.

MRS. SABEEN AAMEIR
DIRECTOR

Mrs. Sabeen Aameir, an MBA from LUMS University,
has been directly involved in Administrative & Human
Resource aspects of the company. She is also actively
guiding the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
activities of the group.

As a member of the Board of Directors, she is applying
her far-sighted thoughts to resolve the matters in the
Board and also concentrating on the development of
Human Resource Management of the Company.

MR. MONO RANJAN DEY FCA
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Mono Ranjan Dey FCA is a Qualified Chartered Accountant
and Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh (ICAB). He possesses 3 decades of experience in
internal and external audit and assurance, developing internal
control system, company related matters and taxation and VAT.

He is a Managing Partner of the reputed Chartered
Accountancy firm MRH Dey & Co. He is the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee
of the Company.



Names of Companies in which Directors hold the Directorship and the membership of committees of the Board

BSRM Steels Limited Chairman Managing Director Director
BSRM Wires Limited Managing Director Director Chairman
B Recycl'\ng IR Managing Director Director Chairman
Limited
. Chairman & , .
Chittagong Power Company Ltd. Managing Director Director Director
Bangladesh Steels Limited Director Managing Director Chairman
B BEE] Trgdmgl &, ezl Director Managing Director Chairman
Corporation Limited
BSRM Ispat Limited Director Managing Director Chairman
BSRM Steel Mills Limited Chairman Managing Director Director Independent
Director
BSRM Logistics Limited Chairman Director Managing Director
BSRM Real Estates Limited Chairman Managing Director Director
BSRM Metals Limited Chairman Managing Director Director
H. Akberal & Co. Limited Chaiman & Director Director
Managing Director
WLy Er?g|.neer|ng Wt Chairman Director Managing Director
Limited
Section Steel Industries Limited | Managing Director Chairman
Arco Industries Limited Director Director Managing Director
BSRM (Hon Kong) Limited Director Director
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SPREADING
THE LIGHT
OF EDUCATION
IN SLUM

Burhani BSRM School was established in 2006 in a densely populated slum area of Baizid Bustami,
Chittagong to provide free education to underprivileged children. The school provides free education
(Nursery to Grade 8), free books, extra coaching, computer training, sports arts facilities and uniforms. After passing
grade 8, BSRM supports these students financially to continue their study in other schools for pursuing higher
education. At present the school has 516 students. BSRM Foundation also provides stipend to
scholar students for graduation and extends its hand for employment support.




ORGANOGRAM

MANAGING
DIRECTOR

Deputy Managing Director

General Manager
Corporate Affairs &
Dhaka Corporate Office

General Manager
Manufacturing

Assistant General
Manager Administration

Deputy General Manager
Sales & Marketing

Assistant General Manager
Estates

Senior Manager

Supply Chain

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

DIRECTOR
(FINANCE)

General Manager Finance
& Accounts and Company
Secretary

General Manager
Human Resources

Assistant General
Manager &
Chief Financial Officer

Assistant General
Manager CSR

Senior Manager

Information Technology

Senior Manager Internal

Audit & Compliance

035

ORGANOGRAM
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‘ KEY MANAGEMENT

Tapan Sengupta, Deputy Managing Director

Hasan Zafar Chowdhury, Chief Strategic Project Officer

Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA, General Manager Finance & Accounts and Company Secretary
Kazi Anwar Ahmed, General Manager Corporate Affairs & Dhaka Corporate Office

Sunil Kumar Das, General Manager India Office

Jamil Ahmed, General Manager Human Resources

Md. Azizul Haque, General Manager Manufacturing

Bipin Sharma, General Manager QMICI & Risk Management

Mohinder Singh Hanspal, General Manager Rolling

Bharat Tank, General Manager Recycling & Melting

A. F. M. Mizanur Rahman, General Manager Plant Operation BSRM Steels Limited-Rolling
Jasim Uddin Ahmed, General Manager Business Projects

Md. Nizamul Haque, Deputy General Manager Plant Operation Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Ltd-Melting
Madan Digambar Kulkarni, Deputy General Manager Plant Operation BSRM Steel Mills Ltd.
Gautam Bandopadhyay Chief Operating Officer Wires

Mohammad Imtiaz Uddin Chowdhury, Deputy General Manager Sales & Marketing
Mohammed Reazul Kabir FCA, Assistant General Manager & Chief Financial Officer

Ruhi Murshid Ahmed, Assistant General Manager CSR

Md. Bazal Ahmed, Assistant General Manager Estates

A. K. M. Saifuddin Khan, Assistant General Manager Administration

Mohammad Monir Hossain, Assistant General Manager Corporate Strategy & Projects

Md. Moklesur Rahman Akhtar FCMA, Senior Manager & Chief Financial Officer
Muhammad Ashiqur Rahman FCA, Senior Manager Finance & Accounts

Md. Zahir Uddin, Senior Manager Plant Operation-BSRM Stegls Limited —Melting 1

Jayant M. Lakra, Assistant General Manager Plant Operation-Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Ltd-Rolling
Mohammed Tamim Wahid Al-Helal, Senior Manager Information Technology

Sanjoy Kumar Ghosh, Senior Manager Supply Chain Management

Murtaza Zoher Bengali, Senior Manager Internal Audit& Compliance

ADVISERS

Moize Hussain, Adviser
M. Firoze, Adviser Marketing & Product Development
Tapan K. Poddar FCA, FCMA, Financial Consultant



‘ NOTICE OF THE 57™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 57" Annual General Meeting of shareholders of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited
will be held on Thursday, December 19, 2019 at 12:00 PM at Shoronika Community Center, 13, Love Lane, Chattogram
to transact the following business and to adopt necessary resolutions:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements, Consolidated Financial Statements, Report of the Board
of Directors and Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements for the year ended 30" June, 2019.

To re-elect the Director(s) of the Company.
To declare and approve Dividend for the year ended 30" June 2019.
To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration.

To appoint Professional Accountant to certify on compliance status of Corporate Governance code as per BSEC notification
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, Dated: 3" June, 2018.

To approve the Inter Company loan/ business transactions for the year ended 30" June, 2019 & issue of Corporate
Guarantee as per Notification No- SEC/CMMRRCD/2006-159/Admin/02-10, dated: September 10, 2006.

By order of the Board

Chattogram Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA
November 07, 2019 General Manager (F&A) and Company Secretary
Notes

Shareholders whose name appears in the share register of the company or in the Depository Register as on the “Record
Date” i.e. 27" October, 2019 are entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and receive the dividend.

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint a proxy or proxies in his/ner stead and forms of proxy
must be lodged at the Company's Share Office, Ali Mansion, 1207/1099 Sadarghat Road, Chattogram not later than
48 hours before the AGM.

Shareholders are requested to update their 12 digit ETIN information through their respective Depository Participant (DP)
before the AGM date.

The Annual Report 2018-19 and Proxy Form are available at the Company’'s Website www.bsrm.com.

Annual Report will also be sent to the individual email address of the shareholder's mentioned in their respective
BO account.
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‘LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

“The future is of great
opportunities, BSRM is ready to
play significant role”

Dear Shareholders,

I'am honored to welcome you to the 57* Annual General meeting
of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited. It is my privilege to
present the Annual Report for 2018-19 as the Chairman of the
Board of the Company.

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited is one of the most
iconic industries in the country. Being in business for over six
decades, | humbly express my gratitude to all of whom who
contributed to this epic journey.

The year 2018-2019 was a challenging one for us. Despite
many internal and external challenges, we have significantly
increased our productivity by upgrading technology and are
constantly pushing our boundaries to become a cost efficient
production plant in all aspects. This is to ensure our
competitiveness and we don't lag behind.

The economic growth of Bangladesh has been epochal this year
with an impressive 8.13% growth in GDP for the FY 2018-19.
The Government has taken many confident decisions to increase
the infrastructural development by undertaking a number of huge
projects. From self-financed Padma Bridge to Metro-Rail project,
the country is ready to enter the next era in infrastructural
development. The government has also drawn up a master plan
to establish 100 Economic Zones in the country to facilitate
industrialization and attracting foreign investments. Steel industry
is doubtlessly a significant contributor to the GDP growth. Now
the installed capacity in the steel sector is 8 Million M. Ton and
consumption is 7.5 Million M. Ton. The industry size is around
Tk. 50,000 Crore (Ref: The Daily Star, April 28, 2019). BSRM
has great opportunity to play a pioneering role in this regard.

This year, Bangladesh Steel Re-Ralling Mills Limited achieved a
net profit of BDT 1,861 Million and a sales of BDT 44,408.90
Million which is 33.61% higher than last year. We have
successiully produced 686,769 M. Ton which marked a 22 %
increase over last year.

Our Associate and Subsidiary companies have also attained a
new pinnacle of production and profitability that contributed
significantly to our profit.

The Revenue of BSRM Steels Limited reached BDT. 61,060
Million, this year from BDT 48,289 Million last year. But due to
high price of raw materials, Net profit after tax has slightly
reduced to BDT 1,728.13 Million, this year from BDT 1800.80
Million, last year. The second melting plant of BSRM Steels
Limited has started commercial production from April 15, 2019.
This plant is capable of producing 430,000 M. Ton MS Billets

per annum. The billet producing subsidiary Company BSRM
Steel Mills Limited has produced 913,241 M. Ton MS Billets
which is the record production for the Company.

We have started operating in Hong Kong through another
subsidiary company BSRM (Hong Kong) Limited. We have also
set our footprint in Kenya as an investor and for a few years we
are operating in Kolkata, India. To be specific, we are steadily
stepping outside the border to attain global success.

This year we have contributed to the durability of coastal
construction by selling our Epoxy Coated MS Rod ‘BSRM
Centura’. We have done and are still undertaking awareness
programs on Earthquake safety and producing the safer steel
‘BSRM Ultima’ that are specially built to counter earthquake
shocks. We have proudly been part of some of the massive
national infrastructure  projects namely Padma  Bridge,
Dhaka-Mawa 4 Lane project, Ruppur Nuclear Power plant,
Meghna Bridge etc. All of these projects” managements have put
their trusts on our steels for the safest possible construction.

We are continuing our socio economic footprint by actively
participating in many Corporate Social Responsibility activities
throughout the year. We are supporting Slum kids with free
education through BSRM Burhani School in Chattogram. Our
Medical center at Mirsharai - BSRM Foundation Medical &
Diagnostic Center has been serving more than 2500 patients
every year. We are training our unemployed young people
through our training center — BSRM Technical Training center
and also aiding them with job placements. Besides all these core
activities, we are also working shoulder to shoulder with different
local and foreign NGOs to help our society to build a better
future.

I'would like to express my special and humble gratitude to all the
customers and shareholders for having faith in us. We are
moving forward every single day. | believe with your support and
trust, we are going to achieve greater heights in future.

I convey my special gratitude to all stakeholders of this company
our employees, suppliers, regulatory bodies, financers, bankers,
auditors for their continuous support. | am confident that with
your steadfast support BSRM will continue to achieve excellence
in the coming years Insha Allah.

Allah Hafiz
Sincerely Yours

M

Alihussain Akberali, FCA
Chairman

=
<
=
o«
<
x
o
w
pu
=
=
o
oc
[N
[a'=
w
=
=
L
-l




-3 ISt

R ClaRCISEa,

et Boa [{-cafer fem ffdcores ¢ aod IR
SR TR WA R0 TIAICO (I i o)
R05b-5% e T Ao @R @Iees
AR FEIR Tzt 1t SiiE Geta)

it 35 [-caifer e s g3 wieas @R
Y 4F @R qed 5 BifeTed Ao @k 9t s
Aoy Proart 96 AP, Al 3 Speriary Il
AP TR

R05b-305% A0 AT A7 BT &l o
Tered qR YT BICeIE ACgs, W fEaro
TS AN WY@ SR oMol
@y I IER 9R FART [
Rzl SO JI-JIATT 7F G0 2i6-9
R0 R T @7 focfion Pika a A of
ot AP S FI!

05t TR IR TIRATCF oA TS
2 T At TRPiS v.oo% a3 T
TRPIICATO T ATICO RS I© 254 YO AR
feery-agrIcd fAfosy st ¢Tg (I (@PI-E S8
G, ARG SACAR AGA 0 A &y ¢t
28| Pigrc SRl 8 Kol Rt Wpe w17
A ST ACT S0 ofb ALRATGD weel OB G
AT 2IAS TR PCaCR| FAMH &face T6 P
e T wFpd TmAsE TG0 dited
IO TeAMTFIO! b e (@FF T G2 I A.¢
e @G Td1 Ritss Wi &l ¢o,000 I Tt
(@ T (O3 5B, GBI 36, R05%)1 RGTARGET
UG DT ST AT IS A IR

Q I3 ot Foa R-Gifer e fBficdoes ofto
a6 FAT 5,bvy ReRa Tl @R Ray @R
88,80b-.50 ACRIA BIpl It 10 IRC Qi 00, v5%
QR S TSI Yy s @pF T Teovd
PR T 210 IR Gt 1% @R

QRIS AN 8 AP (FAfefens s g
TACTATOR GF g P e[ IR I A
AP Ty Mg G|

RTRG oot fARITE-Gq O o0 IRGF 8t 0>
AR BIFl (ACF [T Q@ =T vy, 0vo AR Bil
A(R| O B[R A @R 18I F9 #7901 A6
FArP RegO FCaACR, A 0 =S & dtroo.bro A
B ©f g IRF HAb-.>0 R TR (A 9oTR|
RgTaRas F5as fRifTT-«3 s @FeR 216 16 S¢
GRI, 0% (TP JIMITS T=oivA 9F PR | 93 2T
IR 890,000 (AHS Td YN [{et TAMA FIC0
IF9 Rt S IRPITRR @if,
ReTaRagy £5a fiem ™ifvcGs, sy0,38> @hs 59
G Rt TeAmg FE T 9 FIfT GFo
TeAmA|

G IR0 TR @i RasTgas (L)
TIRICOTT AU RIFWF I OF FER| oA
el (@leRico R dER 9@ FEP IRT &&
I ©Ro8  JPNE PG PO @R
AT IO (oICe, Sl @RF ATy oeicdq
) SR IR A AR

qR IRF W e ICHRI-I0T 979 8
‘RPTARGT G131 R e B fdicets gy
vl @R O SR S A Scoodo!
oIS I FE AR GR SfFF TAqT o
T “RGTags SifFpa” Sesimd %) et (@1
PP ] SO TIIINCAINO S5, Tz ol
CTg, TIF-ASa 8 (A o8, [ AR
Ry, @A oTg Io7™ce Smiq 0o ol
AIR01 SR A= f{dicds seiRar faFbo F9ro @
AFFORE ARETFT Ao THICoT TR oloH
I8 FCARA|



TP Y STl SRR FF s
- =151 @04 MR | Al 58T R9Tgs
[T Fe WO I Fromg Rargeey Bt A
RGTARGT TIOCSHT ARG WS TRIARGT GToR
#f59%3 oo I8 @PY AN R Fiesz| SRt
URTE @R TIOREE 9OReE SRFY 9-
RGP Gl CTOIER Jtge R
ity @3 oI BIFR (Ito IOl FER | GRS
RS TIO SRR T geico RSy o7t g3 Roeh
Gafeeg ey ey Ity ey o 797

i o Ryt 99 S Ay STpe AR GR
CTIRITIER 26 AR RO G2 75 FOW0! AP
FAC0 BIR| A Afofvig WP sz w37
dicas g @2 RYICR (@IE S SfRFeo
RS Tgfo TR AR G IR S5 CHRITH,
AL, SR, TS g, A, Jrepis,

FOWO! TAR|

e [T St SiRee adeas FiRed
RPTAGT ANT TRFfTos @Pp Wed 90
PIPE, IR

iR QAR

HBRFOIT IS,

s

SfCRAIRA AFITAA T
CRERIG]

GIRFF-9F ISt




AAMEIR
ALIHUSSAIN

MANAGING DIRECTOR




‘MESSAGE FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

“BSRM is actively taking part in
massive transition of our Economy”

Dear Shareholders,

I humbly welcome you all to the 57 Annual General Meeting
of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited. It is my
immense pleasure to present you with the operational and
financial highlights of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills
Limited for the year ended in June 2019. As per the guideline
of BSEC, we have uploaded our annual report in our web site
www.bsrm.com. | believe all of you have seen it already.

Operating Performance:

Our operating performance of this year was one of the most
satisfactory achievements for us so far. For the vyear
2018-19, we have attained a new heights of production of
686,769 M. Ton which is 22% higher than the last year's
production. Our MS billet production from the melting unit
has also seen a successful increase this year securing a
smooth supply of raw materials for our rolling unit.

We are standing right now on a verge of greater economic
transition. The GDP growth of Bangladesh Economy for the
FY 2018-19 has reached a historical figure of 8.13%. This
shows how actively and quickly the country is moving
forward with economic development. It has never seen such
a pace of development scince the inception of this country.
This indicates the future is going to be even more
challenging and of greater opportunities. Being a leader of
the steel industry, BSRM is confident of playing an active
and impactful role in this greater transition of our economy.

[, on behalf of the board, would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all the customers who have made BSRM the
ultimate steel of our country. Had it not been for your choice,
we would not have been where we are today.

July to June, 2019

July to June, 2018 July to June, 2017

Production of MS Finished products M. Ton 686,769 562,903 442,511
Sales MS Finished products M. Ton 666,236 549,955 503,705
Production of MS Billets M. Ton 174,660 150,331 152,702
Sales in Amount Tk. 44,408,886,970 33,238,371,404 23,648,933,383

Cost of Goods Sold Tk. 39,416,646,035 28,410,052,631 20,411,999,681
Gross Profit (GP) Tk. 4,992,240,935 4,828,318,773 3,236,933,702
Gross Profit % % 11.24% 14.53% 13.69%
Net Profit (NP) after Tax Tk, 1,860,634,923 2,778,779,562 756,515,074
Net Profit % % 4.19% 8.36% 3.20%
EPS Tk. 7.88 11.77 3.53
Net Assets Value (NAV) TK. 23,007,371,996 13,671,408,540 10,876,800,965
NAV Per Share Tk. 97.46 63.70 SO
Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share Tk. 2.81 (8.78) (11.38)

I'am happy to report that the company has generated positive
cash flow of Tk. 2.81 per share this year.

You are already informed that your Company is holding
44.97% shares in BSRM Steel Mills Limited which is
supplying a major portion of billets to the Company. If the
BSRM Steel Mills Limited is merged with Bangladesh Steel
Re-Rolling Mills Limited then it will be convenient to formulate
long term strategic plans, operate both the mills with optimum
capacity, efficiency and reduce the complexity of taxation and
other regulatory issues. The liquidity position will be better and
the interest cost burden will also be reduced. Hence, we have
decided to merge BSRM Steel Mills Limited with Bangladesh
Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited subject to the consent from
shareholders and approval from the Honorable High Court
Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh.

| would like to express my humble thanks to all our
shareholders, valued financer & bankers, Regulatory bodies,
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, CSE &
DSE, National Board of Revenue for their tireless support
and cooperation.

| am pretty sure your kind support and association will fuel
our productivity, profitability, and prosperity at a greater level
in the near future.

Thank You

Aameir Alihussain
Managing Director
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SAVING
ENVIRONMENT
THROUGH WATER
RECYCLING

As part of the responsibility towards environment, BSRM factories are equipped with
sustainable technologies which are using advanced water and air pollution control systems. Conserving
and recycling the used water in manufacturing process is BSRM’s core aspirational value. The Water
Treatment Plants installed in our rolling mills ensure that 100% of process water is recycled indefinitely. It
has helped to recycle 3,73,700 cubic meters of used water and achieved zero water wastage record.
Beyond making steel, this is one of many initiatives to build people’s trust in us.




‘ DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Respected Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Bangladesh Steel
Re-Rolling Mills Limited, | am honored, glad and excited to
present you the 57" Report of the Board of Directors for the
year ended June 30, 2019.

Industry outlook and possible future developments
in the industry:

According to the report of IMF, now Bangladesh is among the
three fastest growing economies in the world. Bangladesh’s
GDP growth is now more than 8%. Increasing population, low
labour cost, rapid urbanization, fast industrialization and
infrastructure projects will continue to support the country’s
growth which is expected to remain on a high level for the
foreseeable future.

According to Asian Development Bank, Bangladesh stands
on top of all the South-Asian countries in 2019 GDP Growth
rate, beating the second on the table - India by 0.8% margin.
The population living below poverty line has dropped
significantly to 24.3% in 2016 from 31.5% in 2010 and it is
continuing to drop as economic solvency and purchasing
power of people are increasing. Bangladesh has made
remarkable progress in reducing poverty, supported by
sustained economic growth.

The economic boom has encompassed nearly all the sectors
of the country. The agriculture sector has seen rise in Rice
production at 3.5% compared to last year with a significant
drop in import amount. Now Bangladesh is self-sufficiant in
food production. Overall export has reached a 13.4% rise
compared to last year, most of which were contributed by
Textile, Agricultural, Plastic and Pharmaceutical products.
According to ADB report, The BOP deficit has also declined
from $5.4 billion to $4.3 in first seven months of 2019.  Net
foreign direct investment (FDI) increased by 42.9% with
investment in power, food and textile sector.

Bangladesh economy is projected to maintain a strong growth
backed by structural reform. To maintain such economic growth,
Bangladesh needs huge investment in power, textile, industry,
sea ports, roads and bridges. We hope by 2030 Bangladesh will
become one of the largest economies in the world.

Due to construction boom and implementation of mega
projects demand for quality MS products has increased sharply.

The Steel industry of Bangladesh is almost Tk 50,000 crore
industry. Our Country’s production capacity is 8 million M. ton.
Now around 40 rolling mills are active in Bangladesh. In the
past few years a good number of steel and re-rolling mills were
set up in Bangladesh. Now some big plants are operating here
such as BSRM, AKS, RSRM, GPH Ispat. BSRM is holding
25% of market shares. Most of the big rolling plants have
melting units to produce MS billets. Recently, BSRM Steels
Limited has commissioned another melting plant to produce
MS Billets with a capacity of 4.3 lakh M. Ton.

Still there are opportunities for expansion in steel sectors
because at present per capita steel consumption is lower than
global average. Now per capita consumption in Bangladesh
is 45 kg whereas the global average is 208 kg. In India per
capita steel consumption is 65 Kg and in Japan it is 1000
KG. Moreover, there are some mega projects are under
construction, a number of mills , factories , roads and bridges
are to be constructed in near future. New economic zones
are also new avenues for quality steel consumption.

Operating and financial performance of
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited:

Rolling Unit:

During the year 2018-19 the Rolling plant produced
686,769 M. Ton MS product. Proper planning, uninterrupted
production and technical efficiency made it possible.
Production has increased by 22% compared to last year. In
the last year production was 562,903 M.Ton.

Rolling Unit production over the years
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Rolling Unit

Installed Capacity (M. Ton) 540,000 | 540,000 450,000 | 225,000 120,000 120,000
Production (M. Ton) 686,769 | 562,903 442,511 | 241,359 45,689 42117
Capacity Utilization (%) 127% 104% 98% 107% 38% 35%

Sales of Own Product (M. Ton) 649,982 | 536,864 470,937 | 192,631 54,433 76,818

Melting Unit

Melting unit produces billets mainly for internal consumption. The Steel Melting Works (SMW) achieved its target.

Installed Capacity (M. Ton) 150,000 | 150,000 135,000 | 67,500 135,000 120,000
Production (M. Ton) 174,657 | 150,331 152,702 | 66,422 128,022 82,350
Capacity Utilization (%) 116% 100% 113% 98% 95% 69%

Sales & Consumed in Re-Rolling Unit (M. Ton) | 174,533 | 150,947 152,901 66,122 127,553 86,872

The company purchased required billets mainly from its subsidiary Company BSRM Steel Mills Limited at a competitive price.

Sales

The sales of BSRM Group of Companies crossed one million M. Ton for consecutive third year in 2018-19. The portion of
BSRMLTD was 668,189 M. Ton which is 19.71% higher than that of last year. The sale of 2017-18 was 550,083 M. Ton.

Segment wise or product wise performance:

Ktreme S00W, Angle, | gag 769 | 562,003 | 442,511 | 241,359 | 651,935 | 536,970 | 470,937 | 183,174
Channel (Own Product)

Imported & Locally 01977 | 11437| 37275| 14784| 16254 | 13113| 32768| 9457
Procured ltems

Total 708,746 | 574,340 | 479,786 | 256,143 | 668,189 | 550,083 | 503,705| 192,631




Financial performance:

The Company had Sales of Tk. 44,409 million in the year
2018-19 against 33,238 million in 2017-18, representing a
34% increase from the last year. The Gross profit stood Tk.
4,992 million that was Tk. 4828 million in the last year. The gross
profit ratio is 11.24% in the year 2018-19 against 14.53% in
2017-18.

Sales in terms of quantity have increased by 21 %. Whereas
Gross profit has increased by 3.40%. Due to increase in billet
price and other production cost, gross profit ratio declined.

[f we review the statement of Profit and loss account, we note that,
the shares of profit from equity accounted investees was

1,060.71 Million which was Tk. 983.55 Million in last year. In this
year the subsidiary Company-BSRM Steel Mills Limited earned a
net profit of Tk, 1,175. 31 million and the associate
Company-BSRM  Steels  Limited earned net profit of Tk,
1,728.12 million. The Net Asset Value per share (NAV) of the
Company has been increasing consistently which is a very positive
sign of growth and prosperity of the Company. In this year the NAV
per share is 97.46 which was Tk. 63.70 last year. In this year the
Company has revalued its lands which significantly contributes in
sharp increase of NAV. EPS has declined to Tk. 7.88 per share
from 11.77 per share because of decrease in Non-Operating
income and increase in Selling and Distribution costs and deferred
tax. We have shown it by the following graphs and tables.

NAV Per Share for last 3 years
120.00

July'16-Jun’17 = July'17-Jun’18  ® July’'18-Jun’19

100.00 97.46 1‘2"83 11.77
80.00 10.00 //\\
8.00
60.00 / 788
40.00 6.00 / -
: 4.00 /
20.00 200 3.53

EPS over the years

July'16-Jun’17 July'17-Jun’18 July'18-Jun’19

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2016 2015 2014
(Jan-Jun)
BD Tk. BD Tk. BD Tk. BD Tk. BD Tk. BD Tk.

Sales 44,408.89 | 33,238.37| 23,648.93| 9,713.86 | 7,801.98 8,049.89
@Gross Profit 4,992.24 4,828.32| 3,236.93| 1,362.03 458.01 188.25
Profit before non-operating income,
interest, taxes, WPPF & WWE 3,637.90 3,864.96| 2,571.90| 1,057.78 207.15 (66.17)
Non Operating Income 41.30 123.21 113.90 472.73 1,357.07 567.28
Less: Interest, WPPF & WWF (1,999.85) | (1,950.19)| (1,618.89)| (636.77) (627.63) (495.01)
Add/(Less): Tax expenses &
Provision for income tax (879.43) (242.75) (440.75)|  (305.08) (108.92) 102.99
Net Profit 1,860.63 2,778.78 756.52 588.65 827.67 109.09
Earnings Per Share (EPS)(Tk.) 7.88 11.77 3.53 3.02 4.78 0.70
Net Asset Value Per Share (Tk.) 97.46 63.70 85,75 52.84 55.28 541
Net operating Cash Flow Per Share (Tk.) 2 81 (8.78) (11.38) (3.53) (10.16) (5.43)
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Particulars 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 (JaQIQ_U%n) 2015 2014

BD Tk. BD Tk. BD Tk. BD Tk. BD Tk. BD Tk.
Paid Up Capital 2,360.68 2,146.07 | 1,950.98 1,950.98 | 1,773.62 | 1,558.51
Share Holders' Equity 23,007.37 | 13,6/1.41 | 10,876.80 | 10,309.79 | 9,803.66 | 8,431.80
Current Liabilities 22,883.32 | 19,310.98 | 20,107.12 | 16,8656.68 | 11,999.23 | 9,329.75
Non-current Liabilities 6,662.92 6,962.32 | 3,566.99 4,549.52 | 513716 | 5,004.46
Addition To Fixed Assets & Cwip 314.89 701.34 756.02 813.34| 8421.03 | 1,775.63
Operating Cash Flow 664.16 | (1,884.73) | (2,220.57) (688.88) | (1,801.99) (846.76)

Product wise Performance:

Out of 651,935 M. Ton sales, Xtreme 500W was 532,102 Ton which is 82% of own product sales. M.S Angel, Channel &
Square Bar sales was 1,18,651 M. Ton. Centura sales was 1,182 M. Ton in this year. During the year, the company sold
16,254 M. Ton of imported items like H Beam, | Beam, Channel, angel, MS Plate etc. Some locally produced goods and billets
were also sold during the year.

MS Angle, Channel
& Square Bar 18.20%

Sale of Own Production

Centura 0.18% = Xtreme 500W

Centura

m M.S Angel, Channel & Square Bar

Xtreme 500W
81.62%
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Operations of Subsidiary Companies: capacity of this plant is 862,500 M.Ton. This company
o started commercial production in June 2016. Most of the
* BSRM Steel Mills Limited billets produced by this company has been consumed by
*  BSRM (Hong Kong) Limited BSRM Steels Limited. It had very impressive performance
S during 2018-19. It has earned 1,175 Million Net profit after
BSRM Steel Mills Limited: tax in this year. The total production of the Company was
BSRM Steel Mills Limited has been set up to produce MS 913,241 M. Ton this year which means that, it utilized
Billets to averse the risk of potential loss from volatile billet ~ 106% of the capacity. A summary has been given on its
prices in the international market. Currently BSRM Ltd is  operational and financial performance.
holding 44.97% equity shares of the Company. Annual

Production Qty MT 913,241 860,543 588,536
Capacity utilization % 106% 99.83% 68.28%
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax Taka | 1,175,311,103 938,269,829 (890,929,343)
EPS Taka 2.98 2.38 (2.26)
NAV Taka 34.57 15.63 15.51

BSRM (Hong Kong) Limited:

A subsidiary company of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills  appointed as the Director of the Company. The Company has
Limited has been incorporated in Hong Kong, namely BSRM  started its operation with limited arena and hopefully the
(Hong Kong) Limited. This new subsidiary will assist the  company will expand its operation in 2019-20.
parent Company in the following ways:

Operations of Associated Company:-

e Sourcing raw materials from China.
: BSRM Steels Limited
e Carrying out prompt inspection of spare parts,

machineries etc to be imported from China to Bangladesh BSRM Steels Limited another Public limited Company of BSRM

Group of Companies which is listed with two stock exchanges
for BSRM Group.

w0 in Bangladesh. Currently, BSRMLTD is holding 31.19% shares
e Trading of steel and other goods. in BSRM Steels Limited. A brief financial and operating

performance of the Company has been appended below:
Mr. Aameir Alihussain and Mr. Zohair Taherali has been

Operational Performance of BSRM Steels Limited 'g
Installed Capacity (M. Ton) 700,000 700,000 | 700,000 700,000 | 700,000 | 600,000 %
Production (M. Ton) 758,405 727,034 | 681,061 362,254 | 602,832 | 623,918 5
Capacity Utilization (%) 108.34% 103.9% 97.3 103.50 99.5 104
Sales (M. Ton) 756,820 710,995 | 692,504 373,747 | 604,513 | 679,803
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Financial Performance of BSRM Steels Limited

of associate

Sales 61,060.15 | 48,289.93 | 37,996.41 | 17,265.18 | 32,316.10 | 38,535.94
Gross Profit 505191 | 487917 | 4,557.30 | 3,114.69 | 4,368.65| 2,807.32
Profit before interest, taxes,

WPPF & WWF 3,369.05 | 3,180.65| 3,273.60 | 2,379.86| 3,257.93| 1,892.83
Less: Interest, WPPF & WWF (1,328.76) | (1,120.19) (417.23) (246.38) (739.29) (378.95)
Add/(Less): Profit on Bargain .

Purchase 10,20

Add/(Less): Share of profit/(loss) 29797 | 237.88| (225.87)|  (18.56) 75.31 (3.20)

for income tax

Less: Tax expenses & Provision | (610.13) | (507.74)|  (655.07) | (801.61)| (512.07)| (424.47)

Net Profit 1,72812 | 1,800.80 | 1,705.41 1,313.32 | 2,081.88 | 1,086.21
Actuarial (Loss)/Gain - (3.40)

Total Comprehensive Income 8,425.54 | 1,797.40| 1,705.41 1,313.32 | 2,081.88 | 1,086.21
EPS (Tk.) 4.60 4.79 4.98 3.84 6.09 3.18

During the year of 2017-18 the company has merged with its
Subsidiary Company- BSRM Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. with effect
from 1% October, 2017. This company is capable to produce
225,000 M. Ton billets in a year. Another, melting plant to
produce 430,000 M. Ton billets annually has commissioned
in April, 2019 at Sonaphar, Mirshari, Chattogram.

The Board has decided to merge BSRMLTD with BSRM
Steel Mills Limited subject to consent of shareholders and
approval from the Honorable High Court Division of Supreme
court of Bangladesh, which will ensure optimum utilization of
capacity, reduce complexity of VAT & Tax, reduce operating
expenses, proper use of human resources and ease of other
regulatory issues.

BSRM Service center:

BSRMLTD has commissioned a state-of-the-art reinforcement
processing plant. Total estimated annual capacity of the
project is 14,400 MT of Cut & Bent Rebar, 2,880 MT of
Stirrup & 48,000 MT of Mesh. This customized solutions will
decrease wastage significantly in addition to reducing extra

space requirements for the customers for storing construction
materials, It will also reduce delay in construction, faulty
fabrication, pilferage, laborious works at customer’s site and
will increase quality of the construction works. This new plant
will have positive impact on the profitability of the Company.

Risks & Concerns:

Risk assessment and mitigation is the integral part of any
business. The Board of Directors are regularly monitoring,
assessing and identifying potential risk and threats to our
profitability and sustainable growth. Our Risk Management
capabilities are supported by a strong management structure,
information system, and regular analysis of market, economic
scenario and robust policies to cope with the challenges.
Recently BSRM Group has developed Enterprise  Risk
Management (ERM) Frame work and Guidelines. Under this
policy a Risk Register has been prepared and a dedicated team
is regularly monitoring potential risks, assess them, ensure
precautionary and corrective measures to address them.



A summary of the significant risks and the way of managing  Extra-ordinary gain or loss:
risks adopted by our company is included in Annexure-1

and Note -49 of the Financial Statements. There is no extra ordinary gain or loss during the year.

Risk Management & Control Environment: Related Party Transactions:

All transactions with related parties have been made on a
commercial basis. Details of the related party transactions
A Discussion on Cost of Goods Sold, GP have been disclosed under note 25 & 36 of the financial

Margin and NP Margin: statements as per IFRS/BFRS.

Detail discussed in Annexure TA.

It has been discussed in Annexure- 2.

Significant variance in the quarterly and Annual Financial Statements:

Production 686,769 562,903 167,712 180,243 189,908 148,906
Sales 666,236 549,955 | 195,757 196,954 164,357 | 119,171
Revenue 44,409 33,238 13,024 13,026 10,223 8,137
Cost of sales (39,417) (28,410) | (11,552 (11,576) (9,169) (7,119
Gross profit 4,992 4,828 1,471 1,449 1,053 1,018
Profit before tax 2,740 3,022 993 829 422 497
Income tax expenses

Current year (317) (306) (120) (47) (84) (66)

Previous year (39) 72 - - (38)

Deferred tax (523) 9) (299) (109) (65) (60)
Total income tax expense (879) (243) (420) (157) ar7) (126)
Profit after tax 1,861 2,779 73 672 245 371
Basic earnings per share (Tk.) 7.88 11.78 2.42 2.85 1.04 1.57

Due to fluctuation in raw material price and sales value per  Board of Directors:
M.Ton, profitability of the Company fluctuated quarter to
quarter. Deferred tax has been increased substantially in this
year as compared to the last year due to land revaluation of
the Company, its associate and subsidiary.
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i. Composition and size of the Board:
On 30" June 2019, there were 5 members on the
Board, The Board comprises of Chairman, Managing

Director, two directors and one independent director.
Remuneration of Directors including

Independent Director: ii. Board Meeting and attendance:

The Board met 8 times during the period from July 1,
Directors were remunerated as per the decision of the Board and 2018 to June 30, 2019. Following table shows the
a detailed report of the Directors” Remuneration is included in attendance of directors in the meeting.

Annexure-3 and Note 7.02 of Financial Statements.
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Mr. Alihussain Akberali, FCA Chairman 8 7

Mr. Aameir Alihussain Managing Director 8 8
: . Director (Nominated Director

I, ZENT ETeiE of H. Akberall & Co. Limited) ¢ {

Mrs. Sabeen Aameir Director 8 7

Mr. Mono Ranjan Dey FCA Independent Director 8 6

The member who could not attend the meeting was granted
leave or was outside the country.

iii. Details of Directors being re-appointed:

Mr. Zohair Taherali (Nominated Director of H. Akberali &
Co. Limited) and Mrs. Sabeen Aameir will retire by
rotation at the conclusion of this AGM as per Articles of
Association of the Company and being eligible they offer
themselves for re-appointment.

iv. A brief resume of directors and name of Companies in
which Directors holds the directorship and membership
have been disclosed in Board of Directors segment.

AA

Significant deviations in operating results
compared to last year:

There is no such deviation in operating results.
Management Discussion and Analysis:

A management discussion and analysis signed by Managing
Director regarding the Companies operation and position
along with a brief discussion of changes in the financial
statements has been attached in Annexure-D.

Credit Rating:

Credit Rating information and Services Limited (CRISL)
assigned rating as below:

ST-3

The entities rated “AA” are adjudged to be of high quality,
offer higher safety and have high credit quality, offer higher
safety and have high credit quality. This level of rating
indicates the corporate entity has a sound credit profile and
without significant problem. Risks are modest and may vary
slightly from time to time because of economic conditions.

“ST-3" indicates high certainty of timely payment. Liquidity
factors are strong and supported by good fundamental
protection factors. Risk factors are very small.

Our Company in the evaluation of Credit Rating Company was
also placed with “Stable Outlook”.

Internal Control system:

The Board of Directors ensures that the Group has an
effective internal control system which ensures that the assets
of the Company are safeguarded and appropriate systems are
in place to minimize and detect fraud, errors and other
irregularities. The Company has adopted Standard Operating
Procedures (SOP) for the betterment of internal control

system. To generate accurate data and information within
reasonable time frame, we have already commissioned most
modern software called Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP).
The Company has established a separate internal audit
department to ensure internal control and compliance in
place. On the other hand, Audit Committee regularly monitors
and review the reports generated by the internal audit
department and takes corrective measures.

Dividend:

e The Directors of your Company recommended 25%
cash dividend for the year ended June 30, 2019. In
the previous year the Company declared 10% Stock
and 10% Cash dividend.

e The retained fund will be utilized to pay off high rated
loans and to meet working capital and operational
expenses.



Contribution to National Exchequer:

BSRM is paying and facilitating collection of Government's
revenue. During the period of July 18 to June 2019, we
have paid, collected & deposited a significant amount of

Income Tax, VAT and Duties in time. During this period,
BSRMLTD collected and contributed Tk. 3,709 million to
the government exchequer along with utility bill which is
appended below:

Contribution to National Exchequer July'18 - June '19

175

1,467

B Duty
[ Income Tax & VAT
[ Power

Gas

Corporate Social Responsibilities:

BSRM’s commitment to connect business decisions to
ethical, social and environmental concerns remains to be one
of the strongest value of the Company. During 2018-19,
your company has been contributing to the welfare of the
community, research & development and for protection of
environment. Details of CSR have been described in the
chapter of Corporate Social Responsibilities in page 93 of
Annual Report.

Award and Recognition:

Itis our great pleasure to let you know that, we have achieved
some prestigious award during last few years. A few of them
are mentioned below:

1. National  Productivity —and  Quality  Excellence
Award-2017

2. National Export Trophy — (BSRM Steels Ltd.) for
2013-14, 2014-15, 2016-17

3. Certificate of admiration from Ministry of Expatriates
Welfare and Overseas Employment of Government
Republic of Bangladesh at 4" National Development
Fair 2018.

4. President’s Award for Industrial Development 2014 in
the category of Large Scale Industry.

o

Prestigious award for “Excellence in Supply Chain
Relationship Management & Logistic Management”
from Bangladesh Supply Chain Management Society.

6. ICAB National Awards for Best Presented Annual
Reports for the year 2012, 2013, 2015 & Certificate
of Merit for the year 2014, 2015.

7. Certificate of Merit from South Asian Federation of
Accountants (SAFA) in 2012, 2013 & 2015 — (BSRM
Steels Ltd.)

8. ICSB National Gold Award for best Corporate
Governance Excellence 2015 — (BSRMLTD).

9. Awarded Tax Card from NBR for highest tax payment in
2016-17 — (BSRM Steels Ltd.)

10. Best Brand of Bangladesh in Steel Category in 2011,
2013, 2014, 2015 & 2016 & 2017 — (BSRM Group)

11. Best Enterprise of the year 2010 — (BSRM Group)

12. D & B Corporate Awards 2010 & 2012 — (BSRM
Steels Ltd)

13. Pride of Chittagong (Chattagramer Ahonkar) 2012.
(Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA)

14, Divisional Environment Award 2013 — (BISCO Ltd.)
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15. 5" Standard Chartered-Financial Express CSR Award —
(BSRM Group)

16. Japan Bangladesh Chamber of Commerce & Industry
(JBCCI) Awards in 2014. — (BSRMLTD)

17. ICSB National Award (Silver Award) for Corporate
Governance Excellence 2014. — (BSRM Steels Ltd)

18. Best Electricity Consumer (Industry) award for the year
2015 (BSRMLTD)

19. Mercantile Bank Awards (Industry & Commerce) for the
year 2015. (BSRM Group).

Information Technology:

Standing on the age of digitalization and technological
advancement, engagement to customers and stakeholders
requires greater emphasis on  mastering  Information
Technology. BSRM has implemented a strong and up-to-date
IT set up, that continuously ensures required information to be
extracted from E-business solution at any point of time to
mitigate risks and develop financial performance. Our IT team
has developed customer-friendly windows that allow them to
order, complain, query through an automated system within
the shortest possible time. Details of Information technology
are set out in the Chapter ‘Sustainable Growth’ in Page No. 97
in this report.

Human Resource Management:

As one of the visions of BSRM is “Be an employer of choice,
with focus on nurturing talent and developing future leaders of
the organization”, BSRM takes pride in developing a
successful, dynamic and competent set of human assets. As
we believe our visions and values are only achievable through
the placement of the right person at the right place, we have
effectively established a sound Human Resource saga that
consists of mind-blowing stories of equal opportunity,
continuous learning and development, relentless industry
relation and molding skilled workforce. Details of Human
Resource are set out in the Chapter ‘Sustainable Growth’ in
Page No. 96 in this report.

Code of Conduct:

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) determined
the code of conducts for Board of Directors of the Company
which have been posted on the web site of the company. Al
the Directors have signed as acceptance to its compliance.

Auditors:

Present auditor Rahman Rahman Hug, Chartered
Accountants, MM Trade Centre (13" Floor), 78 Agrabad C/A,
Chittagong will retire in 57" AGM and being eligible to
conduct audit for the year 2019-20 they have conveyed their
willingness to accept for re-appointment for this period. The
Board has recommended Rahman Rahman Hug, Chartered
Accountants, MM Trade Centre (13" Floor), 78 Agrabad C/A,
Chattogram as the Statutory Auditor for the year ended on
June 30, 2020 subject to the approval of shareholders in the
next Annual General Meeting.

Professional Accountant for Compliance of
Corporate Governance:

Pursuant to the BSEC's directive, Board has recommended
Mr. Sidhartha Barua FCA, Managing Partner of M/s M.A.
Mallik & Co., Chartered Accountants, Aziz Chamber (2nd
Floor), 6 Jubilee Road, Chattogram to appoint as a
Professional Accountant to issue Certificate on Compliance of
Corporate  Governance Code enacted by Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission for the year ended on
June 30, 2020 subject to approval of the shareholders in the
next Annual General Meeting.

Reporting and Compliance of Corporate
Governance:

Status of compliance with the requirements / conditions of
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)
Notification No: BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80
dated 03 June, 2018 on corporate governance has been
included in the Report in Annexure-C.

Subsequent Events:

There is no reportable subsequent event after the date of
Financial Position and till the date of this report which could
affect the ability of the users of these financial statements to
make an appropriate evaluation. However, the Board has
decided to merge BSRMLTD with its subsidiary BSRM Steel
Mills Limited.



Directors’ Responsibilities Statements:

Pursuant to the BSEC notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June,
2018 the Directors confirm that:

a) The Financial Statements prepared by the management
of BSRMLTD fairly present its state of affairs, the result
of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

b)  Proper Books of Account of the Company have been
maintained.

¢) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently
applied in preparation of the financial statements and that
the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.

d) International  Accounting  Standard(IAS)/Bangladesh
Accounting  Standards(BAS)/International ~ Financial
Reporting  Standards(IFRS) / Bangladesh Financial
Reporting  Standards  (BFRS), as applicable in
Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the
financial statements and any departure there from has
been adequately disclosed.

e) The system of internal controls sounds in design and has
been effectively implemented and monitored.

) Minority shareholders have been protected from abusive
actions by, or in the interest of, controlling shareholders
acting either directly or indirectly and have effective
means of redress;

g) There are no doubts upon the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern and the annual accounts
have been prepared as a going concern basis.

n)  The key operating and financial date for the last six years
is disclosed in Annexure-4.

i) The pattern of shareholding is disclosed in Annexure-5.

)) A compliance status report with requirements of
corporate governance as required by BSEC has been
disclosed in Regulatory Compliance Report segment.

k) Directors’ profile and their directorship and business
interest in other organizations have been disclosed in
Board of Directors segment.

) There was no declaration of bonus share or stock
dividend as interim dividend.
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honorable shareholders, bankers, Registrar of Joint Stock
Companies, National Board of Revenue, and other Governing
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been possible.
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We are endlessly pushing our limits to achieve efficiency and
profitability to the maximum level. We need your support and
association to build a better and safer nation.

Stay safe,

Aameir Alihussain
Managing Director
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ANNEXURE-A
[As per condition no.1(5)(xxvi)]

BANGLADESH STEEL RE-ROLLING MILLS LIMITED
DECLARATION OF CEO AND CFO

Date: September 16, 2019

The Board of Directors

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited
Ali Mansion, 1207/1099 Sadarghat Road,
Chattogram.

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 30" June 2019.

Dear Sirs,
Pursuant 1o the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the commission's notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/
Admin/80, Dated 03 June, 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance 1969, we do hereby declare that:

1. The Financial Statements of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited for the year ended on 30™ June 2019 have
been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed;

2. The estimates and judgments related to financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis, in order for
the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

3. The form and substance of transactions and the company's state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly presented in
its financial statements;

4. To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of Internal control and
maintenance of accounting records;

5. Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established policies and
procedures of the Company were consistently followed;
and

6. The management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is appropriate and
there exists no materials uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that:-

() We have reviewed financial statements for the year ended 30" June 2019 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:
a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading;
D) These financial statements collectively present true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards and applicable laws.
(i) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company's Board of Directors or its members.
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Sincerely yours,

% Ry

Aameir Alihussain Mohammed Reazul Kabir FCA
Managing Director AGM & Chief Financial Officer
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CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS
OF COROPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

M.AMALLIK & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Head Office : Branch Office :
Aziz Chomiser (2% Floor) Room Mo. 6, First Floor
4, Jubiles Road, Chatlogrom Dost Building, H.5.Surhwardy Road.,
Phone: 613331, 2853523 Chaltogram Phone No.: 822174

Date:

[Certificate as per condition Mo, [{5}xxvii)] -

Report to the Shareholders of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited on compliance
on the Corporate Governanee Code

We have examined the compliance status 1o the Corporate Governance Code by Bangladesh
Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited for the year ended on 30™ June, 2019. This Code relates to the
Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCDV2006-158/207/ Admin/80, dated: 3 June, 2018 of the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission,

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our
examination was limited 1o the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the
Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code,

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial
Standards (BSS) as adopted by Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as
those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations. which we have required, and
after due scrutiny and veritication thereof, we report thal. in our opinion:

a} The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as
stipulated in the above mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission;

) The Company has complied with the prﬁvisium of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial
Sundards {BSS5) as adopted by the Institute of Chanered Secretaries of Bangladesh
* (ICSB) as required by this Code;

Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the
Companies Act, 1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws; and

The governance of the company is highly sanisfactory.

Place: Chattogram : | M.A. Mallik & Co.
Dated: September 30, 2019 0 227 Chartered Accountants




ANNEXURE-C
[As per condition no.1(5)(xxvii)]

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE REPORT

Status of compliance with the condition imposed by the Commission's Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/
Admin/80, dated 03 June, 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance,1969:

(Report under condition No: 9)

1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1(1) Size of the Board of Directors
The total number of members of a company's Board of Directors (hereinafter v

referred 1o as “Board”) shall not be less than 5 (five) and more than 20 (twenty).

1(2) Independent Directors

All companies shall have effective representation of independent directors on
their Boards, so that the Board, as a group, includes core competencies
considered relevant in the context of each company; for this purpose, the
companies shall comply with the following: -

1(2)(@) At least one-fifth (1/5) of the total number of directors in the company’s Board
shall be independent directors; any fraction shall be considered to the next v
integer or whole number for calculating number of independent director(s);

1(2)(b) For the purpose of this clause 'Independent directors' means a director-

1(2)(0)(i) Who either does not hold any share in the company or holds less than one J

percent (1%) shares of the total paid-up shares of the company;

1(2)(b)(i) who is not a sponsor of the company or is not connected with the company’s any
sponsor or director or nominated director or shareholder of the company or any
of its assoclates, sister concerns, subsidiaries and parents or holding entities
who holds one percent (1%) or more shares of the total paid-up shares of the J
company on the basis of family relationship and his or her family members also
shall not hold above mentioned shares in the company:

1(2)(by(iii) who has not been an executive of the company in immediately preceding 2 (two) J
financial years;
1(2)(b)(iv) Who does not have any other relationship, whether pecuniary or otherwise, with J
the company or its subsidiary or associated companies;
1(2)(0)(v) Who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right Entitlement Certificate) holder, J
director or officer of any stock exchange;
1(2)(b)(vi) who is not a shareholder, director excepting independent director or officer of
any member or TREC holder of stock exchange or an intermediary of the capital V =
market; e
w
1(2)(b)(vil) Who is not a partner or an executive or was not a Partner or an executive during J =
the preceding 3 (three) years of the concerned company's statutory audit firm; g
1(2) () (viii) Who shall not be an independent director in more than 5 (five) listed companies; v E
1(2)(b)(ix) Who has not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction as a defaulter s
in payment of any loan or any advance to a bank or a Non-Bank Financial v
Institution (NBFI);
1(2)(0)(x) Who has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral turpitude. v
1(2)(c) The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the board of directors and J
approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Megting (AGM).
1(2)(d) The post of independent director(s) can not remain vacant for more than 90 J
(ninety) days.
1(2)(e) The tenure of office of an independent director shall be for a period of 3(three) J

years, which may be extended for 1(one) tenure only.
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Qualification of Independent Director (ID)

Independent director shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity who is
able to ensure compliance with financial laws, regulatory requirment and
corporate laws and can make meaningful contribution to business.

Independent director shall have following qualifications:

Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an unlisted company
having minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or any listed company or
a member of any national or international chamber of commerce or business
association; or

N/A

Corporate Leader who is or was a top level executive not lower than Chief
Executive Officer or Managing Director or Deputy Managing Director or Chief
Financial Officer or Head of Finance or Accounts or Company Secretary or Head
of Internal Audit and Compliance or Head of Legal Service or a candidate with
equivalent position of an unlisted company having minimum paid up capital of k.
100.00 million or of a listed company; or

N/A

1(3) (o) i)

Former official of government or statutory or autonomous or regulatory body in
the position not below 5th Grade of the national pay scale, who has at least
educational background of bachelor degree in economics or commerce or
business or law; or

N/A

University Teacher who has educational background in Economics or Commerce
or Business Studies or Law; or

N/A

Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least in the High Court
Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered Accountant or Cost and
Management Accountant or Chartered Financial Analyst or Chartered Certified
Accountant or Certified Public Accountant or Chartered Management Accountant
or Chartered Secretary or equivalent qualification;

The independent director shall have at least 10 (ten) years of experiences in any
field mentioned in clause (b)

In special cases the above qualifications may be relaxed subject to prior approval
of the Commission.

N/A

Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director
or Chief Executive Officer:-

The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and the Managing Director (MD)
and/or Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of the company shall be filled by different
individuals.

The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of a listed
company shall not hold the same position in another listed company

N/A

The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among the non-executive
directors of the company;

The Board shall clearly define respective roles and responsibilities of the
Chairperson and the Managing Director and/or Chief Executive Officer;

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the remaining members may
elect one of themselves from non-executive directors as Chairperson for that
particular Board's meeting; the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson
shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

1(5)

The Directors' Report to Shareholders

The Board of the company shall include the following additional statements or
disclosures in the Directors’ Report prepared under section 184 of the
Companies Act, 1994 (Act No. XVIIl of 1994):-

An industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry

The segment-wise or product-wise performance




1(5)(iii) Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors, threat to
sustainability and negative impact on environment, if any;

1(5)(\v) A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin,
where applicable;

1(5)(v) A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary activities and their implications
(gain or loss);

1(5)(vi) A detailed discussion on related party transactions along with a statement
showing amount, nature of related party, nature of transactions and basis of
transactions of all related party transactions;

1(5)(vii) A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public issues, rights issues /A
and/or any other instruments

1(5)(viii) An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the company goes for Initial
Public Offering (IP0), Repeat Public Offering (RPO), Rights Share Offer, Direct N/A
Listing, etc.;

1(5)(ix) An explanation on any significant variance that occurs between Quarterly
Financial performances and Annual Financial Statements;

1(5)(x) A statement of remuneration paid to the directors including independent directors;

1(5)(xi) A statement that the financial statements prepared by the management of the
issuer company present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash
flows and changes in equity;

1(5)(xii) A statement that proper books of account of the issuer company have been
maintained;

1(5)(xiii) A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied
in preparation of the financial statements and that the accounting estimates are
based on reasonable and prudent judgment

1(5)(xiv) A statement that International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have been
followed in preparation of the financial statements and any departure there from
has been adequately disclosed;

1(5)(xv) A statement that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been
effectively implemented and monitored;

1(5)(xvi) A statement that minority shareholders have been protected from abusive actions
by, or in the interest of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly
and have effective means of redress;

1(5)(xvii) A statement that there is no significant doubt upon the issuer company's ability
to continue as a going concern, if the issuer company is not considered to be a
going concern, the fact along with reasons there of shall be disclosed;

1(5)(xviii) An explanation that significant deviations from the last year's operating results of
the issuer company shall be highlighted and the reasons thereof shall be
explained;

1(5)(xix) A statement where key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 (five)
years shall be summarized

1(5)(xx) An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not declared dividend VA
(cash or stock) for the year;

1(5)(xxi) Board's statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock dividend has been
or shall be declared as interim dividend; N/A

1(5) (xxii) The total number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance by each
director;

1(5) (xxiii) A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number of
shares (along with name-wise details where stated below) held by:-

-
[a=
o
[~ 9
w
oc
w
oc
o
—
(]
w
oc
a




—
oc
o
o
w
oc
[%2]
[a =
o
—
(]
w
[a=
[an]

1(5)(xxili)(a) Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related parties
(name-wise details);

1(5)(xxili) (b) Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer,
Head of Internal Audit and Compliance and their spouses and minor children
(name-wise details);

1(5)(xxili)(c) Executives; and

1(5)(xxiii) (d) Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the company
(name-wise details);

1(5)(xxiv) In case of the appointment/re-appointment of a director the company shall
disclose the following information to the shareholders:

1(5)(xxiv)(a) A brief resume of the director

1(5)(xxiv)(b) Nature of his/ner expertise in specific functional areas;

1(5)(xxiv)(c) Names of companies in which the person also holds the directorship and the
membership of committees of the board.

1(5)(xxv) A Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting
detailed analysis of the company’s position and operations along with a brief
discussion of changes in the financial statements, among others, focusing on:

1(5)(xxv)(a) Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements;

1(5)(xxv)(b) Changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, clearly describing the
effect on financial performance or results and financial position as well as cash
flows in absolute figure for such changes;

1(5)(xxv)(c) Comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of financial performance or
results and financial position as well as cash flows for current financial year with
immediate preceding five years explaining reasons thereof;

1(5)(xxv)(d) Compare such financial performance or results and financial position as well as
cash flows with the peer industry scenario;

1(5)(xxv)(e) Briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the country and the globe;

1(5)(xxv)(f) Risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements, explaining such
risk and concerns mitigation plan of the company; and

1(5)(xxv)(g) future plan or projection or forecast for company’s operation, performance and
financial position, with justification thereof, i.e., actual position shall be explained
to the shareholders in the next AGM;

1(5)(xxvi) Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the Board as required
under condition No. 3(3) shall be disclosed as per Annexure-A and

1(5)(xxvii) The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of conditions of this Code as
required under condition No. 9 shall be disclosed as per Annexure-B and Annexure-C

1(6) Meetings of the Board of Directors
The company shall conduct its Board meetings and record the minutes of the
meetings as well as keep required books and records in line with the provisions
of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those
standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this Code

1(7) Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer

1(7)(@) The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the recommendation of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) at condition No. 6, for the
Chairperson of the Board, other board members and Chief Executive Officer of
the company;




The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on the website
of the company including, among others, prudent conduct and behavior;
confidentiality; conflict of interest; compliance with laws, rules and regulations;
prohibition of insider trading; relationship with environment, employees,
customers and suppliers; and independency.

GOVERNANCE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the holding company shall
be made applicable to the composition of the Board of the subsidiary company;

At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of the holding company shall
be a director on the Board of the subsidiary company;

The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary company shall be placed for
review at the following Board meeting of the holding company

The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding company shall state
that they have reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company also;

The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also review the financial
statements, in particular the investments made by the subsidiary company

MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD) OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEQ), CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO), HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE
(HIAC) AND COMPANY SECRETARY (CS)

Appointment

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer
(CEQ), a Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and a Head of
Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC);

The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEQ),
Company Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Head of Internal Audit
and Compliance (HIAC) shall be filled by different individuals;

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company shall not hold any
executive position in any other company at the same time;

The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsibilities and duties of the
CFO, the HIAC and the CS;

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed from their position
without approval of the Board as well as immediate dissemination to the
Commission and stock exchange(s).

Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall attend the meetings of
the Board:

Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have reviewed
financial statements for the year and that to the best of their knowledge and
belief:

these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements that might be misleading; and

these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs
and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws;

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to the best of
knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the
year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the
company’s Board or its members;

The certification of the MD or CEQO and CFO shall be disclosed in the Annual
Report.
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4 BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ COMMITTEE
For ensuring good governance in the company, the Board shall have at least
following sub-committees:

4(i) Audit Committee; and

4(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

5 AUDIT COMMITTEE

5(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors.

5(1)(a) The company shall have an Audit Committee as a subcommittee of the Board;

5(1)(b) The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that the financial
statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and in
ensuring a good monitoring system within the business;

5(1)(c) The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board; the duties of the Audit
Committee shall be clearly set forth in writing.

5(2) Constitution of the Audit Committee.

5(2)(a) The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members;

5(2)(b) The Board shall appoint members of the Audit Committee who shall be
non-executive directors of the company excepting Chairperson of the Board and
shall include at least 1 (one) independent director;

5(2)(c) All members of the audit committee should be “financially literate” and at least 1
(one) member shall have accounting or related financial management
background and 10 (ten) years of such experience;

5(2)(d) When the term of service of any Committee member expires or there is any
circumstance causing any Committee member to be unable to hold office before
expiration of the term of service, thus making the number of the Committee
members to be lower than the prescribed number of 3 (three) persons, the Board
shall appoint the new Committee member to fill up the vacancy immediately or
not later than 1 (one) month from the date of vacancy in the Committee to ensure
continuity of the performance of work of the Audit Committee;

5(2)(e) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee;

5(2)(f) The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not constitute without at least
1 (one) independent director.

5(3) Chairperson of the Audit Committee

5(3)(a) The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit Committee to be Chairperson
of the Audit Committee, who shall be an independent director;

5(3)(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, the remaining
members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular
meeting, in that case there shall be no problem of constituting a quorum as
required under condition No. 5(4)(b) and the reason of absence of the regular
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

5(3)(c) Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the Annual General
Meeting (AGM).

5(4) Meeting of the Audit Committee

5(4)(a) The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meetings in a financial year.

5(4)(b) The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be constituted in

presence of either two members or two-third of the members of the Audit
Committee, whichever is higher, where presence of an independent director is a
must.




Role of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall:- J
5(5)(a) oversee the financial reporting process; v
5(5)(b) monitor choice of accounting policies and principles; N
5()(c) monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately
resourced, including approval of the Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and J
review of the Internal Audit and Compliance Report;
5(5)(d) oversee hiring and performance of external auditors; v
5(5)(€) hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual
financial statements before submission to the Board for approval or adoption; v
5(5)(f) review along with the management, the annual financial statements before J
submission to the Board for approval;
5(5)(g) review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial J
statements before submission to the Board for approval;
5(5)(h) review the adequacy of internal audit function; v
5(5)() review the Management's Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the J
Annual Report;
5(5)() review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management; v
5(5)(K) review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by J
statutory auditors;
55)() oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of
expertise deployed and time required for effective audit and evaluate the V
performance of external auditors; and
5(b)(m) oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public Offering (IPO) or
Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Rights Share Offer have been utilized as per the N/A
purposes stated in relevant offer document or prospectus approved by the
Commission.
5(6) Reporting of the Audit Committee
5(6)(a) Reporting to the Board of Directors
5(6)(a)(i) The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board. V
5(6)(a)(ii) The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board on the following
findings, if any:
5(6)(a)(ii)(a) report on conflicts of interests; N/A
5(6)(a)(ii)(b) suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect identified in the N/A
internal audit and compliance process or in the financial statements;
5(6)(a)(ii)(c) suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances including securities N/A
related laws, rules and regulations; and
5(6)(a)(ii)(d) any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary shall be disclosed N/A
to the Board immediately;
5(6)(b) Reporting to the Authorities
If the Audit Committee has reported to the Board about anything which has
material impact on the financial condition and results of operation and has
discussed with the Board and the management that any rectification is necessary N/A

and if the Audit Committee finds that such rectification has been unreasonably
ignored, the Audit Committee shall report such finding to the Commission, upon
reporting of such matters to the Board for three times or completion of a period of
6 (six) months from the date of first reporting to the Board, whichever is earlier.
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5(7) Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors
Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee, including any report
made to the Board under condition No. 5(6)(a)(ii) above during the year, shall be
signed by the Chairperson of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the annual v
report of the issuer company.

6 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC)

6(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors

6(1)(a) The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a J
sub-committee of the Board;

6(1)(b) The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or policy
for determining qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and independence J
of directors and top level executive as well as a policy for formal process of
considering remuneration of directors, top level executive;

6(1)(c) The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly set forth in writing
covering the areas stated at the condition No.6(5)(b). v

6(2) Constitution of the NRC

6(2)(a) The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including an J
independent director;

6(2)(b) All members of the Committee shall be non-executive directors; v

6(2)(c) Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by the Board; v

6(2)(d) The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any member of the N
Committee;

6(2)(e) In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any member of the
Committee or in any other cases of vacancies, the board shall fill the vacancy within N
180 (one hundred eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in the Committee;

6(2)(f) The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any external expert
and/or member(s) of staff to the Committee as advisor who shall be non-voting J
member, if the Chairperson feels that advice or suggestion from such external
expert and/or member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for the Committee;

6(2)(g) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee; V

6(2)(h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without attendance of at J
least an independent director;

6(2)(i) No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly, any
remuneration for any advisory or consultancy role or otherwise, other than N
Director’s fees or honorarium from the company.

6(3) Chairperson of the NRC

6(3)(a) The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC to be Chairperson of the J
Committee, who shall be an independent director;

6(3)(b) In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining members may elect
one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular meeting, the reason of v
absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes;

6(3)(c) The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual general meeting (AGM) to J
answer the queries of the shareholders.

6(4) Meeting of the NRC

6(4)(a) The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial year; V

6(4)(b) The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency meeting upon request J

by any member of the NRC;




6(4)(c) The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in presence of either
two members or two third of the members of the Committee, whichever is J
higher, where presence of an independent director is must as required under
condition No. 6(2)(h);
6(4)(d) The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be recorded in the J
minutes and such minutes shall be confirmed in the next meeting of the NRC
6(5) Role of the NRC
6(5)() NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board and to J
the shareholders;
6(5)(b) NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with
recommendation to the Board:
6(5)(b)(i) formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, top level executive, considering the following:
6(5)(b)(i)(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate suitable directors to run the company successfully; v
6(5)(b)(i)(b) the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate J
performance benchmarks; and
6(5)(b)(i)(c) remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between fixed
and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives J
appropriate to the working of the company and its goals;
6(5)(b) i) devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, gender,
experience, ethnicity, educational background and nationality; v
6(5)(b)(ii) identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed in top level executive position in accordance with the criteria laid v
down, and recommend their appointment and removal to the Board;
6(5)(b)(iv) formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors
and the Board; v
6(5)(b)(v) identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine J
their selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criteria; and
6(5)(0)(vi) developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human
resources and training policies; v
6(5)(c) The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and the
evaluation criteria and activities of NRC during the year at a glance in its annual v
report.
7 EXTERNAL OR STATUTORY AUDITORS
7(1) The issuer company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform J
the following services of the company, namely:-
7(10) appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions; v
7(1)(i) financial information systems design and implementation; v
7(1)(iii) book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records or financial J
statements;
7(1)(iv) broker-dealer services; N
7(1)v) actuarial services; v
7(1)(vi) internal audit services or special audit services; Vv
7(1)(vii) any service that the Audit Committee determines; +
7(1)(viii) audit or certification services on compliance of corporate governance as required J

under condition No. 9(1); and
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any other service that creates conflict of interest.

No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess any share of
the company they audit at least during the tenure of their audit assignment of that
company; his or her family members also shall not hold any shares in the said
company:

Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain present in the
Shareholders’ Meeting (Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General
Meeting) to answer the queries of the shareholders.

MAINTAINING A WEBSITE BY THE COMPANY

The company shall have an official website linked with the website of the stock
exchange.

The company shall keep the website functional from the date of listing.

The company shall make available the detailed disclosures on its website as
required under the listing regulations of the concerned stock exchange(s).

REPORTING AND COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing Professional Accountant
or Secretary (Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant or
Chartered Secretary) other than its statutory auditors or audit firm on yearly basis
regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Code of the
Commission and shall such certificate shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

The professional who will provide the certificate on compliance of this Corporate
Governance Code shall be appointed by the shareholders in the annual general
meeting.

The directors of the company shall state, in accordance with the Annexure-C
attached, in the directors’ report whether the company has complied with these
conditions or not.




ANNEXURE-D

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ON
COMPANY’S POSITION AND OPERATION

The financial and operating results of the Company are very impressive during the year 2018-19. The profitability,
performance, liquidity of the Company are gradually improving. We are focusing on sustainability and efficiency. The
Company's overall position has been reflected in the Financial Statements which has been prepared following all generally
accepted accounting principles. The overall company's position and future planning, methods of financial statement preparation
have been summarized below:

a. Preparation of Financial Statements:

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual basis of accounting except for Cash
Flow Statement in accordance with the applicable International Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting
Standards.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on past experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

b. Changes in Accounting policies and Estimations:

The Company is holding 44.97 % of ordinary shares of BSRM Steel Mills Limited. This company has been treated as Subsidiary
Company and included in the Consolidated Financial Statements according to BFRS-10: “Consolidated Financial Statements”
to ensure better presentation as per BFRS.

c. Financial performance and position of the Company:

After BMRE in 2015, the Company has started commercial production in December 2015. Now its production has crossed
6.86 lacs M. Ton annually. The Net Profit after tax is Tk. 1860.63 Million in this year. Cash flow position is also improving.
Now the operating cash flow stood Tk. 2.81 per share which was Tk. (8.78) per share in 2017-18.

Financial performance:

In the year 2018-19, Sales stood Tk. 44,408.88 million which is 33.61% higher than last year. In this year average selling
price has increased. The Gross profit stood Tk. 4,992.24 million in the current year which was Tk. 4,828.32 million in the last
year. The Gross profit ratio is 11.24% in the year 2018-19 which was 14.53% in 2017-18. 668,189 M. Ton finished goods
has been sold in this year.

Shares of profit from associate company were 1060.71Million which was Tk. 983.55 Million in the last year. It is increased
because our Subsidiary Company —BSRM Steel Mills Limited has attained its maximum efficiency.

Financial Performance: Amount in BDT in million

Sales 44,408.88 | 33,238.37 | 23,648.93| 9,713.86 | 7,801.98 | 8,049.89 | 8,602.42
Gross Profit 4,992.24 | 4,828.32 | 3,236.93 | 1,362.03 | 458.01 188.25 | 500.09
Net Profit 1,860.63 | 2,778.78 | 756.52 | 588.65 | 827.67 109.09 | 943.82
Earnings Per Share (EPS) (Tk.) 7.88 11.77 350 3.02 4,78 0.7 6.06
Net Asset Value Per Share (Tk.) 97.46 63.70 55.75 52.84 55.28 541 53.09
Net operating Cash Flow Per Share (Tk.) 2.81 (8.78) (11.38) (3.53) (10.16) (5.43) 0.563
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Total Production was 686,769 M. Ton (including Epoxy coated bar) and sales was 668,189 M. Ton this year. In this year billet
production was 174,657 M. Ton against rated capacity of 150,000 M. Ton.

d. Financial performance and position with peer industries:

Now the annual steel market demand is 8 Million M. Ton which may be reached to 18 Million by 2030. Most of the local
Companies in this industry are increasing their capacity. These Companies are also increasing their capacity for billet

productions

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited (BSRM)

Taka in Million

Revenue 44,409 33,238 23,457 9,713 7,801 8,049
Grass Profit 4,992 4828 3,215 1,362 458 188
Profit after Tax 1,860 2778 756 588 827 109
EPS (Tk.) 7.88 11.77 3.88 3.02 478 0.07
Net Assets Value (NAV) (Tk.) 97.46 63.7 56.75 52.84 55.28 54.1
Net Operating Cash Flow (Tk.) 2.81 (8.78) (11.38) (3.53) (10.16) (6.43)
GPH Ispat Limited (GPH) Taka in Million

Revenue 1152.35 9923.41 7,839 5,743 5,988 4,687
Gross Profit 1507.71 1602.54 1,373 960 901 867
Profit after Tax 563.76 643.59 571 289 292 269
EPS (Tk.) 1.57 1.97 1.83 2.65 2.34 2.35
Net Assets Valug (NAV) (Tk.) 16.92 16.89 16.15 15.45 16.4 16.25
Net Operating Cash Flow (Tk.) 1.51 1.12 3.83 0.41 4.67 2.177

*Information of 2018-2019 shows Nine months financial data.

BSRM Steels Limited Taka in Million

Revenue 61,060.15 | 48,289.93 |37,996.41 | 17,265.18 | 32,316.10 | 38,535.94
Gross Profit 5056191 | 487917 | 4557.30| 3,114.69 | 4,368.65 | 2,807.32
Profit after Tax 1,728.13 | 1,800.80 | 1,705.41 | 1,313.32 | 2,081.88 | 1,086.21
EPS (Tk.) 4.60 5.27 4.98 3.84 6.09 3.18
Net Assets Value (NAV) (Tk.) 55.58 37.48 34.08 27.42 26.57 21.93
Net Operating Cash Flow (Tk.) (12.43) 2.90 1.07 9.05 16.87 (8.76)




Ratanpur Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited (RSRM) Taka in Million

Revenue 5,903.02 | 7,659.68 7,489 5,377 5,503 4,766
Gross Profit 955.81 | 1,276.99 1,257 650 549 465
Profit after Tax 558.83 713.46 7,077 271 272 164
EPS (Tk.) 5.52 7.05 8.18 3.45 4.36 5.24
Net Assets Value (NAV) (Tk.) 49.42 44.74 44.6 41.06 45.63 58.93
Net Operating Cash Flow (Tk.) 0.78 1.00 2.08 1.45 (15.17) 2.89

*Information of 2018-2019 shows Nine months financial data.

e. Global and Local Economic Scenario:

According to Asian Development Bank, Bangladesh holds the top position in GDP growth among all the countries of South Asia.
The GDP has already crossed 8% this year which is likely to increase more in near future. The growth is expected to take
Bangladesh to a top position among 75 countries by 2030. According to a report from HSBC, by 2030, China will continue
to lead the global growth of Economy. As Bangladesh is expected to become a S700 billion Economy in 2030, this massive
growth in Economy is associated with huge development in infrastructure of Bangladesh, which opens the door for substantial
boom in steel industry.

f. Risk and mitigation:

Though the economy in Bangladesh is growing very fast and it creates an opportunity for steel industries, there are also some
risks. Global warming and green house effects, makes Bangladesh cyclone prone area. Moreover, acute energy crisis, port
congestion, poor infrastructure etc. creates obstacles for prospect of steel industry. However, now some positive steps have
been taken by the Government. LNG supply, Ruppur N. Plants will hopefully reduce power crisis. Now construction of deep sea
ports are in government agenda. Number of roads and bridges have been constructed. Government is going to set up some
Exclusive Economic zones. Industry favorable policies and rules have been enacted. We have set up a separate department to
identify and assess the internal potential risks and to find a way out how to mitigate those risks. The enterprise risk management
policy has been enforced. A dedicated team is regularly monitoring the Enterprise Risk and take corrective measures.

g. Future planning:

BSRM Group is planning to sell 16.75 lac M. Ton in the coming year. Out of this, around 7.50 lac M. Ton will be supplied by
BSRM Ltd. Moreover, we are trying to explore markets in the eastern parts of India. To ensure imports of raw materials and
spares at competitive price and to reduce lead time, we have set up a Subsidiary Company in Hong Kong. We are also planning
to set up a rolling mill through a Joint Venture in Kenya.

Aameir Alihussain

Managing Director
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‘ RISK FACTORS AND CONCERNS

1. Business Risks
a) Risks associated with sourcing of Raw Materials

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited (BSRMLTD) was
heavily dependent for its basic raw materials-MS  Billets
on international market up to June 2016. In case of billet
price fluctuation in the international market, the company
suffered and its profitability was also affected.

To meet the challenge, a separate company “BSRM Steel
Mills Limited” has commissioned in June 2016 to produce
862,000 M. Ton MS billet per year which significantly reduce
outside dependency. Steel Melting Unit of BSRMLTD can
also supply 150,000 M. Ton Billet per year. Now BSRM Ltd
is also procuring billets from BSRM Steels Limited (unit
BISCO). Moreover, a new billet producing unit under BSRM
Steels Limited with capacity of 430,000 M. Ton per has
already started its operation.

b) Risks associated with Power Supply

Presently the primary constraint on the economic
development of Bangladesh is the shortage of power for
which new industrial investments proposal from home and
aboard have failed to materialize.

For ensuring uninterrupted power supply BSRM Group has
made a deal with PGCB and installed a substation for tapping
power from the 230 KV national grids. Today, more than
10,000 MW power can be produced in Bangladesh. The
government is also planning for setting up some big power
stations. There is an additional regular risk of having an
adequate and regular supply of gas. The Company is also
aware of such risks and its mitigation through the alternative
supply of fuel.

2. Market Risks

Like other industry, trade, and commerce, we are also
exposed to market risks arising from adverse changes in:

e |nterest Rate;

e Currency Rate (foreign exchange rates);
e Competition and

e Economic conditions

ANNEXURE-1

To manage these risks, we undertake various risks specific
measures and strategies on regular basis

Interest Rates

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that increases cost of
capital which will have an adverse impact on consolidated net
financial income.

The business of BSRMLTD requires huge working capital.
Although the company closely monitors and manages
requirement of capital investment, the actual capital
requirement may deviate from the projected one due to
factors beyond its control, thus potentially affecting the
borrowing costs. Interest rate on working capital and term
loan has increased during last six months of this year which
also impact the net income of the company.

Prudent financial management and active negotiation with the
lenders and timely collection from customers are few of
significant steps to reducing funding cost.

Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Foreign currency risk is the risk of changes in exchange rates
that adversely affect the company’s earnings, equity, and
competitiveness.

We are hugely involved with Foreign Trade i.e. Import &
Export and thus we are also exposed to Foreign Currency
Risks. Exchange rate gains or losses related to foreign
currency transactions are recognized as transaction gains and
losses in our income statement as incurred. We also maintain
foreign currency account in which export collection is directly
deposited and we can meet foreign currency payment
requirements. In the year 2018-19 company has not been
affected due to Foreign Currency fluctuation. Further, as a
mitigation plan we plan to purchase USD in advance based on
the market situation.

Competition and Economic conditions

Competition refers to the risks of decreasing present market
share by new entrants. We try to mitigate this risk through
active brand management and customer relationship and by
ensuring timely supply of quality product.



As we continuously explore any untapped opportunity and
also to adopt customer’s needs, we believe we would be able
to cope with any situation in the industry we are working.

3. Technology Related Risks

Highly automated and competitive types of machinery are
available with the Company for the manufacture of various
steel products. The Company has so far been one of the
pioneers in Bangladesh in setting up mills with State of the Art
European Technology for further processing of the input
materials. The Company also implemented Oracle e-Business
Suite to integrate the operation of basic functions namely,
Finance and Accounts, Sales and Marketing, Supply Chain,
Inventory, Maintenance, and Manufacturing. Business
Intelligence (Bl) Analytics Tool for BSRM Group started in May
2018 which help senior management and Board members to
have information from one central point.

4. Environmental Risks

BSRM is proud to be ZERO in factory emissions and effects
on environment. To reduce pollution in our plants and protect
human and nature alike, BSRM Has undertaken environment
friendly initiatives which are as follows:

i. BSRM Cleans 31,584,000 Cubic Meters of air every
day. We are using Japanese air pollution control
technology for this purpose.

ii. BSRM Recycles 373,700 Cubic Meters of water every
day. We have invested in technologically superior
European Water Treatment Plant in its steel plants which
has helped BSRM to recycle every drop of used water
and achieve zero water wastage.

ii. BSRM plants 10,000 trees in its factories. We have
under taken a plan for reforestation effort in collaboration
with partner organizations, conducts tree plantation
programs around main steel plants.

We firmly believe that-ZERO can save life.
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ANNEXURE 1A

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT AND

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

Enterprise Risk Management framework

The Enterprise  Risk Management framework (ERM
framework) refers to a set of components that provide the
foundation  for designing, implementing, monitoring,
reviewing and continually improving risk management
throughout BSRM Group of Companies. The ERM framework
for the Group has been developed keeping in mind the needs
of internal and external stakeholders. The BSRM Group’s
ERM framework is based on the ‘Risk Management -
Principles and Guidelines’ developed by the International
Organization for Standardization (ISO 31000:2009 - Risk
Management Principles and Guidelines).

In addition, several good practices recommended by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) for ERM
have incorporated in BSRM Group’s endeavor to build world
class ERM framework and processes.

BSRM Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) Framework
provides guidance to implement a consistent, efficient, and
economical approach to identify, evaluate and respond to key
risks that may impact business objectives.

BSRM’s enterprise risk management framework is directed to
enable management to effectively deal with uncertainty and
associated risks and opportunities, enhancing the capacity to
build value. The Steps are:

e Promoting risk awareness throughout the BSRMLTD as
well as BSRM Group of Companies.

e Defining risk appetite

e |dentifying and managing multiple and cross-enterprise
risks

e |dentifying risk management team with clearly defined
roles and responsibilities

e Formalizing risk response decisions

e Reducing operational surprises and 10sses

e Formalising a process for identifying opportunities arising
out of risk situations

e |Improving deployment or more efficient use of capital and
resources

ERM helps BSRMLTD in managing risks in a proactive
manner towards achieving its business  objectives,
performance & profitability targets and prevent loss of
resources. BSRM’s ERM is directed to help ensure effective
reporting and compliance with laws and regulations, avoid
damage to the entity's reputation and its consequences.

Key principles of ERM Framework

The guiding principles of BSRM's Risk Management
Framework are as follows:

e Risk Management should be a continuous process.

e Risk Management principles should be kept in mind
during the strategy and objective setting processes as well
as the day-to-day activities and decision-making

e Risks should be understood and prioritized based on the
event frequency and impact to one or more objectives

e The same metrics used to measure objectives e.g.,
revenue, customer satisfaction metrics, are to be
preferably leveraged during risk management activities

e Risk response strategies are to be evaluated for those
risks deemed to be high or medium priority

e Key risk management information (e.g., key events,
results of risk assessments, risk responses) is to be
documented in a timely and structured manner

e Policies, procedures and practices should be in
synchronisation with risks

e A portfolio view of risks is to be reviewed by the Board,
Audit Committee, Management Team and Chief Risk
Officer on a regular basis



BSRM’s Risk Management Framework comprises of:

STRATEGY
OBJECTIVES RISK
/CULTURE POLICY APPETITE
DEFINES
FRAEATR
el
STRATEGY

Infrastructure Processes Organisation

Risk Rating Technology Risk Monitoring Departments/ Monitoring &
Guidelines & Systems Identification & Reporting Committess Reporting

Management Risk Risk Roles & Skills &
Information Assessment Reporting Responsibilities Experience

Risk Management Methodology of BSRM:
Risk

Simply stated risk is the possibility that an event will occur and adversely affect the achievement of objectives. Risks can be
thought of as threats, uncertainty or lost opportunity.

Risk Management as a process

The process of Risk Management deals with how the organization
e |dentifies risks that affect achievement of goals & objectives

e Measures the significance of each identified risk

e Determines the most appropriate business response to each risk

e Evaluates and reports on how well the chosen responses are being implemented

Risk Management Guidelines
The ERM guidelines provide supporting information to assist Management in the execution of the ERM processes.

ERM process is the systematic application of management policies, procedures and practices to the activity of communicating,
consulting and establishing the context for ERM in BSRM Group of Companies. The ERM process comprising of risk
identification & assessment, risk treatment and risk monitoring applies across the organizational lifecycle.

Against the given background, the key process constituents of ERM are:

RISK RISK RISK

IDENTIFICATION ANALYSIS EVALUATION
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Disclosure of Risk Reporting:

We are following the below process for risk reporting in BSRM Group of Companies:

Risk Register and Profile Record identified Risks and detailed | Designated Risk Manager.
description of risk which needs to be
prioritized

Risk response and mitigation Detailed current risk response and | Designated Mitigation owner and Risk
details of Management actions with | Manager.
timelines

Risk Report at Business unit and | A report/form of communication | Risk Managers, Chief Risk Officer and
corporate level intended  to inform  particular | Risk Steering Committee.

stakeholders by providing information
regarding the current state of key
risks and its management. It is
represented by a "Heat Map" where
key risks are plotted and is supported
by the detailed risk profiles

Risk report at group level Executive Summary Report with the | Chief Risk Officer.
selected top risks and responses at
group level
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ANNEXURE-2

DISCUSSION ON COST OF GOODS SOLD,
GP MARGIN AND NP MARGIN

COST OF GOODS SOLD COGS

Cost of goods sold (COGS) is the expense a company incurs in order to manufacture, create, and sell a product. It includes
the purchase price of the raw material as well as the expenses of turning it into a finished product.

COGS vary directly with sales and production, the more items we sell or make, the more stock or components we need to buy.
During the year 2018-2019 Cost of goods sold (COGS) was Tk. 39,416 million against Tk. Tk. 28,410 million of 2017-2018
GROSS PROFIT MARGIN RATIO

Gross profit is the difference between sales and the cost of goods sold.

Gross Profit=Sales—Cost of Goods Sold

The gross profit margin is one indicator of the financial health of a business. Larger gross profit margins are better for business
— the higher the percentage, the more the business retains of each Taka of sales for other expenses and net profit.

Gross Profit Margin %= (Gross Profit ~ Sales) x 100

During the year 2018-19 Gross Profit Margin was 11.24% which was 14.53% in 2017-18. Due to increase in billet price
and other cost of production gross profit margin has declined.

NET PROFIT MARGIN RATIO

Net Profit is calculated by subtracting expenses including Tax and WPP & WF from the gross profit, showing what the business
has earned (or lost) in a given period of time.

Net Profit=Gross Profit—Expenses with Tax & WPP & WWF

Net profit has stood Tk. 1,860.63 Million which was Tk. 2,778.77Million in 2017-18. Net profit decreased as Selling and
Marketing expenses & deferred tax has increased as well as Other Non-operating income also declined this year.
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ANNEXURE-3

REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTORS IN 2018-19

Members of the Board of Directors were entitled and paid as follows:
Remuneration Paid to Directors in 2018-19

Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA 17,250 28,800,000 28,817,250 34,500 22,800,000 22,834,500
Mr. Aameir Alihussain 23,000 22,800,000 22,823,000 34,500 16,800,000 16,834,500
Mr. Zohair Taherali 28,750 13,200,000 13,228,750 25,875 13,200,000 13,225,875
Mrs. Sabeen Aameir 17,250 6,000,000 6,017,250 8,625 6,000,000 6,008,625
Mr. Mono Ranjan Dey FCA 276,000 276,000 143,750 143,750
Total 362,250 70,800,000 71,162,250 247,250 58,800,000 59,047,250
ANNEXURE-4

KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL
DATA OF PRECEDING 6 YEARS

Production (Qty) MT 686,769 562,903 442,511 241,359 45,689 42,116 106,810
% of Production Growth % 22.00% 27.21% 83.34% - 8.48% (60.57%) 13.47%
Sales (Qty) MT 668.189 549,977 503,705 192,631 54,433 76,818 126,714
% of Sales Growth (Qty) % 21.49% 9.19% 161.49% (29.14%) (39.38%) (33.88%)
Turnover MLN Tk 44,408.88 33,238.37 23,648.93 9,713.86 7,801.98 8,049.89 8,602.42
Gross Profit MLN Tk 4,992.24 4,828.32 3,236.93 1,362.03 458,01 188.25 500.09
Gross Profit % % 11.24% 14.53% 13.69% 14.02% 5.87% 2.34% 5.81%
'g Earnings before Non MLN Tk 3,637.90 3,864.96 2,571.90 1,057.78 207.15 (66.17) 284.99
e Operating Income, interest,
o« WPP&WF and Tax % 8.19% 11.63% 10.88% 10.89% 2.66% (0.82%) 3.31%
% Non-Operating Income MLN Tk 41.30 123.21 113.90 359.36 1,357.07 567.28 1,258.31
E MLN Tk 1,860.63 2,778.78 756.52 588.65 827.67 109.09 943.82
a Net Profit after tax
% 4.19% 8.36% 3.20% 6.06% 10.61% 1.36% 10.97%
Earnings Per Share (EPS) TK 7.88 11.77 8159 3.02 478 0.70 6.06
Current Ratio (Times ) 1.04 1.04 0.75 0.78 0.73 1.09 0.99
Net Asset Value MLN Tk 23,007.37 13,671.41 10,876.80 10,309.79 9,803.67 8,431.80 8,273.86
Net Asset Value Per Share Tk 97.46 63.70 BONo) 52.84 55.28 54.10 53.09
Net operating Cash Flow Per Share |~ Tk 2.81 (8.78) (11.38) (3.53) (10.16) (5.43) 0.53
Paid -up Capital Crore Tk 236.06 214.60 195.09 195.09 177.36 155.851 155.851




ANNEXURE-5

THE PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS

a) Parent/Subsidiary/Associated companies and other related parties

H. Akberali & Co. Limited 31,786,839 28,897,127
Karnafully Engineering Works Limited 5,325,130 4,841,028
Total 37,111,969 33,738,155

b) Directors /CEQ/CS/CFO/Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children.

Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA Chairman 29,238,249 26,580,227
Mr. Aameir Alihussain Managing Director 22,720,109 20,654,645
m(:.mizngg?E)irTeiTo?r;”H.Akberan & Co. Ltd) Director 31,766,839 28,897,127
Mrs. Sabeen Aameir Director 5,330,122 4,845,566
Mrs. Tehseen Zohair Taherali Wife of Mr. Zohair Taherali 8,182,750 7,438,864
Mrs. Bilkis Alihussain Wife of Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA 21,493,760 19,539,782
Mr. Abdul Qadir Zohair Son of Mr. Zohair Taherali 6,122 5,566
Mr. Shekhar Ranjan Kar FCA GM (F&A) and Company Secretary 23.310 12,100
Mr. Mohammed Reazul Kabir FCA AGM and CFO 2,442 2,220

¢) Shareholding status of top 5 salaried employees other than CEO, CS, CFO& HIAC

Mr. Tapan Sengupta Deputy Managing Director 24,610 15,100
-
i S
Mr. Kazi Anwar Ahmed Ge”BE'D'}:':L‘:%G;F)%?&T;Ba]fffc/:ﬁa"s 13,310 12,100 E
Mr. Mohindar Singh Hanspal General Manager Rolling Nill Nill g
Mr. Anil Kumar Chhabra Senior Manager Production Nill Nill E
Mr. Md. Nizamul Haque Deputy General Manager Plant Operation Nill Nill

d) Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest in the company.

Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA Chairman 29,238,249 26,580,227

H. Akberali & Co. Limited Affiliated Company 31,786,839 28,897,127




INNOVATIVE
USE OF
BYPRODUCTS
FOR A GROWING
NATION

Demand for construction materials are growing day by day; the limited resources of
construction materials are proving to be a challenge for Bangladesh. Using natural stone, granite
or bricks causes massive damage to the environment as well. Being the country’s no. 1 steel expert,
BSRM believes in going green through recycling and reusing waste materials. Keeping this
philosophy in mind, BSRM has innovated a way of reusing slag, a by-product of steel making. This slag is being
used as an alternative for natural stone and sand in the construction of a highway in Manikgon;.




‘ CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

BSRM GROUP
CSR VISION

BSRM GROUP
CSR PRINCIPLES

BSRM GROUP
CSR PLAN

2018-2019 BSRM CSR
Philanthropic Initiatives

CSR programmes/projects are usually of continuous in
nature, focus areas: education, health, water, livelihood,
conservation of nature. Existing programmes are scaled up
and replicated, as felt deemed, new initiatives have been
taken during the current fiscal year.

| School Children Milk

programme (SCMP), Gaibandha
November 2018

A unique project has been initiated, BSRM brainchild, to
reach kids of meager income families, who come to school
without having breakfast in the remote area of Bangladesh.
Hunger and malnutrition leads to poor performance in school,
worse health outcomes, and without doubt, lowers
productivity throughout adult life.

BSRM has partnered with Gana Unnayan Kendra (GUK),
a reputed NGO in Gaibandha who has agreed to become a
sponsor partner of the Joint Venture and implement the project.
SCMP is a sustainable venture having long-term benefits.
Starting as a pilot project if becomes successful, the scope
and area will be scaled up, in the same district and beyond.

Initially the farm will start with 15 cows to produce and supply
fresh milk to school children, will contribute in augmenting
lives of 368 kids of two schools, generate employment at the
farm and bring revenue which will be used to expand the
programme to cover additional schools under this scheme.

The project is almost ready, will be inaugurated in November
2019, it is located in a flood prone area, many children will
be benefitted from this intervention.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

BSRM Tree Plantation

.| (BTP) Bangladesh
B October, 2018

This project brings all lands/spaces owned by BSRM
group under BTP that are not used by the manufacturing
plants, and or various offices, for plantation and
cultivation. BTP is a sustainable project, will (a) create
employment, (b) generate revenue which will be used to
(c) support BSRM CSR philanthropic programmes.

BSRM Khulna BTP

BSRM employees are the implementing partners. Admin
wings of BSRM Plants, Sales Offices, Warehouses are
managing the plantation and distribution location wise.
Scope of the programme is to grow trees, organic fruits,
vegetables, fish and live-stocks. BSRM employees will
have the privilege to purchase at fair price. With the
growing volume of produces, we plan to sell in the
market, gradually it will become a mega project.

anl’ I. : ..-

BSRM Jungal - Narayangonj BTP

-f Genius Scholarship
~ /| Program, Bangladesh

‘-""1-._"/ April, 2019

A unique project has been initiated, BSRM brainchild, to
reach kids of meager income families, who come to school
without having breakfast in the remote area of Bangladesh.
Hunger and malnutrition leads to poor performance in school,
worse health outcomes, and without doubt, lowers
productivity throughout adult life.

BSRM has partnered with Gana Unnayan Kendra (GUK), a
reputed NGO in Gaibandha who has agreed to become a
sponsor  partner of the Joint Venture and implement the
project.

SCMP is a sustainable venture having long-term benefits.
Starting as a pilot project if becomes successful, the scope
and area will be scaled up, in the same district and beyond.

BSRM - Uttaran

| Water Project, Shatkhira
April, 2019

Often we question ourselves whose is responsible for fetching
safe drinking water of a family in our country — is it the
children, women or the government?  Support from any
quarter impacts lives of many, BSRM CSR desk has taken a
number of small initiatives for supplying fresh drinking water
in Sylhet, Barisal, Mongla, Fulchar, Gaibandah, Kurigram.
These programmes save time for children to study, women to
engage in income generating work, reduce suffering from
water generated diseases, lower family medical expenses




BSRM and its NGO partner Uttaran have agreed to set up another water project - a submersible pipeline water supply plant in
Khanpur, Tala, Shatkhira. The capacity of the water reservoir will be 50,000 litre, 500 HHs or 3,700 family members will be
benefitted, expected to complete by December 2019.

TN
- BSRM Employee Education Programme (BEEP)
v January 2014

BSRM non-management employees wanting to provide
good education to their children are supported under BEEP.
The programme is operated by BSRM Human
Resource/Admin Departments at all BSRM operation sites in
Bangladesh.

i l - =
BSRM Employees: Mr. Julel with children

BEEP supports Qarz-e-Hasana (BEEP-QH) - A loan
fund designed for employees who are in financial crisis
but need to pursue higher education for themselves or
their children as well.

Contribution to the project has increased as the number
of kids getting support under BEEP has increased over
the years.

Beep Students
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SUSTAINABLE GROWTH -

To keep our human resources safe and sound and the
environment clean, we have taken number of measures. We
always give priority to keep the working environment safe,
secure and ensure the green surroundings for all of our
employees as well as for our country.

Green Environment

We are using world class Water Treatment Plant (WTP) for
recycling the water to keep the environment free from pollution.

The Company has also commissioned Air Pollution Control
(APC) system in melting factory to keep the air free from
Pollution. In the same way, we are going to implement a rain
water harvesting project for our new billet casting plant at
Mirsarai. It will have positive impact on the environment.

As recognition of your effort to keep the environment clean
and greener, we were awarded the “Divisional Environmental
Award” by Poribesh Odhidaptar.

Human Resources Function

We are on a journey to build a safer nation. To make this drive
meaningful we always desire to have the best people in our
team. Our people are our asset. We truly believe that our
employees are integral to our success. We can only be
consistent with our values; Sustainable Growth, Quality,
Reliability, Trust, Leadership, Social Responsibility and
Customer Satisfaction if we foster the right people at the right
time, work as a team, develop talents, enhance leadership
capabilities and maximise the potential of our human capital.

We at BSRM, always welcome candidates from different
disciplines with adequate experience to join us. Our Talent
Acquisition team works hard to search for talent for a role on
basis of the required competencies. We are an equal
opportunity employer where every candidate is judged by
their self ability to perform certain job. Our unbiased approach
made us an Employer of Choice. We aspire to align our
people with our vision and values and make them a key factor
for success in business transformation and change process.

Here at BSRM, we believe people join us for a career, not for
a job. Our KPI based performance management system helps
people to be accountable for their roles and find out their
weak areas to develop. It helps us to identify the high

Green Environment, Human Resource and
Information Technology Development

performer for a bigger role within the group. Talent
Management team strives to maintain a performance based
culture, identifying critical positions, finding out the possible
successors and helping them develop to future leadership.

In order to nurture talent, we at BSRM, believe that
institutionalising a learning culture positively helps safety,
sustainability, quality and productivity of the organisation.
Our Learning and Development activities are systematic,
organised, and ensure that individual training needs are well
defined, understood, and catered to. Frequent trainings,
local and abroad, are provided to confirm adequate
development opportunities for all our people. Pre evaluation
and post assessment translate to the training effectiveness
and utilisation.

A large number of skilled workforces are working with us to
produce the best quality of steel for our customers. We are
committed to give our people a safe and compliant
workplace. Our Industrial Relation team works closely with
our Plant Human Resources to make sure that our people
have a place to talk and they must feel their concerns are
attended. We pay attention to give a work life balance and
engagement to our people. Employee Engagement programs
are rolled out to not only engage employees but also develop
employee ethics through positive motivation and promote a
work environment that is characterised by fair treatment of
staff, open communication, personal accountability, trust and
mutual respect.

Our HR policies are formulated to give the best to our people,
and also at the same time guarantee the control and
utilisation of resources. Our HR Operations team is
responsible for policy administration and timely review of HR
policies. Our people deserve the best of us, and hence we
focus on our Benefit Policy to ensure that our talent receives
benefits and allowances such as Festival Bonus, Provident
Fund, Gratuity, Car Scheme, Children Education Scheme,
Employee Education Scheme, Employee
ChildrenAchievement Award for distinct academic result,
Domiciliary Scheme, Executive Health Check-up Scheme,
Hospitalisation Scheme, Maternity Benefit Scheme, Wedding
Gifts, WPPF, Pilgrimage Leave efc.



True motivation comes from achievement, personal
development, job satisfaction and recognition and our team
ensures that it is not about financial attachment but emotional
attachment is developed because when people are financially
invested, they want return. When people are emotionally
invested, they want to contribute. We have successfully
maintained a low employee turnover over the years by
engaging our employees and making sure they have a sense
of ownership towards our organisation.

We work together, and we achieve together.

Information Technology

When it comes to empowering IT, BSRM has always been the
pioneer in Bangladesh Manufacturing industry. While our ERP
support is working relentlessly to accurately reflect our
production and financial info in oracle eBS, Our development
team remains ever vigilant to ensure the best service possible
to our beloved customers.

To double down on uninterrupted service, we have
implemented an offline delivery system which guarantees
seamless delivery even during unforeseen circumstances
(Network downtime, Server crash etc.). Our new ‘Disaster
Recovery Site’ works as a safeguard against critical system
failures. But most importantly, thanks to a website overhaul;
customers are now free to submit purchase order on BSRM
Website without any prior registration requirement.

By making numerous enhancement, adjustments and
developments for departments all across the group; IT has
become a staple of BSRM today. And thanks to the
continuous support from senior management; will hopefully
continue to thrive and prosper over the coming years.
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IMPROVING
LIVELIHOODS IN
CHAR AREAS

The Char Livelihoods Program (CLP) has been working with extremely poor inhabitants
living on islands (chars) in north-western part of Bangladesh including Fulchar, Gaibandha, Shariakandi and
Kurigram. Household water collection — for drinking and other purposes - was a crucial problem for the
inhabitants of these areas and was mainly carried out by the female members of families and their children. It is for
this reason that BSRM has aligned with 6 NGOs and installed 114 shallow tube-wells. As a result 4,500 people,
including school-going children of around 1,000 households, are enjoying the benefits of this project.




‘ REGULATORY COMPLIANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Report

Corporate governance refers to the structures and processes
for the direction and control of companies. Sound corporate
governance is a fundamental part of the culture of the
Company and ensures long-term success. Corporate
governance concerns the relationships among  the
management, Board of Directors, controlling shareholders,
minority  shareholders and other stakeholders. Good
corporate governance contributes to sustainable economic
development by enhancing the performance of companies.
The Board of Directors of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills
Limited is firmly committed to upholding principles of sound
corporate governance. The main objective of corporate
governance is a creation of lasting value for stakeholders.
Transparency in the business transaction and disclosure of
information to regulatory bodies as part of its legal obligations
and constitute sound corporate governance. Good corporate
governance also means conformity to sound ethical principles
and a code of conduct in business dealings.

Board of Directors

Board of Directors is the representative and trustee of the
shareholders of the Company. The Board of Directors of
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited comprises of five
members including Chairman, Managing Director and one
independent director in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Guidelines of BSEC. Board of Directors is
performing the responsibilities, among others, setting the
company's  strategic  objectives, providing  leadership,
supervision and safeguarding shareholders' interest.

Audit Committee

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited has an Audit
Committee as a sub-committee of the Board of Directors.
This committee assists the Board of Directors in ensuring that
the financial statements reflect the true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and in ensuring a good
monitoring system within the business. The Committee
reports to the Board of Directors. It's duties and
responsibilities are clearly outlined in writing.

Audit Committee holds regular meetings on the following
major issues:

e To review the financial statements (consolidated and
separate) and reporting process and monitor the choice
of accounting policies and principles;

To review the business risk management;
e To review the internal audit assessment;
e To oversee the good corporate practices;

e To review the adequacy of internal control system/ audit
function efc.

A separate report of the audit committee is included in this
annual report.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC):

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited has an Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a sub-committee of
the Board of Directors. This committee will assist the Board of
Directors in formulation of the nomination criteria or policy to
determine qualifications, experiences, remuneration and
independence of directors and top level of executives. The
NRC is comprising of three members including one
Independent Director.

A separate report of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is included in this annual report.

Chairman of the Board and Managing Director

In Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited, Chairman and
Managing Director are two separate individuals selected from
the Board of Directors. Both are performing defined
responsibilities and focusing on the strategic value addition of
the company. Managing Director is performing the role of
Chief Executive Officer.

Directors' Report to Shareholders

Board of Directors report the performance, annual
achievements and status of the company's activities to the
shareholders. They also convey the plan and outlook of the
industry and company in their report.
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Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
and Head of Internal Audit & Compliance

Company has appointed qualified Professional Accountants
designated as Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary nd
HIAC. The CFO & Company Secretary regularly advise and
assist the Board on financial strategy and compliance issues
of the regulatory bodies. Chief Financial Officer, Company
Secretary and HIAC attend Board Meetings as per Corporate
Governance notification of the BSEC. Company’s internal
audit department is headed by a Head of Internal Audit &
Compliance  having professional  expertise and long
experiences in the field of internal audit and also holding a
degree in Information System Audit. Board of Directors has
clearly defined respective roles, responsibilities and duties of
the CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit &
Compliance.

Internal Audit and Control

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited established an
Internal Audit Department consisting of professional and
knowledgeable employees headed by Head of Internal audit
& Compliance. Internal Audit Department directly reports to
the Board of Directors.

Internal Audit department regularly conducts their audit based
on a vyearly Internal Audit Plan and checks, verifies and
reviews the compliance of Internal Control Procedure, area of
risk and other regulatory requirements.

External Auditors

External Auditors of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited
is appointed in every Annual General Meeting (AGM) by the
Shareholders of the company as per Companies Act 1994,
The company also conforms to the requirement of
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) in

appointing external auditors. External Auditors are not
engaged to perform any of the tasks other than external
/statutory audit.

Subsidiary Company

Board of Directors of BSRM Steel Mills Limited- Subsidiary of
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills is also constituted in the
line with the guidelines of BSEC as per Corporate Governance
Code. Independent Director of holding company is also
Director of subsidiary company. Minutes of the Board of
Directors' meeting of subsidiary company are reviewed by the
Board of holding company. The Audit Committee of
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited (holding company)
also reviews the financial statements of subsidiary company.

Key Management Committee

There are other sub-committees to the Board of Directors to
assist the Board of Directors in making and formulating
company's strategic  objectives and policies namely
Management Committee. The committee members regularly
sit for discussing and reviewing the activities of the company.

Certification on Compliance on the Corporate
Governance Code of BSEC:

A certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance Code of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission issued by M.A. Mallk & Co.,
Chartered Accountants is included in Annexure-B in this
Annual Report.



REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 2018 TO JUNE 2019

The Audit Committee of Bangladesh Re-Rolling Mills Limited is pleased to submit the following report on the activities of
year 2018-19:

According to the Notification on Corporate Governance of Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission (BSEC) dated June
03, 2018 the Board has established an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the Board.

The Committee:

The present committee members, nominated by the Board are as follows:

Terms of References:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been
determined by the Board as per BSEC nofification. The
Committee is responsible to the Board of Directors and reports
on its activities regularly. The Committee assist the Board in its
general oversight of financial reporting, internal controls and
functions relating to internal audit as well as ensures
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code of BSEC.

Role of Audit Committee:

Role of Audit Committee of Bangladesh Re-Rolling Mills
Limited are appended below:

Oversee the financial reporting process.
Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles.

Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to
ensure that it is adequately resourced, including
approval of the Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and
review of the Internal Audit and Compliance Report.

Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors.

Chairman

Member

Member

Secretary

Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for
review of the annual financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval or adoption.

Review along with the management, the quarterly and
half yearly & annual financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval.

Review the adequacy of internal audit function.

Review the Management's Discussion and Analysis
before disclosing in the Annual Report.

Review statement of all related party transactions
submitted by the management.

Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal
Control weakness issued by statutory auditors.

Review the Quarterly and Annual Financial Statements
of subsidiary company — BSRM Steel Mills Limited.

Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope
and magnitude, level of expertise deployed and time
required for effective audit and evaluate the
performance of external auditors.
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Activities of the Audit Committee for the year under
report:

The members of Audit Committee met four times during this
reporting period. The Committee carried out the following
activities among others:

e Reviewed the quarterly, half yearly and yearly Financial
Statements of the Company and recommended to the
Board for adoption and circulation.

e Reviewed the land valuation report as certified by
ACNABIN, Chartered Accountants, its valuation process,
accounting treatment and disclosure as per BSEC
Notification dated August 18, 2013.

e Reviewed the internal audit process and effectiveness of
internal audit.

e Reviewed the findings of inter audit team and its
corrective actions.

e Assessed the findings of external auditors and
compliance of IAS/ IFRS for preparation of Financial
Statements.

e Reviewed the adequate internal control system of the
Company are in place.

e Reviewed the compliance requirements of BSEC
guidelines, notification and other laws.

Re-Appointment of Auditors:

The Audit Committee has recommended the Board to
re-appoint existing external auditor of the Company- Rahman
Rahman Hug, Chartered Accountants, MM Trade Centre (13"
Floor), 78 Agrabad C/A, Chattogram, the representative firm
of KPMG in Bangladesh for the position of statutory auditor
for the year 2019-2020.

Audit Committee expressed their sincere thanks to all
members of Board, team of internal audit, team of accounts
& finance and management of the Company for their support.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

F& s &Fi:--:;- P_— -“l‘-—i:’ﬁ

Mono Ranjan Dey FCA
Chairman
Date:- September 16, 2019



REPORT OF THE NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC)
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 2018 TO JUNE 2019

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited is pleased to submit the
following report on the activities for the year 2018-19:

Formation of NRC:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited is being formulated in
compliance with Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, Date: June 03, 2018 on Corporate Governance
Code of Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission (BSEC) to assist the Board broadly in formulation of policy on nomination
and remuneration mainly for Directors and top level executives of the Company. This is a sub- committee of the Board.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited is comprised of the

following members:

Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) have been determined by the Board as per
BSEC notification. The NRC assist the Board in formulation of
the  nomination criteria  or policy for determining
qualifications,  positive  attributes, — experiences  and
independence of directors and top level executive as well as
a policy for formal process of considering remuneration of
directors, top level executive.

Role of the NRC:

e NRC Shall be independent and responsible or
accountable to the Board and to the shareholders;

e To oversee, among others, the following matters and
make report with recommendation to the Board:

(i) formulating the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, top level executive,
considering the following:

(@) the level and composition of remuneration is
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
suitable directors to run the company successfully;

Chairman

Member

Member

Secretary

(b) the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

(c) remuneration to directors, top level executive
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the company and its goals;

(if) devising a policy on Board's diversity taking into
consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity,
educational background.

(ifi) identifying persons who are qualified to become
directors and who may be appointed in top level
executive position in accordance with the criteria laid
down, and recommend their appointment and removal
to the Board;

(iv) formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance
of independent director(s) and the Board;

(v) identifying the company’s needs for employees at
different levels and determine their selection, transfer or
replacement and promotion criteria; and

(vi) developing, recommending and reviewing annually
the company’s human resources and training policies;
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Meeting of NRC:

During this reporting period the Committee met in June 20,
2019. The NRC of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited
carried out the following activities during the vear
2018-2019:

Members have elaborately discussed about the Nomination
and Remuneration Policy of the Company specially on new
Organizational Restructuring exercise which was supported
by Deloitte and other following activities:

1. Launching of competency framework project.

2. Finalization of organization structure.

3. Developed strategy to handle manpower turnover.
4. Introduction of new attendance policy.

Members of NRC have also observed the following activities
of the Company:

a) Appointment and Retirement policy of Director, Top
Level Executives and Senior Management including
Company Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC).

b) Term/ Tenure of Independent Director.

c) Evaluation of performance of Director and top level
executives.

d) Remuneration policy for Directors and top level
Executive.

The Committee reviewed the following activities of the Company:

a) Organization Structure where reporting line is clearly
defined for the directors and top management team along
with standard manpower planning exercise for each and
every position for identifying the total requirement.

b) Pay structure for each job level based on education,
experience, and competency.

c) A target based on-line Performance Management
System to evaluate performance of employees. Yearly
Increment, Promotion of individual, etc.

d) Employee Benefit Policy to attract the job seekers and
retain internal talents.

e) Succession planning of the company to have our future
leaders ready according to the requirements.

f)  Ensuring extensive training and development plan for the
individual or group of people.

g) A ftransparent recruitment and selection policy where
competent candidates get hired.

h)  Practicing a clear career path system for employees
which reflect in Organization Structure.

Appreciation:

The NRC expresses their sincere thanks to the members of
the Board and the management for their support, guidance
and co-operation while carried out the responsibilities.

FE s 6&:-:;-« v s

Mono Ranjan Dey FCA
Independent Director and Chairman of NRC
Dated: 16" September, 2019



CERTIFICATE OF MEMBERSHIP OF BAPLC
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PLANTING
TREES TO
PROTECT THE
ENVIRONMENT

BSRM aims to achieve sustainable development without degrading the environment.

To contribute in building a green environment, BSRM has planted more than 10,000 trees around its
factories. BSRM has also entered into a contract with Green Hut, a tree plantation program spanned
between Karnaphuli EPZ and BSRM group of companies. The project supports maintenance
of the ecological balance and purification of air.




AUDITOR'S
REPORT &
FINANCIALS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON
JUNE 30, 2013

AUDITOR’S REPORT AND CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019




E% Rahman Rahman Hug  Teeptons 880 (31) 70070
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Independent auditor's report

To the shareholders of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited

Raopor on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemants
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited and its
subsidiaries [the Group™) as well as the separate financial statements of Bangladesh Stesl Re-Foling Mills Limed ["ihe
Comparny™) which comprise the consolidated and separate statement of financial potiticn &t at 30 Juna 2019, and the
consolidated and separate stabermen! of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated and separabe
stalemant of changes i equity and consalidated and separabe stalement of cash fows for the year then ended, and nabes
1o the consolidated and separate financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinicn, the accompaming condolidated and separale financial stabements give a true and fair view of he
consolidated financial pestion of ithe Group and the separabe financial position of thea Compary as at 30 June 2019, and of
il consobdated and separabe financial performance and ils consoldated and separate cash Nows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Oplnisn

W conducted cur audit in accordance with Inbemnational Siandards on Auditing (154s). Ow responsiblites under those
standands any Turher described in the Auditars” Responsibiiies for the Audgt of the consoldated and separate Financial
Siatements section of cur report. We are independent of the group and the company in accordance with the Intemational
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ code of Ethécs for Professional Accountants (IESBA Coda), and we have fulfilled
our obher ethical nesponsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Coda. We believe that the audd evidance wa have oblaned
is sufficlent and appropriate bo provide & basis for our opdnicn.

Fey Audit Matters

Kay sudit matiers are those maders that, in cur professicnal judgement, were of mest significance in gur audit of the
consolidabed and the separate financial statemants of the curmenl paricd. These matters were addressad in the conted of
cur audit of the consolidated and the separate financial stalsmanis 85 & whode, and in fceming cur opinicn therson, and we
a0 not providie 8 Sepanabi opinion on thase matiers.
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How matier was addregsed in our audit
audil procedures In this area included, amaong others:

Revenue recognilicn has significant and wide influance
fnancial stabaments.

Revenue is recognised when ihe amounts and the related]- We understood, evaluated and valdaled the key conlrols

cusbomens. Revenue from the sale of goods |8 recogniz
when ithe company has delivered products o
customers al the shipping point and contral has passed,
TMHMHthmmmMMMfmhI = Wi tested the completeneds of joumal entries compared 1o
fnancial statements and whather il fhere is any excepbion
in|existed that ihe debit accounts of sales recognition were nod

Pt o e
dr’ﬂ Parems e Ha] Smaphor =48 (7 A A
m"i‘w_ i Pl o e Al Fasi = (2 el kar
il P e, sl P sl el kT LU e Dl By

i
e T e e ot [EEESER FF Y i w4 i




KPMG!

Rahman Rahman Hug

Revenue recognition - sale of goods lmiﬂEi
Rifer o note 4 and 50.18

The koy audit matier How the matter was addressed In our audit

W identified revenue récognitich as & key audd matber]- We conducted substantive ftesfing of revenus reconded

Company's customers due to the fact that the documents|shortly before and after the reporting dabe, including the sabe
al confiming the acceplance of the products refurns recorded after that date, to examinge whether
provided by numerous cusiomers based in di transactions wens recorded in the comec] reporting perods.
Incations. There is a risk of diflerences babween the Gmi
aof scceptance of the products by Mha
cusfomens and when revenus was recorded. Accordingly,
there could be potential misstabemants thal theds
ransactions are nol recognised in the propes
panofs.

Revaluation of Land
Rafer to note 17.04

The Board of Directors of the company
"ACNABIN, Charmered Accouniants™ as

Compary as of 30 June 2018,

We focused on the proper cut-off of sales to -Fm.umﬂhtﬂ:mmﬂuﬂl

Tha waluation has teen conducted using the fair marke
velup mathod 85 this s most commonly and appropriaie
for valuation of such class of assels. After having|- Assessing the methodologies used and the appropratensss
complated all the tasks, fair market value of lands owned|of the key assumpbions used in valuation based on our

BOT at 7 441,604 3504 resulling in ned revaluation gain o
BOT 3,480,830, 388,

considerad this ko be a key audit matier.
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and sodio-economecal condtions and |
thengfone Consicered & signeficant keny sudil matber,

- Comoborating on a sample basis that items on the s
Bgeing listing by ilems were classified in the appropriate agei
bracket,

- Assessing the approprisfeness of the provision pe
applied 1o each #em and challenged the assumpiions made
ihe Direciors on the extent to which cid imeniory can be
threugh vanaus channels;

« Considering the historcal accursey of provisioning and uaing
ihe information cbiained B8 evidence for evaluating the
appropristenass of the assumplions made in the cument year,
and

- We have alsa considered the adequacy of the Group's and the

Company's disciosures in respect of the levels of pravisions

againgt imeriony.
[Valuation of P_{r% Hnl and equipment
Rofer to note "
The key audit matter ]tl'lll'ﬂ'lhl mather was addressed in our awdit

mmmmmtm;.huhmwwm
the impairmient may exists,

Management has concluded that there is no impaimment in
respect all assets. This conclusion required significant
managemant judgmenl. Hence we censidersd this i be a
kity sudit matter.

company has large amount and numbans of property. |Our awdit procedures in this anea Included,

among olivers!

- Assessing the consistency of methodologies used for
depreciating he assalts;

= Ghecking, o @ sample basis | the accuracy and relevance of
e accounting of PPE by managemant; and

- For selecied samples, performing physical cbservation 1o
8550535 managamenl's cabermination on whather the eguipment
s obsolele, and testing the assumplions used in estimalng
recovarable amound, such as estimated wseful Ee and
replacement cost

- Examinad management's periodic review of property. plant and
equipmani for determination of impaiment and chsclascence.
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KPMG

Aahman Rahman Hug
Charitrad Arourinrs

in praparing the consolidated and separate financial stalemants, managemaent i$ responsible for assessing the Group's and
the Company's ability to continue 83 a going concermn, disclosing, B3 applicable, matiers related to going concem and using
tha goéng concern basis of accounting unless managemeant either inbends 1o liguidate the Group and the Company o fo
cease operabons, of has no realishs alemative bul 1o do so.

Those charged with govemance are responsible for owersesing the Group's and the Comgpany’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Respons|bilities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Our obiectives are 1o oblain reasonable assuance aboul whether the consolidated and separate financial statements as a
whole arg free from material missiatement, whether dua to fraud or ermor, and o Esee an auditor's repon that includes our
opinion. Reasonable sssurancs s a high level of assurance, but |3 not & guarares that an audit conducted in sccordance
wilh 15As will abways debect a material misstatement when il exists. Misstatemants can anse from fraud or emor and ang
considened material ¥, individually or in tha aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo influsnce the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of thesa consolidated and separats Bnancial siatemernts.

As parl of an audit in accordance with 15As, we exerclse professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughcut the audd. We alsoc

= ety and assess the risks of matedral misstalement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whethar
duwe 1o fraud of edrorn, design and perform audil procedunes responsive to those risks, and oblain audil evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not debecting a material misstatement resulling
fram fraud is highar than for ona reswling from ermor, as fraud may irvobva eollusion, fargary, intentional omissions,
misrepretantaions, or the overmide of intemal cantrol.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control rebevant fo the sudit in order fo design auwdit procedures thal ane appropriaba
in i citumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effsctiveness of the Group's and e
Compary's Inemal contrel

= Evaluate the appropriatensss of accounting policies used and tha reascnablaness of accounting estimates and ralated
disclogunes made by managemen.

= Conclude on the appropeiabeness of managemant's use of the going concem basis of eccounting and, based on the
audit evidenca cbtained, whather & maferial uncertainty exists ralabed o evenis or condilions thal may cast significant
doultt on the Group's and the Company's ability 10 coninue as a going concern. if we conclude that a malerial
uncadainty exitls we are requined bo draw altention in our audior's rapor fo the related disclosures in the conselidated
and separate financial statements or, if such discloswes ane inadeguate, o modily our opinion. Cur conclusions ana
based on the audil evidence cblained up to the dale of our auditer's report. Howewer, fulure events or conditions many
cause the Group and the Company o cease to continue Bs 8 going conoam.

= Evalate the cverall presentation, structure and contant of the consolidated and separate financial statemants, including
tha dischosures, and whethar the consclidated and separabe financial sialements reprasant the underlying ransactions
and events in a manner thal achieves Tair presantalion.

= Obtain sufficient appropriale audi evidence regarding the financial information of the entities o business activities
within the Group to axpress an opinion on the consolidated financial siatements. VWe are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audil. We remain solaly responsibis for our sudit opinion.
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KPMG

Rahman Rahman Hug
Chartanid Asoountants

We commuricate with those charged with govemance regarding, among olher matters, the planned scope and tming of the
audd and significant sudit findings, including any significant deficiancies in inbermal conirod that we identify during our audt,

Wi aleo provide those charged with govemnance with a statemnent that we have complied with rebevant athical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relatiznships and gther matters that may reasonably be thoughd
o bear on owr indepandance, and whare appiicable, related safeguands.

From the matters communicabed with Bhosa charged with govemnance, we delerming those matters that were of moal
significance in the audt of the consclidaled and separate financlal statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audil matters, We describa these matiers in our suditor's report unless lew of regulation precledes public daclosura
about the matber or when, in extremely rare circumatances, we deteming that a matier should nat be communicated in cur
report because the adverse comsequences of doing 8o would reasonably ba expecied to outweigh the public inbenst
benefits of such communication.

Report on Gther Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accondance with the Companies Act 10894 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, wa alvo napart the followdng:

a) we have cblained all the information and explanations which 1o the best of our knowiedge and belief wene necessary for
the purposes of our audil and made dug verfication thereof,

b} in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group and the Company so far as i
appaared from cur examination of those books;

€] the consolidabed and the separate statement of financial positon and stabement of profl or loss and other
comprehensive income deall with by the report are in agreamient with the Dooks of RCCOURT Bnd netumds; &nd

) the expenditure intured was for the purposes of thae Group's and the Company's business,

The engagement parnes on the audit resulling in this independent auditer's repor |s Mr, Adesd H. Khan

Chaitogram, 16 September 2019
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Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Staternant of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehansive Income

For ths year enged 30 June 2015
in Taka Note 2018 2018
Revenug 48  B3115330.837 68534 014,760
Cioal of aales 5.4 4 930 056 166 776,658, 360
Groas profit 8,188.2T4.8T1 8,147 155,404
Saling and dsinbution cosls B.a 11,003,243, 509) (642 538,845)
Administrative cosis T.a (537,957,027) (453,954,328)
Other Incom 8a 10,693,138 41 622 424
6,655, T27.273 7062 284 654
Finance coats fa  [3,603,660,751) (374288908
Finance incoma 10.a 567 603, 148
Mot finance costs [2.950,276,067) (3.216,666,760]
Non-cperating Income — 11.8 74,674,061 148,563,671
Profit before WPPF and Weltare Fund _ 4771026073 4,022 511,865
Contribution i WPPF and Weltars Fund J0.ai (194,359 6E5) (208 125, 158)
Shara of of ity accounted investes nil of tax 12.03 ar 561,630 421
Profit befors tax 4115,832,134 _ 4.375,126,130
INComee tax axpanses:
Crarrent e
Current year (640,308, 835) (352 186 B0S5)
Pravious year (39,018,388} T2,155,315
Defered tax (831, B6T 45E) 98,854 76
Todal income [Ax expanse (1,611,194,878) {1,075 885 758)
Profit afler tax 2,504 437 455 3295 140,371
Other comprehensive Incoms
Iberns that are of may be reclassified subsagquenily to profit or loss
Exchanga diffarences on ranskation of forsign oparalions 430,147 (154 523)
Share of oiher comorehensive incoms of associate . 057 .931)
430,147 212, 454)
It that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation of land {ned of tax) 3,288 504,483
Revalualion of property, plant and squipmeant [Subsidisry's portion), net of 5,206 673 661
Revaluation of property, plant and equipmant (Associale’s potion), net of tax  12.04  2,088,818,434
Dwferred tax against increass in camying amount of lnvestmant in eguity
Bcoounted investess for revaluation of land (58,084 455)
Dafarred tax on mbares - 12% Convertible bond 1,028 632 2.158.7345
1,142.940,716 2. 158,718
Other comprehensive income for the net of tax 1;“&?‘1}&!2 5-415.2!‘-:_
Total comprehensive incoma 3,647.B08,337  3.20G 085,653
Profit attributable to:
Cramers of the company 1,860,634,923 2778779562
MNor-coniroding inbsrests Eﬂ%i 516,350 806
2,504 43T, S295. 140371
Total comprenensive Income aftributable to;
Cramars of the compary 65,530, 280,100 2778725843
Non-conbroding interests 4,108.815,228 518,360,800
= il 13,647,808, 337 3206 086 653
Eamings per share / '
Basic samings per share (Taka) x”‘ ,.-'Jl 132 T8 11.77
of

The anndxed acdes 1 1o 50 and Aaneras A ore 851

N\ P

Managing Dinsctor Dhirecior

Chatiogram, 15 September 2018 \ 15

consolicdaled fnancial sistements
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Company Secretary

Auaditor
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Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited and its subsidiaries
Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 30 June 2018
In Taka 2013 2018
a. Cash flows from operating activities
Cash recaipts from customers B4, B3IT. 263,302 63,757 454 865
Cash paymenis to suppliers and employeas (71,894,994, 366) (67.208.313.323)
Income tax paid (399,827,784)  (1,180,2565,067)
Interest paid (2,990,644,818)  (3,335408,458)
Met cash from operating activities 5,352,086,233 {8.024. 565.963)
b. Cash flows from Investing activities
Agcquisition of Property, pland and equipmeni (355,340,994) (571,022 662)
Addtion o CWIP (305,977,251) (T23,B62,772)
Disposal of Propery, plani and egquepment 434, 141,871 7,133,483
Increasel (Decrease) in shor lerm and ather investments (497.453,508) (D88, 245,103)
Irvestment 8l BMS Steal Limited (J\V) (2.281,500) -
__Dividend income 106,584,191 158,891,260
Wet cash used In investing activities [620,366,191)  (2.114,105,795)
c. Cash flows from financing activities
(Repayments) | Receipts of long berm Loans (3,295,863,935) 2489812304
Dividend Paid 214,607 ,496) (545,563)
Short Term Bomowingsrepaymant (1,642,017 415) 12,422 631 404
Loan tof from Related Companies (3,574,931,033)  [4.517.447.847)
Met cash from financing activities (B,727418,879) 10,394 450,208
d. Net (decrease)l Increase in cash and 1
cash equivalents {a+b+<c) 4,300,164 288, TTR 82
@. Opening cash and cash equivalents 779,433,146 523,654,826
Effect of movemnents in exchange rales on cash and 295,912 =
cagh eguivalents held o
f. Closing cash and cash equivalents [d+e] 784,729,223 779.433.146

The annexed noles T o 50 and Annaxure A are an infegral pant of these consolidated financial statemants,
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Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited
Separate statement of financial position

30 Juns 30 Jung
in Taka Note 2018 2018
ASSETS
Praperty, plant and equipment 17.00 18,832,13,108 12,958,556,023
Intangible azsets 18,00 18,413,720 21,797,061
Invesiment in subsidianes and asseciabe 20,00 12,544, 244,186 6,765 552, 548
Crher inwestmants 21.00 116,81 122,190,354
Hon-current assets 28,711,603,419 19,864,165,
Shon term investment 22.00 146,794,168 50,220,880
Eventorias 23.00 16,195,612 684 13,442, 320,054
Trade and cther receivables 24.00 3,570,813,202 2,356,302, 360
Current acceunt with refated companies 25.00 885,877,512 1,537,959,558
Advances and deposits 26.00 2,181,288,067 1,983,627, 504
Cash and cash equivalents 27.00 761,558,711 704,983,780
Currenl assets 23,842,020,354 20.075.503.997
Total Assets B2, 30,544 5515, 604
Equity
Share cagital 28.00 2,380,882 380 2. 146,074,880
Share premium 511,970,250 511.870.250
Genaral resarve 3.1 30,170,818 30,170,818
Revaluglion resenve .02 12,151,476,721 3,674,785, 168
Retained earmngs 7,853,071 847 B,082, 742,081
J2% Corvertible coupon bond-equity component : 45,851,142
Total 23,007,371,5%96 13 671,408,539
Liabllities
Loy term borrowings- non cument portion 30.00 3.871,516,258 5,447 343,709
Defined benalit chiigations - Gratuity 31.00 231,807 679 186,162,000
Dederred bax liability 33.00 E50,E02 ET0 1,323,800,318
MHon-curmant [Tabilithes B.662,926, 507 5,92 315,037
Trade payables 34.00 3,440,380,026 1,116,279,307
Short term borrowings 35.01 8,448,628, 917 8,742,808, 768
Current portion of long term borowings 15.08 1,857,378,523 2,210,082,751
Gurent account with related companies 35,00 £,264,184,305 4,919,172,515
Advance against sales T 50,450,921 260,673,624
Lisbikties for expenssas 38,00 483,789,338 409,572,284
Current {ax liability 32.00 308,310,048 303,524,770
Pravigion toe WPPF and Welfare Fund 35,00 93,997,289 115,577,749
Colhver iabiities 40,00 338,205,823 202,783,610
‘Current Habalities 22,883,325, 280 19,310,878, 417
Tolal liabilities 29,545,261, 787 28,273,201 444
Total equity and liabilities E'iﬂ%ﬁffﬁ 35,944 659,954

Chatiogram, 16 September 2018

I.._I

Company Secratary
A5 per oul annexed report of seme date.
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Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited
Separate Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehansive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2018

in Taka Kote 2018 2018
Revenue 4 44 408 BAS 5TO 33,238,371 403
Cost of sales 5 {39,416,645,03 (28,410,052, 631)
Gross 4.992,3240.93 4528318773
Zalling and distribution costs 6 (892,027, 229) (B30, 520 Bag)
Administratiee sonls T [380,512,421) {158,857 S84)
Crivar i NI B F i) 418 34.078,718
DOperating profit 3,094,901,078
Finance cosls ] (2,178,030, 884) (2,058 370, 284)
Financs intome 10 272,178,315 723,859,651
Het inance cosis i1 54, 569) {1,834 510.578)
Hon-operating Income 11 41,303,448 123313281
Prafit before WPPF and Wallare Fund 1.773.351 2 153 663,721
Comnbubhsn b 'WIPFF and Waellane Fund 39 23,997 289) [115,677.748)
Share of o ity accounbed invesises néd of kax 12 1 711 203 548 441
Profit tax T 3021554473
It lax experses
Current tax:
Current year b0z (317,357, 320) {305,523 458)
Prawhous year (38,957 .830) 2185315
Defered tax i3 |523,075,687) {8,588 557)
Total income tax ax {BT9,430,637) [242 784 B51)
Prodit after tax 1,060,534, 93 2 7TR TT8 BE2
Other comprahensive income
Mems that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit of loss
Share af ther comprehensive income of asssciate - {1,057 531)
Exchange differences on bransiation of foreign operations 430,147 {154.523)
430,147 {1.212.454)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Rewaluation of lamnd (mel of tax) 3,786,504, 483 =
Revaluation of land (Subsidiary's portion) nel of tax 2,830,956, 855 .
Revaluation of land (Associale™s pomson) ned of tax 12.04 2,088 818,434
Dedarred tax agains! incheass in camying amount of irestrent in 33 (529,084 465)
equity accounied investees for revaluation of land
Dederred {ax on interest - 12% Convertible bond 1,028 832 2158 736

Other

hensive incoma for tha

r, mot of tax

Total comprehbensive incoma

T.ETE 224,039 2,158 736

Earnings par share

Basic eamings per share (Taks)

T mﬂﬂﬂfhmmmmﬂm&ﬂmw{ﬂ
I

Chatiegram, 16 Septamber 2019
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§,639.2 770,726,844
T.58 11.77
financial stalements
Comparny tary
AS BEr OUr BN of same dale.
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Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited
Separale statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2015

i Taka 2018 2018
a. Cash flows from operating acthities
Cash recaipts from cusbomens 43,454 0483415 33,058, 844,622
Recsipl against other incomea BT, 711,435 154 578,348
Cash payments to suppliers, employess and advance fax (40,606,755,688) (33,200,548,755)
Income 1ax paild (353,203,700) (74,738.544)
interest paid _ (1.897,633,262) (1823205 818}
Met cash from operating activities , 168,211 {1,884 T8 S48)
b. Cash flows from investing activities
Acguisition of Property, plant and squipmnt (126,281, 835) (210,008, 725)
Costs increased against Capital work-in-progress (65,842, 18:3) (128,656,372}
Disposal of Property, plani and eguipment BATEIN 4 814 B8O
Increase in shor berm and other irmvestments (81,197 628) (22 308 283)
Invesiment &l BMS Steal Limited (JV) {2,281,500) z
Dividend income 106,594,191 159,841,260
Het cash used in iInvesting activities {173,132,534) {187 557 141}
&. Cash flows from financing activithes
(Repaymant) [ Receipt of Leng berm loans 1,823,541 578) 4,178,454 262
Dividend pasd (214,807 . 496) {545 563)
Recaipli Repaymient] of shar term bomowings (204, 280, 881) 563,204 407
Loan ipffrom related companies 1,896,900 OB8 (2 4B5 582 127)
Het cash from financing actlvities (435, 416,080) 2.273,561,009
d, Metincreaseldecrease) in cash and cash
valent (asbéc) E5, 609,588 183,375,321
e. Opening cash and cash eguivalents 704,983,780 511,608,458
Effect of mevements in sxchange rates on cash and
cash aquivalents held 983,340 -
f. Gln-llnl cash and cash aquivalents [d+a) 761,556,711 T04, "

Thir annexed nwes T 1o 50 and Anngxure A 8ng &0 inlegral par of these separals Mnancial stalemern(s,
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Motes to the ﬂmmm'u:l consolidated financial statemants

1.00 Reporting entity
1.0 Legal form of the entity

Bangladesh Sieel Fe-Folling Mils Limited is a public company limited by shanes is domiciled in Bangladesh. The
Comparry was formed and incorporaled with the Registrar of Jeint Stock Companies and Firms in Bangladesh on
28 December 1960 vide the cerificabe CHMBE-Mo. 1491/92 E.P. of 1980-1981 under Companies Acl 1913 (since
repealed and substitubed by the Companes Act 1584) s a private company Bmited by shade. The company was
convened into @ public limited company on 03 November 2008 unoer the Companies Al 15984, The Company is
listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limied (CSE) as a publicly
tuated compary. Trading of the shanes of the company stafed in bwo stock exchanges from 27 April 2015

The compary has set up its Re-Roling Mill and Steel Malling Weekshop (SMW previously known as Meghna
Engnesring WWorks Limited) at 14771487140 and TAITY Baizid Bostami Foad, Masirabad Industnal Asea,
Chattogram, Eangladesh respactively and commenced commercial production from 1687 afer first BMRE. Tha
principal place of business is located at Ali Mansion, 1207/1099, Sadarghat Foad, Chittagong, Bangladesh,

Mature of the business

The main activity of the company is 1o manuiacture M.5. products by setting up rolling and re-rolling mils.

M.5. billets are manutactured from seraps and sponge ifon el al Steel Malling Warks [SMW) and thess billets
ang re-rolled in the next step @l Re-Rolling Mills to manufacture M.5. products, The company also deals in sale of
M.5. products like angle, channel, | Beam, H Beam and ingat abe.

1.02 Branch office of the company
The company is maintaining beanch offices al Koiata & Agariala, India with approval from Reserve Bank of India
vide letter no Ref: FC.CO FIDV455/10.83 49272014 Dated 28 Oclober 2014 and FE.CO. FIDVITOTA 083 4935001 4-
1% Dated April 24, 2015 respectively. The branch offices are sliowed to enjoy shorl teem against SBDC as
appraved by EBangladesh Bank vide leter Rel Mo-FEPD{impor pelicy)117/2015-11287 Dated December
S0.2015 which was renéwed on Decermnber 14,2016 vide their letter Ref. FEPD {(Import policy) 1 177201610636,
Folkata Branch office is now doing busingss of expatimport.

1.03 BSRM Stweel Mills Limited- subsidiary

ESRM Stesl Mills Limited, was incorporated as a peivate limited company on 18 April 2008 vide registration 8 CH-
GEET1(28THI008 under the Companies Act, 1994 to set up one of the largest production plant in the sleels seclor

in Bangladesh. The company was converted inbo public limited company on 12 November 2013, Bangiadesh
Sieal Re-Folling Ml Limited holds 44.87% of andinary shares directly and 7.81% of ondinary shares indiractly in

BSRM Steel Mills Limited. The Financial Statemants of this subsidiary company 8 included in the Consclidated
Financial Statements acconding ba IFRS 10 - "Consolidabed Financial Statements”.

The principal activities and nature of business of the company ans;
i} To set up an automatic steel melting plant for making M.5 billet of different qualities and sell the same 1o sieel
redling mmilis.

il) To set up an sutomatic steel rolling and re-rolling mills for manufacturing of ion products and steel matenals of
all types including other activities as mantioned in the Memorandum and Aricles of Asasciation.

The company has s¢f up an inductiocn fumace based scrap melling plant at Senapahar, Mirsaral, Chattogram to
produce M.5. billets and commenced commedcial producton from 16 June 2016

1.04 BSRM (Hong Kong) Limited- subsidiary

BSRM [Hong Kong) Limited was incorporabed on 30 May 2018 in Hong Kong as a privabe company limited by
shares. Registered office of the company is in Hong Kong. The company has share capital of HKD 1 {1 share)
which is cwnied by Bangladesh Sisel Re-Rolling Mils Limited
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Motes to the separate and consalidated financial statements gmnunu&dl

1.06 BERAM Steols Limited- associate

BSREM Stesls Limited was incorporated on 20 July 2002, vide the cerfificate C-MNo. 4302 of 2002 as a private
limied compary under Companies Act 1904, The company was comeaned to 8 public Emited company on 20
December 2008, The comparry 18 listed with Dhaka Siock E:mmuammmmam
Limited as a publicly quated company. Trading of the shanes of the compary siared in two stock

18 Farwary 2009, Bangladesh Steel Re-Folling Mils Limiled direclly holds annuuﬂwmmm
Steals Limited.

The main cbjectives of BSRM Steals Limited is to manufacture M.S, products by setting up rolling and re-roling
mills. The company has set up its Reling mill at 4, Fourderhat Industrial Estate, Latifpur, Sitakunda, Chatiogram
and commenced commancial ﬂﬂmﬁ'ﬂl‘l‘l ni.A;ﬂEI:ﬂ!l.

The Hongraible High Courd Division of Supreme Cowt of Bangladesh has approved the amalgamation of BERM
Iron & Steel Co. Lid. (BISCO) with BSRM Stesls Limed on 03 August 2017 and after receiving the approval from
the Honorable High Courl Division of Suprema Court of Bangladesh and order from the Registrar of Joint Stock
Companies. and Firms, the board of Diectors of BSRM Stesls limifed has taken decision o effect the
amalgamaticn from 01 Oclober 2017 and accordingly a8 per provigion of section 228 and 228 of the Companies
Act 1554 by transfeming all assets and liabilities of BSRM Iron & Co, Lid, to BSRM Steels limited.

1.06 BMS Steel Limited - Jolnt Venture Company

BMS Stesl Limfted was incorporaled on 16 Decamber 2018 in Kerya as a private limited company. Registened
office of the compary i in Mairobi, Kenya. The company has shane capilal of KES 3,000,000,000 (3,000,000
share) out of which 100 ondinary shares ane istusd The parties io the JW company are Bangladesh Stesl Re-
Riodling Mills Limied (hedding 18%), Vortex Investmants Limited (holding 22%), MMD Steed Limited (holding 2096),
and Safal investments (Mauritus) Limited (holding 30%). The company is yet to commence operation. Later on
thi comparny (ssued 14 900 numibers of shares on pro-rata basls.

Basls of accounting
Statement of compliance
Trwse Financial Stalements have been prepared on a going concem basis following accrual basis of accounting
except for Cash Flow Statement in accordance with the Infermafional Accounting Slandards ([lASs) and
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). the Companies Act 1804, the Securities and Exchange
Riudes 1687,
2.02 Basls of reporting
Thesa financial statements are prepared and prasented for exiemal users in accordance with identified financial
reporting framenvorc. Presentation has been made in compliance with the requirements of LAS 1: *Presentation of
Firancial Statements”,
2.03 Other regulatory compliances
The growg entites are also required fo comply with the following major lws and regulations along with the
Companies Acl 1684
iy The Income Tax Ordinance, 1984
iy  The Income Tax Rules, 1584
liffy  The Vales Added Tax Act, 1881
ivi  The Value Added Tax Rules, 1851
vi  The Customs Act, 1963
viy  Bangladesh Labour Law, 2006
vil)  The Secwrities and Exchange Ordinance, 1983
will)  The Securties and Exchanga Rules, 1987, atc.
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rate and consalidated financial statements (continued

Basis of measurement
These Financial Stabements have been prepared on going concem basls under tha hisicrical cost conwanion
excepl for some classes of Property, Plant and Equipment which are maasuwred 8l revalued amounl

Galng concern

The group and the company have adequale resouwces to continue operation in foreseeable future {except
cihensise sialed). For this reason, Managemenl continues 1o adopl going concem basis in preparing the
Financial Statemenls. The cument revenue generations and resources of the group and the company provide
sufficient fund fo meet the present requiements. of existing business and oparations.

Reporting period
The separate financial statements of the company and the consoldated financial statements of the group cover
twehoe months from 01 July 2018 to 30 June 3016 which |s followed consistently since 2016,

Authorization for lssue
These financial statements havwe bean suthorzed for issus by the Board of Direcicns on 16 Saptembar 2018,

Conslatency

Uiniegs othenwisa siated, the accounting policies and methods of computation used in preparation of the fnancial
statements as ot and for the year ended 30 June 2015 are consisient with those policies and methods adopied in
praparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018,

Comparative information

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of 2018 in accordance with LAS-1: Presentation of
financial statements, for all numeric information in the financial stalements and also the namative and descriptive
information whisa if is redevant for undersianding of the cumant peried's financial statemants. Price years Tigures
have been rearanged wharever considered necessary i ensuwe comparabdity with the curment year.

Functignal and presentatben currancy

Thesa Financial Stalaments are prepared in Bangladesh Taka, which s the functional eurmency of the group and
the eompany. All financial information presented in Taka has been rounded off 1o the neanes! inbeger excep
whien olherwise indicated.

Current versus non-current clagsification

Thie Group and ihe Company presents assels and liabi%es in the stabement of financial posilion based on
cumentinan-curnent classification.

Ay assel is curent whan it i

a, Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumad in the nommal operating cycha

b. Hedd primarity for the purposs of

c. Expacied io be realized withen tvebsae months after the reporing perod and

d. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being sxchanged or used 10 seftie a liability for af least twelve
menths after the reporting peried

The compary classifes all other assets Bs non-cumant.

A lipbdity I8 currenl wihen:

a. 1 is expecied to be sattled in the normal aperating cycle

b. M is held prieandy for the purpose of tradng

e It i due 1o be setiled within baelva menths after the reporing pardod and

d. There is no unconditional right to defer the setiement of the liability for of least taelve months after the
reperting penad.

The group and the company classifies al other liabilities &5 non-curent, Defermed lax assets and abilites are
classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

3.00 Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the Financal Statements in corlammity with 1AS and IFRS requires managesment 1o make
judgments, estimates and assumplions thal affect the applicalion of accounting policies and the repored
amounts of asseds, labilies, incoma and expanees. Actual results may differ from these sstimates.

Estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an cogoing basis. Revisions io accounting eslimates ane
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future pericds affected.

Judgements, Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Iinformaticn about judgements made in apphing accounting policies and assumplions and esbmation
uncariainties that hawve the most significant effects on the amcounts recognized in the financial stalaments is
included in the following notes:

* Mate 17.00 Propery, plant and egquipment
» Mala 1800  Intangible assals

# Maote 2300  Invenbories

# Mote 2400 Trade and other recehables

» Mate 3100 Provision for gratuity
» Mabe 3200 Cument tax lability
* Mote 3300 Dwefermed tax liability
» Mobe 40,00 Odhar liabilities

» Maba 4200 Contingent kabdities

Measuremant of falr values

A number of the Group’s sccounting policies and disclosures require the messurement of fair valuss, for both
financial and non-financial assels and Rabilites.

The Group has an established control framework with respect 1o the measweamant of fair values. This includes a
valuation beam that has overall respondibility for overseaing all significant fair value measunemants, inciuding
Level 3 fair values, and reports dinsctly to the chiel fnancial officer. The valuation team reguiary reviews
significant unobservable inpuls and valuation adjustiments.

Significant valuation issues ane reporied to the Group's Audit Commities.

When measuring the fair value of an assed of lisbiity, the entity uses markel obsenable data as far as possible.
Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair valus hierarchy based on the inpuls used in the valuation
technigues as follows,

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusied) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2. inputs other than quabed prices included in Level 1 that are obsencabie for the assel o labilfy, edfher
directly (1.8, a8 prices) of indirecty {Le. derived from prices).

Leved 3: Inputs fof the assets or liabiies that are nol based on cbeenvable market data.

If the inputs used fo measurs the Tair value of an asset or liability might be categornized in different bevels of the
fair value hbararchy s the iowest level input that ks significant to the entire measurement.
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Maotes to the separate and consclidated financial statements (continued)

4.00 Revenus
Bae acoounting policy in nole B0U18,
s Tinkar HNole 2019 018
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO 4.01 43,179,134, T4 32,785 B53 549
Bangladesh Steel Re-Folling Mills Limited-Kollcata Branch 1,485,114.363 546,702 882
Less: IMEE sales !ﬂﬂﬂ“! ;%#I‘Iﬂnﬁlﬂ‘ﬂi
44 408 886970 33,238 3714
4.01 Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Milks Limited-HO
in Taka Hote 2019 2Me
Local sales 402 42079142908 31 579,588 377
Expodt salas 4.03 711,649,543 P64 133,541
Sales of Scrap and By-product 293 222,153,631
T8 134,742 32, TRS 853 549
4.04-A Revenue streams
in Taka Nt 20149 2018
Revenus from confracts with customers 178,134, Td2 3 I.?EEIHEH“'E
43.179,134,742 32 765,853 548
4.01-B Disaggregation of revenue Trem contracts with customers
in Taka 2018 2018
Primary gecgraphical markets
Bangladash 43,093, 444,972 32 T4T. 114677
China 74,529 445 3844 673
India 517 168 14,893 600
South korea 4 343 167 -
43,179,134, 742 32 765853 550
Major products lines or services
Kirerne 500 23,856,167, 328 26 538831680
M. 5. Products B, 188,452,714 4 871,405,236
By Product & Scrap 184,342,293 206,217,184
H & | Beam 176,218,045 AB2 BE2 B1G
Oithars 4649 954 06 736 614
43,179,134, 742 32 THS BE3 &50
Timing af revenue recegnition
Preducts transfemed ol a in tme 178,134 742 32 785,653,549
-IIJ|1 HI‘I E'T-ﬂ H-El?ﬁﬁlﬂﬂlﬁllﬂ
#.01-C Contract balances
i Tka 2019 018
Receivables, which are incluged in Tade and obher 240z DO12279880 2081533455
recesvablas’ .
Contract liabilities 37,00 520,450,921 200 873 624
4.02 Local sales
in Taka 2019 al]
M5 Billgt 16T 452 83T 332 265,080
MS Rod 41 911,690, 280 31247 301 287

b TR
42,078,142.008 31,579,565, 377
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Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)
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B0

Export sales
i Taks 2013 2018
Xirame S00%Y 805,968,416
M.5 Angal 21,576,148 2354 996
M. 5 Channel 3834589 348,500
M35 Sguare Bar T8, 250 1,767 322
By Products 82,072,446 101,875,705
M3 Plale - 1018802
T11,645 543 Hﬂ,ﬂi;!ﬂﬂ
Expan sales of finkshed products during 01 July 2018 10 30 June 2019 was USD 7,440,456 against sxporting of
10.238.01 Matric Ton and it was USD 10,489,508.71 against expoing of 16,347 .38 Metric Ten of goods dwing
01 Juby 2017 bo 30 June 2018,
Consolidated revenue
in Taka Hote 1 018
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rofing Mills Limited 4.00 44,408 BBE,5T0  3323B3T1403
BSRAM Sieel Mills Limited 53,407 280472  45,B88262 116
B5AM (Hong Kong) Limited 5,129,183 -
Lixts: Inira group sabes (14,705 B85 TAE) !1U.Il'.'|2.ﬂ-13.?'2 H
83,115330,837 68624014783
Cost of sales
In faka Hote 2019 018
Bangladesh Stesl Re-Rollng Mills Limited-HC 501 38,249 513,808 27080442 645
Bangladesh Stesl Re-Rolling Mills Limited-Kolkata Branch 1,408 775,208 494 785,016
Adpustrment far porion of unrealized profit (PLIRP)-subsidiary 2,459,337 .
Adpustrmend for portion of unrealized profit (PURP)-associate 19,858,847 =
Less: Intracompany sales w,_j_g&ﬁi‘%}ﬂ
39,416 846 035 a,410, b
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO
In Taka Mot 019 1
Cost of sales- own production 502 35,942 408,271 26,588 402 2945
Cost of sales-finished goods procured and sold 503 1,127 428,384 787,311,350
Ciost of sales-sorap and others 16,319,768 50,126,985
Cost of sales-billet 164, 080,377 303 601 382
345,249,913, 808 27,989 442 543




Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

502

Cost of sales-own prodoction
i Taka Note 2018 2018
Opening siock of rmw matenals-scrap 1045893575 1007 810821
Add: Purchase during the year 15 5 132 1
i | 140,447

Less: Cost of scrap and others sales {18,318,765) (50,126, 968)
Less: Closing stock of raw materials-scrap 2301 (2AT2BET.ET1)]  (1,045803 575)
Raw materials consumed-scrap 6,841,553,050 5,044 427 011
Add: Factory overhead- Malting Linit 5.065.01 1 176 1,475,225 562
Coat of Billel Manufactured B.T22.TEB 226 8.518.852.573
Add: Opaning stock of billat 32 111,628 53,2
Stock of billet available B,754,099,754 G.572.842 805
Less: Cost of bllet sale (164,060,37T) (303,601.382)
Less: Closing stock of billed _ ATE 111, 52
Billet Transferred to re-rolling unit 8,851, 862,400 8.237.220.095
fuid: Opaning stock of billet 5,439,107,713 3,774.442,338
Add: Purchase during the yaar 27,378,439, 884 22,357 268, 169
LEEs: Cw sioek of billed 217 G A3 107713
Billet cansuméd ITAGNBEEIM 26920832780
#dd: Cost of paciking malevials 137,261,823 8,304 850
Add: Factary overhead- Relling Linit 505,02 2.033.470,978 1.830.251,890
Cost of Production of finished goods 30,322,T18,160 28028330150
Agd: Opaning stock of finished goods 4,871,552, 108 2.812.080, 104
Less: Closing stock of finahad goods AT BTT 33 4 BT 15521
Goods avallable Tor sale 36,851,502 838 26,858.817,155
Loss: Cwn usa 5 9,187,686 4.1

sales - own production 36, Fikl 58402545
Cost of sales-finished goods procured and sold
In Taka Note 2018 2018
Opening stock of inished goods 268,203,331 391,870,646
Add: Finighed geods imported §21,771,243 ITTAI6.B35
Agd: Fished goods purchased locay T4 272160165
Available for salelconsumption 1,565,006, 223 1,041, 187,668
Less: Closing siock of finichad goods 23,04 (430,588, 204) (288,293,231}
Luess: Goods used by the com {7401, 538) 4. 583 088
ot ofsaes-inihed gous procUred 30T 501 TRTiZ8351 767311350
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Maotes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)
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5.04

5.05

Quantitative movement of inveniories

in Metric ton 2018 2018

Ranw Materials :

Opening balance {Scrap) 34,325 BETH
And: Purchasedimponed during the year 221,444 160,968
Total avallable EET] 199,847
Less. Closing Stock (Scrap) E% {34.325)
Consumed /Soldireturned during the year 190,318 165322
Bille? ManuTactured (Melting unit) 174,857 150,331
Add: Orpening slock of balat BET 1,283
Stock of bilkel avallable 'IT_E,SH 151,814
Less: sale {3,311) (6,755
Less: c% stock of billat (781} (B T)
Billet Tra to Re-Rolling Unit 171,222 144, 182
Add. Opening stock of balet (Rolling unit] 108,831 96,082
Add; Purchase during the year 501,293 441,B85
Less: Cloging stock of billet [Rolling unit) !B“liﬂl {105,811}
Blllet consumed 18 576537
Finished Goods:

Opening stock of finished goods 85,658 71,441
Add. Produced during the year 686, TER 62,903
A, Impontedipurchased during the year 21,977 11,437
L ﬂbﬂlmﬂm{nﬁh‘ﬂhﬂl HHES (136, 255) ;E&.EH{I
Soldicansumed during the year BE8, 189 550.083
Factory overhead

in Taka _ Note 13 2018
Faciory avernesds- Maling Unit £.06.01 1,780,838 178 1.475.225,562
Factory gverneads- Rolling Linit 50502 2033470078 1,630,251 890

3814 308 151 3405477 252
5.05,01 Factory overheads- Melting Unit
in Taka ~ Naite 019 018
Salanes and alipwances 181,293,164 145 583 488
Carrying charges-raw malerials 242,765 . ]
Consumption esecirical sionas 11,439,335 8,732 68T
Consumplion general stores 3,418,768 1,629,555
Consumplion of mechanical stores 41,036,585 30,658,733
Conveyance Bxpanses 3,368,116 2,805, 353
Depreciation 17. 180,600,387 153,185,278
Direct expenses 115,021,416 B1,047 BED
Dirgct materials consumed 228,813,096 167,158,438
Eloctrcity axpanses 1,382.386 875,500
Entertainsmant 2,003,014 1,931,668
Fees and renesals 396,398 463,540
Fued and lubricants 7,026,204 6,312,507
Gas 6,353,719 §.219.200
Guest houte axpanses 102,212 118,541
Guest house rent 54,500 7075
Insurance expenses 1,062,845 B84 566
Malerials ard finished goods kandling changes 18,633,182 26,448,657
Madcal axpenses 1,334,833 472515
Moalor vehicle axpanses 2,069,045 1,883,370
Postage and teliegram 1,163 68z
Pewer (lactary) 871,021,305 813,439,178
Printing and stationery 1,783,770 2,598,056
Reent #,354,000 7,534,000
Repairs and maintsnance 12,640,088 13,010,018
Travellifg expenses 363,206 S5 443
Wailer bill-WASA 152,615 140,562
Faclory offica expensas = 3,780
1,780,835.1T6 1,475,225 562




Mates to the separate and consclidated financial statemeants [’.‘.ﬂl‘llihu&dl

5.05.02 Factory overheads- Rolling Unit
i Taka Mote 2019 2018

Less: Intra growp elimination IHI%%Tgl (10,202 618 T28)
T4, 1 0,776 889,360

Salanes and allowances 233,236,979 161,025,585
Carying charges-raw materkals 267,710 118,680
Consumption electrical stores 33,982,981 23,228,055
Consumpéion general siores 3,112,453 2,521,875
Consumption of mechanical Siores 211,907,128 142,788,113
Cofuneyancs axpengas 4,968,720 4,741 555
Depreciation 17.01 458,041,804 533,526,867
Oaheer materials consumed 2818191 17,626,008
Elactricity axpanses 8,247 425 7,608 8975
Enbartainment 3871472 3,885,350
Fees and rencwals 1,917,728 2182307
Fued and libricants 84,521,262 258,933,219
Gas 168,672,401 S8 882 209
Guest house axpenses 284,784 325108
Gusaat hause rent 1,560,720 2535410
INSUrance EXpEnses 6,608,824 5,593,818
Materials and finished gocds handling changes 252,690,788 188,766,876
bedical axpanses 2,256,978 1,268,591
Motor vehicle expenses 80,224 1,138,176

Papar and periodical 15,558 17503 =

Postage and telegram 6,306 8267 N

Power (factary) ATT 419,632 403,935 840 S

Printing and stationery 4,087,622 3266336 w

Renl 11,037,372 10,788,072 =

Repairs and bainienance 18,892,860 13,604,413 Z

Traveling expantes 957,767 1.314.374 o

Water bill-WASA 16,580 64,238 o

Conaumption of MS Roll ) 10,708,082 =

Factony office expenses . B8O =

2,003,470, 975 1,630.251,850 S

>

54 Consclidated cost of sales =

in Taka it Note 2019 2018 o«

ing B&ills. Limaed 5.00 39416 848,038  28.410,052.611 g

BSRM Sisal Mills Limitad 50,210,586,831 42 580 425 485 «

BERM (Hong Kang) Limiled 4,778,185 . =

Ureealiped profit elimination (2,459,337) =

Particn of unrealized profit (FLURP) 5,460,240 =
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Nates to the separate and consolidated financial statements {continued)

600 Selling and distribution costs
I Taka Hote 2019 2018
Bangladesh Sheel Re-Roling Mils Limited.HO 501 992,027,229 638,534 8449
Bangladesh Sieel Re-Roling Mlls Limibed-Koikata
Branch

292,037 210 638,538,849

£.01 Bangladesh Steel Re-Raolling Mills Limited-HO

In Taka Mate 2018 2018

Safary and aliowances 115,858,673 §1.229.807
Acreartisemant 89,294,959 1,680,450
Bales promalion expenses 12,048.013 530,041
Bad dabls 2908 800 358,758
Brokerage and commisgion 306,696 518 T4 408 620
Markgling expenses 18,851,128 4 561,530
Carmiage on sales 24T 424,522 05,385,563
Telephone expensos 1,656 1,854
Camveyance expenses 190,520 115,380
Depraciation 1701 41,128,730 38,942 442
Eleciricity expenses B052,183 8,270,058
Eritertairman 58411 18,515
Finished goods handing charges 38,184,732 35 362 160
Expact chargis 3,578 A& 4,278 152
Grabuity axpéndas B.ETTBTD 3417 141
Repair & Mainbenance 120,301 1078213
Fees and rendawals 64,325 1662
Godorsn nant 4 498,752 3,805,857
Maedical expensas T70,080 324,750
Malar cyche axpansss 6.069,795 4,986,084
Printing and stalioneries axpenses 4,904,031 IT2 026
Royally axpensas 79,815,185 &8, 130,356
Testing charges 853,762 36,687
Traveding expensas 1811413 B33 842

B92.027, 528 B38.538.840

5.02 The trademark “Xirems S00W has Hﬂlmﬂlﬂfﬂi}mnﬂmd 'H. Akberali & Co. Limited” {HACL) from the
depariment of Patents, Designs and Trademark of Govemment of Banglacesh under seclion 20(2) of the
Traceman Act 2000, The company i paying ropalty to HACL @ Tk 150 per MT on its asld quastity freem 01
Janiary 218 according fo Trademark Licensa Agresmant batwean the Company and HACL affective from the
aforesaid date.

G.a Consolidated selling and distribution cost

in Taks Hotw 2018 2018
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limsed 6.00 992,027,129 G238 538 pag
BSRM Stewl Milis Limited 11,216,280 3,095,596

1,003,243, 509 B2, 538,845
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Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continwed)

T.00

T.01

T2

Administrative costs
in Tk Mote 2019 2018
mu Limaed-HO 700 334,115,173 325,554 B35
Bangladesh Stesl Re-Rolling Mills Limited-Kolkata ShiaSdh 39,533 28
Branch ok ey

389 612411 J58 80T S84
Bangladesh Stesl Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO
in Taka Hote 2019 2018
Salarias and allowances 166,103,133 145.155.913
Directors' rermuneration T.02 70,800,000 58,500,000
Advantiseman Expenses 569,824 480,372
Hasdit feas 70,500 £40,500
Beard meeting expensas 304,750 73,135
Covayance expenies 473 888 0T 539
Insurance expenses 23,288 " 284
CSR expanses 17,500,624 1, T4
Dapreciation 17.01 4,551,653 8Bee 915
Amortization 18.02 338334 3,383,341
Donation and subscriptions 445,844 145,800
Entertainmant 6,344 026 4,781,628
Fees and renewals 6,611,966 9,977,974
General expances BEZ2 548 254,179
Generalor and fusl expenses 253,961 200,563
Gratuily expensas 12,093,926 3,154,247
Guest house cxpenses 681,547 6608333
Land revenue, Municipal tax 1,168,026 855812
Lesgal sxpirises BET, 238 TE4 144
Medical expenses 1,383,924 1520028
Mator vehicla expanses BE2TEAT 7,850,105
Office expansas 20,740 18407
Paper and Parcdicals 12,848 8,528
Fostape expenses 430,741 J56.815
Printing expenses 570,309 786487
Professional expensos 6,140,076 B.383.7TE
Rant (Office, depot and cthers) T.531,258 8,224 296
Repair and maintenance 1.033,529 1,081,560
Stationery expenses 4,420 41,193
Telephone expenses 2,142,574 2046 545
Inieemet expanses 1,517,800 1,470,000
Trairing expantes 2,360,252 2,011,245
Traveling expanses 5,750,043 1,678 el
Litility expenses 1,408,928 1,770,724

3134115173 125,564 635
Directors' remuneration
Details of direchors' remunaration pald during the year are a8 follcws:
in Taks 2018

Gross Iincome Tax
Ham Remungration Deducted Het Paid

M. Alihussain Akberal-Chairman 28,800,000 8,540,000 20,160,000
Mir. Aameir Alinussain-Managing Director 22,500,000 6,240,000 A8, 560,000
M. Zohair Tahesali-Dirschor 13,200,000 3,960,000 5,240,000
Mrs, Sabeen Aameit. Dirscior 6,000,000 1,500,000 4,500,000

70,800,000 20,540,000 49,860,000

In addition fo remuneration, directors avall company vehicles for transpedtation purposes. These key
management perscnnel are not entied fo any other benefils, amount is lying as receivable from the

o
—
o
~
=3
o
w
=
>
)
=
o
=
w
a
=
w
[
<
w
>
w
T
—
o«
o
[N
%)
]
<
=)
=
<
=
[F
=]
=
o«
o
o
w
o«
@
o
o
=
o
>
<<




Motes to the separale and consolidated financial stalements (continued)
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T.8

B0

B.01

Ba

.01

a.02

Consolidated adminisirative cost

In Tiakd Hote 2018 2018
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited 7.00 389512421 358,897 564
BESRM Stoel Mills Limited 138,188,788 95,056,765
BSRM (Hong Kong) Limited 9,295,818 =
537,997,027 453,954,326
Gther operating Incoma
See accounting policy in nate 50,20,
I — = Nots 2019 1
Bangladesh Steal Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO 8.0 27,201 418 34 0TRB TR
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mils Limiled-Kolkata
F -
27,201,418 34.07TE.T18
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO
in Taka 2019 2018
Late payment charge 5,194,199 CFFE
Oitnier Bern sales 21,113,780 25535110
Gainloss) on sale of PPE TE3 420 2,313,831
27,201 418 54 07TB.T18
Consolidated other operating income
in Taka Hote 2018 2018
Bangladash Sleel Re-Ralling Mills Limited B0 27,201 418 ’H,ﬁiﬁ.ﬂﬂ
BSRM Steel Mills Limited (16,508, 280) 7840, 08
10,693,138 41.822.424
Finance cosls
See accounting policy in nate 50.19,
in Taka Hote 2019 2018
Bangladesh S3eel Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO EL 2,170,163,37T1 2,058.116.400
Bangladesh Steel Re-Relling Mils Limiled-Kolkata 7,867,513 2 254 870
Eranch
2,178,030,884 2088 AT0 289
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO
in Taka Hote 2019 2018
interest on LATR 35,308,358 21,405,572
Interest on Demand and Time lean J96,878 E1 221867
Irteraat on Ceardral 172,983 823 212,240,678
Iriesrast on Term boan B18,557 848 536,700,425
Inerest on Comvertible bond 42,927,030 B6.TAT, 032
Bank changes B,361, TS5 56,077,803
Bank Guaranies Commission 2,144,398 114,006
Agency fea 4,025,000 3,664,034
Interest on balance due 1o iner companies 691,284 551 753,672,187
Fores o rate fluctuation (gainlioss 6.02 (5.304,972) 165,844 802
2,170,163,371 2058115400
Forelgn currency exchange gainfloss)
in Taka 2018 2018
Realized fareign cumency ransaction lossiigain] (1,727.555) 18,601,345
Unrealized foreign currency translation less{gain) BT7,413) 43,257
| STZ) 16844, 602

Foreign currency ransaction gain/ 10ss

This rapresents et gain on iransattion in forsign currency during the year.

Forelgn currency translation gainficss

This represents net gain on translation of foreign curencies inlo Bangladeshi

feparting date,

Taka at the rate prevading on



MNotes to the separale and consolidated financial slatements (continued)

f.a Consolidated finance costs

in Taks Note 2018 2018
Bangladesh Steel Re-Folling Mills Limited 8.00 2,178,000,884  2,056.370.200
BSRM Steed Mils Lirnited 1,425,268,311 1.725.090.040

BSRM (Hong Kong) Limited 362,958 -

10.00 Fimance incomé
See Booounting policy in note 50019

AP - R e e Hote _2018 2018
Bangladesh Steal Ra-Ralling Mills Limitad-HO 10,1 ITEATE B 223 850 851
Bangiadesh Steed Re-Roling Mills Limited-Kolkata

Branch B 5

et

ZTL 176,316 223 858 651

0.1 Bangladesh Stesl Re-Rolling Milts Limited-HO

b Taka e 2019 2018

Interest Income on 510 11,508 33,086
Interest income from FDR 32,250,308 17,620,863
Interest on bakance due from inter companies 239,914,502 206,196,702

272,176,318 723,856,651

(2]

108 Consolidated finance Income S
in Taks Note i) 2018 =
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited 10.00 272,176,316 223,858 551 w
BSRM Steel Mills Limited 372,209,069 343,743 408 =}
BSRM (Hong Kong) Limited . . =
E44,3085,384 557,803,145 Z

11.00 Mon- operating Income =
In Taka Note 2018 2018 -
Eangiadesh Steel Re-Relling Mills Limied-HD 11,01 41,303, 445 123,213,261 =
Bangladesh Stesl Fe-Roling Mills Limited-Kolkata . . w
Branch =
41,303,428 123213 261 3

11.01 Bangladesh Stesl Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO 2
in Taka 2018 18 S
Managesmen feas 25,358,593 108,055,533 =
Changes in tair valee of radable securities 22.03 218,853 [44,272) =
Rental insome 16,732,000 14,302,000 o
Dividand incoma 4,200 i =
41,303,445 123,213,261 S

11.8 Consslidated non- operating Incoms -
Un Taka MNote 218 018 o
Bangladesh Sieal Re-Rolling klls. Limiadg 11.00 41,303,448 123,313,581 2
BSRM Steal Mills Limited 40,735,070 23,780,710 =
ESREM (Hong Kong) Limited 2,545,551 <<

T4, 574,067 146,583,571




Nates fo the separate and consolidated financial statements (continuad)
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12.00

12.01

12.02

1203

1204

13.00

1301

Share of (lossyprofit of equity accounted investoes (Met of tax)
I Taka Hote 2019 2018
Share of prafit of subsidiary (BSML) 1201 528,498,668 431,909,020
Share of profit of subsidiary (BSRM HK) 12.02 [8,TE3,225) -
Share of prafit of associale (BSL) 12,03 518,975 826 581,639 421
1,080, 711,259 983,548 £41
Share of profit of subsidiary (BSML)
in Taka 2019 2018
Ml profit attibutable 10 the shareshalders’ of BSML 1,175,311.103 938,269,829
Percentage of holding 44.97% 44 874
Hat attributable 1o BSEM Lid. 528, 498 658 431,908,020
528,498 688 421,908 020
Share of profit of subsidiary (BSRM HK)
In Taka 2018 2018
Met (loss) attributable 1o the sharehalders” of BEML (6,763, 225)
Percentage of holding 100.00%
et [kass) attibutable to BSAM Lid, (6.763,225) -
(6,763, 225) .
Share of profit of associate (BSL)
i Taks g 2018 2018
Met profit attributable o the shareholders' of BSL 1,728,128,824 1800, 795 558
Parcarilagps nflmldnﬁ 3. 19% 31.18%
Mat profit afirbuiable to BSRM Lid, 538,975,826 861.830.421
538,576,826 851836421
Share of other comprahensive income of associate (BSL) (Met of tax)
in Taka E 2019 2018
Dther comprahensive income attributabde io the shanshalders’ of B5L B,697,419,758 (3.392 066}
Fercentage of halding 3.499% M.99%
Dher comprehensive incoma attributabie to BSAM Lid. 2,088,618,434 (1.057.631
2.088,818,434 (1.057.831)
Earnings par share (EPS)
Sae aocounting poficy innobe 50021,
Basic EPS
in Taks L) 2018
Profit attributaible 1o the ordinany shareholders (Taka) 1,860,634, 923 Ifm
Mumber of ordnany shares al the year end 238 DGR 238 214 80T 488
sghited A no. of shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) J1E,0BR I3 P36 066,236
Basic [Taka) AL .07

Eamings per share (EPS) has been compuled by dividing the ned profit after tax (NPAT) by the weighled average
rumber of ordinary shares oulstanding on the reporting date as per AS-3% Eamings Per Share. Mo diuted EFS
wiks requined bo be calculated for the year since there was no scope Tor dilution, -




Naotes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continuad)

13.a Consolidated earnings per share (CEPS)
in Taka

2019 2me

Nt profit after tax attributable o owners of the company (Taka)

1,860,634,91) 2,778, T8, 562

Hl.mhr-ul wdlmgmuﬂ'uﬂdm

2 Bl 214 60T 458

236,088,206 238,088,235

T.88 11.97

EPS for the year 2018 has been restated based cn the new weighted average numiber of ordinary shares i

accordance with 1AS 33,

14.00 Net Asset Value Per Share [MAY)
fn Taka

2018 2018

Total assels

Tigtal liniilities

52,553,622, 783 8,944 650, 954

Hat assat value (HAV)

18,546 251.TET 26,273,261 444
£3,007 371,996 13,671,404, 540

Number of ordinary shares cutstanding during the year 2 36 214 60T 488
el assat valus par share (MAW) per shans 97.48 63.70
140 Consolidated net assel value por share (CHAV)
i Taka 2019 2018
Total assets §1,067,184,337 76,5085, 706.008
Total liabilities §0,558,665,062 50,532 660.416
Consclidated net asset value (CHAV) 30,508.619,37T8 17,084,038, 592

Less: Mon-controfing intensst

(1,501,147,278) (3,352 628 051)

Assets attributable to owners of the company
Murmbsér of shares cubslandi Eha

20.007.071,998 13871408541
238 214,607 438

ed nel assel value per share [CNAV) per share B7.46
16.00 Mei operating cash flow per share
in Taka 2019 2018
Met cperating cash Now 884,158,211 (1.854,728.548)
Humbser of grinary shares cutstanding during the year 236,068,236 214,607 458
Het operating cash fiow per share 2B {8.7E}
16.a Consolidated net operating cash flow per share
in Taks 2015 2018
et operating cash fiow B,352,088,233  (B.024,565,983)
Wumber of ordinany shares outstanding during the year Z35,068,2368 214,607 438
Mat eperating cash flow per share 39.62 137.35)
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Notes to the separate and consclidated financial statements (continued)

16.00 Reconcillation of net Income with cash flows from operating activities:

In Taka 2018 2018
Mel profil befons bho ,740,065,560 3021534 413
Adjustments to reconclls net Income with cash
flows from operating activities:
Amortization 3,203 341 3,383 34
Gain/{loss) on sale of PPE {7603, 428) {2,313,631)
Dhepraciation EO4, 380,504 732,277 500
Unrealired fareign cumency iranslation lossi{gain) (963,344) -
Shana of atcounbed nvesiee el of lax [1,080,711 269} GA3 548 441)
_ B _ {384,724,107) 250,201,231)
{Increase)/Decrease In Current Assots:
Inventories (2,783, 292,630) (4,001,586, To4)
Trade and othar recelvables (1,214,420, 852) {220,800, 7ET)
Advances and deposils {197 ,638,563) (268, 525,758)
Increasel{Decreass) in Current Liabilities:
Trade payables 2,324,100,719 {315,522 BOE)
Giher Liabiities 135 412,213 (30,935 610)
Defined benelil obligations - Gratuty 35,745,670 39,027 65
> Advance against sales 255,577.297 44 323 B42
S Ligislities for expanses T4, 217065 135,602 225
= Provision for WFFFE and Wedlars Fund 1 48, 304 474
o (1,357, 979,542) (%581 324 TES)
= Income tax paid {383,203, 700) (74,736 944)
3 et cash flow from operating activities £B4, 188,211 (1,884,728 548)
3
a 16.a Consoclidated reconcillation of net Income with cash flows from operating activities:
(=]
& In Taka 2013 2018
% Hat prafit bafors tax 4115832114 4,375126,130
" Reconciliation of net income with eash Mows Trem
= operating activities
= Amgrlization 6,183,085 8,183,085
w Gaingless) on sale of PPE 15,714,851 2,307 321)
9 Dapreciation 1,522.97T.3T4 1,510,277 222
= Unrealized foreign cumency ransiation kes/(gain) (995,813 .
= Share of (loss)profit of equity accounted investes, el 75,826 1,638,421
= = = L 1,004,903,571 852 513,565
- (Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets:
= Inventories 2302373615 (5455934 98T)
S Trade and other recedvables 1,155,557 .5748 5,156,308, TE4)
i Afvances nd 0BpOSilE {1,206,955,971) {250,920,302)
» Increasel|Decrease) In Current Llabilites:
S Trade payables 1857377.507  (500,670,184)
= Criher Liabikties 91,064,767 (215,448,658
2 Defined benefit obligations - Gratuity 51,264,404 28,120,984
Advance against sales 265,342,811 &5,580,010
Liabilities for sxpenses 129,768,094 211,586 875
Provision for WPPF and Wellare Fund (14,755,491) 142 918 448
4,631,078,323 (12,171,806 611)
Income iax paid

Net cash flow from operating activities

(399,527, 794) (1,180, 269.067)
9,3562,086,213 (8,024,565 983)
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Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

17.04 Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

All tha revaluations made against propery, plant and equipment are summarnzed belew

Clags of
Revaluaticn Valuation Recognized imto | Net revaluation
assebs Effective date Valuer
period iaaliidd mithad ) F5 gain
2008 Propesty, |ToPacement|  s3.nec.08 Heda Vasi Haginaing of 1673.400,176
MI tang | CO%tand net Chewdhury & 2008
2012 equipmant 'IHEH'I' i 31-Dec-12 E’f « II “"'Iu E“m'",l'izlgm 1,004 256 E95
Net reaizabia| ACNABIN
. Land and land |  vaduefair ]
2019 | Gevelopments | market value| 3019 .a.g“m 30 une2018 | 3.480,530,388
method e,

Bumrnany of the rvalualion report provided by valuer has been enclosed in Annexung-A.

Replacement cast and net realizable value method, as applicable. have been used by the independent valuer in re-
valuation of property. planl and equipment.

Defference of depreciation between revalued carmying amownt and depreciation based on camying amount &8 per
assuls’ orignal cost has been transfered from Revaiuation Reserye o Retained Eamings as shown in Statement of
Changés in Equity.

18,00 Dwtails of under construction assets (Capital woerk In progress)

1B.a

See accounting policy in note 50,04,
30 June 2018
Opening  Incurred during Closing
in Taka balance the year Capialized Balance
Factory building and shed 28,856,069 19,070,511 (32,235.208) 16,881,372
Plant and machineries 54,719,004 34,791,022 (41,840,820 47,679,206
Boundary wall, drainage
5 roads and ¢ 42,101, 8849 11,423,788 (48,6308.9581) &, BB5,T03
Mizhar venicles 37,500 z {37,500) %
IT Eguipment - 556,854 - 556,854
15‘."%“&! 65 842 183 (12 1 68,813,135
30 June 2018
Opening  Incurred during Closing
n Taks balance thie r Ca lizad alanca
Factory bulding and shed 260,408,551 40,771,774 (290,324, 256) 28,856,060
Pland and machineries £8,430,315 23463,713 (27,165,024 £4, 720,004
Bowndary wall, drainage £5,314,830 42 101,880 [58,314,B30) 42,101,880
Systern, roads and pavement
Fusmiture and fidiusnes 200,024 - (200,004} -
Mactor vehicles - 2,362,582 (2,325,082} 37500
Office Equipment 1160 - (81,160} ¥
T Eguipment 252,500 (252,500) -

e =
J876ETI00  117696.058  (J70B42886) 125724462

These costs include costs incurred iniially 1o constructiinstall property, plamt and equipment (PPE).
Censtructiondnstaliation costs are transfermed 1o PPE when the construction is completed and ready for inbended use.

Consolldated under construction assets (capltal work In progress)

In Taka Mote 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Bangladesh Steel Re-Raolling Mils Limited 18.00 68,813,135 125,724,452
BSRM Sieel Mills Limited
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Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)
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19.00 Intangible assets

19.a

Sea pocounting polcy in nobe 50005,

in Taka Hote 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Bangkadesh Stesl Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO 18.01 18,413,720 21,787,081
Bangladesh Stesl Re-Roling Mils Limited- = -
Kolkala Branch .
18,413,720 31.?9?.':&1
18.01 Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO
in Taka Note 30 June 2019 20 June 2018
‘Compuler Software [Oracle ERP) 15.02 18,412,720 21,797,081
18,413,720 21,797,081
19.02 Intangible assets schedule Computer
Software [Oracle
in Taka ERP)
Cost
Dpening balance on 1 July 2017 33,833,413
A )
Closing balance on 30 Juna 2018 33,833,413
Opening balance on 1 July 3018 A3B33413
Additions .
Cioging balance on 30 June 2019 33,833,413
Accumulated amortizaticn
Opering balance on 1 July 2017 8,653,011
Add: Amortized during the year 3,383,341
Clasing balance on 30 June 2018 12 035 353
Opening balance on 1 July 2016 12,036,352
Add: Amodized duing (he year 3,383 341
Closing balance on 30 June 2019 15,419,653
Carmying amount on 30 June 2018 21,787 061
Larrying amount on 30 Juna 2019 18,413,720
Consolidated intanglble assets
in Taka Mote 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Bangladesh Steal Re-Rolling Mills Limited 19.00 18,413,720 21,797,061
BESRM Steal Mills Limited 16,165,277 1?|955.ﬂ21
33,678,997 38,762 082
20,00 Investment in subsidlaries and assoclate
in Taka Noita 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Subsidiary company
BSRM Sisel Mills Limited [ESML) 20.01 8,131,510,260 2,772,054 537
BESRM (Hong Kong) Limited (BSRM HK) 20,01 (8,763,218} 10
Jolnt-Venturs
BMS Steed Limited (BMS) 20,01 2,281,800
Associals company
In associate company-BSRM Steels Limited (BSL) 20,01 6517215641 3994597801

12,644,284.186__ 6.766.552.548




Meotes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

20.01 Movermnent of Investment in Assoclate and Subsidiary

i 30 June 2019 s
I Taka BSL __BSML BESRM HK BMS
Opening balance 3,504,507 9041 2772054637 10 -
Inrvestment made A . " 2,281,500
Additioniadjustments during the year:
Ghare of profit £ (1os8) of equity accounied 538,875,826 G 408,668 (6, TE3,228)
fr'h"‘l :‘;ﬂ:ﬂ" | W"W" MEOTE 2 083,818,434  2,830,058,955 .
Tranader of Deferred Tax o Retained
Eamings due to axcess daprecation 1,447,671 .
between cost and revalued model of equity ;
accounted investesas
Cash dividend reseived [106.584.181) - - =
'L'-Inl-lu balance 8,517 216,841 &131, 510,280 (8, TE3,2156) 2,281,500
30 June 2018
In Taka B5L BSML BERM HE BMS
Dpening balance A.553007 671 2,350,145.618 .
Irrsaabrman made - = 10
ustrments during the year:
okl bbb ST VU T ) .
Share of olher comprehensive income {1,057 531) =
Effect of revaluation and deferred tax on - -
retaingd gamings of associales
Cash dividend neceived (158,691 260) = *
Cloging balance 3,904, 567,901 2,772 054,837 10 -

20.02 Investment in subsidlary company. BSRM Steel Mills Limited (BSML)

BERM Limited holds 52.88% aquily inberast in BSRM Steal Mills Limited since 2015 that consists of 44 87% direct
halding (177,384 800 Ordinary shares of Tk, 10 each) and 7.97% indirect investmaent through investment in associabe
(BEL) ol the reporting date. BSRM Limited and BSAM Siesl Mills Limited sre baing operated under common control

Although the company dinectly holds less than 50% woling share of BSRM Sieel Mills Limited, but taking the indrect
holding and common control inte consideration management has detemined thal the company controls BSML and

considered if a5 a subsidiary,

Summary of financial infermation of subsidiary:

i Taks 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Mon-current assels 24.538,827.142 18,796 706 09
Currenl assals 21,088 466 380 21285 220 141
Total assats 45635093 531 40,084 50 40
Share capital 3,944,354 000 3,544 354,000
Retained sarmings 1,470,739,725 (72 550,881)
Rwaluslion nessnss 8,220,573.719 2292 B79 BT
Total aquity 13,635 657 444 6,164 887 30
Mon-current labiibas 3,488, 642 506 4,535,123,850
Current liabilities 28,510,783, 881 20,384 700,300
Total liabilities 31,990 426 087 33,010 824 150
Total Equity & Liabilities 45,636,083,531 _ 40.084,506,840_
Hot Assets Valug [NAV) per sharg 34,87 15.63
Revanue 53,407,280 472 45888262118
Othes operating and non-operating incomalLoss) 386,425,850 IT5.068T 5914
Expenses

D‘ﬂ'ﬂ'mmtﬁﬂmmﬂ'ﬂyﬂf

Total comprehensive income for the year

BE1

(52,618,295, 228) (45,325 080,201}
; -

7,470,954,754

38 269 829
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Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

21.01 Bangladesh Steal Re-Rolling Milts Limited-HO

in Taky Mot 30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Irvestment in non-tradable shares at cost 21.02 1,000,300 1,000,300
IFvadtmants i fixed ils pecaipls 21.03 115,814,104 121,190 054
116,814,404 122.190.354
1.0 Investment in non-tradable shares at cost
in Taks 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Iskamic Sieamship Co. Limited J00 300
STS Holdings Limited 1,000,000 1,000,000
1,000,300 1,000,300
21.03 Investments in fleed deposits recelpts
Rata of
it Taks Tenure Purposa Interest 30 June 2015 30 June 2018
Mercantle Bank Lid. 1 yoar Guaranies TH-0% 4,176,632 3902725
Siandard Chanenad Bank Lid. 1 pear LiC Margin 7.00°% 54,984 914 51,777,310
Sia%e Bank of Inda 1 year LIC Margin 7.00% 2,098 598 2008,070
IFIC Bank Lid. 1 pear LiC Margin 7.508% B, 389,129 50688 718
Intemationa Leasing and 1 yoar Sacurity 12.50% 32,663,234 20,861,232
Financial Serdces Limited deposil
Fareasi Finance and nvesbmand 1 year Securily 10000%: 18,611,887 28,471,000
Limited depouit
115,814,104 121.150,054
21.a Consolidated sther investments
in Taka Nate 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
mlh Sleal Fa-Follirg Mills. Limitesd 21. 118,814,404 122 190, 354
BS5RM Steal Mills Limited . =
116,814,404 122 190,354
2200 Short term Investmant
See sccounting polcy In mobe 50,09,
n Taka Hote 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Bangladesh Sieel Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO FFIGE 146,734,158 50,220,680
Bangladesh Sieel Re-Rolling Mills Limited- - -
Kolkata Branch
145,784,158 50,220,680
22.01 Bangladesh Steal Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HD
in Taka Mote 30 June 019 30 June Z018
invesimant in traceabie securties 1 fair vaiue 7202 582,176 363 523
Investments in fixed depasil receipls 1204 146,211,982 48,857,158
146,794,158 50,220 680
22.02 Investmant in iradable securithes at fair value
in Taka Mol 30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Opening balance 363,523 407,795
Sold during the year - =
Cha in fair valua of tradable securities 22.03 218,653 {44, 272)
le2ing Calance 581,176 363 523
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Notes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

22,03 Fair Value of Tradable Securities

Fair Value
as at 30 Falr Value as at Increase)
fn Taka Cost June D18 30 June 2018 (Decrease)
Easbem Insurance Co. Limiled 178,550 55,480 54 080 AT 550
Pragati Life Insurance Limited 497,480 154,810 232834 B1,024
Pregress Life Insurance Limited 8,605 165,223 258,262 100,038
956,638 63,82 BE21TE 218,683
22.04 Investmants in fixed deposit recelpis
Rate of
In Taka Tenure Purpose Interest 30 June 7018 30 June 2018
Al-Aradah lslami Bank Lid B manths LIC Margin B.23% 1o 790,724 12 878528
6.7%
Commaercial Bank of Coylon PLC Bmonthe LG Masgin 7.00% 24 802 B84 21,225,454
Habitr Biank Lid. 6 monthe LG Margin B.50% 5,085,483 1,762,382
Pubali Bank Lid. B months LI Margin 6.00% 55,834,184 T.711.2656
Siate Bank of India Emonths  LIC Margin T.50%% 1,380,556 1.308727
Shahjalal Istami Bank Lid, Gmonths LG Margin T.00%% 800,000
Thar City Bank Limited & months Invesimant E.00% 53 02T ATE 1,350 801
Lanka Bangla Finance Lid. & monthy Setunity B.75-0.50% 3,782 862 3,500,000
depasit
146,211,982 48 B57,158
id.a Consolidated short term Inmrestmant
i Taks Hote 30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Bw:qlaﬂm Staal Re-Faolling Mills Limited 22.00 146,794 158 50220880
BSRM Stesl Mils Limited 1,723, 216,481 1.316.820.481
‘I.Il"ﬂ-aiﬂlﬂi 1@5-?'.141.1&1
23.00 Inventories
See accounting policy in nobe 50,06,
in Takn Mote 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Bangiadesh Steel Fe-Foling Mills Limted-HO Z3.01 16,190,516,654 13,413.610,088
Bangladesh Stael HI—HﬂIIIrIg Mills Limsted-Kolcata Branch ITA18,184 28,509 0538
Porion of unreakred prof (PURP)- Associale 5.00 (19,855,847} -
Partion of unrealized profil (PLURP)- Subsidiany 5.00 (2,459,337} -
lE|'1 Eﬂllﬁ 13|H2 EEIIIII:IEJ
231.04 Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO
i Takw 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Sabes AMSAINg AMgLIng
Raw Material Taka Taka
Raw Malsnalg-Billets 82,119 4,256 401,602 BAT1 215241
Raw Malasiale-Scraps 65,420 272,557,571 1.300.710.930
14?.5_!-'! EEHDIH'I- §.771.830,172
Work-In-process .
Finished Goods
Finished Goods-0Own production 127,263 T.242877.338 4871752108
Finighed Goods-Protuned 8,593 430,566 294 2850263231
136,255 7.673,243.633  E141.045 335
Stores and Spares
Mechanical slones 1,096,880,781 816,324 488
M5, Roll 148,208,878 165,703,081
Elecirical siohas 410,876,653 338,353,155
General shores 32,883,427 5 870,807
Consurnable stores 385,650,531 157 457 641
Tl 0, 2,071,489, 310 1,483 806,171
Fuel !rl! Iuhm Il 1 17
T @% 16,190,815, 684 13413 510,988
I.\" -



rate and consolidated financial statements (continued

2la Consolidated inventories
dn Taka Haote

30 June 2018 30 June 2018

Bargladesh Sleel Re-Rolling Mills Limited 23.00
BSRM Steel Mills Limited

Unmpalized profit elimination (added as subsidianes pofion
which was deducted in separate F5)

Fartion of unfealized profil (FLURE)

16,195,612,684 13,4432 320 084
4,943,908, 402 9,556,504, 74

2,458,237

e
21,136.511,183 23,438 BB4 TH8

24.00 Trade and Othir Recelvables
Sea popounting pokoy in nobe 50,09,

An Taks MNote 30 June 2015 30 Jupe 2018
Bangladesh Sieel Fe-Rolling Mills Limied-HO 2401 3,421,84B,14T  2275689,108
EBangladesh Sieel Re-Rolling Mils Limited-Kolkaia Branch 149,166,095 40,705,274

A 8T8 253 2 356 82 380

2401 Bangladesh Stes] Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO

in Taka Note
Trade Receivabies 24.02
Other Receivables 24.04

30 June 2019 30 Jung 2018
3T 278,860 2,081,633 4535
108, J68 8T 184 055 651

3,421,648 147 2 375 689,106

The direcicrs believe that the above receivables am good and realizable:
2402 Trade Recetvables

in Taka Hote 30 June 2013 20 June 2018
3 Limnibad 1,541 828 323,190

BSAM YWires Limited 4,559 660 .

BSRM Logistics Limited -

BSRM Steel Mills Limited 1,605,001

H. Akbemli & Co, Limged 23,068 -

Crilver Partias 24 03 3,304 B41 307 2,082 401 287

Leas: Provision for doubtful dabi

3,393,370,862 2,082 T34 457
{1,091, 002) (1,081,003

3,312.279.860 2081633455

24,03 Out of these receivables, there are pending litigations against 28 parties having receivabies of Th. 24,206,181,
Thess receivables ans secured by Post daled cheques. The Company's exposune bo cuslomers is diversified
and no singla customer sonlributes mana than A% of the oulstanding receivables &t on 30 Juna 2019,

24.04 Other Recolvables

In Toka 30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Interast Receivablas 45,891,023 65525 880
DEDD and Oihers Receivables G2 477 264 124 426,771

109,368 287 104055851

24,06 Ageing of trade recalvables ks as follows
i Taka

30 June 2018 30 June 2018

Mot et due
Less than 3 months

Crvar 3 months bul less than & months
Cwer B manths

1,872,137, 060 ae0.811.797
§77.636,876 SO0 438,860
241,478,963 147 040,870

233.115,963 127.433.230

3, 313,370, BE2 2,082 724 457

2d.a Consolidated trade and other receivables

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

I Taka Note
Bangladesh Steel Re-Roling Mils Limiled 24,
BERM Steel Mills Limited

BSAM (Hong Kong) Limibed
Less: Intra group receivables

3,5T0,813,232 2,355, 362,380
3,944 372 082 5,837 800,745

1,138,525
B.193. 743,801
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Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

25.00 Current aceount with related companles

i Taks 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
BERM Logestics Limited 184,817 8848 155,415 838
BSRM Wires Limited 245,140 518 TOLIE8.650
Chittagong Power Company Limited 3,537,926 24 485178
H. Akberali & Co. Limited 14,212,187 285 250,865
BERM Stoal Mils Limited £08,808,617 850,308 841
BESRM (Hong Kong) Limited (BSRM HE) 0,450,358 -
BSRM Ispat Limited . 328,385,077
B5RM Stesls Limfted u :
BSRM Real Estates Limiled - B.143,000
East Bengal Trading & Industries Corporation Limited - 2,600,000

Section Steel Industries Limiled

57T 612 1.537 655,548

All ransactions among the relaled companies have been made through Sccound payes chegues of bank

transfers and inbaresis wane chanped on all related compansas’ balancas.

26.a Consolidated curront account with related companies

in Taka Hote 30 June 2015 30 Junae 2018

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limaed 25.00 885,577 B2 1,537,850,598
BSRM Steel Mills Limited TOB9. 488,125 1687861774
Lesa: Intra group elimination 1 B58, 306 643

26.00 Advances and deposits
See accounting policy In nobe 50,00,

2,575 514,720

7,557,196 642 25,914,

in Taka Hote 30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Bangladesh Sisel Re-Rolling Mills Limied-HO 26.01 2,116.330,5T5 1,964, 252 522
Bangladesh Sieel Re-Rolling Mills Limited-Kolkata Branch £4,935,492 19,374 BA2
2181286087 1383677 504
26.01 Bangladesh Stesl Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO
in Takn Hote 30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Advancas 28.02 2070, TE1, 048 1,816,648 428
Deposits 26.03 78627 A7 E04 104
Z.11 575 1,984 252 523
26.02 Advances
in Takas 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
For capiial sxpenditure 146,402,193 75,958 466
Fof revenue expensas 52,879,331 28,180,130
For scrap purchase and others 9,253,395 12,346,504
For sioee and spares 49,192,082 80,689,344
Gadown rent 892,637 1,047 B45
Incoma tax 1,165,8:51,084 1,158,206 639
LG margin 38,148,168 32,655, 483
Land A52.492,029 328,937,008
Staff loan against salary 4,310,962 6,059,325
VAT cument account 223,406,514 102 B8 447
Weglem Marnine Shipyard Limited 20,000,000 20,000,000
Advance tax (VAT) 6922532 -
Against LIG - 70,919,218
Prefiminary axpenses - 555,098
2,070,761,948 1,816,648 428




Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements [continwed)

26.03 Deposits
in Takas _ 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Bangladesh Ansar and VDP a73.083 373,0803
Bank guaraniss bo Cusloms authorty 2,592,101 1,997,181
Bureau of Indian Standard 2,418,000 2418 MO0
Customs Authority againat claim 552,850 8 2
Kamaphull Gas Distibution Co. Lirsled (KGDCL) 21,932,805 21,602 005
Linde Bangiadesh Limiled B78.000 876,800
Meghna Petrodgum Limited 40,000 40,000
Others 1,648 126 1,786,227
Power Development Beard 13,949 368 13,833,358
T & T and others 191, 444 191 444
VWASA 500,000 500,000
Refundable security depasits for IPO 600,000 -
Bank guaranies io Kamaphuli Gas DistibuSan Co. Limibed - 2498 406
Centrad Deposicry Bangladash Limibed - £00.6:00
Reguiatory Authority - s

a5STBEZT 47604 104

26.04 The direclors consider thal all the above advances, deposils and prepayments afe silher adjustable of

recoverabie |n cash of in kind and that no provision aganst thess ane requined &l this stage.

26.a Consolidated advances and deposits

in Taka Mote 20 Juna 2019 30 Jung 2018
Bangladesh Steal Re-Rolling Mills Limited 35,00 2,181,286, 06T 1,683 827 504
BERM Staal Mills Limited 3372702438 2,354 233 030
BERM [Hang Kong) Limiled 1,148,000 =
5,555,.116.505 4 148 160 534
27,00 Cash and cash equivalents
See accounting policy in nate 50.09,
i Taka Mate 30 June 2019 A0 June 2018
Erﬂlﬂﬂuh Steal Re-Rolling Mills IJrr"tad-l-i"D 27 751,904,956 &1 532,77
Bangladesh Siesl Re-Rolling Mills Limited-Koliata Branch 9,651,715 13,051,010
761,556,711 74,583 780
27.01 Bangladesh Stes! Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO
1 Taks Hate 30 June 2018 A0 Jung 2018
Cash in hand 27.02 2,646 589 1.414 B55
Cash al banks 27.0% 262 800,672 240,083 850
Fixed deposit 27.08 AB6 457, TES 450 434 257
751,904,996 691.832.771
27,02 Cash In hand
fri Tonkir 30 June 2045 30 Juno 2048
Corporate office 174,555 228,757
Factory office 2,334,599 B58,570
Dihaka office 37,005 226,528
Mirsarai office (Warshouse) 100,000 100,000

i 1414 855
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Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements {continued)
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27.03 Cash at Banks Account
Iy Taikca Branch Byps  Currency 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
AB Bank Limited Agrabad ch BOT 651 25673
AB Bank Limited Agrabad cD UsD 100,409,316 .
Agrani Bank Limilsd Lakighi East ch BOT 12,384 17,055
Agrani Bank Limited Laldighi Easi ch LED 120,838,085 118,006,401
Al-Aratah lslami Bank Limiled Agrabad ch BOT 10,337,740 531,328
Bank Alfalah Limied Agrabad ch BOT = [101,200.541) 330,744
Bank Asia Limited Agrabad cD BOT 1,057,587 41,352
BASIC Bank Limited Dewanhat ch BOT 186,206 850,014
BRAC Bank Limibed FAgrabad D BOT 26,307 -
Commearcial Bank of Ceyien PLC Agrabad ch BOT 27439 75,842
[Chaka Bank Limited Jubdes Road ch BOT 831,110 685, 504
Duteh Bangla Bank Limited Jubdes Road ch BOT 10,062,727 1,150,511
Eastem Bank Limited Agrabad Escrow BOT 130,772 8,702
Easlem Bank Limfad Agrabad ch BOT 448 410,240
EXIM Bank Lirnibed CDA Avenig o BOT 12,318,239 1,752,230
HSBC Agrabad ch BOT 13,816,002  (B.457,T18)
HSBC Agrabad ERDQ UsD 33,530 33431
IFIC Bank Limied Agrabad ch BOT 35, 7E9 28,831
Islami Bark Bangladesh Limited  Jubiles Road ch BOT 3A48855 14215455
Jamuna Bank Limibed Khafunjon| ch BOT 146, 508 10,649
Janata Bank Limited Laildighi Easi cD BOT 1 BETE11 5,329,430
Mercantile Bank Limibed Jubiles Road ch BOT 17,054 -
Mercartile Bank Lismited Jublles Road ch BOT 5 .
Midland Bank Limited Agrabad ch BOT 14,450 88,156
Mutual Trust Bank Limited Jubdes Road ch BOT 724,103 1,071,285
Hational Bark Limited Jubdes Road cD BOT 86,785 BE,TTE
RCC Bank Limited Agrabad ch BOT * (8,600,721) (554,227}
HRE Commerncial Bank Limited Agrabad ch BOT 1,728 481 1,383,812
RCC Bank Limited Agrabad ERQ L&D 23482434 23778627
MCC Bank Limitad Agrabad FCY CD UsD 24,6927 30,532 05
Ona Bank Limited Agrabad ch BOT " [135.165) 84 880
Oy Bank Limited Agrabiad Escrow BOT - 483,005
Premier Bank Limited ORMNizamRoad CD BOT 611,481 2,400,285
Primag Bank Limitad O.R Mizam Road ch aoT 2,834,274 1,298 304
Prime Bank Limited Agrabad Escrow BOT 348,691 194,141
Shahyjalal lslarmi Bank Lirited Jubiles Road ch BOT B, 204 25429
Social lstami Bark Liried Jubiles Road ch BOT 2528268 17,040,307
Sonal Bank Limited Fafibari ch BOT 20,854 82,004
Eenal Bank Limited Laddighi East co BOT 19,190,614 -
Sputheast Bank Limited COA Avenue ch BoT 2,174,845 4 804, 054
Seutheast Bank Limited Fahariaii cD BOT 2871873 3,803,370
Elandard Bank Limifed Sadarghat Road ch BOT TE.B03 13323
Standard Chartered Bank Dhaka ch BOT 175,545 61,686
Stale Bank of ndia Agrabad cD BOT E2472 24 000
The City Bank Limited Agrabad ch BOT 574,080 2411422
The City Bank Limited Agrabad FCY CD LsD A0E0ED -
Trust Bank Limited CDA Aveniss cD BOT 49,755 453 B8
Ltitara Bank Limited Agrabad ch BODT 88,275 98,425
United Commercial Bank Limited  Jubiles Road cD BOT 10,985,852 11,324,771
United Commarcial Bank Limited  Jublles Road  Escrow BOT 1,082,281 B34
Sub total 261,112,989 736610744
Account

i Taka Branch 30 June 3019 30 June 2018
Mutual Trust Bank Limsted wsha 634,579 802,528
Mutual Trust Bank Limited Dilkusha 45,758 47,296
Mubual Trust Bank Limifed Drilkwsha 443,315 455261
Mutual Trust Bank Limed Ditkesha 16,704 15,852
Standand Charered Bank Agrabad 488,308 ZB187T
Sub total 1687683 1472915
Grand Total 262,800,672 240,083 5545

* Book overdrafis only.




Mates to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

2I7.04 These sccounts were apentd for depasit of Share Money (IPO) and payment of dividend. Balances in these accounts
rapresant amount refundabde 1o the applicants to whom shases were nod alictied and unclaimed dividend.

27.05 Flxed Deposits

Rate of

fn Taka Tenire Purpose  Inferesl 30 June 2018 30 June 208
Al-Aradah klami Bank Lid. dmonths  LJCMargin  7.568% . 1,335,801
Bank Asia Limited 3 moniha LG Margin =~ 5.25% . 4,430,758
Commercial Bank of Caylon PLC 3 mantha LT Margin  5.00% - 2,171,568
Duwich Bangla Bank Limited dmontha LG Margin  4.00% 17,761,854 13,548,268
Diaka Bank Limited dmonths  Invesiment  5.50% 40,634,572 20234511
IFIC Bank Limited dmonths  LUC Margn  5.50% 33,558,261 31203904
Islami Bank Bangladesh Lid dmonths  LUC Margin  6.00% 12,883,776 11,865,000
Habit Bank Linited dMonths  LCMargin  8.00% 4,487,147 4,249,820
Meercantile Bank Limited Imonths  LC Margin  6.00% 48,403,848 17306577
Mational Bank Limited dMonths  LC Margin  6.00% £,658,220 13,081,500
HCC Bank Limibed JMonths  L/C Margin 1.00% to 7.00% ITTBMTTT  B0,8T0.6TE
The City Bank Limited 3 honths LT Margin 4.00% bo 4.95% . A7, 262,562
Sanali Bank Limited IMonhs  UC Margin  5.50% 18,021,581 E
Trust Bank Limited IMonths LG Masgin  8.00% B, 744 850 .
Uinited Commencial Bank Ltd. IMonths  L/C Margin __ 7.00% 24577289 23743175

A8 457, TES 450434 257

iT.a Consolidated cash and cash equivalents

i Taks Hote 30 June 2015 30 June 2048
Bangladesh Steel Re-Foling Mills Limited 200 TE1,856,T11 04 563, TED
BSRM Steel Mils Limited 2Z,TTES11 T4,449388
BSRM {Hong Kong) Limited 303,601

—— W
78479223 779433145
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Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

o
-
o
Y
=)
o
w
=
=
el
=
o
=
w
=}
=
w
o
<
w
>
w
=
[=
o
o
[,
%)
]
=<
o
=
<
=
[T
4}
=
o
o
o
w
o
«»
o
o
=
=}
>
<

30.03

One Bank Limited - Syndicated term loan

In Takn _ 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Do weithiin o (1) yoar - 38371041
Mﬁﬂmﬁﬂ|1|ﬂ' - —

= B AT 041
Lenders:

The company entered infe a syndicated loan agreement for second BMRE on May 15, 2012 with One Bank

Lirnited, the lead amanger and & (Six) other Banks and Financial Institutions.

Total loan facilithes: T B0 cnone.

Interest rate:

Inbarest rate is 9.0%-10.5% per annum calculabed on quarbardy basls and vasiabla depending on the siuation

of money market,

Disbursamani:

The first disbursement was made on Seplemier 16, 2012,

Repayments

This tenm loan was repaid in 60 (siy) quanerly instalments after 1 (one] year of grace period,

Securities:

i. Regisiered Morigage on B27 decimals of land ai Sitakunda, Chittagong along with budding and
structures constructed or ko be consiructed therson on first ranking parri passu basis.

ii. Fimed and floating charge aver assats.

iil. Irrgvocable genaral power of attamey,

iv. Demand promissary nobe cowering full amount.

Purpose:

For acquisition of plant and machineries o enhance the production capacity ta 450,000 melric tons per year,

imprave product quality, underiake chvil construction ete, for BMRE.

United Commercial Bank Limited. Syndicated term loan

I Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Due wilhin are (1) year 612,784,247 545 502,278
Due after more than one (1) year 508,813,737 1,122 349,335

1.1;1&!& 'I.IH-HIE-I-'LIHB
Lenders:

The company enbered inlo a separabe syndicated loan agreement for the BMRE on 21 June 2012 with United
Commercial Bank Limited, the lead armanger and 15 (fifleen) other Banks and Financial Instilutions.

Total loan tacilities: Tk, 2TB.ETE crore.

Intenast rate:

Inderest rabe is 8, 5%-12.0% per annum calculaied on quarierdy basis and variable depending on the situalion
of money markel

Disbursament:

The frst disbursemant was made on 23 Movembar 2014.

Repaymants:

This {esmn loan ks repayable in 80 (sixty) quaneely instaliments commencing from the end of 15th month of the
first draw donwm daba.

Securities:

I. Registersd morigage ower the project land and all civil constraction

i Fixed and loating change ever machinery, plant and equipment.

ii. Flcating charge over al ficating assets with the power to Sell.

. Assignment of insurance pobcies along wilh power 1o collect nsurance proceeds.

¥. Implementabion guaranies from the sponsors,

Wi On demand promissary node.

Purpose:
For acquisition of plan wmmmwmmwmmmmmwm
improve product quality, undertake civil consinection eic. for BMRE.




MNoles to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

30.04

30.08

Prima Bank Limited - Syndicated term loan

i Tk 30 June 20119 30 June 2018
Dua within one (1) year 1,200,000,000  1,200.000,000
Dua afber mons than one (1) year 2998, 217,516 l:iﬂﬁllﬂ.ﬂ_ﬂﬂ-

188 217,618 5,350 458,893

Lenders:

The compary enlered inte a syndicated lpan agreament for balance shesl restructuring on 20 December
2017 with Prime Bank Limited, the lead amanger and T (Seven) cihar Banks.

Total loan tacilities: Tk. 800 crore,

Interest rate:

Indicative rabe of nberesi for term loan is 11.05% p.a with quarbedy rests which may be reviewed
semiannually afer first disbursemant based on negotiation considedng pravailing monsy market stuation
Disbursement:

The First disbunsement of tha loan was made on 03 January 2018

Repaymani:
The principal plus interest amounl will be repaid in 20 (twenly) quarterty installments starting from fhe
immediale nex) quarter énd of firs! disbursement date.

Securities:

i. Pari passu 15t charge over existing fixed assals including registared mongage charge over progact land
and consinection there on with relevant 1GPA.

18t Ranking pan passu charge over balance of axisting ESCROW account,

Parsonal guarantes of all dirscion.

Coeporate Guaranies of H. Akberali Co. Lid.

Fledge & Lian on 10 Milion Shares of BSRM Sieels Lid This securily will be released upon completion
of aforesaid security documenbaticn.

Megalive pledge aver assets of BSRM Lid 6l perfection of decumentation

. Ofher charge document as per opinlon of lendars common counsel and standand practice.

Purpose:
Restructuring of Eabilities through refinancing of short term Ioan and or lpan from Bs sisters concam.
Hational Housing Finance and Invesiments Limited

fn Taka 20 June 2019 30.June 2018
D within gne (1) year - 2,276,658
Due afer more than one (1) year 2

<T@

=

2 278 858

Terms of loan:
Total loan facilities: Tk 100 milkan,
Interest rate: 10.5% - 18.00% per annum.
Disbursement:
The full disbursement was made on 15 January 2013,
Repaymant:
The loan was repaid in 80 menthly instaliments after 6 months grace pariod.
Securithes:
I. Personal guaraniee of all direciors of the company.
ii. Lien of shares of BSRM Steels limiled covering the full loan amount,
Purposa:
Te mesat i working capital requiremeant,
International Leasing and Financial Services Limited

I Taka 30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Due within ona (1) year - 6,135,123

Dug afier mone than one (1) year

6,135,123
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Maotes to the separate and consolidated financial statements {continued)

Terms of loan:
Tetal loan facilites: Tk 300 milon,
interest rate: 12,0006 - 17.00% per annum,

Disbursement:

Full disbursement of the lcan was made through two instaliments dated on 28 July 2013 and 16 Septembar
2013,

Repaymant:

The loan was repaid in &0 monthly instaliments afier § monihs grace pemnod.

Securities:

l. Personal guaraniess of all direciors of 1he compary.

ii. Lien of 2,200,000 res of Shares of BSRM Stewls Limited.

iil, Lien on TOR Tk 2.00 Core io be with Inbernational Leasing And Financial Services Limited.
Purpose:

To pay off foreign suppliers bill againsd purchase of Faw Materials,

30007 Fargast Finance & Investment Lirmeted

in Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Due within one (1) year . 22 X8
Due affer more than one (1) year

22338

Terms of loan;
Total loan faciiithes: Th. 400 millicn.
Interest rate:; 11.50% - 18.00% per annum.

Disbursement:
The disbursement of the lcan was made on 26 June 2013,
Repayment:
The loan was repaid in 80 monthly installments withoul any grace pediod
Securities:
i. FOR for Tk, 20 Milion & 15% P.a.
iil. Personal guarantes of all dinectors of the company.
iil, Corporate guarantes of H. Akberali & Ca. Lid. (HACL)L
Purposa:
To mest up working capial reguirenent.
30008 Jamuna Bank Limited
i Taka A0 June 2018 30 June 2018
D within oo (1} year - 11,525,548

Dua after mone than one (1) year -

= 11,525 840

Terms of koan:

Total loan facilities: Tk, 100 Million,
Interest rate: Interest rate s 12.5% per annum calculated monthly basis variable depending on monay
marked sifuation

Disbursament:

Thae disbursemeant of the koan was made on 05 Decembaer 2015,

Repayment:

The lcan was repaid in 24 (Twenty four) monihly instaliments with 3 [Three) months grace penod and this
Tacility is renewabie for addional financing requirement.

Securities:

I Perscnal Guaranbee of all the Directors of tha borrowing companses Supponed by duly signed personal
" it worth staternent.

il, Becunly chegue covering the limil with the lefier of approach duly signed by authorized person.
Purpase:

For retirement of LIC opened bo impert of eapital machineries.
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Nates to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

30,09

010

Lanka Bangla Finante Limited
i Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 18
Due within ona {1) year 72,442 679 -
Due after more than one (1) year 307,192 457

379,635,138
Terms of loan:

Total loan facliftes: Tk, 40:0.00 million.
Interesq rate: Intevest rate i 13.50% per annum calculabed on monthly basis varable depending on money
mariet situation,

Disbursemant:
The disbursement of the loan was made on 18 August 2018,
Repaymanl:
The loan is repayable in 80 (Sty) menthly instaliments with 05 (8lx) menths grace pefiod.
Securities:
I. Personal guaranies of the Direcions of Bangladesh Steel Re-Roling Mils Limited.

i Subseguent chargehypothecation on el present and future fixed and foating assets of the comparny 1o
b filled or registersd with RISC. along with IGPA (o sell the hypothecaled assels in favor of LBFL.

iii. Corporate Guarantes of H. Akberali & Co. Limited supported by Board Resclution.

iv. Al baasl 100% inswance coverage of the finance amount in favor of LBFL.,

v. 08 ros. of posl dated chegues covering the monthly interest payments and 54 nos of post dabed
cheques covering equal monthly installment amount and 03 nos securily cheques covering iolal

Purpose:

For land development. civil works. electrical works, refurbishment, machine repair and maintenance & ather

cost for expansion of business.

Prirme Bank Limited

in Taka 30 June 2018 30 Jume 2018

Dise within one (1) year 24,798 518 32,720,513

Diise: @fter than 1) yaar - 21,518,407
T4 -] 54 347 920

Terms of loan:

Total loan facilithes: Tk, 2,000 rmillisn.

Interest rate: Inberest rate is 10.25% per annum calculated on monthly basis vanable depanding on maney

market situation.

Disbursamaent:

Disbursemant of the lnan was made on 16 April 2014,

Repayment:

The ican is repayable in 20 (Twenty) monthly instaliments and this facility i$ renewable for additional

financing requinemend.

Securltles:

i Pari-passu 151 charge over axisling fixed assets including registersd morigage change over the project
* land of S82.50 decimals (approc ) with relevant |GFA.

B 1% ranking of parn passu charnge over the balance of exisling ESCROW Atcouwil

. Personal guarantes of the sponsor direciors.

iv. Negative pledge over assets of BSRM Lid till perfection of documentation.

Purpose:

Restructuring of labditsgs thiowgh refinancing of its sham term loan andfor Ioan fom sister concams.

IPOC of Bangladesh Limited

In Taka 30 June 2018 30 June 2018
D within ona (1) year 47,343 082 43,187 041
Due after more than one 1) year ET 292 548 B8 ATT 274

104,636,630 142,044,315
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Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)
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Terms of loan:

Total loan facilitles: Tk, 300 millan

Interest rate: Inberest rale varies between B.50% -13.50% per annum calculaled monthly basis varable
dapending on Mandy Mokl situation.

Disbursement:

Disbursarmént of th loan wirs made on 28 Apdl 2016

Repaymant:

Differant lpans ane created with diferenl payrant schadules undar this facility.

Securities:

i. Comporate guarantes of H. Akberali & Co. Lid.

il. Personal guaraniss of all the spensor direcion of Bangladesh Steal Re-Rallng Mils Limited.
ill, Lien on 30.00,000 dematted sponsor shares of B5AM Sieels Lid (B5L),

iv, 071 (O} Selcufity chinguee for thi enting Tacility amount along with nberesd 10 ba obiaingd

v. Demand promissory nole along with Letier of Conliruation.

Purposs:

Ta maed the working capiial requirement of the business.

3042  12% Convertible Coupon Bond

I Takn 30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Liabdity component 328,872,971 656,585,600
Add: Actrued intenest and prowision for cost of issuing Bond 42 937,029 80207 052
Liees: Irerest payment (42,000,000)  {BS5,B00,000)
Liss: Principal paymsant [330,000,000) (330,000,000}
ﬁm amount . E-E‘EIETIIEH
3012201 12% Convertible Coupon Bond-Liability Component

I Taka A0 Jurne 201189 30 June 2018
Payable!Convertible within 1 yaar - 120972971
Payable afer 1 year - -

& m.ﬂ?!l‘ﬂ?‘l

01202 Dwtalls of the 1% Convertible coupon bond

Comparny obtained approval from BSEC vide nolification rel SEC/CMRRCOIZ008-1831 148dmin'28: cated
2 Oclober 3011 and approved informabicn Memorandum (IM) vide consent lefier red; SEC/CLDE-01201334;
dated 8 January 2014 for Bsuing 20,000 nes. of Bond of Tk, 1000000 each 8 par to instilutonal invesion
through private placement,

Tanure:

Fitew (5) yoars.

Subscription and issue:

15,000 mos. of Bond wene subscribed on 27 Apil 2014 for Tk, 1,500 milkon and issued accong@ingly. Dut of
which 2,300 Hos, bond worth Tk, 230,000,000 is not convertible and 12,700 Hos, valuing 1.270,000,000 is
12% cormvertibla,

Intorest:

interast & 13% poa and payabie cn guarierly bass.

Radamption:

Repayment will commance Trom the end of 2nd Year ie. 2018 except Bond tssued o SABINCO, 88% of the
iotal issue size will b redesmed over 4 years in equal instaliments except for SABINCO. Bonds held by
SABINCD i8 not converible and full amourd will ba repald withoul conversion b ordinary shanes
commencing froen Agrll 2015.

Conversion:

12% of the Bond vaiue except fo the extent held by SABINCO was comverted into ordinary shanes (@ Tk 38
pef share & out of 1ofal bond issued fo investors, Tk, 152,359,874 was converted 1o 4,010,523 MNos.
Orelinasy Shares of Tk, 10 each (ssued at Tk 38) 8 the and of the first year Le. in 2015,

Trading of converted ordinary ahares:

The corveriad ordinary shares becams salaakle for the invesiors after the kack-in persod of 12 menths from
this date of comversian




Notes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

.00

ia

32.00

azm

Securities:

1] Lean on 27,500,000 nos, of shares of BSAM Sieels Limiled cwned by the company in favour of the

trustes [Eastern Bank Lirmibed)

i} Personal guarantes by Mr, Alihussain Akberali, Mr. Zohair Taharali, M. Aameir Alihussain, Mrs. Sabsen

Aameir and Mrs. Tehseen Zohair Taherad.
i) Comporate guarantes by H. Akberall & Co. Limited
i) krevocable genaral power of atiomey 1o sell the shanes,

Congalidated long term Borrowings- non currant porticn

i Taka i Hate 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Banglagesh Sieal Re-Rolling Mills Limaed 30.00 3.871,818,258 5442 341706
BSREM Sieal Mills Limited 1,138,058,168 2 063 094 652
5,009.574,426 6305438361
Defined benefit obligations - Gratuity
Sae sccounting policy in nobe 5017,
in Taks S0 June 2019 30 June 2018
Cpaning batance 196,162,000 157,134,335
Prowision mada duing the year according to actuarial valuation 63,747 428 44 828 170
268,909,428 203,968,505
i made du thia 1,74 BOT 505
ﬂlﬂlu balance ﬂ'l_l_il:l?.ﬂ-?l 196 162 000
Ky assumplions used for actuarial valuation are as below:
‘Rate of escalation in saiary 8.00%
Discount rals B.00%

Tha Company hed an achuanial valuation of its defined benafit obgation (DBO) as on 30 June 2018 which
was valued st Th. 196,162,000, Accordingly the company made the provision o the exient to match the
actuarial valuaticon. Since this ks the firs] time valuation of the DBO there was no acluarial gainoss and the
required amount was charged {0 profit or loss. The valuation was conducted by Z. Hakm & Associabes who is

& nepubed Actuarial & Pension Consultants in Bangladesh.
Consolidated defined benefit obligations - Gratubty

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

i Taka Hote
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited 31.00
BERM Steel Mills Limitad

231907670 1668, 162,000
TaE 121 30,218,387

277 642 BO0 20 378,396

Current tax llability
Ses accounting policy in nols 50,15,
In Taka Hote

30 June 20119 30 June 2018

Bangladesh Steal Re-Falling Mills Limited-HO EFN T

S06.310.048 303,158,788

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited-Kolkata Branch . 465981
306,310,048 303 624 778
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO
I Tk 30 June 2019 30 June 2048
Opening balance 303,158,758 146 BO2 254
Add: Provided for the year 306,310,048 303,158, 788
G040 468 848 450 051,057
A adustment]): Provision for prévious years 38 95T 630 (72,155 315)
48,426 476 7T BG5S TA2
Income tax paid (342,116,428) [74,736,044)
Closing batance 306,310,048 303,158,758
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Hates fo the separate and consclidated financial stalements (continued)

3102 Cument A EXpOREOS

S8 acoounting policy in nole 50.15.
in Taks oo Hotn 30 Jung 2019 30 June 2018
Bangladesh Steel Re-Foling Wls Limied-HO 3200 308,390,048 303,158 708
Bangiadesh Steol Re-Foling Mils Limisd-Kolsis Branch 11,087,272 2,764 671
FAT 397,330 05 53 458
Year wise income tixes assessmant slatus is as follows:
in Taka
Charged!  Adjusted
A e fanarent OperM  (oreditedto  paid during 30 June 2019 Remarks
1 = : F i . Ralerance 1o High Lour
2014 2015-2016 . . . . ToTax Appeliste Tribunal, Dhaka
18 2018-2017 . 2 & #
2006 20182017 : : : AT
2017 2017-2018 . . . . Under hearing o DCT,
2018 2018-2010 303,158,758 2 BA5TEI  34T.116428 Assessment compleled
2016 20192030 - 308310048 (343118428}  (35.808.380) Feturn due by 15 lanusny 3000,
303,158,788 306310048 {303 158,758)  306.310,048
Reconcillation af eMoctive tax rate
2019 _ i
o Rats Taka Riti Taka
§ Profil batore 1ax 7,740,065 550 3,021,534 413
o Tacx using e AREACAEIe tax rate 5%  GBS,016,380 5% 755,060,600
® Taex offect al:
= i) Shava of kel (pralil) of aguly aoccunlod s S4T% (2859, 508,028) -B.94% (245887 110)
=] ) Difference betwien sccourting and fiscal depreciation 0.38% 10,606,747 A8T%  (50.470,7TH)
= -]Gl‘lhﬂrpttmt-m ard payment D% 8938420 0, 54% 4 258 AT
e iv} Inadmissible expenses 141% 52312345 1.70% 51,485,507
w W) Ursealingd foreign curnency iransistion gain oLD0% . 0,00 .
= i) Rebate on export sales 000 [2489,080) 0.20r% & 950, 758
- wii} Unabsorbed depreciation ABE%  (50.413,845) 0.09% 2,858,825
< wiki) Divicdend incomn L98%  (5.320,670) D05% {1,508,653)
> o) Ivestments hmﬂrm invesiess 14.75% 404,168,253 H.71% (2032, E28. 318}
w x) Bangladesh Steel Fo-Roling Mils Lid, (Kolamts Branch L40%  [2.755,T24) 0.14% {4.218,130)
- ) Prior yoae incomw 1ax 1.42% 38957830 2.30%  (72.155,315)
) 876,430,837 242 T84 851
2 32,02.8 Conadlidated curmant bx axpanses
o Sba acoounting policy in note 50.15.
= In Taks Wote 30 Jurse 201930 June 2018
= Eanglagesh Seal He-Foling Mals Limiled 20 FITI9T, 000 305,520, 450
- BSRM Steed Mills Limited 322,511,515 &6, 363 338
= G40 3080805 352 186805
S
E J1L02.b Consolidated prior year tax sxpensesfincoma)
- Sea Becounting policy in nole 50,15
o In Taks Hote 30 Jure 2049 30 Jure 2018
= Eangladesh Steel Re-Roling Mils Limited 202 T 3B357,630  (T2155.318)
a ESRM Steel Mills Limitod £0,758 L
= 35,018,188 (72,155,315
3a Consolidated current tax liability
In Take Nt 30 Jurk 2019 30 Jurwe 208
Bangladesh Sioel Re-Roling Mills Limibed X200 06310048 0D ERA, TR
BSRM Stesd Mills Limited 322,911,518 45,263,336

629,221,661 3450888115
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Notes to the separate and consclidated financial statements {continued)
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34.01 Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling
Ay B

Mills. Limited-HO

W June 2015 30 June 2018

Losgistics Limibed 12,807 841 8,558,001
BSRM Sheal Mille Limited 451,540,753 1,930,525
Gopds & supples 40,380,372 11,368,381
Lok cosd 301,878 575,042
Payabies for sicres and spanes 104,217,919 B0, 485 181
BERM Stepls Limited Z,714,0:55,054 B33, 168,425
BSRM Wires Limited 13,088,404 8,083,238
BSRM Real Estals - =y
3 E78.01 1,043 408 T84
This represenis sncunts payable sgainst supply of raw materals and senices.
3.8 Consolidated lrade payables
n Hote 30 Jump 2019 20 Jumae 2018
{essl ing Mills Limibed M 00 3440380028 1118278207
BSRM Steal Mills Limribad 117,005,608 101,413,581
Less: Intra group slimination { 764 1,138,525
3073930880 1216553 373

35.00 Short term bormowings

hmﬂwﬂwmm-mm

Short e

Hole 30 Jums 019 0 Juma 2018
bomawinga o imum ann&a FEL)
Long term bomosings-current porson 2508 10,052 751

YRS MERTER A

35.01 Short term bommowings
I

H June 2019 0 June 2018

Loan againgl Trust Recsipl (LATR)

Time koan
Bank owerdraft, SO0 and cash

Liability for acoapiad bills for paymment (ABP)
Fcbafing Loan ajains sabes invoice

JABBASZETE 4564384511
ZOTZAZ6883 1615000750
4, T88.479,988 2031 719,43

54,704 16,748,674

cngdit

B

BAMGOIRPNT 9742050798
35.02 Loan against Trust Receigt [LATR)

in T W June 201% ) June 2018

LLimited = 1,613,216
HIBC = 128,058 454
Prime: Bani Limited - 28 565 887
Shahialal lskami Bank Limited = 304 228
Fubali Bank Limaed a9, 580,870 155 553,287
Easipmn Bank Limiled

Ty 10005170

38.83 Time Loan

Taks Mol 30 Jume D01S 30 June 2018
ciling Cimied-HG R 148,
Mmﬂl H&Enﬂﬁ Iills Limitesd-Balkata Branch 11:-@1&5“ 21,218 B4
15,04 Bangladesh Siesl Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO

in Taky 30 Juni 2019 30 June 2018
“Al-Aralah [slams Bank Limited E34TEA BET 865,079,520
HEBC 400,120,208 G046,668 245
Standard Chanered Bank 282 670,530 211,420,803
Shahjalal islami Bank Limied 616,961,059 =
Tha City Bank Limied 160,126,272 e
Jamuna Banik Limibed 86,410,592 .
Habibt Bank Limited 2 180,000,000
Dwich Bangta Bank Limited 2027 458 313
Standard Bank Limited 500,722 222
Prima Bank Lmilad &8 331,857
Indusirial and Infrastructhurs Wﬂ Finance Company Limited 4040, 466 BET

4,803 148,047




Motes to the separate and consofidated financial statements [continued)

35.07.01

Bank overdraft, SO0 and cash credit

in Taka Type 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Agrani Bank Limiled TG Hypo 32,022,411 57,358,743
Agrani Bank Limited CC Fledge 419,841,187 416,286,107
Haiis Bank Limited oD 5,240,685 12,482,718
Jamuna Bank Limited cc 6,866,189 47 534,656
National Bani Limited cC 3,036,876 11,823,776
Pubal Bari Limited cC IS 22T
Pubali Bark Lirited oD 810,218,884 {870,703)
Sonali Bark Limited ot 167,238,974 2014533M
Sonali Bark Limited cC 20,024,241 50,472,947
Standacd Bark Limsted oo 760,968,198 304,880,763
Standard Chartered Bank oD 58,052,688 44,825,904
State Bank of India cC 138,800,376 126,167,309
Trust Bank Limited 0D 31,207,982 115420221
2,072,126,883 _ 1615,000.750
Liability for accepted bills for payment [ABP)
in Taks 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Dhaka Barik Limited 536,634,097 286,008,188
Dutch Bangia Bank Limited 10,495,639 90,211,499
Islami Eark Barglacesh Limited J0,063,169 ST
Mascantie Bank Limited 1TBITAAZ4 201,911,189
NCC Bank Limited 10,107,280 15,534,628
Prime Bank Limited 260,238,459 532605564
Pubali Bank Limed 45,427,761 24,734,965
Stangard Chartered Bank 63,819,517 61,484,130
The City Bank Limited I06,601,668 224060758
United Commercial Bank Limited 98,338.909 223418314
Habits Baré Limited 73,304 704 40,760,728
Bank Alfalah Limiled 6, T93.3T4 -
Eaatern Bank Limited 16,581,088
HSBE 565,368,986
Bark Asia Limited 166,792,892
BRAC Bank Limited 905,989,404
Mational Bank Limied 58,722,276
One Barik Limited 260,415,344
State Bank af India 3,874,346
Sonali Bank Limited 25,848,523
Trust Bank Limited 72832434 -
IFIC Bark Limited * A7B. 418,454
Shahjalal Fkami Bank Limited . 4,750,232
Al-Arafah Islami Bank LimSed . 218,982,890
Commercial Bank cf Ceylon PLC . 196,812,007
AR Bank Limibed - -
4788 AT9,98% 3531715263
Factoring Loan againgl sales invoice
in Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
United Finance Limreted {81,701 8,745,674
{51,701} 8,745,674
Terms and condilions:

i BO% of gross sales invoicebilled amount i paid by discounting sales Fvpice.
i Interes! rate is 9.00% 1o 9.50% per annum Blong with processing and collection feas of 0.20% on the invoice

amount,
Security:

FMWIMﬂmHWWHMﬁMUMMWﬂmmm

(prepent and future).
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Notes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

as5.08

15.00

ar.o0

Lang term bomowings-curment portion

This represent current podion of long term lpans from Anancial institutions which are repayable within next

et months from repaing dabe and congist of as foliows:

fn Takn Mobe 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
D Bank Lisnited - Syndicated tarm loan 30.02 . 1,041
United Commercial Bank Limited- Syndicated term loan 30.03 E12,7594,247 545 802 228
Prime Bark Limited - Syndicated term loan 3004 1,200,000,000  1,200.000,000
Mational Housing Finance and Investments Limited 0,08 . 2,276 658
intemationat Leasing and Financial Ssrvices Limited 30,08 6,135,123
Fargast Finance & Irvestment Limied 0,07 22,228
Jamrna Bank Limited 0,08 11,525,648
Lanka Bangla Finance Limited 30.08 TZAAZETS -
Prieniy Bank Limitad .10 24,798,515 32729513
IPDC of Bangladesh Limited 3014 47,343,082 43167 041
1% Converibie coupan bond 30,12 . 226972 6T1
1,957, 376,523 2210068 751
Consofidated shori term borrowings
in Taks Hobe 30 June 2013 30 June 2018
Bangladesh Steal Re-Rading Mils Limitad 3500 411,406,007 440 11,552,982 548
BSAM Steal Mg Limited 268,743,164, 313 27,541,985 088
BSRM (Hong Kong) Limited 3,782,368 =
36,152,951,121 30,794 968,536
Current accownt with related companbes
In Taka Mote 30 Jume 2018 30 June 2018
BSAM Steals Limited 6,064, 184,395 4871881 384
Karmafully Enginaening Works Limibed N 5,225,000
BOD Steel Limited 5 3,050,000
Burhani Scrap Traders - 4,400,000
Section Steel Indusines Limiled . 150,000
B5SRM Recycling Industries Limsed - 33 858 160
BERM Steel Mils Limited - :
BERM iron & Sigel Co. Limited - -
6,264,184,395 4915172515

Thess balances represent shor berm financial arangement svailed from related companies a3 and when
required bo mesl working capital and inleres! was charged on outstanding balances. All iransactions wene made

through Bccound payes chegues.
Consolidated current account with related companies
i Taks 30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Steel Re-Roling Mils Limiled 6264 184 385 4818172 515
BSRM Steal Mdls Limitad BE0 E48 81T B55, 308 43
BSRM [Hong Kong) Limited 8,469,354 .
Liss. Inira groaup eliminalicn 51 3006 B4
4 4915172 515
Advance against sales
in Takn 30 Jung 2019 30 June 2018
Bangladesh Steal Hl-FII:II-Iu Malla Lenitad-HO 550,450,921 ZB8.616,130
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limiled-Kolkata Brarch - 1,257 483
SSOASORII 90813624

Thase represen advances recaivad from different pariies agains! sabs of finished goods. Goods hane nol baen

dirliverad to them within the reparing dabe.




Notes to the separate and consolidated financial stalements (continued)
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Consolidated advance against sales

s Takn 30 June 2098 30 June 2018
Bangladesh Stedl Re-Roding Mils Limied 550,450,911 200873624
BSFEM Steal Kals Limited 35,013,851 26248 317
BSRM [Hong Kong) Limibed .
Less: Intra group elimination = = -
BB5 484 TT2 H20. 131 Bd
Liabilities for
Sea accounting palicy in noba 50,10,
i Taks Hobi 30 Jume 2019 30 June 1018
Bangladesh ﬁmnlnﬂ Will5. Limild-Hi 38.01 481,268, 645 405554 054
Bangisdesh Steal Fe-Roling Mily Linited-Holkets Brench 2,620,690 3,878,220
483 783 338 408 572 Fhd
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Liméted-HO
in Taka 30 June 2019 30 Juna 2018
Liabikty for foced assels S41. 346 4 033,238
Audil Fesas ET0,000 A4Z2 500
Brokerage and commission 0,082,225 11,857 441
C & F B3l and othars 385,840 858,809
Camiage on sales 158,874,525 121,827,328
Confrations 4,843,300 3,864,168
Kamaphuli Gas Dislnbutsan Co. Limited 13,805,674 13,800,574
Porasar Devalopmant Board for alestricity (Factony) 244 316344 225 050 401
Professional saxpenses 308,500 104,000
Répair and mainbenancs 595,189 124,400
Sallary and Allcwances 13,281,853 4,178,033
Linclaimed Chedgus BEE 117 178,178
Sabes promotisn 6, %B8 072 -
Stores & Spares &T1.748 -
Financial expenses " 17,803,988
Irssurancs Bpanses - 164 457
Printing and Slatioreries 208,336 a7s
WASH - 5,351
Training exparsas - 65,500
Cihers 4,515,581 1,507,223
451,268,648 405694 084
Consclidated labilities for axpenses
in Taka 30 June 2018 30 June 2018
Bangladesh Steel Re-Roling Mills Limited 483,785,334 409,572 284
ESRM Steel Mills Limited 603,030,727 S48.647.906
BERM (Hong Kong) Limibed 1 -] .
1,088,289, 284 B55 520,180
Provision for WPPF and Weltans Fund
See accounting policy in note S0.17.
in Taka Hate 30 June 20119 30 June 2018
Opening balance 115,677,748 67,373,325
Add: Provided during the year |m 3 907 284 115,877,748
Less: Paid during iha year (115,677, T449) {67, 373,325}
murnn balance HIH!‘EH 1-15&??.?49
Provision made during the year for WPFF and Welfare Fund
in Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Prafit bedece tax and WPPF and YWellare Fund 1,773.384,580 2153863721
Canh dividand recaived o inesiment in SEeociabes 1 19 158,501 260

m% Tor WPFF and Waltara Furd
] and Wetlare Fund at 5%

115,677,749

2,313, 554881
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Naotes to the separate and consolidated financial staternants [n-nnu'nuﬂdl

0.

Consolidated provislon for WPPF and Wellare Fund

i1 Taki 30 Juna 2049 30 June 2018
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited 83,997,289 115,677,749
BSRM Steel Mils Limited 100,372,376 83,447 407

194,360,665 209125156

Consolidated contribution to WPPF and Welfare Fund

in Taks 30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited 93,597,289 115677, 748

BERM Stasl Milts Limsad 100,372,376 53,447 407
1555“! 2018 125 158

Other liabilities

See pooounting pobcy in nobe 50.10.

i Taki Hote 30 June 2018 30 June 2018

Bangladesh Seel Re-Rolling Mills Limied-HO 40.01 319,314,401 202,763,510

Bangladesh Stesl Re-Rolling Mills LimfAsd-Kolkata Branch 18,881,422

338,205,823 202.753.510

Bangladesh Stewl Re-Rolling Mills Limited-HO

In Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Secunty Deposit 1,240,000 1,180,000
Fetention Morey 9,703,892 15,004,202
Dividend Payable 2,343,589 2.201.020
IPC gver subscription money payable 787,673 1892873
Inbarest &n inbarcampany loan 200,016,423 173,891,108
Against paid up capital of BSRAM (Hang Keng) Limited 10 10
Dty drawback 94,589,647 =
income Tax Deducted at Source 1,382,370 -
VAT Deducied at scurce 2,166 857 -
Empioyees Provident Fund - 2.524.596

318,314,401 202, 793,610

Income Tax and VAT deducted al souwrcs have subsequently been dapadited ba the Govemment Excheguer.

Consolidated other ilabilities

In Taka s Hole 30 June 2019 A0 June 2018
Bangladesh Sted Re-Roling Mils Limited 40000 338,205.823 202,793 610
BSRM Steel Mills Limited 19,739,556 64,087,012
Less: Intra group eliminaton {10) {10y
ABT 946,368 266,600 612




Motes to the separate and consolidated financial staternents [continued)

41.00 Related party transactions

Dwring the year the Company camied cut @ number of ransactions with related parties In the normal course of
business on an anms’ ength basks, Names of thoss relabed paries, nature of hode ransactions and their cial

value have been set cut in accordance with the Drsclosures

” Mode of | C'0%ing balance (net)
M ' 4 a8 on
N 30 June 2019
BSAM Fong) Lienited 9,459,358 Or.
i Pawer mied 23,537,926 Or.
BSAM Logistics Limited 172,010,247 Dr.
Market price

BSRM Steets Limited negotiated price | g 976,297,623 Cr.
BERM Wires Limited ; 237,014,772 D,
BSRM Stesl Mils Limited _Subsidiary 28,564,885 O |

4200 Contingent labiiities

See accounting policy innobe 50.13.
Centingent liabilities ol the reparting date are a3 Tolowa:

42.01 Bank guarantoe
Ti

30 June 2018 30 June 2018

as a. ¢ ABE,
Depesit by Customs Autharity against claim undesr appaal 552,580 552,880
Cusloms authority 1,887 162 1,887,162
Bureau of Indian Sandard 2,418,000 2,418,000

EEELSN  TABEASE

The above guaraniess have been ssued against 100% cash mangin
42.02 Corporate guarantes

The company has a palicy o exiend corporate guaranies for the Snancial amangements of the sister companies
Al the reporting date, status of such guarantees wens &5 follows:

Malmism Hmét in milllan 30 Juna 2015 30 June 20148
§ Limaed LT Eakelity 0,115 21,315
BSRM Iron and Steel Co, Lid, LiC kabality - 15,420
BERM Wires Limited LG Eabaity A, 100 1,000
H. Akbgral & Co. Limited LiC kabdity 200 200
31,415 37,545

43,03 Ftatus of pending Iiigation with the Valued Added Tax [VAT) authority:

| Current slatiss |
Clamed by VAT Commissionarate Office Bganst|Before Cusloms, Excise and VAT Appelals Tmurhall

aganst|Before Cusioms, Excise and VAT Appellate 1'_r-h.m1|

Tridﬂ?ﬁTufHﬁihrm warghousa regarding sale of| Before Cusicms, Excise and VAT Appeliabe Tribunal l-nrli
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Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

42.04 Status of pending litigation with the Income Tax awthority for dispute with respect to income (ax Hability:
Disputed amounl of tax lability has already been deducied by Income Tax authorty and shown as sdvance

income tax under advances and deposils.

Assessmant year Unit Arnaunt Present status
Panding bators High Coun Division of Supreme Coun bt
2008-2010 S 2.330,000 |heanng B3 the company sppealed againgl the onder of
Appellate Tribunal
2,320,000
43.00 Capital expenditure commitment
The company has ne capiiad expenditune commitmant at tha reporing dabe,
£4.00 Production capacity
30 June 2015 30 Junee 2018
{I) M5 product- finlshed
instadied Capacity (In M.Ten) B40, 000 540,000
Produsction [In MLT ﬂ:ll‘llﬂ' 851,748
Capacity Eéqﬁ mui T %
(1) S bt
:gndl:rpuﬂy.rl:ln M. Ton) 150,000 150,000
uction [in ) 174 6857 150,331
~, T —
4500 Employoes
A Taka 30 Jume 2019 30 Juma 2018
Mumbsr of employaes wihoss Balary Was Delcw TR, 5000 - -
Mumber of employees whose salary was above T 3000 878 §22
ara g22
The abewe mertioned rumber of employess represent employees working al the compary (e, Parent
Compary) anly.
46.00 Operating lease
Chperating bease rentals as per IAS 17; Leases ane payatie as folows |
In Taka 30 June 2018 30 Jure 2048
Wit one year r ;
Within 2 1o § years 95,568, 206 33262848

Aifter & yoars “:WEHJ B41.230

47.00 Financial summary of Kolkata Branch office on 30 June, 2019 as per audited financial statements:

An IR 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Mesrcurment assels 2,184,851 1,485,554
CLETent aisats 203,538,795 114,937,320
TI:H:IIIII& 208,721,540 110, 422, 504
Head Office Account 21,043,350 27,348, 345
Retained eamings 16,535,743 7,750,605
P 37,980,133 00,
Mes-curment liabilities BT, B67,064 17,158 634
Current linbilifies £0,07 3, 540 B4, 183,711
Total llabdiities 167,741,813 81,532 544
Total Equity & Liabilities 308,721,646 TG 422 054
Revanue 1,245,928.636 447,017 Ba2
Expenses {1.236,742,858) (433 673,801)
Profit for the year 5,185,748 13 344,201

4800 Events After the Reparting Period

() &% per decision of 413th Meeting of Board of Directors, hald on 16 September 2015, BSRM Stel Mills Limited
{BEML-subsidiary) B geing to ba manged with ils parent Bangladesh Steel Re-Folling Mills Limited (the company)
subject io approvals from Homorable High Courl Division of the Suprerme Courl of Bangladesh snd concermed
requiatary sulhorities alang with the approval of the sharsholders al Annual General Maeting (AGM).

The Board of Directors of Bangladesh Stesl Re-Rofing Mills Limited, In Bz 412th meeting held on 18 Seplamber
2019, has declared 25% cash dividend [Tk, 2.5) per qualfying ordinary share for e year ended 30 June 2019,



Hotes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

48.00

4901

Fimancial risk management

International Financial Reporting Standard IFRS T7- Financial Instruments: Disclosures - requires disclosure of
infarmation relating 1o balh recogrized and unrecognized Fnancial instruments, their sigrficance and pedarmance,
accounting policies. terms and conditions, net fair values and risk information- the Group's policies Tor contraling riska
and QEposUnEs,

The group and the company managpement has overall respenaibility for the establishemant and cversight of the group
and the Company's risk managemaent framarwork. The management policies are established to identify and analyze
this fiaks faced by e group and the Comparny 1o st appropriale risk Bmits and controls and to monor risks and
adherence o limit. Risk management policies, procedures and sysiérms afe rendiwsd regularty O rafssl changas in
markel conditions and the company's activiies, The group and the Company has exposune to the following risks from
ik use of financial nsbnimems;

a) Credit rish

b} Liquidity risk

<l Mawket righ

Cradit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss 1o the group if & customer or counterparty 1o a financial instrument fals o meel
ity contractual obligations. and anees principally from the group's receivables and investments.

Management has a credil policy in place and the exposune o oredit fisk s monibred on 86 GNGoIng basis.

In menioring credt risk, debiors are grouped according i their sk profile, i.e. their legal status, financial condition,
ageing profile sle. Accounts receivable are relatied b sale of sieals (M5 Rod and allied products)

The maximaum saposurs 1o credit risk s represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of
financial postion.

a] Exposurs fo crodit sk
The canrying amount of financal assets represents the maximum cnedit exposure. The maxdmum eaposure fo credit
risk AL Wi reporting dabs was:

i1 Taka Mot 30 Jure 201D 30 Jurse 2018

Imvestment in radeable securities 2202 582,176 53523
Irvestment in ron-bradable shares 2102 41,060,304 1,000,300
Irvasbmants i FDRa (Shoet term & kng bem) T45 453,851 E21.481 469
Agdvances and deposits ] 2,181,266 067 1,983 627 504
Trade and other nscernablies 24 3,570,813,232 2 358 102 350
Duw from sister companies 25 985,977,512 1,837 585 558
Cash ai bank 2?.@ Elmg MIDHJEB

7,750,923 810 8. 740, 208 433

a.1) Consofidated exposure to credit risk
Tha carmying amount of nancial assels represents the madmum credd exposune, The maximum exposure b credit

risk af the reporting date was:
I Taka 30 June 2019 30 Junp 2018
Investment in iradeable securities 582,176 353,523
Investment in non-tradable shares 1,000,300 1.00:, 300
Investments in FDEs [(Shan temrm & long lerm) ZAT1. 700,312 1,538,401, 950
Advances and deposils §.542.012,072 4350375, 414
Trade and ather reckivablgd T.515,185 284 5,194 283126
Dug from Sister companses B,07T5 465,637 3,235.821.372
Cash at bank 285,251,964 114027, 756
Eilil‘rlﬂl HIEEH?J.“-'I
b} Ageing of trade recolvables
Hat yei dus 1,872,137 060 &85,811,787
Dwes within 3 months aTT 638.8TE 208 438 850

Dwes guer 3 months bud less than § months - 241,478 147,040,570
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MNodes to the separate and congolidated financial statements (continwed)

b.1) Ageing of consolidated trade recelvables

Ml el dus 2,173,556, 717 1,351, 295,157
s within 3 monthe 4,328,754, 496 480,068 385
Dwes gvar 3 months bud less than & menthe 300,212,870 235,015 528
D gvll § maantha. | A5 T4 530

5001040 1
7.007,546,003 8193143601

49,02 Liquidity risk

Licquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounber difficully in maeting the cbligations associated with its
fimancial liabdities thad are setthed by delvering cash or cfher financial assets, The Company's approach fo managing
liquiddity iz bo ensure, as far a8 poasible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meat 25 Eabilities when du, under
bath nermal and stressed condiions, without incuring unaccepiable losses or risking damage to the Company's
reputation. Typically, thea Company snsures thal it has sufficiend cash and cash equivalents bo meet expected
operational expenses, including financial obligations through preparation of the cash flow forecast, based on lima lne
of payment of financial cbbgatons and accerdingly arrange for sufficlent Bquidityfund to make the expected payments
within dus dates. Moregwer, the Company has shor berm credst faciities with scheduled commiercial banks i ensure
paymant of cbligation in the event thad there is insufficient cash bo makes the required panyment. The negueremaen) 5
dibermingd in advancs through cash flow projecticns and credd Enes wilh banks ars nagotisbed sceordngly.

49,02.01 Exposure to Liquidity risk
The tollowings ane the contraciual matunties of financial liabilbes:

g Iy Taka AL 30 June 2049
5 Contractual cash flows
& Non-derivative Garrying Within 12 More than §
= financial Habilitios amount months 2 1o § yoars yaars Total
oD
; Long lerm hean 5. BZB 204 781 1,557 3TAE23 3871516288 . 5,828,894,781
o Dafimed banelit 231,907,679 - - 231,907 579 231,907 679
2 chigations - Gratusy
= Trade payables 3440,380,026  3,440,380,026 . 3,440,380,026
= Shart term Gabilites 9448,620,517  9,443528,917 . . 0,448 628,917
= Liabikties for pxpenses 483,780,338 483, TED, 338 = - 483 TR IR
> Provisicn bar WPFF 83,057,209 03,007,280 - . 93,597,288
= and Vailare Fund
= Cther liabiities 336205823 338,205.82) - . E,%g%_
S 19,065,801,853 16.762,370,096  3,871,516,250 231, WT,679__ 19,865,803
9 i Tarka At 30 June X018
5 Contractual cash flows
= Man-derivative Carrying Within 12 More than &
= financial liabilities Fmgant months 2to § yoars yoars Total
© Leng berm kaan TES2 436488 2210082781 5442343700 ¥ 7552 435 455
= Dafinad tarafi 196,152,000 . . 166,162,000 196,162,000
& obligations - Gratuity
- Trade payables 1116270307 1,116,279 307 3 . 1.118,279,307
ES Shoet teem Rabdilies 9,742 889,730 9742889, 798 = - 8,742 B89, TO8
= Ligkdlitiag for axpanias 404,572 264 405572284 - . 408,572,204
= Provisian fof WPPF 115,677,748 115,677,749 . . 115677743
= and Weare Fund

Other Eabilites 200,783 810 202 783 610 u - 02,753,510

19.435,811.207  13,797.305.459 £ 347 343,709 196162000 19435811207




MNotes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

458 0 Consolidated exposwne 1o Liguidity riak
The followings are the contracthual maturities of inancial kakilities:

A Taka AL 30 June 2018
Contraciual cash flows
Mon-darivative Carrying Within 12 Maore than §
financial liabilites amount months 2o 5 years YRars Total
Liag bérm laan BERD 262442 I ETOEET V16 5009574428 . 8,689, 262,141
Dufined benefil 27T B42,EO0
obligations - Gratuity 277 42 BO0 2 27T 642,800
Trade payakias 3073, 930,880  3,073,920,880 3,073,930,880
St e liagnilites 24408 481,037  34,469.481,017 14, 469,481,037
Liakdities for gupanses 1,088,289, 284 1,088,289 284 1,088,289, 284
Provision far WPPF 104,360,665
and ‘Weifare Fund 184,369 665 184,368 585 —
liabities 357,945,369 157,045,360 - - ,
38,150,671,177  42,863,703,951  5,009.574,426 TT7.642,800  48,180,821.177
in Taka At 30 June 2018
Contractual cash flows
Non-derivative Carrying Withim 12 Maora than 5
financial liabilities amourit months 1t § years years Total
Leng berrm loan 12,237 840,308  36THELTTIE  B.558,152 558 - 12,237 540,304
Defined benedfil 278,378,395 - - 228,378,396 228,378,396
blicsations - Grahuil
Trade payables 1.216,563,273 1,216.553,373 - 1,216,553,373
Shart lerm liabiities 34 4TI DE3405 4TI 263405 34,473 263,406
Liabiities for expenses 1,088,289 784 1088280 284 1,088 2865 264
Prowision for WPPF 208,125,156 209,125,158 209,125.156
and ‘Wellare Fund
Othar liabdities 266 AR0 612 266 880 B2 266 80612
49 718.330.531 wj_'m B5B, 152, saa 226,378.356 45,718, 330.531
Mariot risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, will affect the Company's income
of e valse of ds haldings of financial ingtruments. The objecsve of marked risk management is 1o manage and
conbod market risk axposures within acoeptable paramesters, while oplimezing the nebam,

Currency risk exposure and s managorment

The group and the company is exposed o cuerency risk on sales, purchases, borrowings and payables that are
dencminaled in & curency ciher than the functional curmencies of the company. To manage this exposure, the
company has adopled diresl sk reduchion methods based on malching receipts snd paymenis on assels and
Eabiktnes,

The group and the Campany is sxposed to forsign curency risk relating 1o purchases and cther Iraneactions which
are dencminabed in foreign curencies. A5 at 30 June 2019, the group and the Company was exposed 1o foreign
currendy fisk in respect of Grancial liabiites denominabed in tha following cumencies:

Exposure to currency risk Ger EUBD usD Taka

N 3913

Fareign cymency denominated aipats:

Cash and cash aquivalents 420 181 3,191,938 270,578,242

Short barm Evestment ) - 2,915,260 247,068,249

Trade and other recenables = - 1,434 GER 121,5TR,T8T
420 161 7,541,756 £19,228 188

Eoresn currenty genominglad Habaley

Liability for accepted bils for paymant . - 56,501,239 79,589

. . = 239 4, TEEATO SRS

430 161 {48,950 487)  [(4,140,254,701)
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Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

Exposure to currensy risk cap EURD Lan Taka

30 Jung 2018

Eareign cumrency denominabed assels:

Cash and cash equivalents 420 161 1658 355 143,574,236

Trade and other receivables . - 4 40,813,842
420 161 y'ﬁ':% 184, 358,078

E : : Tore—

Liabikty for accepled bils for panment - - 34 854,503 2831 718,283

[ABF)

- - MEWP03 2931715293
Mt axpasie 430 181 (32,813.544)  (2.747,331.215)

The folowng significamt exchange rate is apphed during the year.
30 June 2019 30 Jume 2018

US dollar BT B4 50
EURD 97.76 99.31
GBP 108.95 11261

Faenailivity analysis

& reascnably possible strengiheningiweakening of forsign currencies againal the Bangladash Taka at the reparting
dabe would have affected the measwement of financial instruments denaminated in a fareign currency and afected
equity and profit or loss by the amourds shown below. The analysis assumes thal al other vasiables, in particular
irferest rabes, remdin constan and ignores ary npact of forecast sales and purchases,

I Taka 20 Juna 2019
Profit of loss Equity- not of tax
Srengtbening  Wieakening Hrecgihaning WaBREnng

RS0 (2% mowamant) (82,986 287T) 82,986, 287 (62.239,T15) 62,239,715

EURD (2% mcvermsn) 314 {34 235 {238)

GEP [2% movemant) g14 {314} 2] (688}

i Taka 30 Juni 2018
- Prafit or loss Equity-netoftax

Sirengthaning Waakaning i

USD (2% reverment) (54,547 884) 54,047,889 (41.210,917) 41,210,917

ELIRD (2% maverment) 114 {319) 239 [2349)

GEP (2% movenment) i) {2} Tod 7o)

Consolidated exposwre o gurrency rigk Gae EURG 1k 1e] Taka

30 Jung TOA9

Forsi ; _—

Cash and cash equivalents 420 161 3,210,343 272,136,008

Shor tarm nvesiment a s 2,915,260 247 &8, 249

Trace and other receiabies - 5 1,632,928 138,390,383

e 270 161 7,758 528 657,596,640

Foaiign currancy Senpmingdmd labiitiss:

Liability for accepbed bills for payrment & 539,454 264,243,235 22658062538

Syndicate loan - = 10,909,091 24,545 455
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. 519,434 277,152,326 21.582.607.991
Hied expodung 1z 33,645 [259,503,T08) [22.025,011,353)




Notes 1o the separale and consolidated financial statements (continued)

Consolidated exposung to CUPency riak GBP EURD usp Taka
F0 beng 2018
Fores . inaied ;
Cash and cash equivalents 420 161 1,700,678 143,707 430
Trade and other receivables - . 483,004 40,813,842
420 161 2183 882 184 BOT.272
Fore: : naied isbRver:
Liabdity for accepled biks for payment - 311,506 193,220,886 18,358,977 608
LABRY
Syndicats loan n - 18,181,818 1,535 383638
= 311,506 211402684 17895341 246
Nel exposure 420 (311.745)  (208.218.808) (17.710.739.574)
Thir fpllowing significant axchangs rate is applied during tha year:
30 June 2018 30 June 2018
US doltar B4.75 B4.50
EURD &T.TE 5.3
Gee 108,95 11261
Sensitivity analysis

A easonably possible strengthening (weakening) of foreign cumencies against the Bangladesh Taka at the reporting
date would have affected the measurement of financial instruments dencminated in a foresgn curency and atfecied
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. The analysis assumes that all ofher variabies, in parscular

inGeresL FEleE, FEM3n CONStant and ignoms any impact of erecas 3ales and purchases.

in Taka 30 Junas 2019
Prafit or loss Equity- meat of tax
siengghening  Negkaning  Ziengihaning Wpakening
LSD (3% maovemaent) (486,623 482)  456,622.452 (342 468,830 342 486,839
EURD {F% mowement) [1,878,654) 1,878,654 {1,408,990) 1,408,920
GEP (2% maveman) 914 (914} BRE [BE6)
I Taka 30 June 2018
Profit or loss — Equity-netoftax
sirengihening Weakaning strengihning Weakening
LS (% movamant) (353.579.776) 353579776 (265, 184 BX) 265, 184 B32
EURO (2% mowamant) (635 570) 835,570 {476,877 AT BTT
GBP (2% movemant) S (546) TOE {709}

45,03.02 Transaction rsk
Transaction risk ia Bhe risk Bhal the company will incur exchange lcsses when the acoounting results are ranslabed
inile tha hame currency.

49,0303 Econamic risk
Economic risk refers b the efect of sxchange rabs movements on the inlematonal compatitivensss of the compary.

49.03.04 Interest risk

inberest rabe risk anses from movement in interes? rabes. The company needs bo manage inberest rabes fmk &0 a3 10 ba
akda 1o re-pay debls &s they fall dus and o minimize the risks sumounding interest payments and receipks.
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Mofes o the separate and comgolidated financial staterments (continwed)

Exposure 1o interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the company’s interes!: bearing financial insbruments as reported o the management of the
company & as follews.

Flaad- rate instrumants

in Taka 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Financial assels 1,734 461,363 2,150.441,087
Financial liabilites [15,277,523,698) (17355 3265 257)

17 25 25
113|E|EEH! {15235 885 1900
Variable- rate instrumaents

Financial assels &
Financial iabilites =

Consolidated axposure to intorest rate risk
The ireres! rate profile of the compary's interest- baaring inancial instrurnents as repaned 1o the management of the
coampany is as follows,
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Fixed- rato instruments

I Taks Amaunt Ampunt

Financial assets 10,547, 165,949 5174 22030

[Financial katslities (43,188,743,479) (46,711,103,709)
11,577, 41 545 RTE]

Wariable- rate instrumants

Financial assets . -

Financial liabfities . -
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Notes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

£0.00

Summary of significant accounting policles

The specific accounting policies selected and applied by the compary’s management for ssgraficant
trangactions and events that have matedal offect within the framewerk of LAS-1 “Presentation of Financial
Statemenis’, in preparation and preseniation of finencial stalements have been consisbently applhed
throughout thee year and were also consistant with these used in eariar years, excepl athensiss stabed.

For a proper understanding of the financial stabements, these accounting policies are sef cut below in one
place as prascribed by the LAS.1 "Presentation of Financial Statemerds’. The recommendations of LAS-1
redating to the format of financial siatements were also taken into full consideration for fair presentation.

Sed out below & an index of the signilicant sceounting policies, the defails of which are available on the
following:

5001  Basis of consolidation and disclosure of interest in cther entities
5002 Consistency

5003  Property, Plant and Equipman

5004  Capital Werk-In-Pregress

5005  Inangible Assats

5006 Irvenbories

5007  Transactions in Foraign Cumencies

5008  Investment in subsidiary and associate

5008 Financigl Assats

5010  Financial Liakdites

%011 Impairment

%012  Cash Flow Stabement

5013  Provisions, Contingent Liabillies and Contingend Assels
5014  Barowing Cosls

50015  Taxation

5018  Share Capital

5017 Employes Banalis

5018  Revenue Recogniion
5018  Finance Income and Costs

5020  Othaer Oparating Incoms

5021  Eamings Per Shame (EFS)

5022  Duty Dvawback

5023 Measurement of Fair Values

5024  Events After the Repoeting Period
5025 Leases

5036  Segment Repoeting

5027 Slandands swed but not yet adepted

Basis of consolidation and disclosure of Interest in other entities

Subsidiary is an enterprise controfied by the parent entity. Control exisls when an irnvestor i exposed, or has
fights, 1o varable refurns from s invelvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
throwgh s power over the invesies, The financial stalements of subsidiary are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the dade that control commencas until the date that conibrol ceases. Tha consolidated
financial stalements have bean prépaned in accordance with IFRS 10 *Consolidated Financial Statemaents”.

BSML s & subsideary compary of BESRM Limited. The Company has made 52, 87% (Direct investiment 44, 973%
and indirec] investment 07 61%) equity irvestment in this subsidiary. The company is axposed 1o and has
fights, 1o variable rétums from the subsidiary and also has the ability 1o affect ihose retums through its power
over BSML

The Financial Statements of the subsidiary company are incorporated on a line by line basis and the
investment held by the parent i eliminabed against the comesponding shane capital of subsidiary in the
consolidated financial siglements. The accounting pelicies of subsidiary hawve been changed when it is
necessary o align hem with he policies adopted by BSRM Limited (Panent antity).

Tha group eliminabes inra-group assets and Eebilides, equity, incoms, mmmmmm
transaclions betwean enlities of the group (profs or lostes resulling from inbra-g

recognized in assets, such as inventory and fixed assels, are eliminated in full),
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Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)
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E0.02

50.03.0:2

50.03.03

Hon-contrelling Interests

The group presents non-conkrolling Interests in its consolidated statement of finandial position wathin equity,
saparafaly from the equity of the cemers of the parent

The group attribuies the profl or loss and each companent of other comprehensive income o the ceners of

the parent and 1o the non-contralling inlerests. The proportion aliocaled to the parent and non-controling
inlenests ané detefmined on the basis of present ownership inlenasts.

Consistency

Uvilets alfienwiss slated, he accounting policies and methods of computation used in preparation of Financial
Stalements for ihe periodiyear are consistenl wilh those polickes and methods adopled in preparing the
Financial Siasterments for the previous year,

Property. Plant and Equipmant

Recognition and Measuremant

Properiy, Plant and Equipment are stabed at cosi less accumulabed depreciation excepl
gevelzpment Bnd Faclory Bulding which ame camied at revalued amount. being far values
revaluation less subsequent accumulaled depreciation and subsegquent impaimmend losses, if

any,
Cesd includes expenddures that are directly stiribulable to the acquisiion of an assed. The
condtructed | installed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other
atiribuiable io bringing the assel 1o the working condtion for its intended use and the cost of dismanting a
remaoving an flem and resiceing the sie on which they are located.

VWhen paris of an item of Propery, Fiant and Equipment have different useful Bves, they ane acoounted far as
saparate ilems (major components) of Proparty, Plant and Equipmant

Subseguent Cosls

The cost of replacing pan of an fem of Property, Flant and Equipment s recognized in the camying amourd of
the item, if it is probable that the future benef emboded within the pan wil fiow 1o the companry and its cast
can be measured reliably. The costs of the day io day servicing of Propery, Plant and Equpment are
recognized in profit and loss s incumed.

Dapraciation

Land is hald on & freshold basls and Is not depreciated considedng the wnlimited life. In respect of all other
propedty, plant and eguipment, depreciation s recognized in staterent of profit of loks and other
comprehensive incoma on straight line methed over the estmaled useful lives of property, planl and
equipment.

Dwepreciation is charged on addition when § is ready for use and no depreciation is charged in the month of
disposal. The depreciation meihod used reflects ihe pattern in which the assat's esconomic benefits are
consumed by the enbly. The depreciation charge for the year is recognized as an expenas unless i is
included in the eammying amount of ancther sssel.

The principal annual rates and usedul ives under siraight line method were as follows:

5
4

g
s

%
14

Category of Assats Usaful lives (yoars) Bates
Flant and Machinary T-25 4% « 15%
Molor Vehicle 815 836 - 16%
Furnitura and Fixtures & 2%
Office Equapmant 5 20%
Factory Buldings 20 54
Foads and Pavements 20 5%
Campuber & IT equipment 5 20%

Depreciaton methods, usaful lives and resbidual valuves are reassessed at the reporing dates.

Upan refirement of assets, the cost and relaled accumulsied depreciabion ane -n-m-.mdfrmm-m:m
and resuling gain or loss is charged o credited 1o siatemant of profit or loss and other comprehensive
incoma,




Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

5000304 Non-current Assel Hald for Sake

50.04

50.08
50.05.01

£0.05.02

Mon-current assats that are highly probable to be recoversd primarily through sale rather ithan through
continuing use are classifed as held for sate. Immediately before classification as held for sale the assets are
remeatured in accordance with the company's accounting policies. Thereafter, the asssts are ganeraly
measured &l the lewar of their camying amcunt and fair value less costs 1o sell. Impairment koasas on initial
classification as held for sala are recognized to revaluation resene 10 the edent of revalustion surplus. in
excess of revaluation sunplus and subsequeni gains or losses on remeasurement ane récognided in prafit o
koes. Gains ara nod recognized in excess of any cumulative impairment loss.

If eniteria for an 8ssel to be classified a3 held for sale are no longer met, then the assel or daposal group
ceases 13 e held for sale.

I this case, the assed of daposal group should be valued at the lower of the camying amounl Bbedons the aesed

of desposal group was classéfied s hald for sabe (a5 adjusted for any subsequent depresiation, amorizabon,
of renvaluation) and its recoverable amouni el the date of the decision not to sell,

Capital Work-ln-Frogress

Propay, Plant and Eguipmeni under constructioniacquisition is accounted for and measwed at cosl a8
capital work-in-progress until construction/acguisiticn ks completed and it is ready for use.

Intanglble Assats

Recognition and measurement

Intamgible Assats thal are acquired by e company and have finite useful lives are measured al cosl less
accumulated amodization and accumulaled impaiment losses, if any. Intangible Assels aré recognized whean
all ihe conditions for recognition as per |AS 36: "Intangible Assets” are mel, The cost of an intangible asset
compreisas its purchase price and any directly atributable cost of preparing the asset for its intended wse.

Subsequent Costs

Subseguan expenditure is capiplized only whan it increases the fulune economit benefits embadied in the
specific assel 1o which it relates. Al sther expenditues ane reccgrized in prolit of loss as incumed

Amortization

Amortizabon IS recognized in profil of lass on & strasghl line basis ovar the estimated useful lives of iMangibla
assets, from the date that they ane svailable for use. The estimated usaful Bves and rates of amortization ane
a5 Tollows:

Category of Assets
Oracle ¢85 software 10 years

Hature of imventories
Imvenbories comprise Fas Malemals (Billets and Melting Scrap), Packing Materials, Consumable Stores, Fuel
and Lubrdcants & Finished Goods (M3 Roda/Bllats) elc.

Valuation of the inventories

Inventories are measured al lower of cost and el realizabie value. The cosl of invenicries inciudes
expanditure incurred in acquiring these inventories and bringing them bo their existing location and condition in
accondance with 1AS-2 “Inventones”,

Cateqory. Valuation

Fimighed Goods Finished goods are valued at cosl of net realizable value whichever I8 iowar.
Farw Matenials Riaw matenals ane valued af enst or net realizable value whichever is lower,
Stane bems Based on weighted average medhod (Subject fo impaiment review).

Weighted average cost method has been used 1o debermine thi cost of inventones.
Transactbons in Forebgn Currencies

Forelgn curmency transactions are recorded at the applicable rates of exchange ruling on the dabe of
iransactions. Monelary sssets & kabdities, if any. denominated in foreign cumencies al the Sistement of
Financial Position date ane ransiabed at the applicable rales of exchangs nding at that date and the nelated
axchange differences are recognized as finance income or cost in tha Statement of Profit or Loss and Oiher
Camprahensive Incoma respectively
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Motes to the separate and consclidated financial statements (continued)
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50.09.03

Investment In subsidiary and assoclate

Investment In subsidiary

The company's imvesiment in subsidiary is sccounied for in the separate Financial Siatements as per 145 27 °
Separate Financial Statements’ using the Equity Method in accordance with 1AS 38: “Investmend in Associales
& Joint Ventwres'. Invesiment in a subsidiary is inSially recognized sl cost, and the carying amound is
increased of decreased o recognize the investors share of the profil or loss of the irvesise after the date of
acquisition. The inveslors share of inveslee's prof of loss is recognized in the imesiors profit of loss.
Adjustment afies the date of scquisibon to the camying amount has been made for changes in the invesior's
proportionats inberest i the investes that ansing from the revaluation of property, plant & equipment and from
foreign currency iransiation differences. The Imvestor's share of those changes is recognized in olhes
comprehensive income of the invesior,

The sxcess of company's share of et assets’ value over cost of investment is recognized in profit o loss as
per prowision of LAS-24.

Investmaent in Assoclate

The company™s irvesiment in associates is accounted for in the Financisd Statemaents using the Equity Method
in accordance with LAS 28: "iwestment in Asscciates & Joint Ventures', Significant infuence gver an investes
{associate) BERM Steel Mils Limited is presumesd to exist in accordance with LAS 28 5-28.9. Investman in an
assaciate is initially recogrized at cost, and the carmying amourt is increased of decreased to recognize the
investor's shang of the profit or loss of the invesiese after the dabe of acquisition. The invesior's share of
investee’s profif or loss is recognized in the investor's profit or loss. Adjustiment afber the dabe of scquisilion 1o
i carrying amount has been made for changes in the imesiors proportionaile mberest in the investes thal
arising from the revaluation of propenty, plant & equipment and from Toreign curmancy iranslation differences.
The irvestor's share of those changes is recognized in olher comprehansive ncome of the meslo.

The excess of company's share of net assels’ value of associale cwer cosd of investment is recognized in
prodit o loss 85 share of associate’s profil or loss during acquisition period as per provision of 1AS-24.
Financlal Assets

The group recognizes and measwes financial assets as per IFAS 9.

The group initially recognizes lcans and receivables and deposils on the date that they ane onginabed. All
pther financial assets ane recognized initially on the racde dats, which is Ma date 1 Jroup BBComas 8 pary 1o
thi contractual provisions of the instrument.

The group derecognizes a financial assel when the conbrachual rights bo the cash Rows from the astel axpira,
of It transfers the rights to receive the contractial cash flows on the financiad asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of cwnership of the Bnancial asset are ransfemed

Fimancial assels include Short Term Investments; Trade and Other Recevables, Advances, Deposils and
Prepayments; Loan b Related Comparses and Cash and Bank balantes el

Trade and Other Recahvables

Trade amnd obher receivables are indially recognized al cost which is the fair value of the consideration ghaen in
resurm. Afler initial recognition, these are carmied at cost less impairment losses, if any, due to un-collectability
ol any amount B0 recognized.

Provisions for bad or doubtful debts are shown in ciher Babdities. Provision for doubtful debls is made based
on the company policy, Bad debts are writhen off considering the status of indnidual deblors.

Advances, Deposits and Prepaymoents
Mmmwmum.wmmmmmﬂwmmﬁmm
afustments of charges to ociber scoound heads such as Propesty, Plant and Equipment, bnvenfory of
Expenses,

Deposits ane measured at payment value

Prepayments ane initially méasured at cost ARer initial recognilion, prepayments are camed at oosl less
charges to profit or loss.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together wath shor- Fisghity
Equid invesiments thal are readily convenible io & knoan amount of cash, and that ame subject to an
msignificant risk of changes in vakue.




Notes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

S0.10.01

50.10.02

§0,10.03

50.11.04

£0.11.02

50.13

Financial Liabilities

The group recagrizes all Bnancial kabdites on the irade date which is the dabe the group becomes & party io
the eontractual provisions of Be instrument The group defecopnizes a financial liability when s conbraciusl
obligations areé dischanged, cancelled of expired Financial ligbilities comprisa Trade Credicrs and other
financial obligations.

Trade and Other Payables

The group recegnizes a financial Babdity when its eontrachual obligations arising from past evenls ase certain
and ihe seflemant of whech is expecied to resull in an cutfiow from the company of resowrces embodying
ecanamic benefits.

12% Convertible coupon bond

These are iniially recognized al cost which s the fair valwa. After initial recognition thesa are carmed al
amortized cost. The equity companent of ihe Canvertibhe Bond is recognized as per LAS 32,

Other |Eablities

Other Habilties represenis the amounis due io varous parties for recehving services. These are initially
recognized at cost which is the fair value. After intial recognition these ane carred at amonized cost
Impairment

Financial Assois

Financial assets are mpaired i objective evidence ndicabes that a lods event has otcumed afer initsal
recognition of the assels and thal the loss evend had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of
thad esseds that can be estimated refiably.

Financial assets nol classified 88 fair valee through profit or boss, loans, receivables and investment in an

accounted irvesise are assessed al each regoding date o daetermine whether there is objective
gvidence thal it is impaired. A financial assel i impaired i cbjective evidence indicales that a loss even has
eecuTed afer the initial recognition of the assel. and thal the loss event had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably,

MWon Financial Assols

The camying amounts of the groug's non-financial assets, other than inweniores and deferred ftax assels, are
revienwed &l sach reporing date io delesmine whether there is any indication of mpairment. i any swch
indication exists then the recowerable amouni of the asset i estimated, An impairment loss |s recognized if

the carrying amouwnt of an asset or its related cash-generating unit (CGU) axceeds its estmated recoverabie
ameunt,

Cash Flow Statemant

Staternant of Cash Flows is prepared in accordance with LAS T (Cash Flow Statement] and the cash fiow from
operating activities have been presented under direct methad,

Frovisions, Contingent Liabllities and Contingent Assels

& provision is recognized in the Statement of Financial Position when the group has a legal of contractual
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outficw of economic benefits will be required o
saltle the obligation and a reliable estmate can be made of the amount of the cbiigation. Contingancies
anising from claims, liigations, assessments, fine, panallies . are recorded when it is probable thal a liability
has been incurmed and the amount can be reasonably estimated, Conlingent assets are nol recognized in the
financial siatemends.

Borrowing Costs

Interesi and oiher codts incurmed by the company in connection with tha bomesing of funds are recognized as
expense in the perod in which they are incured, unless such bomowing cosl nelales o acgquisition |
consiruclion of assels in progress thal ane capitalized as per LAS 23 "Bodrowing Costs®. Bomowing cost
incured against ican for BMRE project and interest on 12% Convertible coupen bond hawve been capiaiized
ureder effective interest rate mathod.
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Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

o
—
o
~
=)
o
w
=
>
el
=
o
=
w
=
=
w
0~
<
w
>
w
T
—
o
o
[,
[%)
]
=<
o
=
<
=
[T
]
=
o~
o
o
w
o
«»
o
o
=
=
=
<

5015
B0.16.01

£0.16.02

50.16

5047

B0.17.01

B0AT.02

50.17.03

Taxation

Currant Tax

The growp and the company afe mantaining provision for taxation using rabes enacied at the reporting date as
por Income Tax Ordinance. 1884, The applcable rate is 25% for the company and cumantly the tax rade
applicable for BSML (subsidiany) is 0.10% which is the minimum tax ,

Dwefarrad Tax

Deferred tax liabilities are the ameunt of income taxes payable in the fulure penods in respect of laxable
temporany differences. Defered tax assets ane the amount of mcome laxes recoverable in future parkads in
respect of deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax assets and Eabifithes are recognized for the future
fax consequences of timing differences ansing batween the camying values of Bssats, kEabdites, income and
expenditung and their respective tax bases, Deferred tax assels and Bablites are maatured using tax rales
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the Statement of Financial Position date. The
impacl of changes on the sccount in the dafermed lax assets and labilities has also bben recognized in the
stalement of profit or loss and cfher comprehensive income a3 per 1AS-12 "Incoma Taxes™.

Share Capital

Paid-up-capifial represents 1olal amourd conbribubed by the shareholders and bonus shafes lesued by the
company io the ordinary shareholders. Incremental costs dinectly attributable to the issue of ondingry shases
are recognized as expenses as and when incurred. Holders of ordinary shares afe entiled o receive
dridends as declared from time to trme and are entitled 1o vobe at shareholders' meedings. In the event of a
winding up of the company, ordinary shareholdens rank afler all other sharshalders. Credions ane fully entitied
to any procesds of liquidation before all sharsholders.

Employes Benelils

The group maintaing both defined conribution plan and defined benefit plan for its eligible permanent
Employess.

Defined Contribution Plan

& defined contibution plan is a post-gmployment benefit plan under which the company pays fied
contnibutions imo 8 separate fund and will have nd legal or constructive cbligation to pay further amount. Tha
company maintains the Recognized Provident Fund for all permanent employees at which both the company
and smployees contribute @ 10% of basic salary. The Employess” Provident Furd was obilaned

from Income Tax Authorty on August 05, 1875 which was effective from Seplember 30, 1973 and s
considered as defined contribution plan &% i@ mests thi recoegnion critera specified for this purpose in LAS-19,

Obligation for contribution to defined coniribution plan is mecognized as provident fund (PF) conbribution
expensas in prodit or loss in the period during which senvices are rendered by employess. Advance againad PF
s recognized as an asset 1o the extent that a cash refund o a reduction in fulune paymants |s avaitable.

Duefined Banefit Plan

The group mainiaing an unfunded gratuity scheme and provision in respect of which is made annually for the
employess, Grabuity payable i the end of each year ks determined on the basis of following rules and
regulations of the company.

Service length Bayment basis

Less than fve (5) years  Nil

For five (%) years and  Two (2) bmes of last month's basic salary multiplied by year of senvice.

e

Workers' Profit Participation and Waelfare Funds.

The company also recognizes a provision for Workers' Profit Participation and Wellare Funds & 5% of nel
profit before tax as per Bangladesh Labour Law 3008




Naotes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

£0.19
0.1,

50.15.02

B0.20

50.21.01

60.21.02

Revenue Recaognition

Fevenue 5 measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Group and the
COMPENY Fecognises revenus when it transters contrgl over 8 good or servicg 1o @ cusfomer. The following
table provides informaticn about the nature and timing of the satisfschon of performance obligations In
coniracis with cusiomers, including significand payment tarms, and the relaled revenue recognition policies,

fure and timing of satisfaction of performance|Revenue mecognition under
Type of m'hlﬁgﬂnnl. including significant paymant terms IFRS 15

obtain control of products when goods are : ;
Zio b out 1 factory pate. Ivoices raised ms per] (oS 8 recognized when
WWMEummM:tm[ i ity

Expon sales 'mln&m.MMulMWﬂhﬂ““mmmmwﬁ
fore geding delivery of the goods or customers arel o o o5 o0 comer
By-products a credit panod of 30 1o 60 days. :

The company ks in the business of providing M.S, Billet and M.5. Rod. Revenue from contracts with cusiomers
is recogrised when contred of the goods are transferred fo the customer i 8n amount that reflects the
consideration fo which the Company sxpects io be entitled in exchange for thase goods. The Company has
generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue armangements, because it typically conlrols the goods
before transderming them o the cusbomer,
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration recehved or recelvable, net
of Value Added Tax [VAT). Gross fumover comprises local sales of M5, Rod, M5, Billed, By-progucts, export
of MLS. Rod and includes VAT paid o the Governmant of Bangladesh
The Compary considers whether there are other promises in the coniraci that are separate perfonmance
8 o which a porion of the transaction pice needs o be allocaled. In defermining the iransacton
price Tor ocal sales, th Company congidens the efiects of variable consideration payabie 10 thi Cusiomer

The company has variable considerations included in the contracis with customers which ane netled off
against the revenus 1o deberming ihe rantacton price. The varable congiderations are pre-determined. The
effect of variable considerations on revenue is cnly from confracts with local customers.

Finance Income and Costs
Finance INGomie

Interest incoma from bank deposits and loan 1o related-companies is recognized in the prafit of loss on cash
basis following specific rate of inberest in agreemant with banks and related companies.

Finance Costs

Inerest expenses except expenses related 10 acquisiion'constructon of assals, incumed duing the year ane
charged to Statemant of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on accnal basls.

Other Operating Income

Otner operating ncomea inclsdes mberest come on delayed receipts from cusiomers, gain | (lods) on sale of
fined assets and miccalaneous receipis. Other cperating income s recognized as revenue income as and
winen realized.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The compary calculates its eamings per share in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standard 1AS-33
‘Eamings per Share’ which has been repored on ithe face of Sisiement of Profit oo Loss and Other
Comprehensive income,

Basks of Earnings

This represents profil for the year astribulable o ordinary shareholders and Non- Conlrolling sharehciders. As
there were no preference shares requinng retums o dividends, the net profit after tax for the year has been
considened as fully aliibutable (o the erdinary sharehobders.

Basic Earnings Per Share

This has been calculated by dividing the basic eamings by ihe weighied average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.
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Motes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

50.21.03 Diluted Earnings Per Share
Dituted earmings per share is required 1o be calcuiated Tof the year when scope for dilubon exitts.
§0.22  Duty Drawback
Duty drawback claimed on export sales is adjusted againe! cost of imported raw materials.
50.23  Measurement of Fair Values

When measunng ihe fair valus of an asee! or llabilty, the enlity usss masket observable dxla as far &s
passible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follcas,

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadiusted) in active markels for identical assels and Rabikties.

Level 20 Inputs olher than quoled prices included in Level 1 thal ane observable for the assel or liablity, eilher
directly (i.e. as prices) or indinectly (i.e. derived from prices),

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or kabdities that are not based on observable market data.

i the inpuls used to measure the fair value of an assat or liability might be categodized in different levels of the
fair value higraschy Bs the kewest beved input thad |s signaficant fo the entine measswsmant.
Property, plant and equipment

The fair value of ikems of property, plant and equipment has been determined based on the deprecialed
replacamant cost mathod and nel realizable valee method a4 applcable.

Equity and debt securities
Fair values of iradable equity and debi securities ane determined by reference 1o their quoted clasing price in
active market at the reporing date which are categorized under ‘Level 1° of the Tair value higranchy.

BO.24 Events After the Reporting Perlod
Events afer e reporting peniod that provide addbonal information aboul the COMPany's position a1 1he date
aof Staterment of Financial Pasilion of those thal indicate the going concem assumplion is nol appropfiate ams
reflecied in the Financial Sisiements. Evenis afier the reporing percd that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes whan maternal

50.25 Leases
Al inception of an arangement, the company determines whethes the arrangement is of conl&ng & |eass.
Al incaplion of on reassessment of an amangement thal containg a lease, the entity separales paymants and
athier consideralion reguired by the arrangament ints thess for the lease and those Tof alher elements &n the
Dagis of thir redative Fair valuas.

B0.28.01 Finance Lease
Leasas in ferms of which the company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
clagsified a5 fnance leases. Upon indtial recognition the leased assel is measured af an amound aqual o the
lowsar of s fair value and the present vales of the menimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the assel s Bocounbed for in Bocordance with the accounting policy applicable io thet assel Miremum lease
paymanls made under finance lease are appomoned between the finance expense and the reduction of
outstanding liability. The finance sxpense is allocated to each period during the lease term 50 a5 to produce a
constani rafe of inlerest on the remaining balance of the labiity,

50.25.02 Operating lease
Leases thal are not finence lease are conssdersd as operating leases and the leased assets are nol
recognized m the compary’s Statement of Financial Position. Paymenls made under oparaling leases ars
recogrized in profl of loss on a straight ling basis over the e of the lase

50.26 Segment Reporting

Thie Company i domiciled in Bangladesh. The gross revenue from manufactre and salling of MS producis i
BOT 44,408 886,970. The Company has a branch in Kolkata (India) which confributes 1.65% of revenue of the
compary. While the Company has clearty differentiated brands, segmentation within a wide pertfolio of brands
B nmot part of the regular internally repored Bnancial information o the chisfl cpemating decision maker
Therehare, il is nol possible b segment the Comparn’s resulfs by brand without 8 high degres of estimation.
The break up of revenue has been in Mate 04
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Notes to the separate and consolidated financial statements (continued)

BO.2T Standards adopbed butl mot yet effective
The Institute of Charered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) has adopled following renw standards and
amendments o standards, AN previously adopled reporting standards afe consistently applied by the Group
ard Company to the extent redevand for the Group and the Comparny.

Fossible impact
New standards Summary of the requirements ﬂnmhl‘hlﬂ'r:lr:ll

IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporer will recognize,
measwe, presenl and discloss leases. The
prowvides 8 single lesses accounting model, requiring lessees|The  company 6
i recognize asseds and liabilites for ol leases unbess the|assessing the
lease tanm is 12 months or less of the underying assel has a|potential impact on its
IFRS 18 Lease low value, Lessors continue to classify leases as operatingfinancial  statements

finance, with IFRS 18's apphoach fo lessor accounting|resulting  from  the
subsiantially unchanged from s predecessor, IAS 17, application  af IFRS

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and applies to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010,
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ACNABIN

Chartered Aocsambants
BDBL Bhaban (Level-13) T:1rphmr (+B&-02) 410 2003 w0 35
12 Kawran Bazas Commencial Arca Facsirsdle (#85-02) 410 TG
Dhake-1215. Bangledesh. E-mail <acnabin@hangla ners

Welb: www.acnabimcom

Ref.: 02.155/2019/1840 (i)

The Board of Directors

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited
BSRM corporate office

Ali Mansion, 1207/1099 Sadarghat Road
Chittagong 4100, Bangladesh

07 August, 2019
Dear Sir,

Summary Report on Valuation of Land Owned by Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills
Limited

In pursuance to the appointment letter # BSRM/1750/19, dated 4 April, 2019, to carmy out the
revaluation of land of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited under specific scope of
work,

We have carried out the valuation of the specific class of fixed assets of the company under the
head "Land and Land Developments™ as of 30 Jume, 2019 and are pleased to submit this
"Summary Report on Valuation of Land Owned by Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills
Limited”.
Thank you.

Kind Regards

Md. Mominul Karim, FCA
Partner
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ACNABIN

Chartered Acoonnianis

Preface

The Board of Directors of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited appointed
ACNABIN Chartered Accountants to conduct the valuation of *Land and Land Developments”
of the company as of 30 June, 2019 to incorporate the revalued amount to the books of
accounts of the company &s on 30 June, 2019. As such, the purpose of this valuation is
solety to provide an independent valuation result in order to ascertain fair market value as of
the valuation date and presenting these values in the company's finandal statements as of
30 Juna, 2019

Introduction

This Surmmary Report on Valuation of Land Owned by Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills
Limited is prepared to serve the purpose of executive wuse of this report by the
Management of the company and should be read in connection to the "Report on Valuation
of Land Owned by Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited™ as separately presented
[Ref. 02.155/2019/1840 {vi)].

Statement of limiting conditions and assumptions

The repost 5 subject to “Statement of Limiting Conditions and Assumptions” and within the
scope of work as mentioned in the “Report on Valuation of Land Owned by Bangladesh
Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited™ as separately presented.

Valuation methodology

The valuation of Land and Land Develcpment of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills
Limited as of 30 June, 2019 was conducted on the basis of "Fair market price at its location
and condition®, The expert team, as mentioned in the detailed report, was formed by
ACNABIN comprising members from ACNABIN and Pacific Surveyors Limited and one
representative from the company.
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ACMNABIN
Chartered Aoty

Work procedure for the valuation
We performed the following procedunes and produced the valuation report-

Teaemn
Formation and
deputation

A full comprehensive approach was carmied out by us to achleve the objective of the
assignment as per engagement letter and all clauses of the scope of work as per
engagement letter have been covensd,

Mutated, non-mutated and mortgaged land

The total land area of the company under this valuation assignment is 3,371.2250
Decimals, Out of total measuned land area, mutation prooess completed for 3,348.2250
Decimals, 23.0000 Decimals land found as non-mutated the valuation date. The
aggregate quantity of land mortgaged with different banks Is 1,834.14 Decimals.

Arriving at the valve of the subject land

Following decdsive factors were considered to arrive at the value of the subject property-
a. Physical position of the land and available approach road;
b. Connectivity to the highway:
¢ Connectivity to Thana/Upazila Office;

d. Common utility faciity insde the boundary of the land e, existence of electricty
connection, deep tube well for water supply and prooessing of gas connection;
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ACNABIN
Chartered Asceanturans

e, Inside road and establishments to attract premium on the price;

f. Developed infrastructure facility;
g. Recent demand of large area of land like the subject land in the area,

Furthermore, using our experiences, dsoussing with the management of the company,
analyzing different information from different sources we arrived at the value of the subject
land. However, we assume no liability for such sowrces. Title to all land owned by
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited is assumed to be good and marketable
except for otherwise reported in the “Report on Valuation of Land Owned by Bangladesh
Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited™ a5 separately ssued,

Summary result of the valuation

The valuation had been conducted using the fair market value method as this is most
commonly used and appropriate for valuation of such dass of assets. After having
completed all the tasks, fair value/market value of lands owned by Bangladesh Steel Re-
Rolling Mills Limited as of 30 June, 2019 has been estimated at BDT 7.441.664.393
{Bangladeshi Taka Seven bilion four hundred forty one million six hundred sixty four
thousand three hundred ninety three only) resulting net revaluation gain worth BDT
3.480,930.388 (Bangladeshi Taka Three billion four hundred eighty million nine hundred
thirty thousand three hundred eighty eight only).

The summary of the valuation of "Land and Land Developments™ of Bangladesh Steel Re-
Rolling Mills Limited as of 30 June, 2019 is presented below-
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Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited
Summary on Valuation of "Land and Land Developments™

Fair Market
Crynd  laresoftand|  velmime
5 Locstion : Amount . | (Deckmak) | Rabesbie Vates
{BOT)
[A] et of dnrecis For uevimnd va ket
I Chaor ki, Mymerainghy 4,653,387 25,2500 T3 AT 500
2 Midfle Sonaichor, Bamawils 1,967 504, T14 1,503 8000 3400, 500,000
3 Ol Begra, Bogra 415,710 BEETSD B8BTS,
4 East Makirabad, Nasicshod SHE,060, 000 3240000 1,450,400, 000
5 Ialalbad, basivabad kbl bad B4, 512,500 437.5000 2.742,500,000
& Fhilmora, Micacal 14,565 ™41 18000 55, 080, 000
¥ Julabetued, Baiid 355,370, 00 198, 0000 SED, o]
[A]_3933,712,112 3,348.2750 7414642500 |
(B8] Lit of demaly wivich are ool -mute fed.
1 Middle Sonsichor], Beroawils 7,049,190 5.0000 7,049,150
2 lalakabad, Hasinabad) kbl bad 19.9 7
[®) 37,031,893 33,0000 3702193 |
(€] Lt of deiti pirchased beivees L72017 o 3082007
I Mo sich e besireg icbertified T=] i W
Total (A+84+C) 3080734005 3,371,250 7 441,664,353

Book valkee /canmy ng amount as Hmw

Lund partion inclsdad in Fsts owned by the company st Balrall & Uktars Tataling
L9651 Dechmalk & recorded as “Bullding” arnd as such those have bean exchdsd frem
Land Vahuation.

Motes:
Lt valustion vt made &5 of 31 December, 2001,
Lasnd wibich are ol mainbedd harve Been exchuded for B upeard realkation,
Tt i By Bnstrioeny b withahtions for the samie class of assets & mone than 3 (Three) pears.

Agsels soquired within 2 il commidered for uperd revalation,
mmmuummmmn years and as such considered for upwand

revakeSon.
The remaining lease pevicd of the: Leaschold properties ane mone Ban 10 years and a3 puch
L wahsich Jsre under *Bayna agresment” harve not been considerad for the upwarnd revalkaaton.

Concluding remarks

We have armived at the value of the subject property owned by Bangladesh Stesl Re-
Rolling Mills Limited by using our best professional judgments which is dependent upon
many subjective matters, This condusion is subject to the “Statement of Assumptions and
Limiting Conditions™ and "Disclaimer™ section namated in the “Report on Valuation of Land
Cwned by Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited™ as separately presented,
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AUDITOR’S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT OF
BSRM STEEL MILLS LIMITED (SUBSIDIARY)

Dear Shareholders,

It is my immense honour to welcome you to 11" Annual General Meeting of BSRM Steel Mills Limited, one of the most distinct
premium-quality MS Billet producers of the country.

| would like to take the privilege of presenting you the Director's Report and audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30" June 2019
for your kind review, adoption, and approval.

Review of operation: It is impressively visible from the comparative data of operation results that our company has successfully kept on
sustaining a sound growth in this year as well. We have achieved beyond our expectation in case of sales and production. We proudly set a
new record of production and delivery volume of 913,241 MT and 961,611 M.T. Billet respectively. Sales were constrained to parent
company and other group concerns. Battling with the ever-fluctuating scrap price from both home and abroad was a prime challenge we had
to accept during the year.

Operating Results

Production (Qty. in MT) 913,241 860,543
Sales (Qty. in MT) 961,611 916,338
Sales Value (BDT in Million) 53,407.28 45,888.26
Cost of Goods Sold (BDT in Million) 50,210.59 42,569.43
Gross Profit (BDT in Million) 3,196.69 3,318.84
Gross Profit in % 5.99% 7.23%
Net Profit/(Loss) (BDT in Million) 1,175.31 938.27
Net Profit in % 2.20% 2.04%
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 2.98 2.38
Net Operating Cash Flow per Share 25.27 (11.73)
Net Assets Value per Share (NAVPS) 34.57 15.63

Directors: In accordance with the provision of the Article of Association of the company Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA & Mr. Aameir Alihussain,
the two Directors of the Company, representing one third of the number of existing Directors retire by rotation in the Annual General Meeting
and being eligible Mr. Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA & Mr. Aameir Alihussain offer themselves for re-appointment.

Dividend: Directors didn’t recommend any dividend for the year ended June 30, 2019 consideration further investment of the Company
from retained earnings.

Auditors: The Company’s Auditors M/s Hussain Farhad & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire and are eligible for re-appointment. Board of
Directors recommend their appointment for the ensuing year.

Outlook for 2018-19: The atmosphere of economy and business was good in 2018-19. We did not see any major natural calamities and
political unrest during 2018-19. Steel industry is an established and growing industry in Bangladesh. We expect a huge demand of quality
steel this year for construction of various mega projects in our country. Predominantly based in the port city of Chattogram, the industry has
emerged as a major contributor to the national economy. Our Company is striving hard to maintain sustainable growth of the company by
adopting and investing in the state-of-the-art technology and management practices. We give top priority to fairness, righteousness, and
equitable opportunities to all of our employees, stakeholders, regulators and agencies of the government on the basis of legal/social orders,
professionalism, corporate social responsibility, humanism and business ethics combined with morality. We assure you that we shall leave no
stone unturned to continue with our standards of these virtues without any compromise.

Events after the date of Financial Position: There is no subsequent event after the date of the Financial Position and till the date of this
report which could affect the ability of the users of these financial statements to make an appropriate evaluation.

Gratitude: The Board of Directors express deep appreciation to all the Employees, Shareholders, Government Agencies, Bank and Financial
Institutions, Consumers, Suppliers and other service Agencies for performing their roles effectively which help us to run our business smoothly
and efficiently.

Thank you

Aameir Alihussain
Managing Director
August 29, 2019
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INDEFENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
1o thie Shaniholders of
BSRM STEEL MILLS LIMITED

Opinicn
We have audited the aicompanying linancial statements of BSRM STEEL MILLS LIMITED (the Company),
whith comprise the Statement of Fingncal Posibon as at 30 June 2019, the Staterment of Profit o lodd
and Onbaer Camgrahniivg Inoome, Statemant of ﬂ'lll'lg,H in quil.'!.l and Starerent of Cash Flawe for the
period bom 1 buly 2008 to 30 June 3019, ard & dummary of dignificant setounting policied snd ather
explanatory nbormaticn,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanatiors geen to us, and
sicompanying the Ffinancial staterments, prepared in aioordinie wilh Infernalicenal Finaodial REporting
Standards (IFRS4], give & v and Bair sisw of 1he lingadial positapn of the company as 3l 30 Jure 2019 ared
od izs financial performance and cash fows for the period fram 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 and comply
wilh the Companies A1, 1994 and other apphiable laws and fegulaticons.

Basis of opinion

We conducted cur Sudit in oordance with intemgtianal Standerd on Auditing {15As) a4 bdogped by the
Ierstatte o Charmered Accountants of Bangladesh [BDAR), Our rgsponiilibties wnder thede sandarnds arng
further gescribed in "Awditors respongibilities T tbe auds of the financial statements”’ section of our
Far

W arg incependent of 1he Company in aocordance with the Inernational Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code] that are relevant Do our sudit of
the financial staements in Bangladesh and we have Tulliled our other ethical respongibilities in
actordance weih these reguirements and the IEY8A Code.

W eligve that, the ausdit sadence we g baingd ane fuf o 2nd JRpropriane [0 pronded 3 Badis 1or
our audit cpinion.

Reporting on ather information

Mpnagomsnt is sesponsible for the other inlosmation. The other infosmation comprises all ol the
anfgrmation in the Annual Report gther Than the finargial statements and our audiors’ repoet tharpon.
Cur openion on the financial statements of the Company does not cover the other information and,
aotardinghy, we do noT Bxpreds iy Torm of Sisursnde thereon.

In connectian with our awdit of the financlal statements, our responsibliity ks to read the other
mtarmation and, in ggeng 50, corside whether the other indoematn i materially ingondisbent with 1he
linencial satements of the Corpany or g knowledge obtained in the auds, or otheraise appears to be
mdierally midstated, i, beded on 1He work we Fave performed, we conclade that there E 8 material
midstsernent of this other information, we are required 1o repoet that fact. Based on the information
rigdl Angd renvidsaced, w hawve nathing o repart in thi regand,
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Respansibilities of Manageenent and Those Chasged with Gestrnanse for the Finsnclal Statements

Management i5 respondiple foe the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordande with knternationsl Financlal Reponting Standards (IFRSS), the Compandes Act, 1994 and oher
spplicable laws and regulsions and for such internal control 23 ranagement determines i necessany 1o
enable 1he preparation of financial statesments that are free from material misstatement, whether due o
Iraud or error.

In prepasing the fnancial statements, management |5 responsible for rssessing the Company’s ability o
Conlinue 45 a going concern, cescloding, a5 applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the
going corcern basis of accounting wiless management iher intands 1o liguidate the Company or o
tiease operationd, o has no realstic aRernative but to do soU

Those charged with gavennance are responsible for everseing the Campany’s linancial reponing process.

Buditors” sk pondibilitied for the audit of the finsncial puatements.

Our objectives a0 10 oblén reasonable ssurance about whathsr the Singncial sfatemsents 35 3 while are
free from material misststernent, whether due 1o faud o eror, Bnd 1o issue an auditors’ report Tha
includes our opinaon. Reasanable sssurance is a high livel of assurance, bt is nat & guarantes that an
audil conducted in accordance with BAL will sbaays detect 3 material misstatemsent when it exdsts
Misstatements can aite fram frawd or error and are considensd materisl i, individually or i the
Agpregate, they could feafonalily Be expected to influence the sronomic degisions of uiers taken on the
badi af ihese Fnancial staements

A par of 30 aadit in socordance with SAs, we eoencise professionsl judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the awdit. We alioc

[a1 'Sentily and assess the risks of material misstatemant of the financial statements, whether due 1o
fraud or error, design and perfiorm audit proCedures fesponiive 0 those sk, and obtain audit
evidence thas if sulficient and appropriate to pronide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
& Mgl mastatement resulting [ram fraud is higher than for one resulting from ercoe, as fraud may

invodie oollugeon, forgery, inbentional omistaons, misrepresentations, o the override of inbenal
Lantrol.

ip) CotaEn an understanding of internal control relewan 1o the awdit in order (o design auda procedures
hat are appropriste in the circurestances, But nof for the purpose of sxpressing an opinion on the
eliectiveneis of the Company's internal cositaal,

[C) Evaluate the aporopeisteress of accounting polices used Znd the ressanadloness of accounting
estimates ang related daclosures made by management,

(i Conchede on thi agpropriateness of management's use of the going concern batit of SCounting and,
Based gn the audit evidence abibined, whathds & materisl uncertainty exists related tp events o
conditrons that mary cast sigralicant dowbt on the Company’s abilty 19 continue 32 a going concern. i
wit conclude that a material ungertainty exits, we are roquited to drwe aEtention in our auditors’
FERT b the relabed disciosunes in the finandal statements or, If such disclosises are insdoguate, to
madify cur opinon. Qur conthution are based on the audit evidence sbtsined up to the date of cur
aditars’ report. However, fute events or condifions may cause the Campany 10 cease to continug
A% @ RoEg Congem,
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{e] Evaluade the owerall presentation, siruflure, and cantent of the Rnanclal stMements, H‘rl:|l.|dh1-g g
daglotures, and whethss the fnancis statemenis represent the underl@ng [Fansirions Snd events
in @ manrr that achéeves Tair P Latian,

We communicabe with those changed with governange reganding, amang other matters, the planned
scope ardd timing of the audit and significant auda findings, induding ary signilicant deficiencies in
internal tantrol that we identify during our awdit.

Repoet on other kegal and regulatesy reguirements

In accordance with 1R Companies Act 1994, we sho report the following:
i} wie havee obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of owr mowledge and belied
wilti b iihary Bo the purposes of cur audit and made due werification thereof:
it In Qe Opimion, proper Books of account as reguined by L have been kept By the company o Far a5
it appaaed Trom our examinglion of thess books and;
iiiy the statement of financal position and stacemsent af Pralit or Lasd and other comprehershve Income
deait with by the report ane @ agreemsnt with the Books of sccount and returns.

Dated: Chattogram hlﬂhﬂuﬂ-&tm

9 Bigudt 2019 Chortered Accountamis
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BSAM STEEL MILLS LIMITED
Satement of Financial Positien
A an 30 Juse 2009
Mobe()
Hagers
Non-gurrent aysets.
Peoperty, plarg and egugmeen 4 P, FEL I AGS LB G5, (M9 15
rEangibile anpet 5 15,385,277 17965021
Capitsl wgb-in-progress & FLA9 B, 1T A2
Total vt {ue T 45500 TSI GIT LAY 13, 96, 1806,640
CiTent 355613
R DNEL r 4,543 SO8 403 B 0eE, LEL Ta4
Frade recaralile a Lrmarem 5659 304 547
Ol Peviraablin * 186,090,261 178,576 204
> D Froe related compainiey i 7AH9ARE 15 1,557 BELTT4
= Advancel, Sepashs and prepayETeEnl 11 L morane 364,533,030
é Bhart Deres et el 4 12 LT3 FLE 461 1,518 830.45]
g Cath s Cih egursetts i3 2F TPEA1] T4 440060
=) Toral furent assels 1,056, 65 368 21,188,220, 14]
@ Tutal dusets T ARERROULADE 40004 506850
[V
=)
<)) Equity s Liabelites
§ Equity
N Shaine capial e 3948354.000 B0, 15 000
a Betaned parnengs 1LATDTH, 725 (72,550.981)
; Reswaludfon feseive BB 5TE 719 2RI ETAGT]
S Total equity 15,605, 667,648 GIGAdAe00
g Ligkslttigy
a Feon-punrent tabibshs
g L {emm bor rosvangs 1501 1 LXE 052 163 2,553,004 553
E Dafined beneda obligations « Grabuity b 45 TE5 120 LR
- Cufiervend Lan Ralslitirn L7 1304, 849,217 L1 ST 900
< Tetal non-cursent lisbilitie 385,450 455,151,550
o Cursen lisbibtiey
= Cirtent portn of ling Leirs bear newing 1561 1,723, 500, 191 1T L5005 S06
g Tiage gayables L& L1006, 604 101,413 550
e ST ATV B gy 19 5, 0M B8, 130 A0 120945, 502
2 D 0 ¢ 200 el COMTpan iy Froa] SRS E4RERT [LL-E A AR
< Advancy sgarns 1akes n ¥5.013, 851 5,248 %07
‘é’ Liabsiitiry for papeeaes b B03,030,727 S4E G47 GG
<ZE Prirvigicn for imcome 3 I A RIL5ES 46,263,336
= CHber akaktary 4 19,739,554 B4 0ET D2
] Prowisaon doe WPPF B Wielang Fund 5 100 3153 A AET 407
= Tasal curvest Kabibzied FESI0TREIA] T 79084700000
S Total kabibies. 31539426087 £3,919,814,150
] Total equity and Labiksies A5,635,093.531 &, 0ES, 506 820
oc e ey ——
5‘;:3 Kort assel wabst piv vhare [KAV) AT 1563
g T cmngwrdd nodes 1 e 86 foom on dntepeol pavt of thede finsvciad itatreenty, [‘I:
.
[T Cempary Setratiry
Ak gt oy anngeed repods of ST danc
Daned: Chaltisgrios
29 Bugt 201%
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BSRM STEEL MILLS LIMITED
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2005
b0 30 hane 2019 ta 3 ks 201K
Noteli} " Taka Taka

RiEvgraie k] 51,807, 190,472 &5 333 262 116

Cost of wale T |5|}.21'ﬂ.m!31t G2 550,425 455)

Gieris prodil 3,196, 693,641 1 0E B ETL

Sailng arad distribution cosis In {11.216,280} 13,995,996}

Adranistrative costs ki) Ilﬂ.:lﬂ-.?lll- 95,056, 765)

B0ag 298,570 3,219,775, 370

Cithoer imaoems ({land) 5] {16,508, 280} [

Operating profit 3,015, 780,293 3.219,773561
Finance roats 3y {1,475, 365,911} (1725, ki 540} =
finance ingome 1 A7 209,069 343,743,498 =
Hee -DPET AL ind ST 34 0,725,000 ILEED. TS %
Prodit beefosie Las ared WPPF and Waellsrg Fund T 447 5F1 1,868 048 154 g
Coniribution 10 WPPF and Wellare Fund 5 {100.372,376) 193,44 7.407) 2
Profit bafons tax 1.907,075,145 1, TTE 500,737 S
# i eafbenedis: @
Culren] L 2 <
Feior Yiar Adjuglmans =3
Daferred Lax 17 z
(T30, 764,040) |B3T 30, S0E] %
kot profit) flows) alver tam lor the year 1,i7%,311.103 038 169,819 =
=
1)
Dibad Lomprehihiig incams =)
Hems that will never be classilied te peoft of losa a
Fervaluation of Land 4.01 559,918,199 a
Duleried lax on revalustion ressree of land aee 1701 =
tand deveiopment [254.284,543) s ¢
& 295, 6T LS . L
By 1Ra8 afe &F may BE clasdifed b peolil o loss - a ,:'_:
Tofal asher comprefsttdewd Wloime I-,z!s,srj.ﬁ-l- - %
(1
Tokal comprehenyve inoome KT TRET] IR I60.ETF g
e e A R —
=}
Basic eamings per share [EPS) FXT] T Z
=
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w
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BKSAM STEEL MILLS LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity
Fod th ypedr @ndad B0 pune J019
Amount in Taka
Share Resaluation I.tll-nqd' i
Cagital Reserve Earnings
Balance as on 01 July 2017 3,944, 353,000 2,292 879671 (10008208100 5 I26412.861
Met Profit for the year ended 30 e 2018 - . 934, 269,829 QB 360,829
Balance as on 30 lune 2018 3.940.354,000  LI9RATOAT (725509800  GLELEERE.GH0
Balarce a5 on 01 July 3018 3,944,354, 000 2,292 879,671 72,550,581  6,164,682,690
Trandbes of finvaludlssn neddevl o e of fivaludd st {367,979,603) 367,979,603 -
Ry alisatazen of Land (nef of ghj ' 6. 195,673.651 ' B.I95.673,651
Met Profit for the year ended 30 kone 2019 1475341, 000 1,175,311,103
Balance as om 30 June 2019 E,944,354,000 E. 220,573,709 LATO 739,725 13635057444




B5RM STEEL MILLS LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2019

L= I |

. Dperating activities

Receipis from customers agamnst sabkes

Receipts agaknst other incomse

Cash Paid to suppliers, operating and other expenses

Cash gengrated by operations 38.00
Incoms tax paid

Avance Tax (VAT) Paid

Mt cazh flows from operating actieities

. Imvesting activities

hequidition of property, plant and equiprment
Procesds [rom sale of property, plant and equiprment
fuddition to capital work-in-progress

Incredie in invedtment in fixed depodits

Bet cash Mows from investing activities

. Financing activities

Re-payments of lang term loans
Recaipts of short term loans
Repaymends of due to related companées
Payment of interest-net

Decrease i other finance

et cash flows from financing activities

. Netincrease in cash and cash eguivalents [A+B+L)

E. Dponing cash and cash squivalents

Effect of foreign eachange rate changes on cash and cash egquivadents

. Closing ¢ash and cash sguivalents [D+E+F)

Met operating cash flow per share

55, 194,084,757 40,581,406 541
47,444,438 164,828,921
(44,317,146,926]] | (44,494,673,538)
11,024,380,269 (3,748,637, 976}
[HEE,982,344) (B79,071,875!
(71,540,459 .
9,965,857 4646 {4,627, 709,851)
(246,567, 186] (361,013,937)
428 265,750 2718503
(419,041,750 (B06,162,814)
(406,295,980 (951,550, 406)
[643,639,166) _ (1,916,548,654)
{1,703,8486,669] I1,688,681,988)
11,080.398,631) 11,859,335,997
15,481,384,357] {£.051,865, 7200
{1,093,011,667] (1,506,942 643)
(15,280,000 {5,200,000)
[%,373,921,324 6,606,645, 645
[51,703,024] 62,389,141
74,449,366 12,046,167
32,569 15,055
23,778,911 74,444 385
3527 111.73)
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BSRM STEEL MILLS LIMITED

Motes 1o the Financial Statements
Ad ot and Tor the year ended 30 June 2009

THl ROPORTING ENTITY
Legal foeen of Enterprise
EERM Sraed MG Rimibed wns indorporabed a8 a privabe imited company on 16 April 2008 vide registration 8 CH-E561
(26T} D008 under the Compandes Act, 1934 o wetup one of the largest M5 Billet production plants in the sieel

irdustries i Bangladesh. The company was converted into public imaed comaany ard negistened henfore an 12
Hgreenber 2003

Regitered Difce of the Company
Thi roghabeied ofhice of e company i Cabed &1 Al Mandssn, 10071099, Ladanghat Rosd, Chattagram.

Prencipa) Scteities and Mature of the Busindid

The pircipal activities and ratare of business of the company ane:

il To w1 up an aubomatic steel medting plant for making M5 biliet ol different gualities and sell the ame to veal
reillirg Filli.

i} To el up an automatic steel rodling and ne-rollng mills Bor manufacturing of iron produscts and sbee matenals of
8 types inchuding othar actmitees ad mentioned in the Memarandum sed Amiches of ARsocation.

Commencement of Production

Tre Cofmpary has st up an isduclion honste Baed wirkp melling plant at Sonapabae, Mersaral, Chattogam to
produce M5 billrts and comengnobd commangial production from 16 Jure 2006, Betore than the eompany was
engaged in 1risl producticn which had been commenced from 22 December 2018,

BALS OF PREPARATION

Snatement af Compliange

Trep dinangial sratemsents of the cpmguany wunder reporting hive been prepared an 2 going conoem basis Tollowing
accrual basa of accounting cacept fod cash More VALEMEnT in AECOFdantg wilh (e INGerANEAN Actouning Stadamds
(LA%s) and Inernatgnal Financial Reponing Stendards {IFRES) &4 sdogited in Bangladeih by the insttute of Charmered
Acgowntants of Bangladesh [ICAB)

Basis of Reponing

Thee financial statements are prepared and presented for satins users by the compary n aocordandy with identified
fnancial meportng ramdradie. Predentation has Been msde in complisnce with the requinements of 1A% 1 -
“Prisentaticn of Finangul Statementy”, The Faghgial slatemeal comgaige ol

a] i stacement of finarcisl positeon &5 at 30 king 2019.

Bl A acemeal oF profl o s and othey compeehensive indomse for the year ended 30 June 1319,
¢} A stacement of Changes in equity for the year ended 30 kang 2019,

db A statemant of Cash Nows Tor the weae ended 30 Jure 1019,

] Motes, campdiding b summary of dignificant sccouwnting poliches and explinaony infarmation,

Other Regulatary Compliandis

The COMpany & 340 nequired 1o Comply with U Sollowing major Liws and regulafions along with 1P Comadees Al
154

i Thi incoms: Tax Ordinance, 1584
W The Incormse Tas Rules, 1984

il The valee Added Tax Act, 1991
el Thi Valus Added Tax Bules, 1991
Wl The Cugloms AL 1969

wil Bangladesh Labosr Law, 2006

Aigthorization Iar 15
Ths Tinancisl statements Ruve been authonped Tor issue by the Board of Directors on 29 August 30149,




o7

.00

Basiy of Measyrement

The financial statements have been prepared on Roing Conotn badis wnder the hatorical coal coevwention excepd for
lamd ared larad development of property, plant and equipement which s measured a1 revalued ameund and inventorkes
wibich are measured at lower of cost and net realsabie valee.

Fanttianal and Prisentiios Junmendy

These feancial stitements ane presenbed in Bangindesh Taka [BOT) whith & the company’s functional ourency. AN
finangial mdarmatign pigsented in BD Taka Ras Degn fourded off 0o the nearest Takd escipt when othenvioe
ind v bedl

Statement of Cath Flows

Saterrent of cash Nows Bug Baen prapaned in siecedanon with A5 7: Slatemal of Cadh Flows and the cash Mo From
operating s<tities have been presented under dingst mathod.

Goirgg Comiinn

The Coampany Ra Jd8guiti FEsOURiEs B0 CONErd il Operation for Fosgseeabl future and hence, the financial
sislements have been prepeed on going corderm Badis. A5 per MAanaprrsesl's AEFsment 1hare Mg mo enaterial
wrgertainties related to events o conditions which may ¢t dgnificant oubt upen the oinpiery’s abilty 10 coinug
A & geang Sondim

fpplicabile Sicounting SEandardi

The financial Watements hawe been prepiied in complance with requirement of 1A% [Insemationdl Accounting
Soamdards) and Inbermational Feancial Reporting Standards {IFESs] as adopbed by the Fotitvie of artered
Accountamis of Bangladesh (KCAE) as applicable in Bangledesh. The following A% and BFRSE are Sppled 1o
peeparation of the financial statemenss for the year ender report:

Aczounting Bandardi

[ELS Preatation of Finanoisd STaneems

M52 I o

k-7 Srmiairaen of Cash Flows

A8 Agcounting Polickes, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
LAS-LD Ewents after the Reporting Penod

LEE I drre Tang

S Ui Propeny, Fant and Equipmans

iAoy Lipdgirs

18518 Employes Bavefils

1530 The Dffects of Changes in Foneign [xchange Rate
145-23  Borrowing Costy

14534 Aplated Party Disgiodurig

185-33  Earmings Per Share

14535 impaicmint of Adiets

14537 Prinigiong, Comtinpie) Lisbiligsrs and Contngent Assory
1A5-38  Intangible Aduety

IFiE-T Financial Instramenis: Dischosunes

IFRS-3 Einanciad Inafromienti

IFRS= 13 Fae value Meajuoament

IFRS- 1% Bevenue from Comtracl wth Cusbomen

210 Imdtial application of mew standards

The enkity his ity sgpked IFRS 9 (see 3.07) and IFRS 15 (s 3.04) foe O July 2008, Thewe two mw standards do
meot hawe a maberial efect on the fingncisd sEdtiments

D 50 Chi Fansitos motkods chosen by thi management in applying these siandards, comparative information
throughout these financial statemends has not been redtated o rellect the reguirements. ol the new Wandandi.

Standards adepted But mal yet effecting

Thee fratitute of Chartened Accowntants of Bangladesh (ICAR] has sdopted Tollowing new standard khd amendment 1o
standard «

IFES - 16 Loases

RS 16 eliminabes the garfier operating/france lease dudl docountng model bor Igases. instead, thee i 3 single,
financial positien atounting model, seniar 19 furfent finance lease sccownting. lssued n larsary J018, the new IFRS
i replaced the existing guadance in BAS 17 Lesded IFRS 16 is eMectiag Tor anfuaal Rpming panods begmning on or
atber 1 lanuary 213

The Company i Juessng the potential impact on ik Badedial sEatements realting Inom the application of IFRS 16 on
s nancal stabements
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Use of Estimabes and Judgments

Thee preparation of frandial sERIeMEMs in Oonhersaly with IFRSE rbguings managemssl 10 maki judgrsbnls, aitmabis
amd Msummibang that affedt the apglcation ol aidounting polichid Jnd the reported bmcunts of Bidets, labditie,
gl ared @mperrigt, ERlimates and ssumplions are revigeed on a0 ongoing basis.

Thi gstimates and underlying JEumplions ane Bided on past Expersnce and vamdus othar Taceoes that ang Bliavied 19
B rpascralle wder the cirdusstandes, the rewll of which ferm the Badi of making judgments abbut the chirying
walues of sasets and Eabilitees that are mot readdy apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from theve
EFlMILeE

REvions 10 S0I0UATngG SItenaes and FacOphibed in thi waar i which the Mg i oevised o the rivigion affects
@nly Thak yidr, o 55 The pesr of revision and Futue years il the revision afects both fwrent dnd fufure years,

In particular, infematicon sboult Sgnificant aress of estimation, wencertanty and Critical pdpments in Bpplying
BEounting polairs That Racne (e mOsE gniicans ¢ITect on thi amounts recognized in th Eaandial Satements arg
ncludied im the folloming notes:

hgse: 4 Froperty, plant and equipment
Mot 5 Intangible set

Moge: T Inveniories

Mofe: B Tesde redevabie

Mot §7  Delferred tas labdites

Mode: 22 Liabelitees Bor dapendds

Mede: 23 Prowision I incomé Eaa

Comparative infarmation snd reclassification

Comparative information has been @idlosed fee ol sumaerical lformation in the findnsisd statements bred alis the
narratheg Bl dedsniptive imformarion when it w relievast for understanding of the cunngal piviod inangial satemants,
To facibtate comparison, cemain rebvant  balances pertaining o the previous pericd  have  been
riranged freciasufend whsh@ver Considered NecEiilay DO SONROIM 10 CURTEN L PIipds PIERTIEION,

Reparting Peciad
The financial statements of the company cover the yeas from 01 July to 30 kane and Tollowed consistenthy,

SUMPMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Th specific actouniing policies wlecoed and appled by the ompany’s dirscioes Tor sgnificant tanctions and
gvienti that have material effect within the fremgwork of 1AS-1 “Frosantaton of Finangiasl Stabpments®, in preparation
and prederitation of financial stMerenly Rave been consistently applied Ehroughaul the peried Bnd wene alse
DoSiS e with (Relrsd usod in oarker persssds.

For a proper understanding of the francial saiements, thess aocounting policies ane st out below in one place as
prosoribed by the 1AS-1 “Predentation of Fiagncial Stapements”, The reoommaendations of BAS-1 relating to thi Rarenat
of financkal statements were also taken o full consideraton for fair PR 0.
St oot balora b5 an index of the sgnificant accowming policles, the details of which are available on the Tollowing:

301 Condiitency

30}  Property, Pl and Eqguipment [PPE)

303 Intiegible Asset

E0a  Copetal Work im Progress

105 oA

306 MwinDonies

nar Financial Irsirumsens

308 ImpainmEs

308 TranaacHces with Relabed Companies

.10  Shaee Capital

111 Employec Benefit Schemss

3,12 incodn T Expeniiis

3113 P and Comingenche

314 Rivenue

.15 Other Operating Income

116 Fimamle Inoomae and Expenses

317  Borrowing Costs

3.18 Fareign Currendy TraRsbitions

118 Esrengs Per Share (EFS)

3.2 Mexwnemend of Faer valee

321 Evewis Aficr ihe Reporting Penod
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Consistency
Ueless otfserwine stated, fhe acocounbing polcees and methods of comgaation used i preparatgs of Finangial

Seavipmentd $or The yedr ended 30 Juné 3019 are consatent with those policies and methods adopted in preparing the
Fnaesial shabements foe e pear endesd 30 June 2015

Property, Mo and Equipasest [FRI)

fems of propeny, plant and eQuidenbnl are SLISRE & Cosl ard ie-vilued amount bess SCoumulangd deprecil tion s
accumulated impabmrend bosses, iF sy,

Recognithed Jdvd PSS 3T

Thie cost of an em of property, plasi and egpuipment commprises ity purchase price, import duty and non-selundable
taus (adber dedwsting brade distoast and rebabes) and any cost dinectly atiributable B0 the sequisition of the ainels.
Thar gost of sl compne e fnpaaied assets mglades the oost ol materiah, direct lnbour and any otfsr CoNS directly
AFibutiBhy 19 Bringesg B dssils 1o Ehi GSation and condifion receiiiry fof it B0 be capable ol operiting in the
wyndied manner and the cast of dismantling and remaving thee iems and restoring The 1ite on which they are located,

Wher pars of an it of properry, plant and egquipment have difenent usehd Fees, (R ane accountdd Tof as
SEpAraLE (T [apd COMEonEnts) of proparty, plant and byuendal.

T pain o bagt on diggosial of an Bem of propenty, plant and sguipenent & determined hwwlhl proteids
from disposal with the camying amount of the property, plant and equipment and i recognised wnder otber
Imcomaefospendes in geodi or loss.

Sobegquent Costs

Tes coml of replesing o upgrading part of an item of property, plant and equipment B recogniied in the camying
aengunt o the item i it is probable that the fulure economic benefits embodied within the part will ficw to the
company and 5 CoSE can B mepdguned spliably. The codli of B diy-Bo-day feevicing of propirty, plant and
BEUPEENT ATe PRCOENLEE in profit or k.

Dipreciation

Land is held on a freehold Basis and i3 pot depreciated considenng the unlimeted lide. In respect of all other propeiTy,
punt and equepment, depreciaton & recognieed in sabemend of profa or los and other comgeehensiae intoma.
Significant parts of individual assets arg assesued and o a compoasmt has 3 usaful fife chay is different dom the
rermdindier of 1hat diset. that companent b depreciaied separatily.

Dapeipgiation 6 changed on addsion from the month [dube of sereoe) of sdqubition/sddition upto the month of
digpiiad, The depeetiation melhod vied reficks the patlern in which tha assalt’s eccmnamic benefits are cormymed by
e enbify. The prosceal annudl ratés/uselul et ane o follows.

BMajor Cavegory of Aiiets Subs Categary Wietyl Lile
PLng 3d machinderies oo r
Plart a0l machineries Fanel j 1+
Plarg and machingries Al SRand %
Plard a0 rrachindnes AR Otbee Wachrsy 15
Mgt wahicles Car E
Mz wghicles Mnn Bk E
Mztor wehicles Covprpd Fich up Van n
MGG withichey Dgen Pick wp ¥an 1+]
Miater wihichs Frime Mowwer 1%
Migter wihiclos Qpen Truck 1]
Mator sehiches Daaenp Truch 11
Miotor wehiches Miaor Cychy 5
Boundary wall Al Minor Categary 0
Building and Sl All M7 Cabigary 0
Framitane and fisfunes &Il MYinor Category 5
e equiprmen All Minor Cabegory 5
IT [quigrrsend All Minor Cabegory 5

Coppraciatacs is chargied | alccated o0 th Basis of locateon of Mrgahitivg aisits. Depuociation methods, uselul ives
and fpiiludl vakoird a0k ol AL B feporting dane and Sfated il sggeopdiatg.

Upon retirement of assets, the cost and related scoemmtabed depreciaticn are elminated from the actount and
it B oF bt i5 chanped o credited fo staberrend af prafil or Iois and alker comprahanihng inoomeg.
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Reyaluathon of Propey, Plant and Equapment

ACNARN, CRrartered ACCDUNCIMS, was engaged By the Oomplity b0 eshimute s Lair value of the lend of the company
located at Miriarai as on 30 June 20190 ACHABM book professional services from gualified surveyoes of Pacilic
Saneeyors Lid. for verifying the land and its market price.

The waluaticn had been conducied using the market vadue method for lands oo thés b moet commaonty used and
Bppropriay P valuation of lpnds wredsy prevading droemptangds. In the prodiess of valudtion, indoremation Ingen The
Larsd Brodars g otfs rolitid sourdes, prce fectors of drmilar land in the ICaBty. publiifed MOulh fItek recent
ransfer af land in this anea have been coraderid

Durirg 1ha pedr Bingd 553 1end divvelogempntl hiog Bien viloisd by ACHARNN, Charabeied ALoountass, akan Budding
No-0F (131 Flaor ). 99, Agrabad, Chattogram-4 K. As per valustion regort, revaluation reserve stood T, 6,549,915 199,
A per clause 518 of 14517 : Income Ta, delered tax harwe: Beei reoogrised Th. 196,497 546 at !ﬁhﬂlﬂﬂnﬂﬂl‘rlﬂ
55 b rubi 1) of Incoime i Bube 1084 i Ehe Tinaacial (Ea1ements a1 of 30 june 2009,

Intangible Asset

Recagsilion 2nd Meddursment

Inkangible assebs that are scquéred by the companry and have finite usehd s arg mesnuned a8 cost ledd sccumulated
amartaation and socumadlated empairment loss,  ary. Intangible assets are recognized when all the conditions for

FECORNIton a5 per WS 38: “Intangible Aets” ane med, The cost of an imtangibde asset comguises its purchase price and
amy drectly atiributable col of prepaning (R assel e it intended use.

Subdequent Cosns

Subsequent expenditure i cipitalized anly when # increases the fubune econcmic Benedils embodied in the specific
asset o which it relates. All other expendibures ane recogniced in profit or Ioss as incurned.

Amaatisation

The galy intangible aidet of 1he (dmpany 5 ERF (Dracke £85 Sofvwang] which i amonised iy month BeMIng
siraight ling maethed foe 10 {ben] years. The pmdrtisation oosl is harged in pralit o kass,

Amcrigation meihods, usehd P Bnd resdul walues ane MaEeEd a1 the epovting daie and adioind if
appropriaie.

Capital Waork in Propress

Frogerty, Plant and [quipment wder forciructon/acquisition & acoountied Tor 33 Capitl work-in-pidgreds watil
oS D oy Boquisilion s complketed amd medesed ot ool

Limgis
AE inception of an arrangement. the company defermined whethes the arangement & of ¢oniiing o lease, AL
inception or on remsesiment of an arangement that contakms 2 leade, the entity separates payrents and other

considaration requined by tha arangemant imio thase for the lease and those for pihor slgresgnds on tha bagi of thair
relative e values,

Findinge Lebsn

Lisases i tenms ol which the comparny asumes subdatantally all the risks and rewards of osmership are dassified as
finance lcases. Upon mtial recogniteon the keased asset is medsured at an amount egueal B the koeeer of B3 Rir value
vl the perdend value of The mirdmaem beads paydats. Subsequaent 1o initial retagnition, thi Jdeet 5 aocoumipd To in
accordance with the accounting palicy applicable to that asdel. Makmum lpaie payments made under inano ledse
S ppportioned Bebawen the Ssancd expends bnd th reduction of sutianding liadicy, The Seancd gapanse is
Mlacated £o oach yoar Surieg thi e 10rm 55 a5 10 producd 3 consEn rate of inlerest on the remaining balance of
thee: lLakllity.

‘Operating Lease
Leases that ave not finance lease are cornidered as opevating leases and the beaded siiets are nod redognised in the

comaany's Statement of Financlal Postion. Paymenis made under operating beases are recognied bn prodit or lods on
& rasght; ing Basis gver O Benm ol Ther baae.

InsenEories

Nature of inventories

Insiadies. comedise Raw Materals (Melting Scrap, Bilets and Sponge lron), Packing Mateviak, Conumable Stores,
Fridl aind Lisbnicamis and Finished Goods [(M.5. Sllel) e
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WVabsation of the inventories

Inverloeies ane measured bt wer of cost and not realisatile valui, The eost of inveritories b calgulaned based on the
wighted swerage method and ingludes expenditure incurmed in B0quiring Thise invenbodies, production oF pofmersion
A and Othed (Oals dturnsd o brirging them 1o their exisbing kacation and condition in accordamee with 1A% 2
Ly T

Latepory Valamion
Finished Goods Firinheed Goods are walugd &1 Codl or Kl Realisable Walue whichever is hewer,
B¥w matenials Raw Materiath are valued 21 Cost or Met Reakiabie Value wiichiver i lower,
Sboare |bevns Based on wghted averige method,

Mot realsable walue is the estimated selbng price @ e ordingry course of business less the stimated foity of
completash ard yelling espenies.

Financial Instruments.

A financial instrument s 2y coneract that gived rise 80 a financial asset of oo entity and 3 fisancial isbility or equity
Insbrumient of daatied entity.

Fimancial Avsety

The Company iniially recagruoes lowm, receivables and deposits on the date that they are orignated. ANl atRsy
financial assens a0 fecognised initially on the date a which the campany becomes a party 1o Pk (oAAracbaal
prowisigng of the insbrament

The Company derctognizes a Francial aisgt when the contractusd rights 1o e cash News from the asset espirs, or it
transhers eh Fights 16 recelve the coniractual cagh Mg &0 the Tinancial asset in a transaction in which subitastially
Al thae risks and rewards of camership of th finangial 3iets are transferred,

Financial assets e classifhed it thi fBgwing (ategories: financial assets a1 fair vadoe theough seofit or lods, held to
Eaturily, baans and receivables and avadable-far-sale Financial svets.

At fair value throegh paalit ar oy

A linancial st is classifed as ot fir value Pecegh profin or o if i is classified 25 held foe trading or is desiprated X
e g intisd recagretion. Financial Feels ane desigaated as at fair value through peofiy o leds | the company
manages such imesimant and makes purchase or sale decisions based on Ehiir fai vabae in acoordance with e
CETPANY s doCurmdeled fitk management of inwemen sirackgy. ATtiibutable traniactions Costs are recopnined in
profit and loss as incurred. Financial assets 31 Fair value through profit or lags ane messured ot falr value and changes
trerin which ke intg stcount and dividend income ang recogaibed in profit or boss, Investment in equity seowities
and debt iecurities ane dassified under at fair valoe thrgugh profit or loss.

Hedd 10 mnaturity

Thirir aisRls Are indtialy recognaed 0 e walue plus any directly attributable Bransaction cost. Subseqisiat to initisl
TegDgnitim, thiy ane micdvared at amimized £o48 wing thi effective interest method.

Loans arnd iediehva i

Loamns and recelvables are financisl 243805 with fised or deferminabde payeeeils That e sal quobed in an active
mdrkel. Such aivets are recognined initlally a1 fair value plus sy directly atiributable Iransastion costs. Subdequent b
initial recognition, loans and receivables sne measured 31 amortized oost

Loy aned recenalies comgdise CaEh and cash equivalents, loana, trade and oghir recevables Jnd depasits.

(al Trade and other receivables

Trage and ether receseables are initally recognibed 33 cost which 13 the fair value of the condideration ghwen in
retum. Afer inital fecognition, thebe arg carmecd 1 cost bas impaken Icides, i any, due to un-collecrability of
Aty AMIUNE £5 FRCOEnined.

There is no ligd oompany golky regarding prowision for imgainment kas on recetvables, if any receivables. ane et
ralized within the credit period. It has been el with on cave 1o cate Basls.
b} Advances, Depodits and Prepayments

Adances asg initally Sesianed at cost After initial recopion, sdvances bre caried at cost less deductions,
adljustments o CRarges 10 22N aoount hesds suth as Property, Plant and Equigement, Inventary o Experaes.

Doty dig meddwred ak paymend value.

Peapaymants ane initially measwed a1 cost. ARer initial recopnition, prepayments are carried at cost hess chasges
1o profiz or keds
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feh Cash and caih egrivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise Cash on hind and demand dapedits, gt with short-tenm, highty ligusl
HmﬂWtlﬂfﬂﬂhlmﬂ“Hlmimﬂtﬂhlnﬁmﬂlmﬂmhﬂlnhmﬂtﬂ“mﬂ
changes in valkse. 1AS-1 “Praspniatesn of Finangisl featement”™ provides that cash & cash equivalenis are not
reatricted in ue. Cordideving the prérdgion of IAS-T £ 1A%-1 | cash in hand & baek balances hawe been considered
B Gk B cavh equnalents.

Available-Bor-sale

Aaalable-tor-sade financial 9ets are non-deriabve financial asets that are designated as ovailaiie for sale and are
nof claified in by Gthid tatbgeries of firuncial sasets. Generally avallable-for-sale financial sets are recognised
inflialy ar luir vkl pluf By Spctly allributable ransaction costs and subsequent to initial recognition at fair salue
and changis 1hddgin othir than impaement lssel ane redagelied i obher comgeehensive income and presenbed in
the fair walue resenee in equity. Financial asets whaoh ane a0l 1re3kd in thi market have Dibs valued ot €058 unbicks
any indacation of imparment in value of sxh Gnancial assers exil. Cumulithie gainleds mecognized in B other
OO e ha g Ioome 30 riciasailied Inomm dquety o Bidfn oF s upan densdognition oF reclasiication,

Fanisncial Lishildies

Thiy campany initially necognises. all francal liablites on the trade daie which i the date tee company becomet &
[ty b L COADrRCEuM prmﬂﬂﬂﬂw

The company Semecognises & Bruncaal Eabilty when its contractuad obligations are discharged, cancelied or supired.

The company dassifics non-dervative finanial lakslites inta the ot fnancial habdities. category. Such financial
haBelibis v redegnnied mdiply al L valee less dicectly atirbwutable bansaction coat. Subsequent 1o Inktal
s gfatian, 1P finandal Rabistes are measuned at amorbged coat

Oehie financial Babiagiet comprile loan Sod Bceromings, Bank owerdrafs and tradie and other payables.

[a) Trade and other payabiles

ek Covlefry fRCOgriais & findncisl Babilty when ity contrachasl obigations arising from past events are certain
s the sellement of which is expected 10 result in an pulfic Srom e Company of IERNOH SmBodying
OO B i

18] Dther liabilives

Ctfeey liallies represents the amounds due 12 Vangus paries lor mommang serices. Thase ane Mfﬂw
A Et which b thee Fiir wirlpe, Alber indiad recogndion these se carded 3t amortised cost.

ImpairmEn
Firanaiad Asyity

Financial assets are impained o ObeL g dviddnon indSalatirs [hed B o6 @vent had ofowmed after initial r‘ﬂﬂpﬂhn of
P @33atE and that ﬂ'ﬂmmﬁlhﬂlfﬂiﬁ'ﬂﬂrﬂlﬂﬂ Ehir edtimated futume cich Nlows of Ehat assets fhat can be
Extimabed relably.

Futancial adeets nefd dlakidied a4 at faw value tBeough profit or loss | including an inberest in an eguity acoounbed
el Are assissid 41 each reporting date o deberming whather there is objecthve evidence of Empairment.

Objiectin drvidendd thatl inancisl bisets bre impdined includes:

= ghedailt or definguency by a debooe

= FeSLCiuring of an amoust dug 1S B oamphity 60 erma Pl the domplry woold nod Londider otherwlse

- indicakions that 3 debbor or seser will ender bankrupicy

- adverie tharges o the payment stabes of Boerowers of lssuers

- the ditsppearance of an 3ot market 106 3 seOUnTy, oF

- e vale data mdicating 1hat thene (3.8 measurabie decrease in expected cash fiows from a group of

financial assets

For an investrment in an eguity weounty, ctyective evidence of mpairment includes 3 sipnificant of prolonged dechiee
i ity fadr value below its oot

Finanial Assets Measured at Amorticed Cost

The company considers evidence of imgairment for these assets a1 both an individual asset and 3 collective e, &0
waldsndually sigeefeied aiseli are mdividualy sdeiied Bor impairment. Collective assessment ks carded out by
Frouping 106G N Fviets wikh sevalar riskys characieratics

in ausesang colleotve impasmee, th (omgdny wies Rigtoical information on the timing of recoveries and the
amount o lows incurred, and makes any adjustment i curment econcenic and credin gondigiang arg such thay the scoual
lorses ane liloely 10 Do groater of ey than sugpeited By historical srgrd
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A impar ] bkt i caltulated as e Gilerence Betwern Bn 3557 Carnying Emount e thi pewiit wilss of Ehe
estimaned futung Caum Bow discoanted 1 e 235ets’ original eMective intenest rile, Lawies are recognized in profi of
i and reflecned in an Miwieds sicount When the COMpary [ONSiSers That there i no realistic prospects of
reconeery of thir auked. the relevant amousas are writben off. IF the smcunk of impairment 1043 SublequEntly Secrta s
and the decrease Can be relibed oljectvely to 3n evenl DICUITInG aMed R impderimdcd wil recognized, then the
prvisusly ietogaized impalnment b in revevsed theosgh peolit o laas.

Awplable fee Sabe Financisl Ayt

Impainmeent eases o9 aviilable for e Bnancal 245015 a6 redegiaded By feclbistying the kases acoemilased in the
Tar vakue reverve Do prolil or ks, The amaont reclisified b5 the difference DeTaen th dguisiticn ool (ned of any
piincipal repayesmt and amariication) and the curent Tai walue, s By impainment o grevicealy recognired in
profit o bows i the 1ai valkee of an mpaied svailable lor sale debt spourity rLBqBaUESSH IRSEIAEE Sad ERE Intreade
3 b related DORECURER 10 a0 el i alter the imp 2Nt Wt was recopsited, thin e ergarment los s
tirweried thiceagh profil or las othenwise, iU i reversed thideagh ofr Sosvter b indome

e Financisl Adiets

The carrging amountis of the company’s property, plant sl equipsant Mg feviewed 1 each reporting dabe 10
datermine whether there b dey indcation of imparmens, IF any wech dication ©xiis Un i groprty, plant and
eqUiETEN S MeCoETable ImOunt is FSeRabed, An iSpakmend ket is recognized if the cannying amount of an seet or
ek csh-pangrating unit esceeds (D ReCovwTIE AMOUN. IEgaiment ioiiry, IF sny, are recogniped In the sctsmeen of
Erofit or koas, Other Compnihisiing indome and squity a applicaiie.

Tranaactagnd with Relaped Companies

Thirie represent balanoe amousts due 10 frem sater oonoenm which are derraed from short s laan, wlefpurchase
of goodi om bme 1o bme. Sakes and purchase of goondy ane maSe on aim's kength Basis and byt sew charged on
cutitinding balanteh. TRese balances ane uiietuned bl comildired good and realiable.

Share Capital

Paid-Lip=Capital figediants tolal amound contrBubed by e shanihodders b Biviag shiees Miuved by the company bo
tha crdinary shareholders. InCPemantal coati deectly aftrbutable b the issue of codinary Shanes ane necoprloed o
eapinidirt Bi and when inturred. Holders of ordinary shanes &g enttled 1o receive dividends. 2 declared from T oo
time and s entitled bo woie 20 shaneholders’ mpetisgs. bs the awent of & winding up of the company, oidiniry
shareholdes deni 2R 3 gther sharehoiden. Credoors are Tully entited 62 by geddeidi of liguidation belore all
sharghoiders.

Emgloyee Boneda Schemes
mwwmmmmdmmmmﬂwmmmnmmmmw

Defined Contrilsetion Man

A defined contribution plan i 2 post-amploement BeneSs plan wdes which the company pays faed contribution g
2 peparasi Hund 3nd will have i lgal of Lonsliedthe abligation o pay hurther amount. The company maineaing the
Frogreed Frowident Fosd for 8 permanest employees ot whith both the company and empleyess contribule @
1w of Basc walary. The Emplopnes’ Providest Fund was obtained recognition Trom income Tax Authority on 08
Sugust HLE which win elfectve from 01 baly 2006 and is considersd i defined condribution plan as it meets the
Pesognitian critbiia ipecified Tor this purpoue i 14519

Gblgation dor contribution 1o defined costribution plan o recogrised aa prowident Tund (PF) contribulion gxpemies. i
ﬂﬂ‘ﬁl#-rlv'.'m-I1Iﬁlmruunn;-mmmuutwuﬂqmmmmﬂhm“n
apeet b0 o Ealenl AL & cash ipfund or a rpduction in Bpture payments B svailatia.

Digdvssiidl Beetiedil "lan
Tese Compay Sintang g ynfunded pratuity scheme and provation in neipect of which i made 23 per acturlal report.
Cranuiity pargbie 3% the end of each year i detesmined On ther Badls of follering fubic it regutations of the comgany.

Harwicg ngth Basmning basks
Lirii thaaii Fivetr (5] yaig L
For P [3) yedds Jnd mdde T |2 1iets. ol Bail medenth Bases dalary sedtiplied by year of senvices
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1.10.00 Werkery' Profit Parkcipation and ‘Wiellare Funds

rar

Tha company Sl recognisel 3 provison b Wadien' Proli Participation and Wellare Funds @ 5% of net prodie
tepfore cas in accordandd with the prgreben of Seciion 734 (Pa), Chapoer 15 of Bangladesh Labow Liw 2008,

rspzemi Taa [ psenaey
ﬁlimﬂmm{umwMHLMINIMMerWHM¢r“W
0 the exbent Ehas It relaies o0 ibems fecognibed dinedly o bguity o in other comprehentive income,

512,01 Cwerent Tax

P8 FX

ERE ]

Ba

ks

LS L
31801

Coarrgnt Lix i the expected tan payable or recefaitie on the tasable income or k3ss 1or e yide, wiing rates enscted or
wbsmannally endiled 3 he reportieg date and sy adjusimend b tax gayable in respect of prevacus yeies. Thi
Comparry srall pay 35% 00 manamum i under seotion B2 (0] of thy indors Tax Grdinands 1984

Dalenied Tas

Deferred tam s recogrized in compliance with A5 12: insof B, providing for semporary differences Bebween the
GANTYINE amounts of 35515 and Ralilees for Andacial reperling puiposes and amount used Tor laxation punposes.
Dedifrad tax b5 mpaiored ol the tax rabes fhat ae especied t0 be applied 1o the seegorary dMfarinces wien thiy
PEred e, Basid on thi Med thn hive been enacied or substandreely enacted at the reporting date. Deflerred i assees
and Natalities ave offset il thene i 2 begally eadorcoalie right 1o offoet curfent Lax labiites and 25015, and thay relate
50 income taes bevied By The Suthonty on th & Lol nkity,

& deferred Lix dsse b recognitnd 1o the extent Bat it 4 probable that Suture taable profis will be available aganst
wiich the deductible wmporary differences can be utiized. Defenred [ d4ett 3re neviewed 38 each reporting date
and arg reduced fo the extent Fat it & no longer probabie that thi related Ta Beneln il be reaised

Prowisions and Contingimsiay

A prossion IS recognibed @ the Suntemang of Fiancial Paltion when the compasy hat 3 legad o comraciual
cblgaticon as 3 retuli of 3 past event. it & probable hat an outldne of ooncsid BeneEel will be reguined 1o seitie the
chigaten s & neluble eitimate can be made of the amount of the oblgation. Contingendies arising feom claimg,
Iigationy, axeeasments, S, penditar @10, re riorid witen (L it probable that 3 liasilty hat Bees incurrpd and thy
amoens can be reasorably cutimaned. ConBnpant kot ki ol recognined.

Rivenue
Hivers o recopiced when seosce Por produces and seneces b made and thip digrificant chik aoed rewaed of
omnuptihip are trandfered to the Oatomens, recovery of the convderation is proballe, aasociated oxies and poitible

TERuT OF Go0ds (a0 b dilmaled rlubly, e & no mnbinuing management involvement with the goods. and the
Evaiumt of i Cin b mpsred relubly, The fve siep moded haa been compbed in cide of PEvbft IGCOEATTIOA!

Tewr timing of The braemifier of risk and rewards Sepend on the ingevidual ered of th Sk Sgrenmant.

Spwdific policies regarding the recogretion of ievemee are a5 folloan:

Rewenue brom sales of goods

Rirwindeos Ircem Bbe wibie oF pocci shall be recognived when all the Solloming condnions have bien satifipd:

a} the entity hag fransfermed 1o the buyer the signilicant risks 2o revwidds of ownerihip of thg pecds ind Cuslomer
obbaing conteod of the poads;

b} it i procabbe tSat & dgahcest ewenial in Bhe dmount of furmulative revenue recognied will nod oooe

€] O @imadunt of iedriung Can B mediuned opkabiy;

dl i i probable that thi eoomemic Benelns 25500 ned with D Basiscton will Nigw 1o the entity.

Diher Operating income

Onher operating income inchudes inbereal income on delayed receipls fom Curomeds, gain J {lds) of sie of Smed
Aagti and mindeilaneds receiply. Dther cperaling 00 i ReCognTed a5 MEVENUE INSOME ki and when realined,
Fingege Incomae 3nd Expifried

Finasde InComa

EAEvest income o0 Futd Deposn Recsipts (FDR) and Shod Ters Degaditi (ST sScount hii Been recognined on cash
st and sty Sue bom FITEaed (hmnganied iy sofiued on 8t proportion bands by reference io the principal
eAviErsing at the efective rate of INEnest aiphuabile.
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o sffilated companies eacept expermes related 10 stgquiition/oamisntion of saets, incurred during the poriod are
charged 10 Sapement of Pralil o Low aeed Other Comgeetnshed Inceme on accnsal baws.

Boaroring Codts

nfereis and oiher ooan mcurned by the (ompany in connecton with th borowing of fundi are recognired as
ERpETEE i D g nowhich they e incuited, unliss duch Borrgwing cost nelaies 00 aoquisiton § cosdbruction of
ARLERS i progres That sre capitalaed 5 pev 145 23 "Barrowing Coali®, Bormowing cost incunied agairs ks foe BRE
prayect has Been capitaized under effictive interest rate method.

Fouelgn Currency Transattions

T eRaad mi Farekgn curencioy are Sramdsied bo the fetiesal turfendy (BOTY a5 eschange rates a1 the dabes of
b o, MOnety auets and RibiStes denamngted in fomign cumencis 1 Peparing dube soe re-trinidabed inte
Barglidesh Faka 37 the evthange ratirs ruling Jt the reporting gale. Nom-osdTiry kidets snd kabalitiss dencminated
in Tongign curisnciis, 15ated at hatorical CosL, an Dramildted ises Bangladeh Taka at bra ESChag® rale nolifg oY B
date of remacon. Foreign esthinge differences arisng on ranslaton aee resognised in prode or loss.

Earnings Par Share (DP5)

That company calgulidi ith earnings per shane in accondance with inemational Acooentieg Standaed 14533 “Exnings
oot Shaee” which hat besn reponed on the face of Statesent of Profit or Loss and Ofhey Comgrehensiag INcoss.
[Badtis ol Earnings

This rigeesents prafit for the year albritetable to ordinary ihargholders. A1 thene i B0 prefenence dhdidend, non.
ostraling interest or esira onfinary ibems, the rat ol adter ax flor the vear has Been comidened fully attributatie
0 the ondnary sharphoider.

Basi Earsdngs Per Share

The ha Been calfulited By dviding the Bask camings by e woighted seerape number of ordinary shases
piibEanding Suding e yiedr

Peleasurement of Fair Waluey

WP Midduring the R wadue of an aaset o labdity, th ensity vies market cbaenable data as far as posuble. Fair

waikari afe categovized inlo different bevels in 8 e value Werarchy Based on e iNpuls wied in B vilussion
pechnbgpeees a5 fodiows.

Liraed 1 Cwobed prices futadjuitind] in actve marke . for ientecal assets and Rabibsiss.

Lirwed I Inputs othr than gustid priced inchaded in Leved 1 that ane shesnvabile Sor the S10ek o¢ Rabdity, aithie
darectly fie. 25 phiged] & indeectly (e devived from prices)

Lewd § Inputs for e Iridel of khbdity Bhat sne rod Based on cbsenable maike) dita,

i the ingads used 1o measune Thic Tir vaker of an it or llability might be categorized s different bevels of the Tair
walue Rlerancty a5 thee FawaEst Ml stgut Bt iy significant to the enlive measar et

Fropey, plast s equipment

The falr value of ind and laind development of progeny, pin and equipment Bas been determined Based oo bt
Faaizadie Value Methodf Rariet Valus ethod degending on the rabee and coriespanding drcumitances.

Lvents Afver the Beporting Pericd
Ewudils aftir IR reporting pencd thal piowvide adasional infmation about the coepany's pesition st the date of
Sttt of Fnanclal Polion of thos Bhat indicabe the going toncem asumption i not sppropriate aoe refected in

tha Fimangial Stabemenis, Event afve Bhe reporting pesiod Bhat are not 20jUsSUIng cvents ane discloed in the notes
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_ M0juse 3019 30 hene DO1E
Rl Taks Talka
50E Imargide aidel
Computer Softwmang |Deaaie EdR] b1 iS5, §65, 377 1000
S T T I Y
=]
Digarrura Dalsrae 26545 ELY M ESE RID
Aulel AokdUhnems Ghir e 1he iar " =
Ciorng balance T6.606.017 16,545 BAT
Aggufmulaled smortiston
Ll i Bl B BEE 191 AR DGT
AQG gt il Quisg Do phis 2900 I T3 Tad Mk 144
L1 e Y
Creng Dakange 11.4EL 535 BARL T
Carvying amaunt 15,168,377 17,905,001
. L,
G40 Capial wodk-iegrogress
Dpening Baissgn BE2TIAZE SELI 106
R hadnisnay dunng the pre [ A1 a0 135 DGE PEAL) T
IRE SO0 404 BaE,
L Capatakyed dorng the year B0 !5!!5& [0 0T
271,132,196 B8 212 A2E
GRL  Derasls of Capital woriin progress
Doeang Caphtaliced Cleaing
Farticulars
Addii o . -
Factery buddng and shed ST140L012 150,180,655 . TIT. AR BT
Bayurairy wall, dianage 1osd 11,79 3 4583312 16,774 955 -
Pl andl b e s LIAR AR TEA11L0EL 13,091,382 54 JEDIAT
e r L gupment 49432 - . ARAIT
4. LA 14,048 TEY = 14,048,781 r
__BITiATe 1301F5, 048 54,715,090 R Ry
Thgse conty inglusi cos inpened nitialy 10 COMBUD groperty, Blin and equigment PP | ComBrudion cosls are bambered
fo PP whasn they porairuDi=n o Coveplened .
B2 hune DFLF WY jura 20HE
Mie]s| Taka Taka
TO0  nvenlones
Faririhed gods B3, 530, pin 1616400811
e mabefisty nm FESEEEE R 4,540 520,761
More and spanes T ERLANTART EDDBE2AATY
Coruma bl s gty rol STA. M 9T LO0E B57, 255
Figir] ared badoded 2en14, 17007, L4 E!!J‘H,.!ﬂ
SO SO0 95596, B T
rol R manerisls
L e 2,144 530,917 & 008, T7E Ok
Sporge o £E0,252.813 L1043 M
2,608 253, 140
02 o and gpanes
Marckanical ilores FFLASETD 560,551, 1345
Ehpctrical ilores ITT AR 506 ITEATL 0TS
Cmval nigrgy Hloie ] 18815 131
Geprepral sigers £518,1%0 | HAE A ]
et g &71, 188 -
Crrers, - 4.5, R4
e R
e Cma—




30 Jurss 2000 50 June I01E

ﬂﬂ Taka Taka
T0)  Cosdumables and others
Diseck consumablies 124,100552 353,974,164
Cordumsble slores | ihers) 1520702 A%7,902, 282
Lining matisiak 135, 2628597 194,820,609
Ciope G5 EER I8
TR YT TROGESTIEE
ey TS ——
30 june 2015 30 June 2008
704 Quantitathve movement of raw matedials aod finished poods. hetric Tan M_:‘I.rk'l'm
Haw Materials
Dpienig balinge 173, 680,00 BAITALIG
Addid: Purchasedimponied durieg ks year Bis 61793 101810079
Arailalde for consumplicn 1,093,307.93 LOERG5.0%
Lexs: Comisumied duirg 1 yiar [533,002.25) (BE5EAZ 6T
Leess: Sobd durning thae yaar [20.091.36) {13,746.38)
Chosing balance B0, 194 3F 133 680 040
Finished Gogds
Dpering Bulance ERAAE &G I24.6TE 3%
Add: Produged duting The year Ba3.241 5 850,543 &%
Suock availably for iale 98212484 985,211 43
Lirss S0 dhtinig Ryl |51, 611 061 [FEG. 33T HT]
Lesse Lisgd by L anbiy 1t it 201 -
Chosing hakmes T TTETY
30 June 2018 30 June 3008
Taka Taks
B00  Trade recehvables
Bangladesh Steel Re-Boding Mils Limited EH1.E43,753 1135535
(SR Sl Limered B 268053 BE1 L EST D40 3ET
DHb SuilesTips FE_ITI AT (XD
ST TR
e e
0,00 Oiker receivables
meret neosivable on e ooy Kan 147,575,256 161,845,935
Elre insurance claim 12504, 105 16.71% 354
Miscelancous 6900 &,900

U TiasTe

1005 Oue lFom related companies

B5AKT S0ees LLa 4,924,790,154 L5007 68
BEAMY Wire LD 080,453,143 157,734,026
H Akbevali & Co 97,200,450 -
BSAM Iipat Limited 1003, VRE 30 .
BSAM Mlistal Lomilipd 7B 535.55¢ -
BERM Recyching Induitiied nEed 5,300 000 .

OB ABSEIS — LENTMGLITA

Thsiriar réarrient whorl berm loars ghven to thess telifed compankes as and when regured 18 meet funding requicement. A1

IPRTRISTHAIS WETE DONC ErOUEh Banung channel and mbereits were charged on 30 relded companiss balances. Mo amesst s
reomvalie rom Dreclaes 51 1Re reporting dale
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15 june 2019 30 June 2018
Mte(i) Taka Taks
1100 Advances, deposils and prepayments
Advanies 10 1365 607,816 2,264,535.568
Daposile 1102 Er LR 81,322,342
Pripaymaent 1103 15.956.453 E 725 120

3,372,701 438 L.F4,530,080




30 Juna 2018 M Juns 1018

Notels) Taks Taka
1101  Advances
Eor capital expenditure 427,486,147 B4 B52, 136
F Pinaiiue i genes 45071 453 55 772,275
For anong and Spaes 134, 584009 5492447
FOF Inirimadng 2,500,000 .
Aaingt LI 9338, 1S 31167157
Gudfantie Mafgin LASLEET 167,978
Gt s 30000 638,500
Advangs ingomes Tas 1nam 2,471 510,052 1,530 851 802
Advance Tas (VAT] 71,540,459 .
T Margin 33,590,932 ‘96 318,306
Lo Laas againgt Salary . 3,520,000
WAT Current Account 2,614,713 3 440,173
B e
110101 Advance income taa .
Openeg balancs 1,530,851, 802 bBT1557 336
Add- Paiddeducbed during the yoae S35 582 344 B79.071.8375
Lirss; Adjuited during the yoar (4%, 324.034) {20.517.503)
2,471,510,052 1,530,851, 802
1102 Depouis
Security ceposits in:
Bangledesh Power Developmant Boaard 901,000, 000 D000, 000
QORI EsliDuiies 455,689 535842
Shipping apenis 55, 500 B85, 500
T SRR
T dhrddlors (oeiidipr 1BaL A1 Ik abowe advarced and depoiits sre eilher sdpilable of recoversble in cash o in kind and
L gy g p & agierind ham are regeared ab Ehis st
Whune 3019 _ 30 dunc 018 _
Factefs) Taka Taks
1108 Prepayment
Frepald insurance 11,555,433 E.785,120
lﬂﬁ Euﬁ

1200  SRaad bedms investments
s berrenids in e Degeond Recoepds 1201 1.7E3 & 861 1,316,310 481
1,723.216,461 1,316, 930.441

1381 Investments in Fixed Depasit Receipts
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Namag of hr"ﬂd- Purpose Tenure Rate of inbesedn Taka Taka
lAralah islaerd Bank Lveed LI MAss g 3 Fafithd .00 - 7.00% IE 551 465 A% 155 000
Agrani Bank Limited L Mangin 3 monihs 5 TEN 10} B2 000 L7 1R 112
Ba Asia Lemided LfC Margin 3 rnceriiha & D0 11857951 29,855 440
Commaengial Bank of Ceylan LIC Margin 3 maeilhg 5.00% - 7.00% Yo TA0 813 "
Diraka Bank Limetpg LI Mangin 3 migeriiha 5.50% - B.75% 134855, 058 1743082
Duaach Bangls Bank i bid LC MAarnrk 1 mafithd 550 185245, 531 79, BO5. 745
BFIC Bank Lirmicisd LIC Musg 3 ednitha T 43,135 668 40,413,323
Hiami Bard Bangiadesh Limiled LT Margn ¥ manihg £41% 43,039,550 a5, Fen 000
Jamuna Bk Limited L/C Margin 3 manihs 5 S0 Td 438 362 52978454
Mercanlile Bank Limided LT Margan 3 mroenilha 5 009G 158 30,970 TB.517 152
Mlukusd bruad Bani Limited LIC Mar g 3 moniths b.50% - B.50% 2B 153 319 26,697 S5
HCC Bard Limitgd LI Margin 3 manihs B.00% FLTELE7 25,500,956
Hatsansd Bank Limibed WE Marpin Y maniha 6 0o , TEREORE
Oni Bank Lenipd LIC Margin i by 4T4% 13,050,193 11,369,507
Pubai Banik Limiled L Margn B manihd Ao 67,306,449 18,943 5065
Shahjsial ami Bank Limited L Moo 3 mcenitha 6.D0F% « 5.50% &2 130,098 6,520,819
Seatie Bask ol 1ndia LfC Margin 11 rasthg 7.00% - 7.50% AR 911 21,824 F¥5
Sezanh Eadn Back Limited LfC Margn 3 maniha ¥ g 11,976 450 13,622 505
Tra Ciby Bank Limitgd LI M iy 3 monihd 5 50 3606112 2hLBaE T
eyt Bank Limiled L Margn I mantha G000 - 7.00% £1.232.568 EER- i
Unied Commeercial Bank Lmeted LC Marpn Imantha T 121,500,369 204, 145575
LHE g Haei Lormiled LIC Marga 3 moniha b O 15 908,637 B.00E.05

i AEL I NGO AN
J ; . H‘\.




T 30 June 2018 30 June 1018
Noteds) Taka Taka
1559 Cash and cash equivalenis
Cash = hang 1301 3ITEEG 05, 119
Caih 39 bardey 1100 TTASLIN 14,944,137
778311 74,848,365
13.00  Cash in hasd
Conparate oflice 153,393 1Xr 15
Factory olfice 174,226 3RLAT
327,618 05229
15,07 Caih ag banks 3 hung 2009 30 e 2008
o Hame of the Banks Branches Bcoount Type Taka Taka
AB Bank Limibesd Aprabad G re 209721 1,943
Agrani Bask Limited Laldighi East Ciarrges . 54,296
Al Arafah 1alami Bask Lenied Agrahad Current 18,592 14,245
Bank Al Falahy Lirmcid Agratad Currem - T 286
Band A5is Lirednid Agr gl Current A1 465 29,006
Commarcial Bank of Ciylon Agr st Curren G199 133,520
Dbk Bank Limited Jubikes Aoad Curnend 344,568 1450150
Bubch Bangla Baek Limided Jubikes Road Curneng 855,900 148,204
Eastern fank Limiled Agratad Curnenk 5,946,075 1,056,507
Habd Bank Lenaed Agrabad Cunngng - 5 178,629
IFI Baek Limiled Agrabuad Cunrent 50840 34,653
Iskarmi Bank Bangladeis Lirited lubéee Road Curneng T00RFR 267,504
Istaenvl Bank Bangladeis Limited Barayerhat Current 1415783 569,997
Islgrm Dank Bangladesh Limines Hiad Difige Curent . 11,180
Mmagng Bank Limited Ehatunjen] Current 105 531 12.71%
Migghna Sk Limited Pringipal Current 45,700 55,3850
bdercantle Baeh Lmiled hibdor Boad Cufepnl . 1,10%
Soauad Trugl Bank L Begd Dhanmand: Curripnl 15,966 2L11&
Wlotuad Trusl Bank Limebied OO Avenug Carripdil &34 a2 SE6TS
Wational Bank Limited izl g Cifrisil 74,155 HE351
REC Bani Limited Ajprabad Gt E 61,831 TEL
One Bank Limaed Aprahad Ciwrerd 52,687 136783
Prameer Bank Lmaed Aprabad Currend 150,625 151,92%
Primg Bank, Limiled OF Mizen Road [V 1] 1,348 a7 .
Primg Baak Limited Agrabiad Ciur g 1,210,779 115,923
Peimig Bk Limited 0& Mizaen Road Curignl 3,191 5307
PFutali Bank Limited Agrahpd Curngnt 49p "
Figoali Bank Limned ks Currant bO6. 453 131,912
Shanjaiad Islaemi Bank Leniled lubilge Road Curneng 240,906 47,806
Socil Islaeni Bank Levtipg lubilge Road Curment L LR ] 234,230
Sonbd Bank Limibed Ealinari Cursénk 12,587 2000
Sonsl Bask Limibed Mirasarai Currant 42,815 43,066
South Eal Bank Limsted Pahaitai Cureent w5 FR ]
Date Bank of india Agrabad Cureent Lous 47,274
Standad Bank Lirsefed Ladarghat Cureent L1 902
Saowithe Eadd Barlk Lirri i Pahaetali Cwrreale - 158,925
The City Bank Limited Agrabad Cudrenl 118.73% a3 7,882
Tes Ciby Bank Limited Gulihss Crarent 85,026 BEELE
Thsg Ciby Banvk Limabed Gutihaa Carent HALlD "
Tesir Ciby Bink Limdbed Gulitas Crarent 23350 LA
Tk City Haw Limibed Gulhar D 170,356 17.197
Tret Cily Bl Lirnitgd Guban [T:1a] 40,763 41997
Trust Bank Lisnilied COA Aweniue Cuorrii #4219 EAI0
Wesnied Canmprgial flank Limibed Jubsles Agad Clarrin 123414 3343
Jitara Bank Limided Afdatad Currera a0 1,538
T azasLEer 73,343,137
- ——

Al bdnk balardes are reconcilig with Bank sLalemenis

>
[a'=
<
(]
(72}
o
jun)
w
[T
o
[=2]
—
o
N
=)
™
AN}
=
>
-
=
o
(]
[IT}
o
=
[¥w}
[a=
<T
[iw}
>
AN}
pu
==
[a'=
o
[
w
-
<
(&)
=
<C
=
[T
4]
—
o
o
o
[TT}
[a'=
w
[a =
o
=
(=]
ju)
<<




¥ june 2013 30 June 2018

Teka Taka
14.00 Share capital
Authwariied caghal;
00,000,000 Ordingey Shadred of T 10 sach 1§00 000, 000 5, 000,000,000
T
Issued, Substribed and Paid-up capital;
¥l 435,400 Ordimary Shawes ol T L0 sach My paid-up 3,544 354,000 B0, R 000
3,544, 354,000 1,944, 554,000
14,01 Sharehelding poiition
30 June 1019 30 bung 2008
Parcentage of Mumber of Pergentags of Numbaer of
b ol shareholders helging shares. hodding whares
Mr. Abhaiiain Akberali [1E:05 2540, 675 [=X-2 5.1 I 541675
B, Baeme Alinusian I 9335 400 2137% B115.400
B 2phaw 1akarak 1. T8 7,032,097 1.78% TOkL a7
M. Tolisorn Fohair Taherali 03T 1,477,300 0aM% 14T 300
Brs. Balis Alihussah 3T0% 10,545,728 1.70% 10,645,728
Blrk. Spirs Adarpir 004 176,660 Quoam 176, 660
H. Albrali & Co, Lrmitisd 1122% 44, 264,600 1.22% &4 26, 500
Mir_ Abdul Qo Fodger [alElL 33,340 B0l 33,340
KAr. A% Aqghar Badruddin L0 3,160,000 .80% 1 150,000
ety Albbas jumani [alii. . 0oa% B0, 000
Mr. Shifiadcin Abbas Urwala 0 00% . 4.53% 15, 100,000
Fali gbal Fysgain 000 ' 5.10% 20, 100,000
M Sabibar Bacudain AITCIvwala 271% 38,300,000 000 "
BEHMA Sleels Limided 2%.35% EC0, 000, 000 25.35% 1650, 000,000
Bangldesh el He-Foling Mils Limited 44.097% 177,364,600 44.97% 177 364,600
BSRM Foundation 003N 100,000 03N i
N0 DO, B4 ANE 400 L.llﬂi 394,435,400
30June 2009 30 bune 018
15.00  Long term borrowings -{ Syndicate term loan) Moteds) Tahs Taka
Local {(BOT] 15.02 1,935,821,506 3,041, 77,480
Foregn (USD) 15.08 $24,545,455 1,536 363,638

—LESOIELIEL SN
1501  Long term boerowings -Matarity analysh

Dot wiithin oone yarar

Symdanid bern baan-[BOT) 15.02 1.1015,545,557 1,105,945, 557

Syndated torm loan-{LrsD) 1503 616,353 636 609,050, 909
1,.722,309,193 1,715,035 466

[hae alNer Ghe year

Syredaated ferm koan-|BO1 | 15.02 219 876,348 LOEE £38 023

Syrediabed term loan-(LISTH 15.0% 303,181,819 QETITA LD

1,138,050, 168 863,039,652

1502 Leng Term barrowings -Losal
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AB Bark Limited 19,408,361 52 458,697
Agrani Bank Lemifed 96,489,050 151,540,000
Bangldeih Commeroe Bank Limited 29,004, 54% &5 550,000
Banglidash Dinibapmant Bank Limited 28,955 137 5. 500.B4T7
Bank &l Falah Limiled 18,950 545 45,500,000
AL Bank Limited 38,455,447 E0400. 151
Dihpien Bank Limiled 19,408 050 300,500,000
IDLE Finandd Limiled B, 05 050 150, 500,000
PO Bangladeyh Landed 2B.255 544 45,515,000
Inlarre lank Bangladesh Limibed 05 56T O3 E37,.446.050
Jamuyna Bank Limited DB 434, 050 150,525,000
Lania Bangla Finange Limaed W6455,090 151,550,000
Whghna Bank Limited 4. FEE.506 V6,0 EE 00
WharLanlile Bask Lemiled =T a3i.610 91,011 %33
Whsual Trugt Bank Limped ¥ . 6406 025 151496 5354
O — s 57,509,001 91,000,000
g L1
2
) e




30 bune DOAT 30 i 2018

Taky Taka
1582  Losg Term Borrormings -local
Prevmier Qank Limited B 492,450 151,584 400
Friosg: Bank Limined 57,908 091 S, 000 000
Pyl Bank Lissted 154,333 082 M2.515.000
TARINCD il J3T 3L &0, 500,000
Sowth a1 Bank Lim#ed Ok, 4 30 063 151580670
The City Bank Limiled L4 T RLG L7 A9 971
Tt Bank Lissbe DEALLEIG 15145819
1500 Lewg Tenm Barrerming -Fomign
Luport imgort Bank of india, Inda AGLITETR TR 1R B9
Staresand Chartened Bank, Londss AL IT2 TIT Tea, 151 EBEY
T GI45a5A55 1596363630
1804 Terms of Syndicats tenm bormowing
LEnders.
Thee campany eAEHed bE & Syndcaled kdn agreememt 1o et we o 362000 1ons per annum {TPA] el melting & biles
cailing plant o Senspahar, Mirsaral, Craitogram and managed iis fisance theough & syndicate dels dcility with Tha City
Bank Limited, IOLC Fisance Limited and Stindaed Charvered Bank in "joint masciibed bnad seranper” s 27 [Twenty Tweo]

oiker local and foreign Banks and Finangial inslitubgng

Total lpan tagilitieg;

The wyndicaton finaning comprnes BT, 5 508 milkos and LSO facility of &80 miliss only fey implemantation of the steel
mickag ol

INbEFekl rabe:

Bor _ Mlnel0ls _ 30dume 2018

Dankeing instivetions | & Term kenders) 11.50% 10.50%

Nos Bashitg Mitduticed (B Ters lendea ) 12.00M 1200

tslami Bank Bangiadesh Limited (HP5M bondiers) 12.00% 12.00%

LizD

Eupaaft Impant Bank of Indus, Indis Wargin 4. 35% = [ monlhs LIBOR

Bandged Chariered Bank, Losdan Waegin 4 25% « 3 months LIBOR

Interett puy side

Iniliefsl i paryalle quarterdy | 11a Maech, 10th June, 100 Seplember and 115 Decembsr] dnam the date of 11
diamiidimn,

Ceabasrpemt

Firt Dabareansent of BOT made on 13 Madeh 2004 aod 1250 on 23 8arch 2014,

ReEpayments

Pringipal amoent undey the B80T asd USD reren loan (aciliey 1500 be repaid in 1 (bweaty twal sgeal quartery
sitabimanli. For BOT lagility, repayment from the ead of 2151 moegh of the dapeof §51 drawndosn and e USD Tasliy,
Irgm (he gnd of 21 mosth of Use Sale of tagiing 1he Raclilie agreement and bolh will end on thee Bt monih and the
Dalance amgund, # arry thall e paid in o nsialmess

ETunier

Regitered Morigage on 35,0565 acres ind of BSAM Steel Ml Limited and 38785 scres Lind of Chittagong Power
Conmrpary Limibed {saler ovmgany] along with Building snd @ingctuney construcied of to be constructed therean o fint
ranking pan passu bash and hypotheraton of metlinedie, humiture & fafures and Cguipmend.

Purpase:

T procune pant, machifsry, fquip and et aled g 20 eel Mrectwes nelaing 10 the prepet dnd B
Tl Crell COMINealTiiet 8 ol eupeniey requred lor implementalon of sleed meltng plant.

1504 isdereak rate weap bor hedging
The Company sdopi @ polecy of enswing mDEeL rabe sk Fupaiung 6t fiaed rade By endering inSo intenesl rale swap b
Raedgng wilh Mandad Chaioed Bank, Bangladeb
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Stardard Charered Bank of London Lum: Bank ol Indis
Efeaive Dane 31 March DOLE 31 March 2016
Termination Dake: 11 Decomber 2130 11 Depembar 200
Finpd Wate- 1 F00% P Frasigm 800 i dAnum
Floating Rae Opan: 0D LIBOE BRA WD LIBOR- 988
Deeriigpna ood Bniat ity hTE O & Months
(o™ TN
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1505 Terms and conditions of eiher term bodrowings
Typee of Tacilithes: Snot term igan

Intenesl rale:

InerdEl il 4. 505 po 13 0000 g batom £aigulaled a0 quivtivly BiEd and varibly Sepsnding of thi HTution of ey
[FT T

Securitien

11 & fest prioray Moatag charge ower all Roatng assets including stocks, book delis, accounks, insursnce policy of the
LompdTy dong with power fo w8l o the aofurdence of delault.
a}  Letier of Fypothecation
b Merecoverable genetal power of atiorney

I} Assigneeen of benelits in favour of the working cagital Financiess under all insuranoe poficies over the assels of the
Cormpary,

3} Unal Charge Dooaments e
ab Angn dembnd ooy ngbe in Tingod of he serking S financiprs and & Lefier of CONGRUITION in PPt
of Thit 1asdl promnsory nale.

A Corporale gulraniee rom H Akbgral and Co. Limiled.

51 Perspngl guardnbor Mom Bhe Direcions ndded beiow
al Wy, Alihussaes Akbergh
Bl M Aarvepir Aldwisen
g} Mir. Zohais Taberal
@] Mre Tehspen Zphair Taksrah

>

[a'=

=<

2 T30 June 2009 30 bane 2018

2 Taks Tak

7} 2000 Due fo related companies

é Bargladeth Sres! Ap-Rodhing Mils Limned OB BOS £1T7 BG5S 0L 5AY

(<) BEEM Logrsind Limsted B0, 733 000 v

2 .

N =

o

$ Thsiria Bailangdd rpradant 15adE Qenm Beangial srrangimes] Svdlid Trom felBled Companies 34 and when fequingd 1 mast

% wirking £apial snd intecen weee dhirped on sutitanding Balisded. All IrhaiBetiond ware mbde idugh basking channel

=

= 1103 Advance against rales 315013858 19,143,317

B Tkl PibPiEIENE JOVEADEE FOCereid INaTn SEMerent Sarieh Jgaait Sales. Goodts Pl not Dk delhined 1D Chiem within tha

% g hng year

5 1200 Liabilties for expenses

« BoaSl Fiorrs 203,500 THO000

w g roatd il iy 22,885,150 5. 158 551

= Contractors and logiatics payable 5.011.008 19175452

g Clearing and Farwading bl 7,609,833 4,137 457

w Gk hiapia dpaniis 276,714 2ET, 182

4 EHRDIFICITY @D A56, 241 480 G006, 406 400

= Prirting and S1aticreris 190,050 1,920,400

<2: Prolessronad oagengss B33, 700 w017

= Salary sl Alcraances 799,000 3T R

: I'ravedhing and Conssrrance 167,000 13800

— Intevest payabie 17,248,104 4L BIEITL

s Othen 78,521,139 67,593,224

i Handing Cranpes Puyable 1,705 203 -

o mﬂl ﬁlﬂ:ﬂ

@«

o

e 23,00 Prewision for indame lax

g Opering Balance 46 263,336 H0,817,509

<T Add: Prowded Sunng the year IX1 91,515 45 263,336
Add; Fngr Year Adjusbmeni 758 .

_!Eﬁﬂr ETHLET

et et pursled wekh advance inoome Lam pad #1 source Mﬂﬁﬂ !EIE?MI
Cledeng baldngg 317,911,515 45,263,336

e al ingorswr Lax i§ 35% bul prdvidion has bieen mmmp’mmm Taet rrinirmum i with thi aapScable 1ax rae i e
DLE0M under section B2C (da) of Incoene Tax Ovdinanoe, 1984, a5 tax on gross receipts & higher of both tan caloslated on
reguar rabe and lax deducted at o oF undaer section B30 [2)
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30 e 1039 B3 b PO

4L00 Contingesl labditier

4101 Bank guarsstess
P L i Bl s, Lomea] 1 2. 2000 LRI

Thi shoi P aniney have badmn e agaim 1000 cah mangie,

4103 Financal irirusents: Tnancil ik managesest

Intgrrational Ninanoal Reporting 15 [T L% ¥ Cesiouanes - (eguenm dodimune = irfsrmataes relalsg 1 Both
griced and i Fruestiad i, B 1 B0l peviee mbAde, Bodutlitg paaiEs. Terms Bnd COA0AS, BT TEr
sl andd rigk anlprmaiign- The comgdey™s podkpies oe § ridey and i
Trap muarggemgsd has oeeral takty for the ard gweright of the company’y thik managemest inmewors The
panys fak i« POkt @k bnr anlabihed Bo dendily and Srdiyie Lhe fiik laded By The comadny, Bo il apsoapdiile M lmits aod
arsd ig roaky arsd gih ce b bmely, Mgk managpement policien, procedures and sniems aoe nevirwed regulary 1o reflect
changes bn murked condfiom and Bhy company’s $tkitien. Thiy nofe preveck information sbiost The company’i sapaiure 1o quch of e
g sk, the , Pl and |1  ard gy rhl, and e company’s management of
gaprial, TR compary has eapgene 5o Th tollgeeing risks Troem 55 e of finargial piremaenis,
] CrpStink
b Leguadity rnk
£] MAario ik
#2101 Creda shk

Crpdl ridk . B ol of Tegnoied bods B e company @ @ dusbomer or couniergarty B0 @ Nisgncial mifngmeat L3 19 meet ity coslfactual
b e el ariees pringipaly o (e CORpany 't DE0Eaabes I isaEinments

420000 Expiniiang 1o credn ikl
Pl it e avadiant o Painedial Siditi repeenenty the Wonifeaini Cobilel Buptdere. Th @iabitesm dxidaurs beOdd ik ol the tepdeling date

wak da gl iminimiigi .
50 Jufes 2015 4] bane 1018
Morbe|E] Taks Taka
Invepimanis i FRAs 12 LTIE216461 LILESD043]
AeSvangel and Sapauty o1 E1RET LML TG Q0% LR TR
Trade sod glher recaveabin BES LA TR0 SENTES0.TEE
Bt Mo reldiid comganat HY T.089 AR3 I1% LEIT BT
o il Bbshs LT H] FrE LT 13,554,157
TR LIOITIANS  ILIRLICEGAE
[1] Tt mfad ERupt DipCmiwabdiel.
ihe comparny’i fapdiung 10 &ede Nl i infiuended maknly by the ol pach , masagemend aha
oo Ehe Tachan, Bt may fusren he cread rik of ity bhaue, g the dedsuit sk of fhe industry in whikh
trzv . Dharing eyt v B0 Juse 20UE: S0.81% [2008: 39 71%] of Lhe ‘e Bt Baliree wa wilh relafed partari Baried on

he oyt CparHinns Theere i e (onoensratan of cregkl ik

[l Ry Frecom o o il Toempaniss
Tha corryfg BRSUAL FRRRFLEREL Bmiunl phad 10 Sne ol The Bber comAsredl 1O Mgt bl Oparataorgd Rrands fegm Lims 05 Eme, The
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titardag T L S mchedieg D1 %0% (00 lure 301 L] S0%] irderend gy areem anad Bor rag presribed repaymient chadile
[hii Carihs and cimih eguivalants
The Group Beid cidh 32 banis of Tie JRE51.250 o2 M0 June 2009 | 30 June J008: T TL94A,1ET], which neprasents ifs manimam orodit
Eadiriute 0 M aasel The Batiste wilh banis are marlened wis Both kscal bianch of | bariky and nekeduled
[FTE

30 e 2019 5 June BE1E
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AL 0T i i

IFgdst e b al the decoLing daie Ml il




42.001.03 Credit sxposune By £redit rating

Al at 30 e 2019
Credit rating Azt ™)

Teade recevables [ 3,774.275.70] PR
Other recervables ] 165,096 161 1.26%
Achegnies, deposits and pregayment HH BLETL,MTa38 45.95%
Coth gnd cavh egquivalents

Canhs in Bgng IFTELS [ERE 1L
CarkP W1 Basrlih 13,451,393 BAlk
Al Bank Lim&ed Al 2077279 F.251%
A Ayt llami Bank Lsgd Ay 18592 Q.08
Bard Asia Limited AAT ABAES =R 1T
Commercial Bank of Ceylon LT 6199 O0ZE%
Ditabea B Lasvtipdd L Jed 66 L535%
Mlhwmlimﬂﬂ Al BS5.500 LAl
Laatern Dank Linited Afi+ 55946075 64BN
IFIC Bask Livetipd AAT 50 880 [l i
Islami Bank Bangiadess Limited AAA E4TL134 51
ramuna Bank Limined LR 105481 Qarre
htpghing Qani Limied A &5, 700 Q22 1%
Pl Trust Bank Limited Ak a%4.308 TO2E%
N#tkonal Bank Limited fidy 74,155 QA5
Qe Bank Limited L] Shear 0235%
Preveigt Bank Limitgd Adya 150625 a671%
Prima Bark Lrted L) 1562617 11.414%
Pubali Bank Limited A+ 111376 Qadid
SEahjalal Hlami Back Lorahed AAT 240,506 LOT¥%
Soatea! Isdaew Bl Lasend fig FoLE0 =8 by
fcndih Bank Limaed A SEA03 Q24T
fouh [as ek Limitied Ak 592 000¥%
Saate Bank of india AAK Toan Q.00
faerarg Bank Limiled L] 3532 [=HiaE Y
T City BNk Lirmiped AT 464 E30 200N
Tausr Bank Limitgd HAAT BELILG [ i-Ea
Linsed Commancial Bank Liwined Ak 2rL414 1004
Liteasa Bank Limited A 40497 O0Es

4102 Liquidity sk

Ligguisfity itk [ e rivh thad the Company wil grogeenter aiffaogity in meeting the obpations asboriated with ity Bnancial ebdites that are
weitiad oy @elieEnng cath. The Comoanmy's S0efoedh 1o mansging bqusty i3 0o &fda's, b [0 35 podsible, that it will Ehwiyi have duiSsnt
Iguiddity o et ity BRI when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, withoul inturting unacceptable ledses of risking damage
L2 [P COTay L Pt NG,

Expaosisre 10 Liguidity ridk

T Todborarifog 2 1 Conlraclual mabarilies of financial Rabl ity

Mon-derivative lnancial Earrying Contractual cash Maws
Interast rate Teiguny 1han &
Rabilities amounl Whthin 12 manths 1065 yeads yaars Totsd
Anat ) jore 3029 Taia Taka Taks Taka Tala
Lang L m badrowingh LEEOMTIE AN -12% 1.722.308,153 L. 138 058,168 . 2,BE0,367 351
Tende payabia 137,008 508 LT UL 7005, O L ' 117,005 608
Shart berm boerowings 25000.BE2 20 450%- 13M FSOSOE53 130 25000,852, 130
Liabilnies lor eagenses 08,080,727 Hfh B0R.0a0. 77 . E03,030.727
Dest 1o reldted companiey 59, 5B EAT 11.50% 569543 637 B S0 AR 6T
Crbagr Haplead 1 rete 1% 7 ¥ 554 LT 19,739,554 & 19, THLS54
15,190,544, 00T 28,052 445, 819 1.138,05E, 168 T9.090, 50 007
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Area

on-derieative financiy Contractual cash flowd

Carrying
Intareil rake More than 5

o armaeant 'H'I'I'Hﬂ_]! montie 1 ‘Hl-im “L" IIPFH

& at B0 June 2OLE Taks Taky Taks Takia Tabis
Long lerm B roming A5TANLNE 4% - 10N 1715006 484 DRSO ST - 470,130,118
Trite pargiley 100413591 A 10151099 . . 10,513,591
Shor term Doenosngs 26 116985 52 BSW - 12.5% Db 126549512 . L 26.126,945.531
LiabibEi lar eapeansis 548,047, 606 A S4H 547,805 - . 548,547 506
D 13 relatied ompanin £59,306,643  11.50W 650, 306,643 . . £509,305, 643
ket skl &4 0BT 012 HirA 54,087,012 . i &3, 08T L2
TI9.21%. AL, 140 FE T TR CE] = SLOTAEES. TOE

Mearkgt visk

MG dvik i Ehe ik Tha Changis in Paikel SOoes Juch 45 Innege eathange rates, will aflect the company™s moome o (he valee of iy
no@ings o lingssial instruments. The oopctve ol markel nsk managesssni is b0 manage and comtrol market ritk exposunes. within
BODEEL MG AT IREDES, Whidt DPlmiFeg The repen

@} Currendy risk sxposure and i3 management

Th coempany s exposad bo currency risk en sale, purchaset and borrosings that are desominated in 2 owrendy oller han the Tunctiseal
currenches of the coenpany. To manage this enpasune, the coempany kas soopted diect risk reduction methods based on matching receipts
sl parymends on assets e labilties.

Th Company 6 Saiodad 12 Foodign curningy PRl relating 10 SChidd, Silek and CiRar Traedictions which e demominated in Toresgn
turfencire. A1 1 30 June 3010, the Company was sxpoted o forsign ourrendy sisk in nespest of fisanclyl Rab@ities denominatesd in the
fiadbraning Cuffengict

[ Unpsrare o casrrendy rivk

30 June DIL9

Eura s Tuks
Faoipn oaerenty denominated assets
Carihy il cash egpabvalints - 18,404 32 1550, 766
Trade retevables - L5 366,80 16,811,535

- 14,804 32 1,559, Te5

Ffitph dudrindy dinominatid labilkt e
Liartediy Pow SO0EDA00 kally b pargmian | AEBP] FEFEE R ] Fi PR 17,865 582,549
wpradeabE Lan " 0905091 9

A3 AR5 22065108683 BA.TRM TR0
Ml eupotune (935, 483.91) [220.632,6B1.556) [18,T92,568.114)
Thip Fllgwing sigrilficant guchanges rabe is dpplad dofing th poe:

Eure usD
EmiBange fate of Eurd snd US Dollar 0055 E4LTE

A3 June DOLE

Euro vso Toka
Foreign ourrency denoeminated J5ets
Cash and cash egusvalents 252381 203,194

- 152501 215,184

Forsign Culfency demoeninated babilities
Wbty for accepled By lor payment [ABP| T4, 00E 1D 155 5FE 563.12 12 437,158, 31%
dyndizstp Laan - 18181818 1.530.383.618

311,506.1% 176,707, 78132 14,963.6321,953
Bt sxpasure T [3L306.1%] (176,70%,356.02) (18,963,408,
The i £ HEnfEant £ raie i apgieed dunng the vear

Euro o
Excharge rave of Euro and US Dodlar 103,00 BE.ED




ap0g

S5.00

(%) Sensitivity analyi

A dgpiignabily parible direngihening [weslkening) of the US Dolar agalrea BO Taka abt the repoming date veoold have alfected 1he
i e ol lindadial indliumenty densmanaled i o fooeign currency and afected equity ansd prodit or loss by the amounis shoen
Barlorw, The 3nalysis aasumes that all Gher varabies, in particulas iNenest rILEs, Pmain COMMLANT and ignanes sy impact of Torecaibed sales
and perchases.

30 June 1019 B0 June 2018
Predit or by Profit o loys

_Suengihening  _ Weakening  _Siregthening __Weaksning
Taka Taks Taks Taks

WED 2% movement) [373,536,165) 373,536,165 [298,631,887) 208,531, BT
fura  [2% movemaent] | LETE 95E) LETE 958 {626.284] 636,289
b} Transscibon rivk

Tranaaction risk i3 tha risk that the company will inCur EuBanpe l2ases whis U SOCOURTIRE rebultt 31 CranSlDed w0 Th BomE culfessy,
i) Boonomic sk
Economic fisk reders 1o the elfect of sxthings rabe Mavemests &0 the internalional i al 1k

b Intevest rivk

IAnEEsl FatE disk ansed Iroem mdeemant i nleneal rtes. The comiguny needt ba mansge bsdenest rale ik 10 20 to be able 10 ne-pary debls 31
fhey (2l dise and 0 mssmdze The Pk sulrDuiSng iNLEresl PayTncE and feceipts.

ERpOEUne bo inlEne rate disk

Thie intedest rate peolile of the compuny's interel- boaring finsndial instruments g reported to the managemest of the company 5 33
fodiows.

B0 pune 2019 32 pure Z01E

Fimed- Fati ddrumants Taks Taks
Flranciad sy BB02, 704 580 1,014,782, 255
Firandg il |1k bam, (23,850 768 10E) (30 364 387 283)

19,638,063,532) _{23,345,605,023)
Wadiable e insbie’
Fimancial s Ml el
Firgneiad Labites Bl Bl

(] (Mbar marked price rivk

Thi Lompasy i eapdied 10 oduby prde tak wheh s Inom available lor sale equily el debl spcurities. Munsgement of the tompany
readnilor s @y bt porf oo Bavied on market indsoes and ol buy and Sell DeSion ane SpEroised by e Dirthlors.

Capival expendituie comesitment
The cermpamy hic n cigatal Sibuie o0 at the reporting date.
O by 1048 QL fely 2047
to 30 june 2019 t0 30 fuse 2013
Froduction durning B year Fhenraz Ton Phgeriz Tan
5 il ALY eeasarE0_
30 peret 2019 B et DO1E
Employts

k1t
Lo

Mumber of empleyess whose meonthily salany was Belew Th 5000
Bumber ol pmplopees whose monshly salany was above Th. 3,000

v 8
]

Evenis atter regasning dape
Thie Baand of Disctan B 1R mesting hild on 2% August 2076 has recommended ng desdend for pesr sndied 30 June 23018
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SUMMARY REPORT ON

Valuation of Land Owned by
BSRM Steel Mills Limited

As at 30 June, 2019

)

ACNABIN
Chartered Accowmlimls
BDEL Bhahas [Level-13) 12 Kawran Bazar Commeroial Area, Dhaka: 1215, Bangladesh
Tel (#88-02) 410 03 o 35, BI44347 o 52, Faoe (*88-02) BI44353
Dhaka Eviertios (ffice TK. Bhaban (Level-9), 15 Kawtan Razas CF4, Dhaka-1215
Tel: [+B8-0F) S189425 wo 29, E-mail: <acrubin@bangly nery, Web: wwwacnabin.com
Rapmch Office
Jahan Building Mo T {132 1), 50 Aprahad Commercial Ases, Chittapang 4100, Bisgladeds
Tel: [+88-0050) 2517352, Fax: (*B8031) 2517353, E:mail: <acnabinog@scnabin-bd.com»
Web: www.acnabin com
S T T o
BAKEFR TILLY
INTERNATIOMNAL




ACNABIN

Chartered Acooumtanty
BDEL Bhabam | Lovel-13) Td-:plrnn:: (+&B-02) 410 20030 1 35
12 Kawran Barar Commenceal Area Facsimile: (+88-02) 410 200056
Dihaka-1215, Bangledeih E-mail: <scnshindhangla ners

Web: wwweaceabincom

Ref.: 02.155/2019/1840 (i)

The Board of Directors

BSRM Steel Mills Limited

BSRM corporate office

Ali Mansion, 1207/1099 Sadarghat Road
Chittagang 4100, Bangladesh

07 August, 2019
Dear Sir,

Summary Report on Valuation of Land Owned by BSRM Steel Mills Limited

In pursuance to the appointment letter # BSRM//1750/19, dated 4 Agpril, 2019, to carry out the
revaluation of land of BSRM Steel Mills Limited under spedific scope of wark.

We have carried out the valuation of the specific class of fived assets of the company under the

head "Land and Land Developments” as of 30 June, 2019 and are pleased to submit this
*Summary Report on Valuation of Land Owned by BSRM Steel Mills Limitad”.

Thank you.

Kind Regards

V7 &

Md. Mominul Karim, FCA
Partner
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Dhaka Exsension Office: T.K. Bhaban (Level-%), 15 Kawean Rarae C/A, Dhaky- 1205, Tek (+88-02) S1B9418 w0 29
ﬁ bﬂhﬂrﬂ“ Braach Cifsce Jahan Building Bo7 (15 Floor, Mords Side). 5% Agnbad Commencial Arca, Uhittagosg-4100. Bangladesh
il iel }. Tel: |4.5'.B.u.!.1;| 281TAED, Fax: |'4-H-H-I'.'I.'i!] 2517 H53, Eormail: u;n:hu.nﬂi.lm:hn bd comy, Webe wwweacnabindom
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ACNABIN

Chartered Accowsianiy

Preface

The Board of Directors of BSRM Steel Mills Limited appointed ACNABIN Chartened
Accountants to conduct the valuation of “Land and Land Developments™ of the company as
of 30 June, 2019 to incorporate the revalued amount to the books of acoounts of the
company as on 30 June, 2019, As such, the purpose of this valuation is solely to provide an
independent valuation result in order o ascertain fair market value as of the valuation date
and presenting these values in the company’s financial statements as ol 30 June, 2019,

Introduction

This Summary Report on Valuation of Land Owned by BSRM Steel Mills Limited is

prepared B serve the purpose of executive use of this report by the Management of the
company and should ba read in connection to the “Report on Valuation of Land Owned by

BSRM Steel Mills Limited” as separately presented [Ref, 02,155/2019/1840 (viii)].

Statement of limiting conditions and assumptions

The repart is subject to “Statement of Limiting Conditions and Assumptions” and within the
scope of work as mentioned In the "Report on Valuation of Land Owned by BSRM Steel
Mills Limited"” as separately presented,

Valvation methodology

The valuation of Land and Land Development of BSRM Steel Mills Limited as of 30 June,
2019 was conducted on the basls of "Fair market price at its location and condition®. The
expert team, as mentioned in the detailed report, was formed by ACNABIN comprising
members from ACMABIN and Pacific Surveyors Limited and one representative from the
Companyy,
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ACNABIN
Chertered Accounizui

Work procedure for the valuation
We performed the following procedures and produced the valuation report-

Team
m . m . Foarmation and
deputation
2
. callected AR e L
information ki

A full comprehensive approach was carried out by us to achieve the objectives of the
assignment as per engagement letter and all clauses of the scope of work as per
engagement ketter have been covered.

Mutated, non-mutated and mortgaged land

The total land area of the company under this valuation assignment i 16,756.2220
Decimals, Out of total measured land area, mutation prooess completed for 16,143.7120
Decimals and §12.5100 Decimals land found as non-mutated as of the valuation date.
The aggregate quantity of land mortgaged with different banks is 16,066.7120 Decimals
located at Mirsarai,

Arriving at the value of the subject land
Following decisive factors wene considered to arrve at the value of the subject property-
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a. Physical position of the land and available approach road; fﬁ::%‘i-
]'nh:-'ﬂ"
b. Connectivity to the highway; LN
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ACNABIN

Charsered Acvoantants

¢. Connectivity to Thana/Upazila Office;
d. Common utility facility inside the boundary of the land e.g. existence of electricity
connection, deep tube well for water supply and processing of gas connection;

e, Inside road and establishments to attract premium on the price;
f. Developed infrastructure facility;
9. Recent demand of large area of land like the subject land in the anea.

Furthermone, using our experiences, disoussing with the management of the company,
analyzing different information from different sources we arrived at the value of the subject
land, However, we assume no liability for such sources, Title to all land owned by BSRM
Steed Mills Limited is assumed to be good and marketable.

Summary result of the valuation

The valuation had been conducted using the falr market value method as this is maost
commonly used and appropriate for valustion of swch dass of assols. After having
completed all the tasks, fair value/market value of lands owned by BSEM Steal Mills Limited
as of 30 June, 2019 has been estimated at BDT 9.789.237.884 (Bangladeshi Taka Nine
bilion seven hundred eighty nine million two hundred thirty seven thouwsand eight hundred
elghty four only) resulting net revaluation gain of BDT €,549,918.199 (Bangladeshi Taka
Six billson five hundred forty nine million nine hundred eightesn thousand one hundned
ninety nine only).

The summary of the valuation of "Land and Land Developments” of BSRM Steel Mills Limited
a5 of 30 June, 2019 is presented below-
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ACNABIN
Chartered Accoustests

BSRM Steel Mills Limited
Summary on Valuation of "Land and Lnd Developments”

Carrying Area of '::l'::
5L Location Amount Mutated Land i
(30.06.2019) | (Decimak) Ralzable
{BOT)
[a] iy For upwarrd vakntion;
i Sonapahar & Khilmurar, Mirsarai F,106,023,350 160667120 9,640,027,200
2  East Mayar, Bartakia 14,885,571 770000 00
[A]_3,120,909,000  16,143.710 9670 827, 300 |
(8] Lst of bnds wefkch are not-mutabed:
I Sonapahar & Khilnuran, Mirsaral 115,626,870 596.1100 115,626,570
2 East Maynni, Bartakda 2783814 14,4000 2,783,614
o) _TiBatosss 6135100 118,410,684 )
[q e 1 PO RPN LU T a TP o r
I Mo such band being identified cl =
Total (A+B+C)_3,239,319,685  16,756.2220 _9,789,137,684
Bock valkie/carrying amount as of 30.6.2019 3,239,319 685
Het Revalaation Giin_6, 540,918,199
Ares;

Las® vabaation was made & of 30 Movernber, 2012,

LLarad winich Are nol mutled Fave Been aciuded for the upvward redaluation,

Assats acquined within 2 (Twa)) years are not being considered for upward revaluation.

Thee e lag betessen beo vahustions for the seme dass of scoels B more than 3 [ Thiee) years,
The kease period of the Leasshold properties ane for 3 years and as such considened for upeard
revalualion

Thae remaining kase percd of e Leasehold propertes are maore than 10 years 30d 25 sudh
crrsidened Tor upswwand revaluation.

Lared which arg under “Banma agreement” have Pot been considersd lor the upsvard revalaion,

Concluding remarks

We have arrived at the value of the subject property owned by BSRM Steel Mills Limited by
using our best professional judgments which ks dependent upon many subjective matters.
This conclusion is subject to the "Statement of Assumptions and Limiting Conditions” and
“Desdaimer” section narrated in the “Report on Valuation of Land Owned by BSRM Stesl
Mills Limited” as separately presented,
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| ACOURNGEDUS HEART, STRONGER THAN STEEL ~ |

Salma Begum* may look like any other girl, but in her heart she is different.
Through sheer force of will, she tried to stand on her own two feet after becoming a widow
at an early age. During her time of need, BSRM Foundation Training Center extended a helping hand.
Learning several handwork skills from the foundation, Salma has now become self-dependent.
With her earnings, she has raised a brick—built house and sent her son to school. She has inspired
many women to gather their courage and dream of a better future.

From Salma Begum and countless women just like her, we have learned one thing —
that there is no steel stronger than their unwavering willpower. BSRM is grateful to stand
beside such unstoppable women of steel.

BSRM

building a safer nation

: - To watch Salma’s story, 1
* Her real name and image have not been use_d in orde; to p_rotect her personal identity. d ; : scan the QR Code S




AUDITOR'S
REPORT &
FINANCIALS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2019
OF SUBSIDIARY

REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 30 MAY 2018,
DATE OF INCORPORATION, TO 30 JUNE 2019

VICTOR LING & PARTNERS (C.P.A.) LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)



BERM (HONG KONG) LIMITED
REPFORT OF THE INRECTORS

The directors have pleasure in submatting their first report together with the audited fnancial
statements for the period from 30 May 2018, date of incorporation, to 30 June 2009

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The principal activity of the company durning the period was trading of steels products, procurements
and nspection of raw matenals.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The results of the company Tor period ended 30 June 2009 and the state of the company’s affairs a
that date are set out in the financial stalements on pages 6 1w 13,

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movemenis in property, plant and equipment during the period are set oat in noe 10 1o the financial
statements.

ISSUE OF SHARE

The company wis imcorporated with a share capital of HKS1. At the tme of incorporation, | ordinary
share of HK$1 was issued, for cash, 1o the subscriber to provide the initial working capital for the
company.

DIVIDEND AND RESERVES
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend nor the transfer of any amount (o reserves
for the period ended 30 June 2019,

DIRECTORS

During the period and up to the date of this report, the following directors held office:-
Alihussain Aameir {Appomted on 30 Moy 2018)
Ali Lohair Taher {Appointed on 30 May 2018)

There being no provision in the companys articles of association for the retirement of directors by
ratation, all of the directors continue in office for the ensuing year,

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the company were enterad into or existed during the period,
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RSRM (HONG KONG) LIMITED
REPORT OF THE IMRECTORS (CONT'IY)

BUSINESS REVIEW
The company falls within reporting exemption for the period. Accordingly, the company is exempted
from preparing a business review.

AUDITOR

A resolution for the reappoiniment of Victor Ling & Parners (C.P.A.) Limited, Certified Public
Accountants (Practising), as auditor of the company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting,

By Order of the Board

Alihussain Aameir
Chairmean
Hong Kong, 12 August 2019

>
[a =
<
[an]
(%2}
o
jun)
w
L
o
(=2}
—
o
o
=3
™
L
=
)
-
=
o
[mn]
L
(=]
=
L
[a=
<T
Ll
>
[IN}
ju
==
(a4
o
s
w
—
<
(]
=
<C
=
[
oI
=
[a=4
o
o
L
[a=4
&L
[a=
o
=
(]
jun)
<<




SO0 kM ok BB EH A R A A
o e® VICTORLING & PARTNERS (C.P.A.) LIMITED
298 Certified Public Accountanis i Practising)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF BSRM (HONG KONG) LIMITED
{(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of BSEM (Hong Kong) Limited ("the Company™) et out on
pages 6 to 13, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, and the income
statement for the period then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Company are prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the Hong Kong Small and Medium-Sized Entity Financial Reporting Standard
("SME-FR5"} issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HEICPA™) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HK8A5") and with
reference to PN 900 (Revised) Audit of Financial Statements Prepared in Accordance with the Small
and Medium-Sized Entity Financial Reporting Standard issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("the Code"), and we have fulfilled our
other responzibilities in accordance with the Code. We bhelieve that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the director's report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Chur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our awdit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 1s matenally inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matenial
misstatement of this other information, we are required 1o report that fact, 'We have nothing 1o report
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12/F., Hing Lung Commercial Building, 68-74 Bonham 5trand, Hong Kong.
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e_e® VICTORLING & PARTNERS (C.P.A.) LIMITED
e8d Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
TOTHE MEMBER OF BSRM (HONG KONG) LIMITED (CONT' Y
{incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
SME-FRS issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such intemal
contral as the directors determine 15 necessary to enable the preparation of Gnancal statements that
are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concemn basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with govemance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
Process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
in¢ludes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance {Cap. 622), and for no other purpose. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantes that an awdil conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could rcasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control,
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- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control.

# oAk ok bk B 63-TAW R RE R NI2H
12/F., Hing Lung Commercial Building, 68-74 Bonham 5trand. Hong Kong.
Tel: (B52) 2B66 2393 Fax: (B521) 2866 151
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0@ Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TOTHE MEMBER OF BSEM (HONG KONG) LIMITED (CONT LN
(incorporated in Hong Eong with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONT'D)

- Ewvaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unceriainty exists related 1o events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concemn. |f we conclude that a matenial uncertainty exists, we are regquired to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the avdit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future cvents or conditions may cause the Company
to cease Lo continie as a going Concerm.

We communicate with those charged with govermance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any sigmificant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

MATERIAL USNSCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosures made in note 1 to the
financial statements concerning the possible outcome of the availability of adeguate and continuing
financial support from the company’s shareholders. The financial statements have been prepared on a
going concem basis, the validity of which depends upon future funding being available from the
company’s sharcholders. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that would result
from a failure to obtain such funding from the company’s sharcholders. We consider that appropriate
estimates and disclosures have been made and our opinion is not qualified in this respect.

=l

/5/ s seeree]

Victor Ling & Pariners (C.P.A.) Limited
Centified Public Accountants (Practising)
Hong Kong, 12 August 2019
Ling Kam Tong, Victor
Practising Certificate Number: P1455
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ok o ok By 6374 B K HI124
12/F., Hing Lung Commercial Building, 68-74 Bonham Strand, Hong Kong.

Tel: (852) 2866 2393 Fax: (R52) 2866 1811
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BSEM iHONG KONG) LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD FROM 30 MAY 2008 TO 30 JUNE 2009
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollers)

sl

TURNOVER i
LESS : PURCHASE

GROSS PROFIT

OTHER INCOME 4
TOTAL INCOME

1LESS:

GENERAL AMD ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
FINANCE COSTS 5
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 7
INCOME TAX i}

LOSS AFTER TAXATION

Perniod from
M May 18
160
20 Bun 15
HK%

473,610
44d1,292

32318
235,046
267,364

#58,340
J3.514

(524, 4000

0

(624,490)

The sccompanying Accounting Policies amd Explanatory Notes form an integral part of, and should

be read in conjunction with, these financial siatements.



BSEM (HONG KOMNG) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 JUNE 201%
{Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

As
30 Jun 149
Nole HES
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment H 54,530
CURRENT ASSETS
Mccoums receivable 536,980
Deposits §2.029
Prepayment 21,973
Cash and bank balances 36,344
GBTY, 326
Less:
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses 135,662
Amount dee to holding company 10 BT3.440
Bank loan 12 349,249
1,358,351
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES {6T9.025)
NET LIABILITIES (624,480
EQUITY AND RESERVES
Share capital 11 1
Accumulated losses {2 A0
(624,489

The finuncinl statements on pages 6 o 13 were approved and authoris
Directors on 12 August 2009,

Alihussain Aameir AT Zohair Taher
Director Direciar

r issuc by the Board of

The accompanying Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes form an integral part of, and showld
b reand i conjunction with, these lnancial statements,
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BSRM (HONG KOXNG) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE PERIOD FROM 30 MAY 2018 TO 30 JUNE 2019
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Share Accumulated
capital losses Toaal
HEKS HEKS HKS
Issue of share 1 { 1
Loss for the period 0 (624, 490) (624 490}
Balance as at 30 June 20109 | - (624 A0} (624 R4
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BSRM (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 30 MAY 2018 TO M JUNE 2019

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 GENERAL
The company 15 & private company incorporiied in Hong Kong with limited habaliy. The
registered office and principal place of business of the company is at Suite Mo, 9 29/F Pacific
Plaza, 410 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong. The principal activity of the company duning the
period was irading of sieels products, procurements and inspection of raw matenals,

Naotwithstanding the net liabilitics at the end of the reporting period, the accounts have been
prepared on the poing concern basis as the member have confirmed to provide adequate and
continuing Nnancial suppon (o the company to mect its liability as and when they Tall due.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The company qualifies for the reporting exemplion as & small private company under section
35%(1)a) for the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The company is therefore
entitled 1o prepare and present its Dnancial statements in accordance with the Small and Medim-
sized Entity Financial Reporting Standard (the 'SME-FRS') issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants,

The financial statements comply with the SME-FRS and have been prepured under the acorual
basis of accounting and on the basis thag the company is a going concem.

The measurement base adopied is the historical cost convention.

The following are the specific accounting policies that are necessary for a proper understanding
of the financial statements:-

{(a) Revenue recognition
Revenue 15 recognised when it is probable that the economic benelits will flow 1o the
Company and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following basis:-
{1y Sale of goods 15 recognised when the goods are delivered and the risks and rewards of
ownership have passed 1o customer; and
(1) Interest income from bank deposits i accrued on o time basis by reference 1o the
principal outstanding and a1 the interest rate applicable,
(my Commission income fmom inspecting matenals is recognised when the services rendere

(b} Employee benefits
Obligations  for comnbutions 1w defined contribution  retirement  plans,  including
contributions payable under the Hong Kong Mandmory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,

are recogmsed a5 an expense in the income stalement as imcurmed.
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BSREM (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 30 MAY 2018 TO 30 JUNE 2019

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

} PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'I))
(c)} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accomulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The depreciable amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is allocated on a
systematic basis over ils estimated vseful life using the strajght-line method, The principal
annual rates used for depeeciation are as follows:

Leaschold improvement 20K per annum
Fumiture and fixtures 20%% per annum
(d) Taxation

(e}

(f

Income lax expense represents current tax expense. The income tax payable represents the
amounts expecied o be puid o the taxation authonty, using the tax rates (and @x laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is not provided.

Impairment of assecis

An assessment 15 made ol the end of each reporting period 10 determine whether there 15 any
indication of impairment or reversal of previous impairment, including items of property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and long-term investments. In the event that an assets
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the carrving amount is reduced to
recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. A
previcusly recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates wsed w0 determine the recoverable amount, however not (o an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (el of amorisation or depreciation),
had no impairment losses been recognised for the asset in prior years.

Operating leases
Paymenis under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis
over the penods of the respective leases,



BSRM (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 30 MAY 2018 TO 30 JUNE 2019

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'IN
(g} Related parties
A part 15 considered o be related 10 the Company if:
(a) the party is a person ar a close member of that person’s Tamily and that person
(1} has control or joint control over the Company;
() hax signifecant infleence over the Company, or
(iii} 1% a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company; or

(b} the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the ennity and the Company are members of the same group;

(i} ome enlily 15 an associate or poanl venture of the other entity {or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entily};

{iii) the entity and the Company are joint ventunes of the same third party;

{ivy oncentity is 2 joint veniure of  third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entaty;

{¥) the entity is a post-employment benelit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Company or an entity related 1o the Company. (IF the Company 15 itsell
such a plan) and the sponsoring employers of the post-employment benefin plan;]

{wi) the entity is controlled or joinily controlled by a person identified in (a); and

(vii}) a person idemified in (a)i) has significant influence over the centity or is 2
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the

3 TURNOVER

Tumowver represents the net invoice value of goods sold less discoumns and retums,

4 OTHER INCOME
Oither income include the following:
Period froam
30 May 18
iy
30 Jun 19
HES
Commission on inspecting materials 235,030
Bank interest incoane 16
235046
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BSRM (HONG KONG) LIMITED
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 30 MAY 20018 TO 30 JUNE 2019

5 FINANCE CO5TS Period from
30 May 18
10
30 Jun 19
HES
Hunk charges 20 9564
Exchange loss 2102
Interest on bank loans and overdrafi I 456
33514
6 DIRECTOR'S REMUNERATION
Director's remuncration disclosed pursuant o section 383(1(a) of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance is as follows:-

Fees Nil

Pension scheme contributions il

Other emaluments 1400060
1443,06K)

7 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION
Loss before taxation is arrived a1 afier charging :-

Audit fee 10,000
Depreciation 13,634
Staff costs SO1.000

and after crediting:-
Bank inferest income I
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8 PROPERTY. PLANT & EQUIPMENT Leasehold  Furniture and
improvement fixtures Toal

Cost:
Additions

and a1 30 June 20019 33,800 34,370 68,170
Aggregate depreciation:
Charge Tor the period

and at 30 Junc 20019 [ 6,874 13634

Met book value:
AL 30 June 2009 27,040 27,496 54,536




BSRM (HOMNG KONG) LIMITED
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM 30 MAY 2018 TO 3 JUNE 2019

9 TAXATION
Mo provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the accounts as the company susuumned
an estimated tux loss for the year period 30 June 2019,

1 AMOUNT DUE TO HOLIMNG COMPANY
The advance is interest free, unsecured and has no fixed terms of repayments.

11 SHARE CAPITAL
As al
A0 Dy 19

Iszued and fully paid:
| ordinary share |

12 BANK LOAN
Banking facilitics made available 1o the Company are secured by personal guaranmee (rom director

13 FUTURE MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENT
AL 30 June 2019, the Tuture minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating leascs in
respect of premizes are as follows:

Mot later than one year 230,400
Later than one year 86,400
F s, Bk

15 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In additions o the ransactions and balances disclosed elsewhere i these lnancial stalements,
the company had the following material related party transactions during the year:
Pertod from
0 May 18
i
0k Bk 15
HE%

Purchase from related companies 349 249
Goods sold to related companies S, 620
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BSEM (HONG KONG) LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD FROM 30 MAY 2018 TO 30 JUNE 2019
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

TURNOVER
LESS : FURCHASE
GROSS PROFIT

OTHER INCOME
Commission on inspecling materials
Rank inerest income

TOTAL INCOME

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Audit fee
Business registration fee
Drepreciation
Electricity
Insurance
Legal and professional fees
Mandmory provident fund
Printing and stationery
Rent and rafes
Salary and allowances
Sundry expenses
Telephone charges

FINAMNCE COSTS
Bank charpes
Exchange loss

Interest on bank loans and overdraft

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

(FOR MANAGEMENT
PURPOSES ONLY)

Period from
30 May 18
1)

30 Jum 19
HES

473,610
441,292
31318

235,004

I
235,46
267, 30w

10,000
250
13,634
2,139
3,794
74,005
20,500
.344
184,094
501,000
43,561
4,019
RS, 340

20,956
2,102
1456
33,514
(624,490)
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Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA,
Chairman of the Company
along with Company Secretary

and other Directors addressed
number of issues to the
shareholders at 56" AGM

Mr. Tapan Sengupta,

Deputy Managing Director
receiving National Productivity
and Quality Excellence
Award-2017 (3rd Position in
Large Industry Category)

National Export Award,
2016-2017 BSRM achieved the
“National Export Trophy (Silver),

2016-2017". Honorable

Prime Minister Shiekh Hasina
inaugurated the ceremony

as chief guest and handed over
the esteemed award to
General Manager Corporate
Affairs Mr. Kazi Anwar Ahmed




Mr. Alihussain Akberali FCA,
Chairman receiving

The Award for “1st Highest Tax
Payer” in engineering category

Mr Aameir Alihussain,
Managing Director

Nominated Commercially
Important Person (CIP) in
Large Industry (Manufacturing)
Category for the year 2016

Mr. Tapan Sengupta,
Deputy Managing Director
reciving the National Export
Award 2015-2016




Kazi Anwar Ahmed,
General Manager
Corporate Affairs

Reciving the award
of “Best Brand

of Bangladesh in
Steel Category

BSRM awarded for being the
best electricity consumer

of 2015 under industrial
category in Power & Energy
week 2015. President Mr. M
Abdul Hamid inaugurated the
ceremony as chief guest and
handed over the esteemed
award to Managing Director
Mr. Aamier Alihussain

BSRM achieved
the “National
Export Trophy

Silver, 2013-14".
Honorable Prime
Minster Sheik
Hasina handed
over the esteemed
award to

Finance Director
Mr. Zohair Taherali

“16th ICAB National Award
for Best Presented
Annual Report 2015”




No. of AGM : 57™ AGM

Date . December 19, 2019
Venue . Shoronika Community Center, 13, Love Lane, Chattogram
Time : 12:00 PM

Financial Period: 1% July 2018 to 30" June 2019.
During the year 2018-19 operational results of the company were announced on:




RECORD DATE
The record date is 27" October, 2019.

BSRMLTD SHARE PERFORMANCE ON STOCK EXCHANGES
Movement of share price on Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. (DSE) during the year 2018-19:

DIVIDEND RATE

The Board in its 412" meeting held on 16" September, 2019 recommended dividend 25% Cash per share for the year ended

30" June 2019.

LISTING: The company’s shares are listed at the Stock Exchanges at Dhaka and Chittagong of Bangladesh.

FACE VALUE PER SHARE: Tk. 10/=
CLOSING PRICE PER SHARE

Closing Price of per share of your company as at 30" June 2019 was Taka 70.90

Year Rate of Dividend Form of Dividend
2018-19 25% Cash (Recommended)
2017-18 10% & 10% Cash & Stock
2016-17 10% Stock
2016-17 10% Cash (Interim)

2015 10% & 5% Stock & Cash (Respectively)

2014 10% Cash

2013 Nill N/A

2012 15% Cash

2011 100% Stock

2010 15% Cash
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Year Taka
2018-19(Jul-Jun) 7.88
2017-18 (Jul-Jun) 11.77
2016-17 (Jul-dun) 3,63
2015-16 (Jul-Jun) 6.12
2015 4.78
2014 0.70
2013 6.06
2012 2.91
2011 17.88
2010 4.43
Year Taka in million
2018-19 16,737
2017-18 21,032
2016-17 26,260

2015 23,340

PLANT LOCATION
Re-Rolling Unit: 147-149, Nasirabad I/A, Baizid Bostami Road, Chattogram.
Steel Melting Works: 78/79, Nasirabad I/A, Baizid Bostami Road, Chattogram.

INVESTOR CORRESPONDENCE

Mail to: Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited, Ali Mansion, 1207/1099, Sadarghat Road, Chattogram, Bangladesh
Voice: +880 31 2854901-10, E-mail: mail@bsrm.com, Fax: +880 31 610101

Web: www.bsrm.com
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

The Company/BSRMLTD
Subsidiary Company
Associate Company
Revenue

Profit

Profit attributable to the shareholders’

Basic EPS

Diluted EPS

Deferred Tax

Equity

Net Current Assets

Capital Employed
Revaluation Reserve
EBITDA

Return on Shareholders’ Equity
Return on Capital Employed
Current Ratio

Quick / Acid Test Ratio
Inventory Turnover Ratio
Total Assets Turnover Ratio
P/E Ratio

Price/Equity Ratio

Dividend Payout Ratio
Dividend Covered Ratio
Debt-equity Ratio

Interest Coverage Ratio

Market Capitalization

Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited

BSRM Steel Mills Limited & BSRM (Hong Kong) Limited

BSRM Steels Limited

Turnover or Sales

Income

Net profit after tax

Basic Earnings per Share (Profit attributable to the Ordinary shareholders divided

by weighted average number of Ordinary Shares)
Diluted Earnings or Income per Share

Difference between the carrying value of property, plant & equipment as per
financial statements and tax written down value and financial position liability

method for gratuity obligation.

Shareholders’ Fund or Owners' Fund

Current Assets less Current Liabilities

Non-current Assets plus Net Current Assets

Reserve created from assets re-valuation

Earnings before Interest, Tax & Depreciation Allowance

Net Profit after Tax divided by Shareholders’ Equity

Net Profit after Tax divided by Capital Employed

Current Assets divided by Current Liabilities

Current Assets less Inventories divided by Current Liabilities
Revenue divided by Inventories

Revenue divided by Total Assets

Market value per share as at reporting date divided by EPS
Market price divided by face value per share

Yearly dividend per share divided by EPS

Net Profit after Tax divided by declared Dividend

Current plus long term liabilities divided by shareholders’ equity
EBIT divided by Interest expenses

Market price per share multiplied by Ordinary number of Shares

GLOSSARY OF TERMS




Olipur Market,
Goneshpur, R K Road, Rangpur
Tel: +88 01714094579

RANGPUR
OFFICE

Tin Matha Railgate,

BOGURA Puran Bogura, Bogura

OFFICE Tel: +88 05160792, +88 05164169,
+88 01714084368

235/2 Alupatti 1K(t)|i,1:rh (:rl:narsp?l:;t
Boalia, Rajshahi Bagdad Tanzia Tower, (3rd floor), Tek: 8% o1 ’733007898
Tel: +88 01730703013 Tangail Road, Chandona Chowrasta, Gazipur &%

Tel: +88 01714105052

RAJSHAHI
OFFICE

Jamtali More, Churkhai,
Sader, Mymensingh
Tel: +88 01777764600

492, Ripon Tower

GAZIPUR NARSINGDI (1st Floor), Titas Gas Office Road,

OFFICE

OFFICE Chinishpur, Narsingdi
Motiar Bhobon, Tel: +88 01713108206
in front of Police line
School, Dadapur Road, TANGAIL UTTARA
Mojompur, Kushtia OFFICE

OFFICE

Tel: +88 01714080514 Atlanta Trade Center, Road- 1/A, H- 1,

6th floor, Sector- 4, Uttara, Dhaka-1230
Tel: +88 0258957891, +88 0248958029

DHAKA
CORPORATE
OFFICE

Basak Tower (1st Floor)
Boro Kalibari Road, Sadar, Tangail

Tel: +88 01730787096 Jungal, Barpara,
Bandar, Narayanganj

Tel: +88 01714087682

NARAYANGANJ
OFFICE

FARIDPUR Nasir Uddin Tower, 4th Floor,
OFFICE Bir Uttam Samsul Alam Road, 104/1
Kakrail, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh
Tel: +88 028300591-95

Sonapahar, Zorargonj,
Mirsharai, Chittagong
Tel: +88 01713248755

Hafez Building 2nd floor,
(Right side) Mujib Sharak, Niltuli, Faridpur
Tel: +88 01713161018

MIRSHARAI
OFFICE

Chandrima Super Market, Airport Road
(Near the EPZ Main Gate-01), Cumilla
Tel: +88 08171988, +88 01714080657

Ali Mansion,
BAUEIF?EE : 1207/1099 Sadarghat Rd,  HIL{ILNI3
Chattogram 4100, Bangladesh OFFICE

Nowshin Tower ( 3rd floor), Tel: +88 0312854901-10

11 KDA Avenue, Shibbari, Khulna
Tel: +88 041733753, +88 01708494898

Shahid Muktijodda, ADC Kazi Azizul Islam Sharak,
(Trish Godown Road), South Alekanda, Barishal Sader, Barishal
Tel: +88 0431-2177518, +88 043162048, +88 01755545910

COX'S BAZAR
OFFICE

S.K Tower, 2nd Floor,
khuruskul Road, Tarabaniar Chara, Cox's Bazar
Tel: +88 01730014986
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PROXY FORM

a Shareholder of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited (“the company”) hereby appoint,
T IS, e (Name)
O et (Adress)

as my /our proxy , to attend on my/our behalf at the 57" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to be held on
December 19, 2019 and at any adjournment thereof or any poll that may be taken in consequence thereof and to vote on
my/our behalf as he/she thinks appropriate on all resolutions.

DALBA TIS vviiiiiiir e AaY O 2019,

Signature of the Shareholder Signature of the Shareholder
Folio /BO ID No: Folio /BO ID No:

Dated ..o Dated ..o

Signature of the witness
Note: The Proxy Form, dully filled in and stamped, must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, Ali Mansion,
1207/1099 Sadarghat Road, Chattogram not later than 48 hours before the time fixed for the holding of the meeting.

Signature Verified

Authorized Signature
Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited

ATTENDANCE SLIP

I hereby record my presence at the 57" Annual General Meeting of Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited on December

19, 2019.
/W e
BOID
Signature
Signature Bangladesh Steel Re-Rolling Mills Limited

Note: Please complete this Attendance Slip and deposit at the registration counter on the day of the meeting.









Corporate Office:

Ali Mansion
1207/1099 Sadarghat Road
Chattogram, Bangladesh.
Tel: +880 31 2854901-10
Fax: +880 31 610101

Email: mail@bsrm.com
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